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1.

Purpose

1.1.

The purpose of this policy is to establish a borrowing framework for the
Municipality and to set out the objectives, policies, statutory requirements and
guidelines for the borrowing of funds, in order to:
•

Manage interest rate and credit risk exposure:

•

Maintain debt within specified limits and ensure adequate provision
for the repayment of debt:

•

Ensure compliance with all Legislation and Council policy governing
borrowing of funds.

1.2

This Policy should be implemented in conjunction with the approved Liquidity,
Funding and Reserves Policy.

1.3

This policy is implemented to provide guidance on the appropriation of capital
funding resources on a sustainable basis in the longer term.

1.4

Although legislation provides guidance as to the broader framework to ensure
financial management of resources to ensure the Council meets all of its
obligations timeously, it is not prescriptive with regards to quantifying not only the
prudent level of Borrowing but more so the optimal level hereof.

1.5

Therefore in this Policy cognisance has been taken of the legislative guidelines
whilst more prescriptive guidelines are set for the optimal management and
monitoring of external funding sources to the Municipality’s avail based on sound
financial practices.
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2.

Legislative Framework

2.1

All borrowings made by the Municipality shall be subject to the requirements of
the Local Government: Municipal Finance Act, 2003
Municipal Regulations on Debt Disclosure

(

(

“the MFMA’) and the

“the Disclosure Regulations’) made

thereunder and published under GN R 492 in Government Gazette 29966 of 15
June 2007.
2.2

Further the MFMA Circular 71 stipulates the following guidelines regarding
borrowing:
Capital Cost (Interest Paid and Redemption) as a % of Total Operating
Expenditure

2.3

Capital Cost (Interest Paid and Redemption)! Total Operating Expenditure xlOO
Criteria: 6% 8%
-

Debt (Total Borrowings) I Revenue
2.4

(Overdraft
+

+

Current Finance Lease Obligation

Short Term Borrowings

+

+

Non Finance Lease Obligation

Long Term Borrowings)! Total Operating Revenue

Criteria: Maximum 45%
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3.

Definitions
Any word or expression used in this policy shall, unless the context clearly
requires a different interpretation, bear the same meaning attached to it in the
MFMA or the Disclosure Regulations, as the case may be; provided that if there
is any conflict between a definition contained in the MFMA and a definition
contained in the Disclosure Regulations, then the definition contained in the
MFMA shall prevail.

4.

Types of Debt

4.1

This policy applies to the debt incurred by the Municipality through the issue of
municipal debt instruments or in any other way.

4.2

Without derogating from the generality of the preceding subparagraph, this policy
will apply:
4.2.1 To any debt, whether short -term or long term;
4.2.2 To any debt incurred pursuant to any financing agreement, which includes
any of the following agreements under which the Municipality undertakes
to repay a long-term debt over a period of time:
4.2.2.1 Loan agreements;
4.2.2.2Leases;
4.2.3 Instalment purchase contracts;
4.2.4 Hire purchase arrangements;
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4.2.5 To any debt created by the issuance of municipal debt instruments,
including:
4.2.5.lAny note;
4.2.5.2Bond; or
4.2.5.3Debenture; and
4.2.6 To any contingent liability such as that created by guaranteeing a
monetary liability or obligation of another.
4.3

Types of loan financing
4.3.1 Annuity Loans enable the Municipality to provide for the redemption of
loans on an amortising basis which is generally the most cost effective
method of financing often referred to as vanilla funding;
4.3.2 Bullet Redemption Loans are attractive as interest on the loan is serviced
with the capital redemption only taking place at the end of the tenure of the
loan. However, this method is more costly as interest is paid on the full
debt throughout the term as the Capital does not reduce. This type of loan
also requires an annual contribution to a sinking fund, which in essence
then mimics the traits of an annuity loan although at a higher cost. The use
of such structure warrants a detailed motivation based on the benefits to
the implementation of the capital project;
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4.3.3 Sculpted Repayment Loans offer a combination of the above two types, as
loans are sculpted according to the potential cash flows to be generated
from the capital project in future. For example the following can be included
in a sculpted loan:
4.3.3.1

A capital grace period in the first years of the development of
the capital project;

4.3.3.2

An incremental annual increase in the repayment in relation
to the projected growth in revenue from the project.

5.

Principles Guiding Borrowing Practices
The following principle shall guide the borrowing practices of the Municipality,
namely:

5.1

Risk Management: The need to manage interest rate risk, credit risk exposure
and to maintain debt within specified limits is the foremost objective of the
borrowing policy. To attain this objective, diversification is required to ensure that
the Chief Financial Officer prudently manages interest rate and credit risk
exposure;

5.2

Cost of Borrowings : The borrowings should be structured to obtain the lowest
possible interest rate, on the most advantageous terms and conditions, taking
cognisance of borrowing risk constraints, infrastructure needs and the borrowing
limits determined by Legislation;
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5.3

Prudence: Borrowings shall be made with care, skill, prudence and diligence. To
this end, officials of the Municipality are required to:
5.3.1

adhere to this policy, and other procedures and guidelines;

53.2

exercise due diligence;

5.3.3 prepare all reports in a timely fashion;
5.3.4 ensure strict compliance with all Legislation and Council policy.
6.

Factors to be taken into account when borrowing

6.1

The Municipality shall take into account the following factors when deciding
whether to incur debt:
6.1.1 the type and extent of benefits to be obtained from the borrowing;
6.1 .2 the length of time the benefits will be received;
6.1.3 beneficiaries of the acquisition or development financed by the debt;
6.1.4 the impact of interest and redemption payments on both current and
forecast income;
6.1.5 the current and future capacity of the Municipality’s revenue base to pay
for borrowings;
6.1 .6

other current and projected sources of funds;

6.1.7 likely movements in interest rates for variable rate borrowings;
6.1.8 competing demands for funds;
6.1.9 timing of money market interest rate movements and the long term rates
on the interest rate curve.
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6.1.lOThe

Borrowing

and

other financial

ratios

norms,

standards

and

benchmarks applicable to comparable municipalities
6.2

The Municipality will, in general, seek to minimize its dependence on borrowings
in order to limit future revenue committed to debt servicing and redemption
charges.

7.

Sources of Borrowings

7.1

Subject to any particular determination of the Council of the Municipality, the
Municipality may enter into financing agreements with:
7.1.1

Registered South African Banks;

7.1.2 The Development Bank of Southern Africa;
7.1.3 Vendors or suppliers of goods acquired under leases, installment
purchase contracts or hire purchase arrangements;
7.1 .4
7.2

Any other institution approved by the Council from time to time.

Unless the Council of the Municipality specifically determines otherwise, the
Municipality shall not incur any debt by the issuance of any municipal debt
instruments.

8.

Short-term Debt
8.1 The Municipality may incur short —term debt only in accordance with and in
the circumstances contemplated in Section 45 of the MFMA.

Policy Title: Borrowing Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for Revie Submitted to Council on 3 1/03/2020 with Draft Budget per Item C/21172/03/20
-

8

Page 9 of 17

8.2 In particular, the provisions of section 45 (1) of the MFMA must be noted,
these requiring that the Municipality may incur short —term debt only when
necessary to bridge:
82.1 Shortfalls within a financial year during which the debt is incurred, in
expectation of specific and realistic anticipated income to be received
within that financial year; or
8.2.2 Capital needs within a financial year, to be repaid from specific funds
to be received from enforceable allocations or long-term debt
commitments.
8.3 Furthermore, as required by section 45 (4) of the MFMA, the Municipality
must pay off short term debt within the financial year.
9.

Overdraft Facility
9.1 Overdraft facilities are regulated by Section 45(3) of the MFMA.
9.2 The current policy of the Council of the Municipality is that the Municipality
shall not have an overdraft facility.

10.

LongTerm Debt
10.1 The Municipality may incur long-term debt only in accordance with and in the
circumstances contemplated in Section 46 of the MFMA.
10.2Long-term debt may be incurred only for the purposes contemplated in
Section 46(1) of the MFMA, namely:
10.2.1 Capital expenditure on property, plant or equipment to be used for the
purpose of achieving the objects ofIøcal government, as set out in
Section 152 of the Constitution; or
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10.2.2 Re-financing existing long term debt, subject to section 46(5).
11.

Council approval
Sections 45(2) and 46(2) require that sort-term debt and long-term debt respectively
may be incurred only if:
11.1A resolution of the Council, signed by the Mayor, has approved the debt
agreement;
11 .2The accounting officer has signed the agreement or other document which
creates or acknowledges the debt.

12.

Refinancing
12.1 Short-term debt may not be renewed or refinanced where that would have
the effect of extending the short-term debt into a new financial year.
12.2The Municipality may borrow in order to refinance long-term debt subject to
the conditions contained in Section 46(5) of the MFMA.

13.

Early repayment of loans
13.1 No loans will be repaid before due date unless there is a financial benefit to
the Municipality.
13.2The Municipality shall therefore assess the nature and extent of any benefits
of early repayment before it makes any such early repayment.
13.3Cognisance must be taken of any early repayment penalty clauses in the
initial loan agreement, as part of the assessment.

14.

Debt Repayment Period
14.lAs far as is practical, cognisance must be taken of the useful lives of the
underlying assets to be financed by the debt for purposes of determining the
duration of the debt.

Financial Year: 2020/202 1
Policy Title: Borrowing Policy
Status: Draft for Review Submitted to Council on 31/03/2020 sith Draft Budget per Item C/21172/03/20
21
-

10

Page 11 of 17

14.2Should it be established that it is cost effective to borrow the funds for a
duration shorter than that of the life of the asset, the Municipality should
endeavour to negotiate terms for the loan agreement on a shorter duration.
15.

Provision for Redemption of Loans
15.lThe Municipality may set up sinking funds to facilitate loan repayments,
especially when the repayment is to be met by a bullet payment on the
maturity date of the loan.
15.2Such sinking funds may be invested directly with the Lender’s Bank.
15.3The maturity date and accumulated value of such investment must coincide
with the maturity date and amount of the intended loan that is to be repaid.

16.

Non-Repayment or Non-Servicing of Loan
16.1 The Municipality must honour all its loan obligations.
16.2Failure to effect prompt payment may jeopardise the Municipality’s credit
rating and adversely affect the ability of the Municipality to raise loans in the
future at favourable interest rates.
16.3ln addition to ensuring the timely payment of the loans, the Municipality
must adhere to the covenants stipulated in the loan agreements, including, in
particular, the following where applicable:
16.3.1 furnishing audited annual financial statements;
16.3.2 maintaining long-term credit rating;
16.3.3 reporting of material changes in financial position of the Municipality.

17.

Borrowing for Investment Prohibited
The Municipality shall not under any circumstances borrow funds for the purposes of

Policy Title: Borrowing Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for Review Submitted to Council 01131/03/2020 ith Draft Budget per Item C/2/172/03/20
21
-

Page 12 of 17

investing them.

18.

Interest Rate Risk Management
18.1 The impact of interest and capital redemption payments on both the current
and forecasted property rates and service charges through tariffs taking into
consideration the current and future capacity of the consumer to pay
therefore;
18.2 Likely movement in interest rates for variable rate borrowings. There are
benefits to be yielded from borrowing on a variable rate if rates are projected
to decrease in future, however it is prudent for the municipality to enter into
fixed interest rate loans to accurately budget for expenses incurred.

19.

Loan Covenants
19.lThe municipality is to maintain a Loan Covenants Register detailing the
covenants entered into with each active loan agreement until date of maturity
thereof;
19.2Compliance with all loan covenants are to be monitored and reported on
semi-annually to ensure that the municipality does not breach any covenants;
19.3 Should a default be triggered based on non-compliance with loan covenants,
the municipality is to alert Council and send the related Financial Institutions
a written commitment to address the matter within a reasonable timeframe.

20.

Level of gearing
20.1 Gearing is not only limited by the level of debt against the Total Operating
Income (excluding conditional grants) but also limited by other operational
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factors including compliance with the stipulations of the approved Liquidity,
Funding and Reserves Policy.
20.2 Should the municipality not be in contravention with any stipulations n the
Liquidity Policy or any other approved financial

policy,

then

it is

recommended that the municipality maintain external gearing at levels not
lower than 25% but not higher than 35%.
20.3The ratios to be considered to take up additional borrowings are as follows,
unless in contravention with any loan covenants:
20.3.1 Estimated long-term credit rating of BBB and higher;
20.3.2 Interest Paid to Total Expenditure not to exceed 5%;
20.3.3 Total

Long-term

Debt to

Total

Operating

Revenue (excluding

conditional grants and transfers) not to exceed 35%;
20.3.4 Operating Cash Surplus generated before loan repayments are made
covers the Total Annual Repayment at least I time;
20.3.5 Percentages of Total Annual Repayment (Capital and Interest) to
Operating Expenditure to be less than 10%.
21.

Security
21 .1 Section 48 of the MFMA provides that the Municipality may provide security
for any of its debt obligations in any of the forms referred to in Section 48(2).
21.2Such security shall be given only pursuant to a resolution of the Council,
which resolution must comply with the provisions of Section 48(3), (4) and (5)
of the MFMA.
21.3Unless sufficient motivation is provided and other than for the provision of a
sinking fund for the redemption of a bullet loan, the provision of any security
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against external borrowings, should be specifically motivated by the CFO for
approval.

22.

Disclosure
22.1 Section 49 of the MFMA requires that any person involved in the borrowing
of money by a municipality must, when interfacing with a prospective lender
or when preparing documentation for consideration by a prospective investor,
disclose all relevant information in that persons possession or within that
person’s knowledge that may be material to the decision of that lender or
investor, and take reasonable care to ensure the accuracy of any information
disclosed.
22.2 In addition the Disclosure Regulations establish detailed requirements for the
disclosure of information to prospective lenders and investors. Regulations
2, 3, 4, 5, 15, 16 and 17 are of particular importance to the Municipality, given
the nature of the borrowings which it intends to make.

23.

Guarantees
The Municipality may issue guarantees only in accordance with the provisions of
Section 50 of the MFMA.

24.

Internal Control
The accounting officer shall ensure that mechanisms, procedures and systems are
put in place to ensure that:
24.1 Duties are separated in order to prevent fraud, collusion and other
misconduct;
24.2 loan agreements and contracts are kept in proper safe custody;

Policy Title: Borrowing Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for Review Submitted to Council on 3 1/03/2020 with Draft Budget per keni C/2/172/03/20
21
-

IL’

Page 15 of 17

24.3 there is a clear delegation of duties relating to the borrowing process;
24.4 senior officials check and verify all transactions;
24.5 transactions and repayments are properly documented;
24.6 Code of ethics and standards is established and adhered to;
24.7 procedures relating to the borrowing process are established.
25.

National Treasury Reporting and Monitoring Requirements
The Municipality shall promptly submit all returns and reports relating to borrow
ings
as required by National Treasury, including reports on the Municipality’s externa
l
interest paid each month, and the quarterly itemization of all of its
external
borrowings.

26.

Other Reporting and Monitoring Requirements
26.lThe Municipality shall on a monthly basis perform the following control
and
reporting functions relevant to borrowings:
26.1.1 Reconciliation of bank accounts;
26.1 .2 Payment requisition verification and authorization;
26.1.3 Completion of South African Reserve Bank returns;
26.1.4 Maintain schedule of payment dates and amounts;
26.1.5 Complete National Treasury Cash Flow returns;
26.1.6 Submission of particulars of borrowings as required by Section 71 of
MFMA;
26.1.7 Perform analysis of ratios;
26.1.8 Scrutinise loan agreements to ensure compliance with loan covenants.

Policy Title: Borrowing Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for Review’ Submitted to Council on 3 1/03/2020 with Draft Budget per Item
C12/172/03/20
21
-

15

Page 16 of 17

26.2The Municipality shall on a quarterly basis perform the following control and
reporting functions relevant to borrowings:
26.2.1 Submit National Treasury Borrowings return
26.2.2 Prepare debt schedules for reporting to the Executive Committee.
27.

Corporate Governance (Oversight)

Compliance with the various stipulations as documented in this Borrowing Policy need
to be monitored by the Chief Financial Officer and reported on to the Municipal Manager
on a monthly basis and to the Executive Mayor on a quarterly basis.
Where compliance has been breached the Chief Financial Officer must present an
action plan to correct the non-compliance. The Executive Mayor must monitor the
successful implementation of the corrective action plans and report progress to Council.
28.

Transitional Arrangement

Upon adoption of this policy by the Council, the Municipal Manager in conjunction with
the Chief Financial Officer must determine the current performance levels of the
municipality against this Policy and present a plan of action towards achieving and
maintaining the stipulation as set out in this policy thereby utilising a more blended
funding mix for capital infrastructure investment.
The Council must approve an appropriate timeframe within which the municipality must
achieve the approved stipulations as set out in this Policy. The period between the date
of the policy adoption by Council and the target date for compliance shall be known as
the Transitional Period.
The Executive Mayor must report progress during the approved Transitional Period to
the Council.
29.

Policy Management
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The Borrowing Policy forms part of the municipality overall financial objectives and
therefore forms part of approved Budget Policies. The policy must be reviewed at least
annually during the budget revision and presented to Council for approval.

30.

Related Policies
This policy must be read in conjunction with the following other policies of the
Municipality:

31.

30.1

Budget Process Policy;

30.2

Cash Management and Investment Policy;

30.3

Virement Policy

30.4

Liquidity, Funds and Reserves Policy.

30.5

Long term financial planning policy

Municipal Manager to Implement Policy
The Municipal Manager, as accounting officer of the Municipality, shall be
responsible for implementing this policy, provided that he or she may delegate in
writing any of his or her powers under this policy to any senior finance official of the
Municipality.

32.

Commencement
This policy shall come into force on a date to be determined by Council of the
Municipality.
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1. INTRODUCTION
1.1. Petty cash is small amount of discretionary funds in the form of cash used for
expenditure where it is impractical to follow the official procurement processes
due to the nature of the goods and/or services required.

2. OBJECTIVES OF POLICY

2.1. The objectives of the policy are to:
2.1 .1. Ensure goods and services are procured by the municipality in accordance
with authorized processes only,
2.1.2. Ensure that the municipality has and maintains an effective petty cash
system for expenditure control,
2.1 .3. Ensure that sufficient petty cash is available when required,
2.1.4. Ensure that the items required to be procured are approved petty cash
items.

3. LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK

3.1. The legislative framework governing petty cash are:
3.1.1. The Local Government Municipal Finance Management Act, Act 56 of 2003,
3.1.2. The Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations, Regulation 868,
published under Government Gazette 27636, 30 May 2005,
3.1.3. The municipal supply chain management policy.
4. AUTHORISED LIMIT FOR PETTY CASH

4.1

The Petty Cash float will be maintained at RiO 000.00 per month.

4.2

The requisitioned amount must not exceed a maximum amount of R2 000.00 per
transaction as outlined in the Municipal Supply Chain Management Policy unless
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otherwise motivated and approved by the Chief Financial Officer with the
provision that the amount my not exceed the limits as determined in accordance
with the Municipal Supply chain regulations applicable to petty cash purchases.

5. PETTY CASH PURCHASES

4

Section 5
amended

4.1

The Chief Financial Officer must delegate personnel from the Expenditure
Management Division to keep petty cash registers and make petty cash
payments up to the maximum amount as allowed per transaction.

4.2

Petty cash is restricted to cash purchases up to a transaction value of R500,00
VAT included.

4.3

Petty cash purchases may not deliberately be broken up over two (2) or more
transaction claims or be split over more than one (1) day for the same items in
order to fall within the determined threshold of R500,00 VAT included.

4.4

To limit the risk of cash handling and misuse of petty cash, purchases from the
minimum amount of R501 ,00 up to the maximum amount of R2 000,00 will be
paid through a SCM Petty Cash Order System subject to the following conditions:
4.4.1 The originator of the SCM order obtains a quotation from the supplier or
service provider,
4.4.2 The Director and/or delegated signs the quotation, reflects a U-Key and
writes: “Request for Petty Cash Order” as an approval for petty cash
procurement,
4.4.3 The originator submits the quotation to Creditors Section for processing,
4.4.4 The Creditors Clerk completes an SCM Petty Cash Order and records the
transaction in the SCM PCO Register,
4.4.5 The Creditors Clerk will issue an SCM Petty Cash Order Number (as per
register),
4.4.6 The SCM PCO voucher will then be submitted to the Manager: Expenditure
and/or delegated official for approval,
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4.4.7 On receipt of the P00 voucher, the originator would then collect the goods
and be issued with an invoice which he/she will submit to Creditors Section
for payment,
4.4.8 The Creditors Clerk will then process a direct payment to the supplier.
4.5

The SCM Petty Cash Order Register will be submitted to the Manager:
Expenditure as part of monthly reporting.
Section 6
amended

6. APPROVED LISTOF PETTYCASH PURCHASES

6.1. Approved items for petty cash purchases, but not limited:
6.1 .1

Refreshments and catering/entertainment for official meetings and events,

6.1 .2. Pay-as-you-go cellular airtime,
6.1.3. Purchases of an urgent nature where it is impractical to follow the official
procurement process, and/or
6.2. Approved items for petty cash reimbursements through direct payment method:
6.2.1. Materials for urgent repair work not kept or not available at the municipal
stores;
6.2.2. Ad hoc stationery items;
6.2.3. Refreshments and catering/entertainment for official meetings and events,
6.2.4. Materials of special nature only available at specific suppliers; and
6.2.5. Purchases of an urgent nature where it is impractical to follow the official
procurement processes.
6.3. Departments may not utilize the petty cash for the following items:
6.3.1. Approved store items which are kept at the municipal stores,
6.3.2. Any items which can be classified as assets,
6.3.3. Subsistence and travel claims;
6.3.4. Safety equipment and clothing such as clothes, ear protectors, safety
glasses, etc.,
6.3.5. Wages for contract work performed which may or may not include material,
6.3.6. Fuel purchases,
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6.4. Petty cash specified in 6.2 above must be approved by the Chief Financial Officer
or Manager: SCM and/or any delegated senior official prior to the transaction
being processed.

7. SAFEGUARDING
6.1

The petty cash box is to be safeguarded in a lockable safe and locked away when
not in use during normal business hours.

6.2

The keys of the petty cash box must be safeguarded by the petty cash official.
After normal business hours, the responsible petty cash official must lock away

6.3

6.4

the petty cash box in a fire and theft resistant safe as identified.
The petty cash officia’ is responsible to keep the keys of the cash box, whereas
the Assistant Accountant: Creditors is responsible to keep the keys of the safe.

8. TRANSFER OF PETTY CASH BOX AND KEYS

8.1. When the petty cash box is transferred to another delegated official, petty cash
must first be reconciled and be verified by the Asst. Accountant: Creditors before
being officially handed over. The new incumbent must sign for the petty cash box
as well as for the keys to the box.
8.2. The Asst. Accountant: Creditors will be responsible to record the transfer of the
box as well as the transfer of the keys in the appropriate register and also ensure
that the officials sign the register.
8.3. The Asst. Accountant: Creditors must ensure that the new holder of the petty
cash box is aware of his/her responsibilities relating to the petty cash transactions
as well as the contents of this policy.
8.4. For proper segregation of duties, the following should apply:
8.4.1. only the official delegated official may have the key to the petty cash box,
8.4.2. the Asst. Accountant: Creditors must ensure that the petty cash box in the
lockable safe,
-
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8.5. The spare keys of the petty cash box must be in
the possession Manager:
Expenditure and the spare key of the safe must be in the poss
ession of the Chief
Financial Officer.

9. OTHER

9.1. The maximum amount allocated in a petty cash box
will be determined from time
to time by the Chief Financial Officer, based on the operati
onal requirements of
the municipality and the risk of safeguarding petty cash box.
9.2. When the amount in petty cash box is increased, the
Accountant: Creditors must
draw a cheque and for encashment with the municipal banker
.
9.3. The responsible petty cash official must sign for the acce
ptance of the increased
cash amount together with the Asst. Accountant: Creditors
and verified by the
Accountant: Creditors.

10. PETTY CASH REPLENISHMENT
10.1.Petty cash replenishments will only be done after having
fully exhausted the
available cash in the box.
10.2. A proper petty cash register must be kept where each disb
ursement of petty cash
transactions are recorded.
10.3. The minimum detail to be recorded in the petty cash registe
r is:
10.3.1.
department name,
10.3.2.
10.3.3.

U-Key to allocate petty cash transaction,
name of vendor,

10.3.4.

date,

10.3.5.

amount issued, and

10.3.6.

name of person.

10.4. The petty cash register with all petty cash vouchers,
receipts or slips must be
attached to the cheque and/or request for payment voucher.
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10.5. The Asst. Accountant: Creditors must check the petty cash float against the petty
cash payment vouchers.
10.6. The amount must be the difference between the petty cash float and the
maximum allowable amount allocated to the petty cash box.

11. DISBURSEMENT OF PETTY CASH
11.1.All petty cash disbursements must be completed on the prescribed petty cash
voucher, authorized by the delegated official of each department as approved by
Council in terms of the delegation of authorities.
11 .2. The authorized official must ensure that funds are available in the budget prior
the submission of claims. The Budget Office must also provide with confirmation
to the U-Key utilized and the availability of funds.
11.3.An invoice or an original receipt, clearly indicating the description of items
purchased must support the petty cash voucher.
11 .4. The authorized official or delegated person must sign for the acceptance of the
petty cash monies and ensure that the monies are correct. Once paid out, the
Expenditure Management will take no responsibility if the money is not received
by the originator of the transaction.
11 .5. In the case where a petty cash advance has been granted: the recipient of the
advance must submit an invoice and/or original receipt within five (5) working
days from receipt of the advance to the petty cash official from when he/she
received the cash advance.
11 .6. Where proof of expenditure could not be provided on petty cash advances within
the prescribed period, the advance will automatically be deducted from the
respective employee’s salary.
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12. SHORTAGES AND LOSSES
12.1. The holder of the petty cash box will be held accountable for
losses and shortages
unless there is physical evidence of breaking-in and no act
or omission on the
part of the relevant official contributed to the loss.
12.2. All the identified shortages and/or losses must immed
iately be reported to the
Chief Financial Officer and paid in by the holder of the petty
cash box.

13. INTERNAL CONTROLS
13.1.Surprise petty cash audits must be concluded on random
basis throughout the
financial year.
13.2. Petty cash reconciliations with the general ledger must
be reconciled before 30
June of each year and the petty cash replenished to the
maximum amount
allowed.
13.3. The petty cash reconciliations must be verified by the Accou
ntant: Creditors and
approved by the Manager: Expenditure. A copy of the register must
be submitted
to the Manager: Annual Financial Statements for audit purp
oses.

14. REPORTING

14.1. A monthly reconciliation report, including the total
amount of petty cash
purchases for that month, must be prepared by the petty cash
holder.
14.2. The monthly reconciliation report of petty cash must
be reviewed by the
Accountant: Creditors or delegate and verified by Manager: Expen
diture.
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15. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION
15.1 Petty cash will be reimbursed from Monday to Thursday betwee
n 14h00 until
16h00.

16. REVIEW

16.1.This policy will be reviewed annually to be in line with municipal
practices and
legislation.
17. SHORT TITLE
17.1. This policy shall be called the Petty Cash Policy of the Bitou Munic
ipality.
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Whereas section 96 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act No. 32 of
2000 (hereinafter referred to as the Systems Act) stipulates that a municipality
must adopt, maintain and implement a credit control and debt collection policy;

And whereas section 97 of the Systems Act stipulates what must be provided for
in the policy;

Now therefore the Municipal Council of Bitou Local Municipality accepts the
following Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy:
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BITOU LOCAL MUNICIPALITY

CREDIT CONTROL AND DEBT COLLECTION POLICY

-

Formatted: Left

DEFINITIONS
For the purposes of this policy the wording or any expression will have the
same meaning as contained in the Act, accept where it is explicitly
indicated otherwise and means:
1.1

“occupant”

—

any person that occupies any property or portion thereof,

without taking cognisance of the capacity in which he/she occupies the
property;
1.2

“property”

—

any portion of land, of which the boundary has been

determined, within the jurisdiction of the municipality;

1.3

“owner”
(a)

the person in whose name the title of the property is rightfully
vested;

(b)

in the case where the person in whose name the property is
rightfully vested becomes insolvent or deceased, that person under
who the administration or control of such a property is vested as
curator, trustee, executor, rightful manager, liquidator, or any other
legal representative;

(c)

in any event where the municipal council cannot determine the
identity of such person, any person who may rightfully benefit from
such stand or any building thereon;

(d)

in the case of a stand for which a rental agreement of 30 years or
longer have been adopted, the hirer thereof;

(ei

with regard to:-

(i)

a portion of land demarcated on a sectional title plan which is
registered in terms of the Sectional Titles Act No. 95 of 1986,
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and without limiting the aforementioned stipulations, the
developer or governing body with regard to the common
property; or
(ii)

a portion as defined in the Sectional Titles Act, the person in
whose name that portion is registered in terms of a sectional
title deed, including the legally appointed representative of
such a person;

(f)

Any corporate body, including but not limited to:
A company registered in terms of the Companies Act No. 61

(i)

of 1973, a trust inter vivos, trust mod/s causa, a close
corporation registered in terms of the Close Corporations Act
No. 69 of 1984, and a Voluntary Association;
(ii)

Any local-, provincial-, or national authority;

(iii)

any council or governing body instituted in terms of any
legislation enforceable in the Republic of South Africa; and
any embassy or other international entity;

(iv)
1.4

“rightful representative”

—

the person or organisation legally appointed

by the municipal council to act on behalf of the municipal council or to
perform a duty on behalf of the municipal council;
1.5

“Chief Financial Officer”

the person, appointed by the municipal

council, in control of the finances regardless of the title attached to the
post;
1.6

“client”

any occupant of a property where to the municipality agreed to

deliver services or already delivers, or if the occupant is not responsible,
the owner of the property;
1.7

“Engineer”

—

the person in charge of the civil and electrical sections of

the municipality;

1.8

“Municipal Manager”

—

the person appointed in terms of section 82 of the

Local Government: Municipal Structures Act No. 117 of 1998, including any
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person acting in the position or to whom the authority have been
delegated;
1.9

“municipal services”

—

the services provided by the municipality, such

as the provision of water and electricity, refuse removal, and sewerage
removal, where service charges are levied;
1.10

“municipal account”

an account reflecting the costs for services

rendered by the municipality or any authorised or contracted services
provider and/or property tax in the form of, but not limited to:(a) “yearly account” delivered yearly and in the levies indicate property tax
and/or building clause, availability fees, sewerage removal and refuse
removal; and
“monthly account” delivered monthly and indicates electricity,

(b)

water, sundry levies, housing rental fees and instalments, as well as
the monthly instalment of yearly services paid on in monthly
instalments;
1.11

“municipality”

the organisation responsible for the collection of funds

—

and provision of services to clients of Bitou Local Municipality;
1.12

“council” —the municipal council of Bitou Local Municipality;

1.13

“interest”

—

a cost levied with the same legal preference as service tariffs

and calculated against an interest rate determined by the council from time
to time;
1.14

“equipment”

a building or other structure, pipe, pump, wiring, cable,

meter, machine or any fittings;
1.15

“defaulter”

—

a person owing money to the municipality after the due date

has lapsed; and
1.16

“Act”

—

the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act No. 32 of 2000, as

amended from time to time.
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2.

OBJECTS OF THE POLICY

The objects of the policy are to:
2.1

provide a framework within which the municipal council can exercise its
executive and legal authority with regard to credit control and debt
collection;

2.2

ensure that all funds owed and due to the municipality are collected in a
financially sustainable manner, and utilised in the best interest of the
community, residents and taxpayers;

2.3

establish a framework for customer care and support to indigent
households;

2.4

establish credit control measures and to describe the sequence of steps;
draft procedures and mechanisms with regard to credit control and debt
collection; and

2.5

2.6
3.

3.1

Establish realistic objectives with regard to credit control and debt collection.
PRINCIPLES OF THE POLICY
The administrative integrity of the municipality must be maintained at all
times. The democratically elected councillors are responsible for policy
making, whilst it is the responsibility of the Municipal Manager to execute
such policies;

3.2

Consumers must complete an official application form wherein they request
the municipality to connect them to service connection points. Owners must
in writing take responsibility for the debt as debtor of last resort and liable
for payment of any outstanding balance due and owing to the municipality.
Existing consumers may be requested from time to time, as determined by
the Municipal Manager, to complete new application forms;

3.3

Copies of the application form, preconditions for service delivery and
extracts from the credit control and debt collection policy and regulations
Formatted: Font: lOpt
,

Policy Title: Credit Control and Debt Collection PoIic
stihm:itod to C,’uncil n 31

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

Financial Year: 2020-2021

34

Page 7 of 44

of the council must on request by consumers be provided at costs
determined by the council, if applicable;
3.4

Accounts must be distributed timeously and must be accurate and easily
understandable;

3.5

The consumer is entitled to access to pay points and to a selection of
reliable payment methods;

3.6

The consumer is entitled to a good, effective and reasonable answer to
enquiries I appeals, and

may suffer no disadvantage during

the

processing of a reasonable enquiry I appeal;
3.7

Measures to enforce payments must be applied consistently and
effectively;

38

Unauthorised usage, connection and cutoffs, fiddling with or theft of meters,
service provision equipment and the reticular network, and any fraudulent /
illegal conduct with regard to the provision of municipal services will lead to
termination of service delivery, the imposition of heavy fines, forfeiting of
rights and I or public prosecution;

3.9

Both incentives and discouragement can be used in collection procedures;

3.10

The collection procedures must be cost effective;

3.11

Results will be reported and monitored regularly and effectively;

3.12

Application forms will be used to, amongst others, categorise consumers on
the basis of credit risk and to determine service levels and deposits for
services;

3.13

Goals / objectives for performance in both customer care and debt collection
must be established and pursued and corrective measures for under
performance must be instituted;

3.14

Where practically feasible, the customer care and debt collection policies
will be handled separately and will the organisational structure reflect it as
separate sections; and

3 15

The support of the principle to provide services in exchange for the payment
of overdue debts.
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4.

DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS

4.1

Duties and functions of the Municipal Council:
(a)

To approve a

budget in

line with the council’s

Integrated

Development Plan;
(b)

To institute taxes and tariffs and to determine service costs, fees and
fines in order to finance the budget;

(c)

To provide sufficient funds to provide access to basic services for the
poor;

(d)

To make provision for bad debts, corresponding with the payment
record of the community, ratepayers and residents as reflected in the
financial statements of the municipality;

(e)

To establish a goal / objective for improving debt collection,
corresponding with acceptable accounting relationships and the
capacity of the Municipal Manager;

(f)

(g)

To approve a reporting framework with regard to customer care,
credit control and debt collection;
To consider and approve regulations that will give effect to the
execution of the council’s policy;

(h)

To monitor the performance of the Municipal Manager in the areas
of customer care, credit control and debt collection through the

(i)

To adjust the budget if the council’s goal / objective for customer
care, credit control and debt collection is not attained;

(j)

To institute disciplinary steps and/or legal action against councillors,
officials and agents who do not execute the council’s policy and

Executive Mayoral Committee;

regulations or act improperly in terms thereof;
(k)

To note a list of attorneys who will represent the council in all legal
matters relating to debt collection;

(I)

To delegate adequate powers to the Executive Mayoral Committee,
Municipal Manager and service providers to execute and monitor the
customer care-, credit control- and debt collection policy;
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(m)

To adequately capacitate the municipality’s finance department to
execute credit control and debt collection, or to alternatively appoint

(n)
(o)

To support the Municipal Manager in the execution of his/her duties;
To provide funds for the training of personnel; and

(p)

To annually review the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy.

debt collection agents;

4.2

Duties and functions of the Executive Mayor:
(a)

to ensure that the council’s budget, cash flow and goals / objectives
with regard to debt collection are executed in terms of official policy

(b)

To monitor the performance of the Municipal Manager in the
implementation of policy and regulations;

(c)

to revise and evaluate policy and regulations to improve the
effectiveness of procedures, mechanisms and processes with
regard to customer care, credit control and debt collection, and

(d)

To report to the council.

and regulations;

4.3

Duties and functions of the Municipal Manager:
(a)

to implement good customer care;

(b)

to implement the council’s policy with regard to customer care, credit
control and debt collection;

(c)

to institute and maintain an appropriate accounting system;

(d)

to distribute accounts to clients;

(e)

to claim payments on due dates;

(f)

to impose fines with regard to non-payment;

(g)

to utilise payments received;

(h)

to collect outstanding debts;

(i)

to implement “Best Practices”;

(j)

to provide a variety of payment methods;

Formatted: Font: 10 p1
Formatted: Font: 9 p1

Pollcv Title: Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy
l)rit Rc.\ c
hnii (I t (
n I

alu

Financial Year: 2020-2021
F)

itt

_Lt

I

nt (

I

37

Page 10 of 44

(k)

to determine customer care-, credit control- and debt collection
measures;

(I)

to determine work procedures for the following: public relations,
arrangements, disconnection of services, summonses, attachment
of property, sales in execution, debt write-offs, sundry debtors and
legal processes;

4.4

(m)

To appoint a firm of attorneys to execute legal proceedings (e.g.
attachment of and sale in execution of property, attachment order in
terms of compensation, etc.);

(n)

to determine performance targets for staff;

(o)

to appoint staff in terms of the council’s recruitment and selection
policy to execute the council’s policy and regulations;

(p)

to delegate appropriate functions to Heads of Department;

(q)

to determine control procedures; and

(r)

To monitor contracts with service providers with regard to credit
control and debt collection.

Duties and functions of communities, taxpayers and residents:
(a)

To fulfil certain responsibilities based on privilege and/or the right to
use and enjoy public amenities and municipal services;

(b)

to pay on due dates all service fees, property tax and other taxes,
levies and tariffs as determined by the municipality;

(C)

To obtain a duplicate account at the municipal help desk in instances
where the account is not delivered within the normal account cycle;

(d)

To inform the municipality when services are no longer needed at a
specific service point, and of any change in address;

(e)

To respect the mechanisms and processes of the municipality when
exercising their rights;

(f)

To provide reasonable access to their property to allow municipal
officials to execute their functions;
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4.5

(g)

To adhere to the regulations and other legislation of the municipality;
and

(h)

To refrain from fiddling with municipal property and services.

Duties and functions of councillors:
(a)
(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

to hold regular ward meetings (Ward Councillors),
to adhere to municipal policy and regulations and to convey this
information to residents and ratepayers;
to adhere to the Code of Conduct for Councillors;
to provide input with regard to applications for indigent households
as and when requested and
to, as policy-makers, refrain from interfering with the administrativ
e
process.

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT (Appendix A)

5.

The council must institute the necessary mechanisms to set and measu
re
performance against targets with regard to debt collection, custom
er care
and administrative performance, and take corrective steps in order
to
promote credit control and debt collection.
5.1

Income Collection Targets:The council must set targets that include the following:
The council wants to collect all monies owed to the municipality. The
council is aiming to achieve a 95% collection in
the

(a)

5.2

2O2O2O211&:2O1financial
Customer Care Targets:

year.

The council must set targets that include the following:
(a)
response times with regard to enquiries by clients;
(b)
(c)

the date on which the first account must be rendered to customers;
the time frame for the reconnection of services; and

Formatted: Font: 10 pt

‘Formatted: Font: 9 Pt

P00ev Title: Credit Control and Debt Collection Polic
,S1JIU

Dri

I

Financial \ear: 2020-2021
I m C

39

Page 12

(ci)

5.3

of 44

The meter reading cycle.

Administrative Performance:
The council must set targets that include the following:
(a)
cost effectiveness of debt collection;
(b)

enquiry and appeal procedures; and

(c)

Implementation mechanism relationships.

6.

REPORTING

6.1

The Chief Financial Officer must report on a monthly basis
and
appropriate format to the Municipal Manager in order to allow the latter to
report to the Executive Mayor in terms of section 99 of the Act, read with
section 100 (c). This report must include:

6.1 .1

Statistics with regard to high-level debt collection (number of clients,
enquiries, default arrangements, increase or decline in outstanding
debtors). Where possible the statistics must be divided according to wards,
businesses (trade and industry), household, government, institutional and
any other divisions; and

6.1.2

Performance in all areas against the targets / goals agreed upon in terms of
paragraph 5 of this document.

6.2

Should the council in the opinion of the Chief Financial Officer not receive
income equivalent to the income projected in the annual budget as
approved by the council, the Chief Financial Officer will report this with
motivation to the Municipal Manager in terms of section 28(2)(a) of the
Municipal Finance Management Act as amended. The Municipal Manager
will concur with the Chief Financial Officer and immediately request that the
budget be adjusted to realistically attainable income levels (realistic
anticipated revenue).

6.3

The Executive Mayor must report to the council on a quarterly basis as
stipulated in section 99(c) of the Act.
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7.

CUSTOMER CARE POLICY

7.1

Aim
To focus on the needs of the consumer in an accountable and pro-active
manner, to improve the payment of service fees and to establish a positive
and cooperative

relationship between

the persons responsible for
payment for services and the municipality and, where applicable, the
service provider.
7.2

Communication and feedback

7.2.1

The municipality must, within its financial and administrative capacity,
undertake a process to compile a budget, which include the targets for
credit control and debt collection and communicate these targets to the
broader community;

7.2.2 The council’s policy with regard to Customer Care, Credit Control and
Debt Collection, or appropriate extracts thereof, must be available in
English, Afrikaans and Xhosa, must be available via general publication
and on specific request, and must be kept at municipal offices for
inspection;
7.2.3 The council must endeavour to release a regular newsletter focusing on
customer care and debt collection matters;
7.2.4 The Ward Councillors must hold regular ward meetings during which
emphasis must be placed on customer care and debt collection matters;
and
7.2.5 The press must be motivated to provide prominent coverage of council
matters with regard to customer care, credit control and debt collection,
and must be invited to attend council and committee meetings where such
matters are discussed.
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7.3

Metering system

73.1

The municipality must endeavour to, within practical and financial limits
provide meters for all measurable services to each paying consumer;

7.3.2

If possible, all meters must be read on a monthly basis in cuce5 of
nnoraima:ev 35 days. Should the meter -—----not be
read on a monthly

basis,
council may estimate consumption.
c-tecms-of tine eoLi

-oeeiet,oeai pc°o’

7.3.3 Consumers are entitled to submit enquiries with regard to the confirmation
of meter readings and are entitled to meter readings which is as accurate
as can reasonably be expected, but can be held liable for the costs thereof;
7.3.4 Consumers will be informed of the replacement of meters; and
7 3

Where a meter has been installed for a service, but cannot be read due to
financial or manpower limitations, or due to circumstances outside
the

control of the municipality or its legal agent, and the consumer’s
account is
calculated on average consumption, the account that follows
on the —-——reading of metered consumption must reflect the difference
---

between

actual consumption and average consumption, and the
resulting credit-or debit adjustments.
715

•

..
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7.4

Accounts and invoices

7.4.1

Consumers will receive from the municipality an understandable and
accurate account that consolidates all service fees for the property;

...

7.4.2 Accounts will be drawn up in accordance with the meter reading cycle,
and payment dates will be matched with the date of the invoice;
7.4.3 Accounts will be sent monthly in cycles of approximately 35 days to the
most recent address recorded at the municipality or its legal agent;
7.4.4 It is the responsibility of the consumer to ensure that his/her postal
address and other contact details are correct;
7.4.5 In cases where accounts are not received, the responsibility to pay the
account timeously resides with the consumer;
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74.6 The payment date is reflected on the account and under normal
circumstances is as follows:
(a)

monthly accounts are payable before or on the /5th day, or the first
subsequent work day should it fall on a weekend or public holiday, of
the month that follows on the month in terms of which the account is
rendered;

(b)

(c)

Yearly accounts are payable within a time frame of three (3) months
from the date on which such fees became due and payable; and
Accounts of councillors and employees are deducted from their
salaries / allowances.

7.4.7 Should an account not be paid in full, no smaller payment offered and
accepted will be regarded as the final payment of the applicable account;
7.4.8 Where any payment to the municipality or its legal agent by means of
transferable instrument is rejected by the bank:
(a)

The municipality or its legal agent may recuperate the average bank
costs incurred with regard to the rejected transferable instrument
from the account of the consumer;

(b)

the municipality or its legal agent must regard it as non-payment and
services will only be reconnected upon receipt of cash or a bank
guaranteed cheque; and

(c)

The municipality or its legal agent may insist on cash payment with
regard to all future accounts.

7.4.9 The

municipality or

its legal agent must, where requested and
administratively possible, issue the consumer with a duplicate account or
any acceptable alternative at costs determined by the council from time to

time.

7.4,10 If an account is not paid by the due date interest will be charged one month’
.._from Billing date. Interest will be equivalent to a full month from this date for
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7.4.11 The municipality supports the principle of a consolidated account and
reserve the right to disconnect/restrict/block any service with regards to
non-payment of the consolidated account.

7.5

Payment facilities and methods

7.5.1

The municipality must administer and maintain appropriate bank-and cash
facilities that must be accessible to clients;

7.5.2 The municipality must at its discretion allocate a payment between service
debts

—

a debtor in arrears may not specify that the payment must be used

for a specific part of his/her account;
7.5.3 The municipality may, in terms of Section 103 of the Act, with the
permission of the consumer, approach an employer to implement a debitor stop order arrangement; and
7.5.4 The consumer must acknowledge in all consumer agreements that the
use of consumer agents in the transfer of payments to the municipality will
occur at the risk of the consumer. This is applicable also to the time of
transfer of payment.
7.5.5 Debtors who pay the account by means of a credit card transaction, and
where the value of the payment is R 5 000 or more, or an amount as
determined by council when determining tariffs may be liable for the cost of
the transaction as passed on to the Municipality by the Financial Institution.
7.6

Enquiries, appeals and service complaints

7.6.1

The council will provide the following within its financial and administrative
capacity:
(a)

a centralised complaints-/feedback office;

(b)

a centralised database for complaints, that will make it easier to
coordinate and solve complaints, and to communicate more
effectively with clients;

(c)

appropriate training for officials that deals directly with the public in
order to improve communication and service delivery; and
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a communication mechanism to inform the council with regard to the

(d)

implementation of the Policy with regard to Customer Care, Credit
Control and Debt Collection, as well as other matters.
7.6.2

If a consumer is convinced that his/her account is not accurate, he/she can
request that the applicable account be investigated (dispute as per 7.7.4)
and, where applicable, the necessary corrections be made;

7.6.3 The debtor must in the meantime pay an average based on the previous 3
month’s consumption if the history of the account is available. Should this
history

not be available, the debtor must pay, without infringing

his/her rights,

an estimated amount provided by the municipality

before the payment date until the case is resolved;
7,6.4 Customers can dispute the municipal account. In order for a dispute to be
registered with the Municipality, the following procedures must be followed
—

(a)

by the debtor:
The dispute must be submitted in writing
Disuuhe Form, or dictated to the official who will record it in writing and
have it signed as correct. The document must then immediately be
lodged with the relevant authorised official;

(b)

No dispute will be registered verbally whether in person or over the
telephone;

(c)

The debtor must furnish full personal particulars including all their
account numbers held with the Municipality, direct contact telephone
numbers, fax numbers, postal and e-mail addresses and any other
relevant particulars required by the Municipality;

(d)

The full nature of the dispute must be described in the correspondence
referred to the above; and

(e)

The onus will be on the debtor to ensure that he receives a written
acknowledgement of the dispute.

In order for a dispute to be registered with the Municipality, the municipality must
follow the following procedures

.—

—•-——-—
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(a)

All disputes received are to be recorded in a registe
r kept for that
purpose. The following information should be entered
into this register,
namely debtors account number; debtors name; debtor
s address; full
particulars of the dispute; name of the official to whom
the dispute is
given to investigate and resolve; actions that have,
or were, taken to
resolve the dispute; signature of the controlling official;

(b)

An authorised controlling official will keep custody of the registe
r and
conduct a daily or weekly check or follow-up on all dispute
s as yet
unresolved; and

(c)

A written acknowledgement of receipt of the dispute must
be provided
to the debtor.

The following provisions apply to the consideration of dispute
s:

7.6.5

(a)

All disputes must be concluded by the Chief Finance Officer;

(b)

The Chief Finance Officer’s decision is final and will
result in the
immediate implementation of any debt collection and
credit control
measures provided after the debtor is provided with the
outcome of the
dispute; and

(c)

The same debt will not again be defined as a dispute
and will not be
reconsidered as the subject of a dispute.

Lessors that fail to pay such agreed upon interim payme
nts will be
and part of the normal credit control and debt collect
ion
procedures;
subject

7.6.6

A consumer may appeal against the finding of the munici
pality or its legal
agent in terms of sub-paragraph 7.7.4; and

7.6.7

An appeal and request in terms of sub-paragraph 7.7.6
must within twenty
one (21) days after notification of the findings mentio
ned in sub-paragraph
7.6.4 be addressed to and submitted at the municipality
and must:

(a)

set out the grounds for the appeal; and
rmafted:_FOnt: 10 p1
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Be accompanied of any security determined for the testing of the
metering device, if applicable.
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7.7 Customer support programmes
7.7.1 Water leakages:

(a)

If the leakage is at the consumer’s side of the meter, the consumer
will be responsible for payment of the full account;

(b)

Upon submission of sufficient proof of repair costs or sworn written
affidavit regarding the repair! repair cost the municipality may, at its
own discretion, provide relief; and

(c)

It is the responsibility of the client to control and monitor his/her
consumption.

7.7.2

Tax rebates:
(a)

The municipal council may grant on an annual basis rebates to
categories of rate payers in accordance with the tax policy and
regulations of the municipality; and

(b)

Tax rebates will be subject to criteria as determined by the council
from time to time.

7.7.3 Arrangements for payment (Annexure C)
(a)

If required, consumers in arrears must agree to change to pre-paid
meters. Subsequent to installation, the amount in arrears and the
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cost of the pre-paid meter will be payable on one of the following
methods:
(i)

(b)

7.7.4

The total in arrears are added to the account and an
agreement is arranged;

The council reserves the right to increase the required deposit /
security of debtors that opt to make arrangements with the
municipality.

Property Rates and Services in instalments:(a)

Property Rates and services must be paid in twelve (12) even
instalments, with no interest charges thereon, with the understanding
that no tax pertaining to the previous period is outstanding and that
all payments be fully paid at the date that precedes the following tax
-bird

cycle
7.8

7.8.1

Subsidies for indigent consumers (should be read in conjunction with
the Indigent Policy- (Annexure B)
A basic level of services will be provided to qualifying households with a
total bruto income which is less than a predetermined amount and meet
criteria determined by the council from time to time;
specific

7.8.2 Subsidies to indigent consumers will be financed from the equitable share
contribution from National Government and for which provision is made in
the municipal budget;
7.8.3 The subsidised services are electricity, sewerage removal, refuse removal
and water;
7.8.4 If a consumer’s consumption or use of a municipal service is less than
the
subsidised service, may the unused portion not be accrued to the consumer
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and will it not entitle the consumer to cash or a rebate with regard to the
unused portion;
78.5 If a consumer’s consumption or use of a municipal service exceeds the
subsidised service, the consumer will be liable to pay for the amount in
excess at an appropriate rate;

7.8.6 The consumption of all consumers who qualify for an indigent subsidy will
be limited to prevent further escalation of debt;
7.8.7

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0cm, Hanging: 1cm, Tab
stops: 1,25 cm, Left

If applicable, indigent households will be exempted of a portion of their
debts;

78 8 Where the account of a consumer that qualifies for an indigent subsidy is
paid in full or pays the account in full on a regular basis at the time of
application, the limitation on consumption may be lifted;
78.8

Formatted: Indent: Left: 1,25 cm, No bullets or numbering

7.9 Additional subsidy categories

7.9.1

The council may provide certain portions of basic consumption of electricity
and water free of charge to a consumer (including indigent- and subeconomic users), as determined from time to time;
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0cm, Hanging: 1,25cm

7.9.2 The council may grant donations to alleviate the tax burden on specific
categories of consumers, as determined from time to time;
7.9.3 Rebates may be granted to sports organisations, but services fees must at
least cover the cost of the service; and
7.9.4

Rebates may be granted to large scale consumers to encourage them to
reside in Plettenberg Bay, where it will be to the benefit of the
community.

7.10

Consumer categories
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710.1

Consumers will be categorised in terms of special classifications that
provides for, amongst others, the type of business, appropriate tariffs
and the risk attached to service delivery. Credit control procedures, debt
collection and customer care may differ from category to category as
determined by the Municipal Manager from time to time.

7.11

Preferential customer management

7.1 1 .1

Certain consumers can be classified as preferential consumers by the
Municipal Manager according to certain criteria, such as the number of

7.11.2

properties and volume of consumption: and
A specific municipal official will be tasked to deal with the interests
of preferential consumers, and will execute such tasks as the check
accounts for accuracy, monitoring timeous payments, and answering
enquiries.

7.12

Deviation from policy

7.12.1

Deviation from this policy can only be approved in terms of council’s
system of delegations: and

7.12.2

Deviations to be reported to council.

8.

CREDIT CONTROL POLICY

8.1

Aim

8.1.1

To establish procedures that will ensure the collection of debt and
attainment of service delivery targets, as well as to prevent the
of bad debts:
escalation
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8.1 .2

To facilitate the financial support and provision of basic services for the
indigent consumers in the community;

8.1.3

To establish measures to encourage timeous payments, and
To limit risks by means of effective management resources.

3.1.4

•
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8.2

Service applications and agreements

8.2.1

The municipality will only contract with the owner of the property;
Prior to signing the agreement, the owners and/or the lessee are entitled
upon request to receive the policy document of the council;

8.2.2

8.2.3

—

1,59 cm, Tab stops: Not at 1,59
-

The owners and/or lessee shall receive a copy of the agreement upon
the signing thereof;

8.2.4

Clients must acknowledge in the agreement that they accept liability, in
the case of non-payment, for debt collection costs, interest and fines;

8.2.5

Existing consumers will be requested to sign new agreements as
determined by the Municipal Manager from time to time; and
Should a consumer fail to enter into such an agreement with the
municipality, or to provide security, as defined in sub-paragraph 8.6, the

8.2.6

council may:
(a)

Hold the particular consumer liable for all outstanding service debts
against the property; and/or

(b)

Limit or cut off services.

(c)

8.3

With effect from 1 July 2014 new applications for electricity in all
categories will be connected to a prepaid meter system

Right of access to property
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83.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

The owner and/or lessee of the property must allow an
assigned
municipal representative access to the property at all reason
able times
to read, inspect, install, or repair any meter or service connection,
and/or
disconnect, stop, limit or reconnect any service;
The owner is responsible for the costs of moving a meter
should
reasonable access not be possible; and
Should a person fail to adhere to any requirement, the municipality
or its
legal agent may:
(a)

(b)

Request such person by means of written notification to, at his/her
cost, repair access within a specific time frame; and
Repair access without prior notification and recover the
costs
incurred from the person, if deemed an urgent case.

8.4

Enforcing mechanism

8.4.1

8.4.2

Interest can be levied in terms of applicable legislation as a
cost on all
accounts not paid on the due date; and
The municipality shall have the right to limit or stop service
s or to
implement any other debt collection actions due to late or non-pa
yment of
accounts with reference to any consumer, owner or property.

8.5

Theftandfraud

8.5.1

8.5.2

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0cm, erst ilne: 0cm

If found that any person (natural or juristic) are illegally connec
ted or
reconnected to municipal services, or that he/she fiddled with any
meter,
reticulation network or any other supply equipment, or deliver
ed any
unlawful service associated with the provision of municipal
services, or
stole or damaged any municipal property, he/she shall be prosec
uted
and/or held liable for fines, as determined from time to time;
The council shall immediately stop the provision of service
s and/or
remove services should the abovementioned action be detecte
d;
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8.5.3

The

total

account

due,

including

fines,

estimates of unlawful
consumption and disconnection-and reconnection fees, as well as
increased deposits as determined by the council, if applicable, is due
and payable immediately and reconnection cannot be approved before
these amounts are not paid in full;

8.5.4

The council shall maintain monitoring systems and teams to locate and
monitor consumers who make themselves guilty of such unlawful action;

8.5.5

An official case shall be laid at the South African Police Service against
both vandals and thieves and the council reserves the right to take any
other legal action against them; and

8.5.6

Services can be stopped immediately if any person fails to disclose
or disclose unjust information to the municipality.

8.6

Selection of clients and security

86.1

The credit worthiness of all applications for municipal services may be
checked which may include verification of information of banks, credit

8.6.2

bureau’s, local authorities, trade accounts payable, and employers;
Security deposits, whether in cash or any other security
acceptable to
the municipality, will be taken and may differ according to risk.
A
minimum deposit will be taken in accordance with amounts determined by
the council from time to time;

8.6.4

8.6.3

The municipality may increase deposits at any time at its own discretion;
Deposits may vary based on the credit worthiness or legal category of

8.6.5

the applicant, subject to the minimum requirements of paragraph 8.6.2;
The municipality will pay no interest on deposits;

,
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8.6.6

8.6.7

The deposit amount, less any amount owed to the municipality, shall be
paid back to the consumer at the termination of the agreement; and
The municipality will only enter into a municipal service contract with the
owner.

8.7

Businesses submitting tenders to the municipality

8.7.1

The Supply Chain Policy and Tender conditions of the municipality shall
include the following:

(a)

When tenders are called for the provisioning of services or goods,
potential contractors can submit tenders subject to a condition that
the consideration and evaluation thereof shall require of the tenderer
to obtain a certificate from the municipality that confirms that all
applicable municipal accounts of the tenderer or his/her directors,
owners or partners, are paid in full or that appropriate arrangements
(which includes the right of settlement in the case of nonperformance) are made for the payment of any amounts due;

(b)

No tender shall be awarded to a person unless an appropriate
arrangement has been made for the payment of amounts due. No
further debt may accrue during the contract period: and

(c)

Tender conditions include a condition that allows the municipality to,
in terms of a reasonable arrangement with the consumer: subtract
amounts due to the municipality from cash payments.

(dt The .jncioaIry wii not enter ntc nnv b.:s:ness arnoonients with
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Collection costs
Formatted: Font: 10 pt
Formatted: Font: 9 pt

Policy Titk: Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy
StIus: Drt ft Ret ow. s hmiited to
Statut: Draft Ret ow Moeh 2020

Financial Year: 2020-2021

54

________

Page 27 of 44

8.8.1

All costs with regard to legal processes, fines,
termination
services, costs and legal costs applicable to customer
care

of
and

credit control, where applicable, shall be levied against the account
the consumer and must at least reflect the actual cost.
8.9

of

Pre-paid meter system

—------The municipality shall use the pre-paid meter system:
8.9.1
(a)
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To tie the provision of electricity to a pre-paid system as pre-payment
for electrical units; and

.

+

(b)uAS a payment with regard to bad debts consisting of accumulated
municipal taxes and other levies, tariffs and fees with regard to
services such as water, refuse removal, sanitation and sewerage
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9.

DEBT COLLECTION POLICY

9.1

Aim

9.1.1

To provide procedures

and

mechanisms to collect all outstanding

amounts payable to the municipality flowing from the provision of
services and annual levies to ensure the financial sustainability and
provision of municipal services in the interest of the community.

9.2

Personal contact

9.2.1

Personal/telephonic! agent contact
(a)

The council or its legal agent shall endeavour to, within financial
limitations, personally, electronically or telephonically contact all
debtors in arrears to encourage payment and to inform them of their
arrears status and rights, if applicable, to make arrangements, or to
apply for an indigent subsidy, as well as other related matters, and
will provide information as to how and where access to such
arrangements or subsidies can be obtained; and

(b)

Such contact is not a right to be claimed by debtors

—

disconnection

of services and other debt collection measures shall continue in the
absence of such contact for whichever reason.

9.3

Service interruption

9.3.1

The

electricity-and

water supply

and

other

municipal

services

of

consumers with overdue accounts and who did not make arrangements
with the municipality in respect thereof shall be terminated, limited or
disconnected;
9.3.2

The limitation or disconnection of service can be implemented when the
municipal account is 14 days overdue;

9.3.3

The right is reserved to limit or refuse the sale of electricity or water to

9.3.4

Services shall be reconnected as soon as it is reasonably possible after

consumers with overdue taxes or other municipal levies;

payment of amounts in arrears, including the additional levies in terms of
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paragraphs 9.3.4 and 9.3.5, or the finalisation
of agreements for
instalment payments;
9.3.5

The costs of limitation and disconnection, as
well as reconnection, shall
be determined by the tariffs approved by the
council and shall be
payable by the consumer; and

9.3.6

The deposit of the defaulter shall be adjuste
d in accordance with the
applicable council policy (refer to Annexure
C).

9.4

Legal process (Anriexure B)
(Use of attorneys I Use of credit bureaus)
The municipality can, when a debtor falls

9.4.1

proceedings

9.4.2

9.4.3

into arrears, start legal

against

such debtor, which process can include
summonses, court hearings, judgments, attachm
ent orders, and, as a
last resort, sale of property in execution; exclud
ing accounts with property
Values of R350 000 and less, thus falling in the
sub-economic area.
The municipality shall exercise strict control over
this process to ensure
the accuracy and legality thereof and shall expect
regular reports from
the staff responsible for the process or from
outside parties, whether
aitorneys or collection agents appointed by the
council;
The municipality shall agree upon procedures
and codes of conduct with
such outside parties;

9.4.4

Attachment orders, in the case of employed
consumers, are preferred
above sales in execution, although both form
part of the municipality’s
debt collection procedures;

9.4.5

All steps in the credit control procedure shall
be recorded for municipal
record purposes and for information to the consum
er;

9.4.6

All legal costs pertaining to this procedure
is for the account of the
consumer and no penalties/interest will
be levied on handed over
accounts;

9.4.7

Individual debtor accounts is protected and
not the subject of public
information. The municipality may however furnish
information of debtors
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to credit bureaus by means of credit listing. This disclosure shall occur in
writing and the situation shall be encapsulated in the municipality’s
agreements with its clients;
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1,5cm

9.4.8

The municipality may consider the cost effectiveness of this process and
shall receive reports regarding applicable matters and in turn report to
the Executive Mayoral Committee;

9.4.9

The council can, on recommendation by the Municipal Manager,
consider the use of agents and innovating debt collection measures.
Cost effectiveness, the willingness of agents to work according to
applicable codes of conduct and the success rate of such agents and
products shall form part of the agreement the council will enter into with
such agents or product salespersons;

9.4.10

Consumers shall be informed about the powers, functions, duties and
responsibilities of such agents, with due cognisance of their legitimate
responsibility

9.4.11

to adhere to agreed codes of conduct; and

Any agreement entered into with an agent or product sales person must
include a clause that stipulates that violation of the code of conduct by
the agent or product sales person shall cause the agreement to be
terminated.

9.5

Rates clearance

CJG.With the sale of any property within the municipal jurisdiction the council

shall withhold the rates clearance certificate until all rates, services and
sundry costs attached to the property, is paid; and
951
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9.5.2

An amount equal to 4 (four) months service- and basic charges will be
collected in advance as part of the Rates Clearance process.

9.6

Withdrawal of claims

9.6.1

The Municipal Manager must ensure that all avenues are exhausted to
collect the municipality’s outstanding debts;

9.6.2

There are circumstances, as provided for in section 109 (2) of the Act,
under which debt collection procedures can be withdrawn, such as:

9.6.3

9.7.

(a)

the insolvency of the debtor, where the estate does not have
sufficient funds;

(b)

a balance that is, in comparison with collection cost, too small to
collect; and

(c)

where the council is of the opinion that a debtor or group of debtors
are not in a position to pay for the services; and

The municipality shall in such cases keep an audit trail of the reasons why
the outstanding debts are written off.
Debt Repayment Scheme
The municipality will give a 50% cscounrerae to all consumers who are
settling their long outstanding debtoo in full, The Thonsumers who had a
debt on 30 June 20187 will be given a 50% discount if ieseh.ee the
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10.

SHORT TITLE
This policy shall be named the Credit Control

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0cm, First line: 0cm
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and Debt Collection Policy

of Bitou Local Municipality.
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ANNEXURE

A

Formatted: Just4ed

--

PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT

1.
1.1

Revenue collection target

Payment levels of current accounts:
Increase the payment level with 3% eve,y 12 months up to 95% of all
consumers that can afford payment.

2.

Customer care targets

2.1

Response time on customer enquiries:
First response must occur within ten (10) working days.

2.2

Date on which first account will be delivered to new consumers:
At the second account cycle following the date of application or
occupation, whichever occurred last.

2.3

Reconnection time frame:
Within twenty four (24) hours after an appropriate payment agreement is
made.

2.4

Meter reading cycle:
95% of all meters must be read on a monthly basis with a maximum of
four (4) successive months’ estimates.

2.5

Repair of meters:
Within one (1) month after notification of the faulty meter is received.
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3.

Administrative targets

3.1

Cost effectiveness of debt collection:

(a)

Costs of debt collection may not exceed the total capital debt
(in
duplum rule);

(b)

Collection costs must be recovered from consumers in arrears; and

(c)

The total cost of debt collection must be recovered by means
of
appropriate credit control tariffs.

3.2

Enquiries and complaint periods:
Enquiries and complaints must be dealt with within forty five

(3045)

days,

subject to the implementation of a help desk and an electronic system
to
record enquiries and cornplaints.

3.3

Enforceability relationships:
95% of the total consumers in arrears must be successfully contacted
or
disconnected within

a

period of 12 months.
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ANNEXURE B
CUSTOMER CARE AND DEBT COLLECTION
1.

Encouragement measures

As determined by Council from time to time.

2.

Indigent subsidy

The State’s annual contribution towards relief of service accounts of
persons who qualify are handled as follows:
Formatted: Indent: Left: 1,27cm

2.1

Applications will remain indigent until such time that the applicant informs
the municipality of a change in status, provided that the municipality may
verify the Indigent status at any time.

2.2

Application forms not completed in full or missing documentation shall be

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0 cm, Hanging: 1,27cm

rejected;
2.3

Subject to the maximum income threshold prescribed by the State, the
quarterly portion of the State’s grant and for which the council have
made provision in its budget, shall be divided pro rata between qualifying
applicants for as long as such grants will be made;
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2.5

Tariffs of qualifying applicants are reduced monthly with the subsidies
calculated in 2.3 above; and

2.6

Councillors must encourage rate payers/consumers in their respective
wards to apply for participation in the indigent subsidy scheme.

3.

Debt collection

3.1

Annual accounts: If

accounts

remain

unpaid after becoming due
payable, owner)consumer will be credit listed and notice will be
served that if the owner/consumer does not settle
the amount due
within fourteen (14) days, such account will be handed
over to the
and

municipality’s attorneys for collection. If the debtor fails to pay the annual
account on the due date the annual status will automatically be converted
to monthly for future financial years.
Formatted: Indent: Loft: 0cm, Hanging: 1,27cm

3.2

The Municipality supports the principle of a consolidated account and
reserve the right to disconnectlrestrictiblock any service with regards to
non-payment of the consolidated account.
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0cm, Hanging: 1,27cm

3.3

Accounts of which the instalments for annual services are paid on a
monthly basis, and which became due and payable in terms of
paragraph 7.7.4 (a) of the council’s Policy, must receive notice that if the
owner/consumer do not settle the amount due within fourteen (14) days,
such account will be handed over to the municipality’s attorneys for
collection;

3.4

Should no response be received on the notices such accounts will
be handed over to the attorneys for collection;
immediately
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3.5

All debtors with regard to rental houses, sale schemes and self-build
schemes where the houses are still registered in the name of the
municipality, must be notified in writing that, should satisfactory
arrangements for the transfer of the applicable property into his/her
name or arrangements for the outstanding debt not be made within one
(1) month, such property will be sold by means of public auction;
Formatted: Indent: Left: 0cm, Hanging: 1,5 cm

3.6

When accounts are handed over for collection, particulars of debtors’
employers and addresses must as far as possible be furnished to the
attorneys with due regard for attachment orders;

3.7

Attorneys must report to the council on a monthly basis with regard to
progress made and the cost factor of each debtor;

3.8

Attorneys must pay money collected to the council on a monthly basis;
and

3.9

The fixed assets of debtors in arrears exceeding R 5000 and who do
not adhere to their arrangements with the attorneys must, as a last
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resort, if all efforts to collect debts have failed, be sold in execution
subject to the following procedure:

}.

Prior to the sale in execution of the fixed property, such debtors
must be identified and
—

(b)

Councillors must at notification of attachments contact the person/s
within fourteen (14) days and report to the Municipal Manager and
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its attorneys in writing.
3.10

The credit listing and hand over of accounts must be considered if:
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(a)

No other debt collection alternatives are available or exhausted (hand
over as last resort;

(b)

Cost effective; and

(c)

Valuation of the property is higher than the cut off as determined by
council from time to time.

3. 11 Acojnts with poe
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ANNEXURE C
ARRANGEMENTS FOR PAYMENT
Entering into agreement

If a consumer cannot pay his/her municipal account, the municipality can
enter into an extended payment term the consumer must:
-

(a)

sign an admission of guilt;

(b)

sign permission to take judgment;

(c)

sign a stopor debit order if he/she is in the employment

(d)

deliver proof of income on the prescribed form;

(e)

Provide three months bank statement.

(f)

acknowledge that interest will be levied at the prescribed rate against

of a

company;

the account;
(g)

pay the current portion of the account in cash;

(h)

sign an admission that should the agreement not be adhered to, no
further arrangements will be possible and that the disconnection of
water and electricity, as well as legal proceedings, will immediately
be implemented;

(i)

accept liability for all costs; and

(j)

provide annually on 31 May new proof of income, which return, shall
serve at the same time for purposes of indigent assistance.
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2._

-Arrangements that can be made for consumers who are unable to
settle their outstanding debt in full.
2.I_

Household consumers according to gross monthly income:

The municipality can only enter into arrangement with debtors if the outstanding
debt exceed R2 000.
Household

Deposit

Debt R2 001

Income

—

Debt R5 001

R5 000

R3 500—

—

RIO 000

Debt above

Formatted Table
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The commercial or business debtors can be allowed to pay off the debt over 6
nMonths -plus cost of credit control plus current account. The business owner or

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0cm

-

-

-

business rescue professional should provide proof that they are under business
rescue.

2.3

State departments
No arrangement

2.4

Central and Provincial government
(a)

1st

transgression in financial year:

(i)

final notice and legal action shall commence in terms of the
Institution of Legal Proceedings against certain Organs of
State Act No. 40 of 2002.

2.5

Administration
Where a person is placed under administration the following procedure will
be followed:

(a)

The debt as on the date of the administration court order shall be
placed in a suspense account and, in terms of the administration
order, be recovered by means of dividends from the administrator;

(a)- ----The administrator shall open a new account on behalf of the debtor
and pay a new deposit. No account can be opened and administered
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in the name of the debtor since the latter is not allowed to accumulate
debt;
(b
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(c)

Until the new account of the debtor is opened he/she shall be
placed on limited consumption levels. The consumer shall be
compelled to install a pre-paid meter if one is not already in use.
The municipality shall be entitled to recover the costs for basic
services by means of electricity purchases on the pre-paid meter;
and

(d)

2.6

Should the current account fall into arrears, the provision of
services shall be limited or disconnected and the administrator
handed over for debt collection.

Indigents
All consumers classified as indigent and who still have outstanding debts
subsequent to relief arrangements, shall pay such debts as follows:

(a)

In instalments over 36 months, except the monthly services fees after the
credit control actions are paid in full.

2.7

Créches & Churches
All consumers classified as créches and churches and who still have
outstanding debts subsequent to relief arrangements, shall pay such
debts as follows:

(a)

In instalments over 12 months, except the monthly services fees after the
credit control actions are paid in full.
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Debtors can at any time pay a higher insta
lment than those described
above.

Formatted: Font: 10 pt
I Formatted: Font: 9 pt
Policy Title: Credit Control and ebt Collec
tion Policy

Financial Year: 2020-2021

72

A- D ()

Tariff Policy
2020/2021

O

fl:LJfl]C iits

/

i.iiiuicj.k.

i.oiik:y

Policy Title: Bitou Municipality Tariff Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 3 1/3/2020 with Draft Budget per Item C/2/172/03/20

73

Page 1 of 22

INDEX

PREAMBLE

2

DEFINITIONS

3

PURPOSE OF THIS POLICY

6

TARIFF PRINCIPLES

7

CATEGORIES OF CUSTOMERS

8

SERVICE-, EXPENDITURE CLASSIFICATIONS AND
COST ELEMENTS

8

TARIFF TYPES

11

TARIFF STRUCTURE AND METHODS OF CALCULATIONS

12

NOTIFICATION OF TARIFFS, FEES AND SERVICE CHARGES 25
IMPLEMENTING AND PHASING IN OF THE POLICY

25

SHORT TITLE

25

Policy Title: Bitou Municipality Tariff Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 31/3/2020 with Draft Budget per Item C/2/172/03/2
0

74

Page 2 of 22

PREAMBLE

Whereas section 74 of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act,
2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000) requires a municipal council to adopt a tariff
policy on the levying of fees for municipal services;
And whereas the tariff policy at least should include the principles in section
74(2);
And whereas the tariff policy may differentiate between different categories
of users, debtors, service providers, service standards and geographical
areas as long as such differentiations does not amount up to unfair
discrimination;
Now therefore the Municipal Council of the Bitou Municipality adopts the
following tariff policy.
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DEFINITIONS
1.

In this tariff policy, unless inconsistence with the context, a word or expressions to
which a meaning in the Act has been attached means:
1)

“agricultural consumers” include but are not limited to
farms, smallholdings and agricultural show grounds;

2)

“break even” occurs where the volume sales are equal to the fixed and
variable cost associated with the provision of the service;

3)

“charitable and welfare institutions and organisations” include but are not
limited toany institution managed on a non profitable basis by a church association or
a registered charity organisation for example old ages homes, pre-primary

4)

schools, care facility for pre primary children, old age facility, homes and/or
care facilities for the homeless and children homes;
“commercial consumers” include but are not limited tobusiness undertakings, shops, offices, liquor stores, supermarkets, public
garages, gathering places, nurseries, places of entertainment, service
stations, hairdressings salons, banks, hotels, guesthouses, boarding houses
and doctor-and dentist consulting rooms;

5)

“community service” are services that the Council has classified as such and
the tariffs have been compiled with the intention that the costs of the services
cannot be recovered fully from public service charges and are of a regulatory
nature;

6)

7)

“domestic consumers” include but are not limited toresidence, group housing, town houses, semi-detached houses, and flats;
“economic services” are services that the Council has classified as such and
the tariffs have been compiled with the intention that the total costs of the
services are recovered from customers;

8)

“educational and communal institutions” include but are not limited toschools, colleges, pre-primary schools not operated by a registered charity
or welfare organisations, libraries, museums, churches, hospitals, clinics,
correctional institutions, school hostels and community halls;

9) “fixed costs”are costs which do not vary with consumption or volume produced;
1 0) “geographical areas” areas identified as such by council due to service
backlogs, social circumstances or any other similar reasons;
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11)

“indigent households” are households that are registered at the municipality
as such and meet the criteria’s as set by Council from time to time and
occupying a property within the jurisdiction of the municipality;

12)

“industrial consumers” include but are not limited toindustrial undertakings, factories, warehouses, workshop, scrap yards,
stores, wine cellars, abattoir, dairy processing plants and fish markets;

13)

“in season” refers to the period from the 1st December of a year up to
31 January of the following year and from the Monday before the Easter
weekend up to and including Easter Monday;

14)

“lifeline tariffs’ a unit charge calculated by dividing the total cost associated
with the service by the volume consumed (units);

15)

“municipalities” include but are not limited toall properties registered in the name of the Bitou Municipality or controlled by
the municipality excepting libraries, museums, contagious diseases hospital;

16)

“resident” a person who is ordinary resident in the municipal area;

1 7)

“special agreements” are special tariff agreements entered into with users of
municipal services making significant economic contribution to the
community and create job opportunities;

18)

“sport and recreation facilities” include but are not limited toproperties used exclusively for sport and recreation purposes including
school sport fields which are metered separately for water and electricity
consumption and caravan parks;

19)

“the Act: the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act no 32 of
2000);

20)

“total cost” is the sum of all fixed and variable costs associated with a service;
“trading services” Are services that the Council has classified as trading

21)

services and the tariffs have been compiled with the intention that the Council
makes a profit on the delivery of the services;
22)

“two-part tariffs”are tariffs that are raised to cover the fixed and variable costs
separately. The fixed costs are recovered by dividing the total fixed costs by
the total number of customers and the variable costs are recovered by
dividing the total variable costs by the volume consumed;
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23)

“units consumed” are the number of units consumed of a particular service
and are measured in terms of the tariff structure reflected in Section 7;

24)

“variable costs”are costs that vary with consumption or volume produc
ed.

PURPOSE OF THIS POLICY
2.

The Bitou Municipality wishes to achieve the following objectives by
adopting this
tariff policy.
(1)

To comply with the provisions of section 74 of the Local Govern
ment:
Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000).

(2)

To prescribe procedures for calculating tariffs where the municipality wishes
to appoint service providers in terms of section 76(b) of the Act.

(3)

To give guidance to the Councillor responsible for finance regarding
tariff
proposals that must be submitted to Council annually during the
budget
process.

TARIFF PRINCIPLES
3. The Bitou Municipality wishes to record that the following tariff principles
will apply.
(1)

Restricted free services to consumers and financial assistance to indige
nt
households shall be considered only in as far as it can be financed from•

financial allocations by the National Government to the Municipality for
that purpose, and

•

a grant for that purpose by the Municipality, the extent of such grant being
determined annually by the Council during the drafting of the Counc
il’s
budget.

(2)

All users of municipal services will be treated equitably. The variou
s
categories of customers will pay the same charges based on the same
cost
structure.

(3)

The amount payable by consumers will be in proportion to usage
of the
service.

(4)

Indigent households must at least have access to basic services throug
h
lifeline tariffs or direct subsidisation.

(5)

Tariffs must reflect the total cost of services unless stated otherwise in
this
policy document.
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(6)

Where-ever it is explicitly provided for in this policy, customers shall have
a
choice to choose a tariff from a range of applicable tariffs.

(7)

Tariffs must be set at a level that facilitates the sustainability of service
s.
Sustainability will be achieved by ensuring that:
(a)

Cash inflows cover cash outflows. This means that sufficient provision
for working capital and bad debts will be made.

(b)

Access to the capital market is maintained. This will be achieved by
providing for the repayment of capital, maintaining sufficient liquidity
levels and making profits on trading services.

(8)

Provision will be made in appropriate circumstances for a surcharge
on a
tariff. This will be required during a national disaster and periods of drough
ts
when a restriction of usage is required.

(9)

Efficient and effective use of resources will be encouraged by providing for
penalties to prohibit exorbitant use.

(10)

The extent of subsidisation of tariffs will be disclosed.
VAT is excluded from all tariffs and will be additional to these tariffs when
applicable.

(11)

CATEGORIES OF CUSTOMERS
4. (1)

Separate tariffs structure may be raised for the following categories
of
customers
a) domestic consumers;
b) commercial consumers;
c) industrial consumers;
d) agricultural consumers;
e) municipalities;
f) consumers with whom special agreements were made;
g) consumers in certain geographical areas;
h) sport and recreation facilities
i) educational and communal institutions; and
j) charitable and welfare institutions and organisations.

(2)

Where there is a substantial difference between the infrastructure used
to
provide a service to a specific group of users within a category and/or standa
rd
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of services provided, the Council can, after considering a report by the Municipal
Manager or the relevant Head of Department, determine differentiated tariffs for
the different consumers within the specific category.
(3)

The differentiation must be based on one or more of the following elements;
infrastructure costs, volume usage, availability and service standards.

Service classification
5.

(1) The Chief Financial Officer shall, subject to the guidelines provided by the
National Treasury of the Department of Finance and Mayoral Committee of the
Council, make provision for the following classification of services.
(a)

Trading services
(i) Water
(ii) Electricity

(b)

Economic services
(i)

Refuse removal

(ii) Sewerage disposal.
(c)

Community services
(i)

Air pollution.

(ii)

Fire fighting services.

(iii)

Local tourism.

(iv)

Town planning.

(v)

Municipal public works, only in respect of the needs of municipalities
in the discharge of their responsibilities and to administer functions

(vi)

specially assigned to them under the Constitution or any other law.
Stormwater management system in built-up areas.

(vii) Trading regulations.
(viii) Fixed billboards and the display of advertisements in public places.
(ix) Cemeteries.
(x)

Control of public nuisances.

(xi)

Control of undertakings that sell liquor to the public.

(xii)

Facilities for accommodation, care and burial of animals.

(xiii)

Fencing and fences.

(xiv)

Licensing of dogs.
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(xv)
(xvi)

Licensing and control of undertakings that sell food to the public.
Local amenities.

(xvii) Local sport facilities.
(xviii) Municipal parks and recreation.
(xix)

Municipal roads.

(xx)

Noise pollution.

(xxi)

Pounds.

(xxii) Public places.
(xxiii) Street trading/street lighting.
(xxiv) Traffic and parking.
(xxv) Building control.
(xxvi) Licensing of motor vehicles and transport permits.
(xxvii) Nature reserves.
(xxviii) Beaches
Expenditure classification
(2)

Expenditure will be classified in the following categories.

(a)

Subjective classification:
(i) Employee related costs;
(ii) Remuneration of Councillors
(iii) Impairment loss (bad debt);
(iv) Collection costs;
(v) Depreciation and amortization;
(vi) Repairs and maintenance;
(vii) Interest paid;
(viii) Bulk purchases;
(ix) Contracted services;
(x) Grants and subsidies paid;
(xi) General expenditure;
(xii) Contribution to Capital Replacement Reserve;
(xiii) Income; and
(xiv) Surplus/Deficit.

(b)

Objective classification:
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(i)

Cost centres will be created to which the costs associated with
providing the service can be allocated:
(a) Department.
(b) Section/service.
(c) Division/service.

(ii)

The subjective classification of expenditure each with a unique vote
will be applied to all cost centres.

Cost elements
(3)

The following cost elements will be used to calculate the tariffs of the different
services:
Fixed costs which consist of the capital costs (interest and redemption) on
external loans as well as internal advances and or depreciation whichever

(i)

are applicable to the service and any other costs of a permanent nature as
determined by the Council from time to time.
(ii)

Variable cost: This includes all other variable costs that have reference to
the service.

(iii)

Total cost: consist of the fixed cost and variable cost.

TARIFF TYPES
6.

In determining the type of tariff applicable to the type of service the municipality shall
make use of the following five options or a combination of the same.
(1) Single tariff: this tariff shall consist of a cost per unit consumed. All costs will
be recovered through unit charges at the level where income and expenditure
breaks even. Subject to a recommendation by the Chief Financial Officer the
council may decide to approve profits on trading services during the budget
meeting. Such profits will be added to the fixed and variable cost of the service
for the purpose of calculating the tariffs.
(2) Cost related two to three part tariff: this tariff shall consist of two to three parts.
Management, capital, maintenance and operating costs will be recovered by
grouping

certain

components

together e.g.

management,

capital and

maintenance costs may be grouped together and be recovered by a fixed
charge, independent of consumption for all classes of consumers, while the
variable costs may be recovered by a unit charge per unit consumed.

Three
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part tariffs will be used to calculate the tariff for electricity and to provid
e for
maximum demand and usage during limited demand.
(3) Inclining block tariff: this tariff is based on consumption levels being
categorised
into blocks, the tariff being determined and increased as consumption
levels
increase. This tariff will only be used to prohibit the exorbitant use
of a
commodity. The first step in the tariffs will be calculated at break-even
point.
Subsequent steps will be calculated to yield a result that would discou
rage
excessive use of the commodity.
(4) Declining block tariff: this tariff is the opposite of the inclining block
tariff and
decreases as consumption levels increase. The first step will be calculated
by
dividing the fix and variable cost and profit determined by council form
time to
time by the volume consumed. This tariff will only be used for
special
agreements.
(5) Regulating tariff: this tariff is only of a regulatory nature and the munic
ipality
may recover the full or a portion of the cost associated with rendering
the
service.

TARIFF STRUCTURE AND METHODS OF CALCULA11ONS
7.

The following tariff structure will, where possible, be used to determine
tariffs:
(1) Water
(a)

(b)

Tariff strucutre
(I)

Fixed tariff per user plus an inclining block tariff per unit used
(kiloliters used).

(ii)

An inclining block tariff.

Method of calculation
(i)

The fixed costs of the service shall consist of the costs indicated
as such by the council.

(ii)

The number of users will be used to determine the fixed costs per
user.

(iii)

Where council charges a fixed cost per consumer the unit charges
are calculated by dividing the variable cost by the volume used.

(iv)

Where council does not recover a fixed cost per consumer the unit
charge will be calculated by dividing the total cost by volume
consumed.
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(v)

Where

consumption

can

not

be

measured

the

average

consumption of the area will be used to calculate a fixed
tariff will
be charged.

(2)

(vi)

Where a property is not connected to the water reticulation
system
but can reasonably be so connected, an availability tariff
will be
payable equal to the fixed costs calculated in accordance with
the
provisions of paragraph 5(3)(i).

(vii)

Where council decide to make a profit on the service the
profit will
be added to the fixed and variable cost before tariffs
are
calculated.

Electricity
(a) Tariff structure
(i)

kWh

(ii)

kVA

maximum demand (thermic or block)register in a half
an
hour period.

(iv)

Peak, Standard and off-peak time periods
purchase tariff structure.

(v)

—

Active Energy.

—

High and low consumption seasons

—

—

according to bulk

according to bulk purchase

tariff structure.
(b) Method of calculation
(i) The guidelines and policy issued by the National Electricity
Regulator
from time to time will form the basis of calculating tariffs.
(ii) Cross subsidisation between and within categories of cons
umers will
be allowed based on the load factors of the categ
ories and
consumers within the category. Portions of the fixed costs
will be
recovered through an energy or time-of-use charge. To
apply the
abovementioned principle the cost allocation basis, cost
groupings,
tariff components and tariff types reflected in the following
tables will
be used.
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Tariff types

Fixed
Active
charge
Energy
Rands!
charge
customer cents!
I Month
kWh

Onepart
One part
block 1
Block
block2
Twopart
Threepart
Three part time-of-use
Peak
High season Standard
Off-peak
Low season

X
X
X
X
X

Capacitycharge
Rands
/
kVN
month

Reactive
energy
charge
sents
kWh

X
X
X
X
X

Peak
Standard
Off-peak

Four part time-of-use
Peak
High season Standard
Off-peak
Low season

X
X
X

Seasonally
Time-of-use
Energy charge
Peak
Standard
Off-peak

X
X
X
X

X

X

X
X
X

Peak
Standard

X
X
X

(iii) The one-part single energy rate tariff:
All costs allocated to a user category which will normally make use
of a one-part single energy rate tariff will be expressed in a single
cents/kWh charge. The recommended methodology for allocating
costs into this tariff is as follows:
•

The

maximum

demand

costs

(rands/kVAlmonth)

of

all

consumers that will normally use a single tariff will be calculated
by considering the average load factor of the type of these
customers and added to the variable cost.
•

The fixed cost rand/customer/month and the energy cost (kWh)
will also be added to the variable cost.

•

The total cost (maximum demand, fixed and energy costs)
allocated to consumers which will normally use a one-part-singleenergy tariff will be calculated at a break-even point comparable
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with the number of kWh units determined by Escom from time to
time.
•

The total cost will be expressed in a cents/kWh tariff.
(iv) The two-part tariff:
•

A portion of the fixed cost equal to the operating and
administrative cost of the Electricity Department will be recovered
through a rands/user/month charge.

•

The remaining portion of the fixed cost will be added to the
variable cost and re covered through a unit charge (cent/kWh
charge).

•

The tariff then consists of a fixed monthly charge plus a variable
charge related to metered kWh consumption.

(v) The three-part tariff:
•

A portion of the fixed cost as described in section 2(b)(iv) will be
recovered through a rand/user/month charge.

•

The remaining portion of the fixed cost will be recovered through
a unit charge (centlkWh) and maximum demand charge
(rand!kVAlmonth).

•

The maximum demand charge (rand/kVA cost) will be recovered
through the capacity charge where applicable.

•

The cent/kWh charge therefore recovers the total variable cost
plus portions of reallocated fixed and demand charges

(rand/customer/month and rand/kVA costs) where applicable.
(vi) Time-of-use tariff:
•

As with the

standard three-part tariff,

a

portion

of the

rands/kVA!month charge needs to be reallocated into the various
time-of-use cents/kWh charges. Again, the amount of the
reallocation should be with regard to the customer’s load factor.
However, it is also necessary to consider the time-variation of the
capacity costs in the reallocation of the rands/kVA charge into the
various time-of-use cents/kWh charges where applicable.
•

The cents/kWh charge therefore recovers the full variable costs
as well as a portion of the reallocated rands/kVA charges where
applicable.
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The rands/customer/month charge is not reallocated.
(vii)

Where council decide to make a profit on the service the profit will
be added to the fixed and variable cost before tariffs are
calculated.

(viii)

Where a property is not connected to the electricity reticulation
system but can reasonably be so connected, an availability tariff
will be payable equal to the fixed costs calculated in accordance
with the provisions of paragraph 5(3)(i).

(3)

(ix)

The structure of the time-of-use tariff will be calculated according
to the purchase structure.

(x)

The time-of-use tariff will only be offered in areas where similar
tariffs are available to the municipality.

Refuse removal
(a) Unit of measurement
(i)

Number of bins (volume) per number of collections per week
(frequency).

(ii)

Number of containers (volume) per number of collections per
week (frequency).

(iii)

Categories of consumers

(b) Method of calculation
(i)

The costs per unit of measurement will be determined by dividing
the total costs of the service by the total volume of refuse disposed
of during the year. The total cost of the service includes the
removal cost plus the operating cost associated with the service.
The unit charge per cubic meter will be converted to a cost per
black bag. A cost per month will be calculated for domestic
consumers based on the average number of bags removed per
week.

(ii)

The cost associated with the removal of bulk containers will be
determined by calculating how many of the smallest removal units
will be absorbed by a specific container.
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(iii)

After council has consulted with owners or
occupiers of
commercial and industrial undertakings which do not
make use of
the standard black bags or mass containers
tariffs will be
determined based on the estimated volume that will
be removed
per month.

(iv)

Opportunity costs for once-off removals will be
calculated by
recovering the costs of the volume removed
plus a 20%
surcharge.

(v)

Private dumping at the disposal site will be allowed
after a tariff
based on the estimated volume of the dumping has
been paid.
(vi) A refuse removal tariff or an availability charge
will be raised and
is payable by all owners or occupiers of each deve
loped property
connected to the water and electricity distribution
network of the
council or any other service provider or those who have
applied to
be connected whether such owner or occupier uses
the refuse
removal service or not or those who are not conn
ected to the
distribution networks to whom a refuse remo
val service is
rendered on request, this include all vacant stand
to whom the
service is available.
(vii) No refuse removal tariffs will be raised wher
e council has not
introduced a refuse removal service.

(4)

Sewerage/emptying of conservancy tanks
(a) Unit of measurement
(i)

Categories of consumer

(ii)

Volume of tank lorry.

(iii)

Formula driven waterborne tariff.
(b) Method of calculation
(i)

Where a property is not connected to the sewerage
reticulation
system but can reasonably be so connected, an avail
ability tariff
will be payable. The availability unit tariff will vary for
the different
categories of consumers.

(ii)

A unit charge per consumer will be charged. The
tariff will be
calculated by dividing the total cost by the total
number of
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premises connected to the sewerage reticulation
system. Where
more than one dwelling unit, as defined in the
Council’s zoning
scheme regulations, is situated on a premises
(such as a semi
detached dwelling or a block of flats etc.) each
such
dwelling
unit shall for the purpose of this paragraph, cons
idered to be a
(iii) The tariff payable for the removal of the
contents of a conservancy
tank will be based on a charge per load to be remo
ved and for this
purpose portion of a load shall be considered
to be a full load.
Charges payable must be paid in advance and
only in cases of
extreme emergency will this requirement be waiv
ed. In such an
event the person or body to whom the service
was rendered will
be required to pay the amount due on the
first working day
following the day on which the service was
rendered. Where
requests are received for removals after ordin
ary office hours, a
surcharge as determined by Council from time
to time will be
levied on the ordinary tariff applicable.
(iv) Industries classified by council as WET indu
stries (water intensive
industries) shall pay over and above a tariff per ciste
rn a treatment
cost based on the following formula:
B

=

0,85 V[R x COD]! 1000

B

=

Treatment cost

V

=

Volume of water used

R

=

Cost of treating of 1 Kilogram COD
COD = Chemical oxygen demand per milligram

(5)

Community services
(a) Tariff structure
(i)

The tariff structure as reflected in table I here
under will be used
to determine regulatory community and subsidise
d services.
(b) Method of calculation
(i)

These tariffs will be adjusted annually by adju
sting the tariff that
applied during the previous financial year, by
a percentage as
determined by the majority councillors present
at the meeting
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where the budget is approved or by
a recalculation of the
estimated actual cost.
Table 1

FUNCTION

UNIT OF RETURN

1.
1 .1

SUNDRY SERVICE CHARGES
Information regarding valuation of
Fixed amount per enquiry per
properties.
property.
1 .2 Issuing of valuation certificate
of a Fixed amount per certificate.
property.
1.3 Issuing of valuation certific
ate of a Fixed amount per certificate.
property.
1 .4 Issuing of second duplicate acc
ount.
Fixed
amount per duplicate
account.
1 .5 Photocopying:
A4 size
Fixed amount per photo copy
A3 size
1.6 Copies of building plans and
area Fixed amount per copy.
maps.
Fixed amount per map for AO, Al,
1 .7 Computerised area maps.
A2,
A3 and
smaller sizes
respectively.
1 .8 Dishonouring charges payable
when Amount equal to the costs levied
by
bank dishonours a cheque.
the bank.
1 .9 Facsimilees: Received and/or sen
t.
Fixed amount per facsimilee.
2.
LETTING OF TOWN HALLS AND
COMMUNITY HALLS
2.1 Hall reservations taking into acc
ount Fixed amount per reservation.
various uses thereof.
2.2 Hall reservations, including kitc
hen by Fixed amount per annum.
fixed users.
2.3 Use of side halls additional to main
hail. Fixed amount per reservation.
2.4 Use of kitchen additional to mai
n hall or Fixed amount per reservation
.
side ward.
2.5 Use of refreshment room additio
nal to Fixed amount per reservation.
main hall or side ward.
2.6 Use of facilities one day prior to
date of Fixed amount per reservation.
reservation.
2.7 Deposit payable in respect to the
use of Fixed amount per reservation.
the hall and the facilities.
2.8 Cancellation of reservation.
A % of the rental payable to cover
administration
costs
will
be
recovered from the deposit when a
reservation is cancelled.
3.
LIBRARY FEES
3.1 Fine for the late return of
books, Fixed amount per week or por
tion
records, CD’s, tapes or art prints,
of a week per item.
3.2 Fineforlatereturnofavideo.
Policy Title: Bitou Municipality Tariff
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FUNCTION
3.3
3.4

4.
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4
4.5

4.6
4.7
4.8

4.9

4.10
4.11
4.12

UNIT OF RETURN

Fixed amount per day or portion of
Lost lender bags.
a day per video.
Booking of library material
Fixed amount per bag.
. material in stock
Fixed amount per booking.
• material_not_in_stock
ELECTRICAL SERVICE
CONNECTION
Service connections up to 25 metres Estimated actual cost based on
a
10 mm2 x 2 core with standard meter.
25 metre connection plus a % levy
for administrative costs.
Service
connections
more
than Estimated actual cost plus % levy
25 metres 10 mm2 x 2 core with for administration costs.
standard meter.
Service connections up to 25 metres Estimated actual cost based
on a
16 mm2 x 2 core with standard meter.
25 metre connection plus a % levy
for administrative costs.
Service connections more than 25 Estimated actual cost plus
% levy
metres 16 mm2 with standard meter.
for administrative costs.
Service connections up to 25 m 16 mm2 Estimated actual cost based
on a
x 4 core with standard meter.
25 metre connection plus a % levy
for administrative costs.
Service connection more than 25 Estimated actual cost plus
% levy
metres 16 mm2 x 4 core with standard for administrative
costs.
meter.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
Beforehand serviced plots: coupling of for admin
istrative costs.
service connection.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
Service connection larger than 50 kVA for
administrative costs.
with single phase k.w.u. meter and
circuit breaker.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
Service connection larger than 50 kVA for
administrative costs.
with three phase kwu meter and circuit
breaker.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
Service connection larger than 50 kVA for admin
istrative costs.
with single phase pre-paid meter.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
Service connection larger than 50 kVA for
administrative costs.
with three phase prepaid meter.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
Damages to service connections and for
administrative costs.
reticulation costs to be recovered.
SALE OF PREPAID ELECTRICAL
METERS
Single phase meter.
Actual purchase price plus % levy
for administrative costs.
Three phase meter.
Actual purchase price plus % levy
for administrative costs.
SUNDRY SERVICES: ELECTRICITY
DEPARTMENT
Call-out fee payable where service
connection is over rated or short
circuited_on_the_user’s_side—

5.
5.1
5.2
6.
6.1
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FUNCTION

UNIT OF RETURN

. Office hours
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
• After hours and Saturdays
for administrative costs.
• Public holidays and Sundays
6.2 Application by consumers for circuit Estimated actual cost plus % levy
breakers with a higher or lower rating.
for administrative costs.
6.3 Temporary on-off and reconnections.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
6.4 Reconnection of electricity on receipt of Fixed amount per reconnection.
false information by a defaulter.
6.5 Testing of meter on request of Estimated actual cost plus % levy
consumerfor administrative costs.
Single phase-, three phase-, maximum
demand- and pre-paid meters.
6.6 Issuing of certificate of competence
Fixed amount per certificate.
6.7 Repair of electricity cable or cable joint. Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
STREET LIGHTING
7.1 Tariff payable per street light
Fixed amount per kWh.
8.
ELECTRICITY DEPOSIT
8.1 Electricity
deposit
included
in Fixed amount per consumer
consumers services deposit (water,
electricity,
refuse
removal
and
sewage).
9.
WATER SERVICES CONNECTIONS
9.1
15mm connection low cost housing. Estimated actual cost plus
% levy
for administrative costs.
9.2 15 mm connection other connections. Estimated actual cost
plus % levy
for administrative costs.
9.3 20 mm connection.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
9.4 Connection and pre-paid meter
low Estimated actual cost plus % levy
cost housing.
for administrative costs.
9.5 Connection and pre-paid meter other Estimated actual cost plus
% levy
connections
for administrative costs.
9.6 Testing of water meters
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
9.7 Damages to service connections and Estimated actual cost
plus % levy
reticulation costs to be recovered
for administrative costs.
10. WATER DEPOSIT
10.1 Water deposit included in consumers Fixed amount per consum
er
services deposit (water, electricity,
refuse_removal,_sewage).
11. SEWERAGE SERVICES
CONNECTION
11.1 100mm connections
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
1 1 .2 150 mm connections
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
—

—

.

—

—

—

Policy Title: Bitou Municipality Tariff Policy
Financial Year: 2020/202 1
Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 31/3/2020 with Draft Budget
per Item C/2/172/03/20

92

Page 20 of 22

FUNCTION

UNIT OF RETURN

11.3 Damages to service connections and
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
reticulation costs to be recovered,
for administrative costs.
12. SUNDRY SERVICES
SEWERAGE
WORKS
12.1 Emptying of sewerage tanks
Fixed amount per load.
—

-

12.2 Emptying of sewerage tanks (farms)

Fixed amount per load.

12.3 Emptying of sewerage tanks after
Fixed amount per load.
ordinary office hours
12.4 Partial connections (draining)
Fixed amount per load.
12.5 Industrial effluent per kI
12.6 Selling of purified sewerage per kI
12.7 Sewerage blockages
12.8 Sewerage blockages (after hours)

13. SUNDRY ENGINEERING SERVICES
13.1 Construction of single motor vehicle
entrance
13.2 Construction of double motor vehicle
entrance.
13.3 Construction of motor vehicle entrance
with storm water grid
1 3.4 Tarring and patch work
14.
14.1
14.2
14.3

CEMETERY FEES
Single grave site purchase price
Reservation of site.
Digging of grave.
—

14.4 Covering of grave.
14.5 Pointing out of grave site.
14.6 Digging of extra deep grave.
14.7 Opening up of extra deep grave.

Estimated actual cost plus
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus
for administrative costs.

% levy
% levy
% levy
% levy

% levy
% levy
% levy
% levy

Fixed amount per site.
Fixed amount per site.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
Fixed amount per site.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.

14.8 Construction of brick lining
.
single grave
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
.
extra deep grave
for administrative costs.
14.9 Wall of remembrance: Purchases of Fixed amo
unt per urn.
storage_space
15. BUILDING PLAN FEES
15.1 Standard building plan fees
Fixed amount per m2
1 5.2 Building plan fees: rural areas
25% of standard building plan fees.
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FUNCTION
1 5.3
1 5.4
1 5.5
1 5.6

UNIT OF RETURN

Minimum building plan fees.
Building plan fees: low cost housing.
Minor building work/boundary walls.
Approval of advertisement signs.

Fixed amount per building plan.
Fixed amount per building plan.
Fixed amount per building plan.
Fixed amount per advertisement
sign.
15.7 Building deposit in respect to new Fixed amount
per building plan.
dwellings and improvements> 100 m2
1 5.8 Extension of the validity period of Fixed amoun
t per application.
approved_building_plans.
16. LAND USE APPLICATIONS AND
SUB-DIVISIONS: TARIFFS
16.1 Applications for re-zoning.
Fixed amount per application.
1 6.2 Application for consent uses.
Fixed amount per application.
1 6.3 Applications for extension of the validity Fixed amoun
t per application.
period of approvals for rezoning and
consent uses.
16.4 Applications for sub-division• up to 20 erven
Fixed amount per sub-division up
to 20 erven
• more than 20 erven
Fixed amount per sub-division
more than 20 er’en.
16.5 Application for extension of the validity Fixed amount per application.
period of approvals for rezoning and
consent uses.
16.6 Applications for departures.
erven < 500 m2
Fixed amount per application.
erven 501 m2—750m2
Fixed amount per application.
Fixed amount per application.
erven > 750 m2
16.7 Applications for departures in terms of Fixed
amount per application.
section 15(1)(a)(i) of Ord 15/1985.
16.8 Applications for lifting restricting Fixed amount per application.
provisions.
16.9 Cost of advertisements and postage in Estimated actual costs plus
% levy
regard to the advertising of applications for administration costs.
for rezoning, sub-division, consent uses
and departures.
16.10 Issuing of zoning certificate.
Fixed amount per certificate.
17. AD HOC HIRING OUT OF SITES
17.1 Hiring of circus sites.
17.2 Hiring of open spaces for church
services.
17.3 Hiring of site for merry-go-round.
17.4 Hiring of hawkers sites.
18. TRAFFFIC DEPARTMNET: TARIFFS
FOR TRAFFIC SERVICES
18.1 Escorting of vehicles through town.
18.2 Rendering of services to bodies such
as sporting clubs, funeral escorts, etc.

Fixed amount per reservation.
Fixed amount per reservation.
Fixed amount per reservation.
Fixed amount per site.

Fixed amount per occasion.
Fixed amount per hour
occasion.

per

Policy Title: Bitou Municipality Tariff Policy
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FUNCTION
19.
19.1
1 9.2
1 9.3
19.4
1 9.5

FIRE DEPARTMENT: CHARGES
GMC and crew (call out and first hour).
GMC and crew (following hours).
4 x 4 and crew (call out and first hour).
4 x 4 and crew (following hours).
Use of chemicals.

19.6 Service vehicle.
1 9.7 Rescue vehicle.
• 1 9.8 Filling up of swimming pools.

UNIT OF RETURN
Fixed amount per service.
Fixed amount per hour.
Fixed amount per service.
Fixed amount per hour.
Estimated actual cost plus % levy
for administrative costs.
Fixed amount per km.
Fixed amount per service.
Fixed amount per service.

NOTIFICATION OF TARIFFS, FEES AND SERVICE CHARGE
S
8.

(1) The council will give notice of all tariffs approved at the
annual budget meeting
at least 30 days prior to the date that the tariffs become effecti
ve.
(2) A notice stating the purport of the council resolution and
the date on ivhich the
new tariffs shall become operational, will be displayed by the
municipality at a
place installed for that purpose.
(3) All tariffs approved must be considered at the annual budget
meeting.

IMPLEMENTING AND PHASING IN OF THE POLICY
9.

(1) The principle contained in this policy will be reflected in
the various budget
proposals submitted to council on an annual basis, service
by-laws as
promulgated and adjusted by Council from time to time and the
tariff by-laws
referred to in section 75 of the Act.
(2) The council may determine conditions applicable to commu
nity service of a
regulators nature. These conditions will be reflected in the standin
g orders of
council.

SHORT TITLE
10.

This policy is the Tariff Policy of the Bitou Municipality.

Policy Title: Bitou Municipality Tariff Policy
Financial Year: 2020/202 1
Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 31/3/2020 with Draft
Budget per Item C/2/ I 72/03/20
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1.

INTRODUCTION AND OBJECTIVE
The Council sets as objective a long term financially sustainable municipality with
acceptable levels of service delivery to the community.

This policy aims to set standards and guidelines towards ensuring financial
viability over both the short- and long term and includes liquidity funding as well
as reserves requirements.

The documented Liquidity, Funds and Reserves Policy, sets out the framework
for the prudent use of Liquidity, Funds and Reserves available to the municipality.
This policy is implemented to provide guidance on the appropriation of capital
funding resources on a sustainable basis in the longer term.
With reference to the applicable legislation as referred to below. Legislation
exists and prescribes the framework of Funds and Reserves Policy and these
factors will all be addressed in this Policy.

Although legislation provides guidance as to the broader framework to ensure
financial management of resources to ensure the Council meets all of its
obligations timeously, it is not prescriptive with regards to quantifying not only the
prudent level of Liquidity, Funds and Reserves but more so the optimal level
hereof.

Therefore in this Policy cognizance has been taken of the legislative guidelines
whilst more prescriptive guidelines are set for the optimal management and
monitoring of resources to the Municipality’s avail based on sound financial
practices.
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2.

SECTION A: LIQUIDITY POLICY
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INTRODUCTION
The documented Liquidity Policy sets out the minimum risk management
measures that Bitou Municipality has to implement and adhere to in order to
ensure that its current and future liquidity position is managed in a prudent
manner.

Liquidity is the amount of cash and / or “near cash” (which refers to assets
or security that can easily and quickly be converted to cash), available to be
utilized to meet obligations and / or pay commitments. The marketability or ability
to buy or sell an asset without incurring unacceptable large losses thus
determines the liquidity of an asset or defines it as near cash.

This Policy is implemented to provide guidance on the minimum liquidity level
that Bitou Municipality has to maintain in order to comply with required legislative
and I or National Treasury directives and within the overall financial management
objectives as approved/reviewed by the Council from time to time.

2.2

BACKGROUND AND APPROACH
Various policies and procedures exist that direct the way in which the business of
Bitou Municipality is or should be conducted in a prudent manner. Generally
these policies and procedures flow from the prescription made in Legislation i.e.
the Municipal Finance Management Act (‘MFMA”) and/or directives issued by a
national department such as National Treasury.

Guidelines provided by National Treasury indicate that an acceptable level of
cash resources needs to be available for working capital requirements (see below).

It is for this reason that the need to have an official Liquidity Policy was identified.

Policy Title: Liquidity, Funding and Reserves Policy
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LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS
The MFMA circular 71 stipulates the following two prescribed ratios to manage
liquidity:

Cash/Cost Coverage Ratio (Excluding Unspent Conditional Grants) is
calculated as:
((Cash and Cash Equivalents

Term

Investment)

/

-

Unspent Conditional Grants

Monthly

Fixed

Operational

-

Overdraft)

Expenditure

-I-

Short

excluding

(Depreciation, Amortisation, Provision for Bad Debts, Impairment and Loss on
Disposal of Assets)

Criteria: 1

—

3 times

Current Ratio Current Assets I Current Liabilities

Criteria: 1.5— 2:1

The above guidelines are noted but the proposed policy is more conservative to
ensure that the municipality secures its strong financial position thereby providing
comfort to investors.
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2.4

POLICY
This policy provides guidance on the determination of the minimum liquidi
ty
requirement and the calculation of the liquidity available of Bitou Municipality from
time to time (see Appendix 1).

Notwithstanding the requirements as reflected in this policy, Bitou Municipality
should ensure that its Current Assets (excluding debtors older than 90 days)
cover all of its Current Liabilities at least two times.

The policy encapsulates certain key aspects and considerations which have been
outlined below:
2.4.1. KEY COMPONENTS OF MINIMUM LIQUIDITY REQUIRED:
The following constitutes the key elements to take into consideration when
determining the liquidity requirement of Bitou Municipality:
1) To comply with statutory requirements it is proposed that the following funds,
reserves and provisions be fully covered by unencumbered cash and
investments:
a) All earmarked or conditional grant transfers from spheres of Government
or from Public Contributions made to Bitou Municipality that have not yet
been utilized;
b) All commitments resulting from the legally entrenched rights and benefits
employees have, with specific reference to the Council’s short term
commitment to staff retirement benefits and medical fund claims payable;
c) All funds not yet been utilized in relation to agency services provided on
behalf of Provincial or National Government should also be treated as
earmarked funds;
d) All reserves stated by Bitou Municipality on its Statement of Financial
Position that have been established for the purposes of making provisions
for a defined purpose.
2) Cognisance also needs to be taken of the external loan commitments and the
servicing of capital and interest on these loans. Therefore provision should
Policy Title: Liquidity, Funding and Reserves Policy

Financial Year: 202012021

Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 3 1/3/2020 with Draft Budget per Item C/2/17
2/03/20

101

be made that Bitou Municipality can meet
its external loan/financial
commitments together with the normal operation
al expenditure, as well as its
liabilities to staff.
3) All investments ceded as security against long
term loans need to be
excluded from total cash and investment balan
ces for calculation of the
minimum liquidity level required.
4) All unspent long term loans need to be
excluded from total cash and
investment balances for calculation of the minimum
liquidity level required.
5) In addition, a level of cash available for norm
al operational expenditure needs
to be held in cash to ensure that, notwithstandi
ng fluctuations in the monthly
income levels of Bitou Municipality, Bitou Municipa
lity will be in a position to

Policy Title: Liquidity, Funding and Reserves Policy

Financial Year: 202012021
Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 3 1/3/2020
with Draft Budget per Item C/2/172/03/20

102

meet its financial requirements. In this respect, the average month
ly
operational expenditure needs to be used as a guide of the minimum
buffer
required. One month’s operational expenditure excluding debt impairments,
depreciation and other non-cash expenses should be available for liquidi
ty
cover.
6) The “golden rule” should be to ensure that Bitou Local Municipality will
have
adequate liquid assets (those that can be made into cash within 24 hours,
weekly or monthly as the requirement might be) to meet its short term financi
al
commitments.
2.4.2. CALCULATION OF AVAILABLE LIQUIDITY
The amount of liquidity available should be determined from time-to-time.
The
following, should be regarded as cash and or near cash in calculating the availab
le
liquidity:

1) All cash held in a bank account or invested with a money market fund;
2) 95% of the value of all NOD’s or other tradable instruments issued by a
bank
that are not already ceded;
3) 90% of the market value of all listed bonds on the JSE in which
Bitou
Municipality is allowed to invest in;
4)

Consumer debtors aged current to 60 days;
5) Amount of unspent conditional grants and public contributions excluded from
own funds held in bank accounts;

6) Funds provided to Council for expenditure on activities executed on behalf
of
other spheres of Government (Provincial and / or National) as part of
an
agency function, excluded from own funds held in bank accounts;
7) Funds ring-fenced for cash backed reserves that are excluded from
own
funds held in bank accounts;
8) Cash amounts that need to be held by Council resulting from loan covenants’
that are part of the conditions of loans extended, but not ceded outright
to
lenders;
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9) The undrawn portion of unconditional bank overdraft facility or liquidity facility
available to Bitou Municipality.

The aforementioned in paragraphs 2.4.1. and 2.4.2. can schematically be
reflected as follows:

Earmarked and / or Unspent Conditional
Grants
Provision for short term portion of the legally
entrenched rights and benefits by employees
Funds not yet been utilized for agency functions
performed on behalf of other organs of state
Requirement to service capital on external
loans for the next 6 and 12
months
FTestments to be held as part of loan
or that are

L.

rAreserves reflected in the Statement of
that is making provision for a

Ied.J.iLose

2.4.3. IMPLEMENTATION AND MONITORING OF COMPLIANCE WITH
LIQUIDITY POLICY:
Once the policy is approved, the CFO is to be tasked to ensure that the
required cash has to be maintained to continue meeting the requirements
as set out in this policy.
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Firstly, the minimum required liquidity level should be calculated based
on
audited annual financial statements. This level of liquidity required
needs
to be specifically budgeted for and on a quarterly basis be reported
to
the Finance Committee and / or other Committees as might be stipula
ted
by Council as well as to Council.

Notwithstanding

National

Treasury’s

three

months

operational

expenditure guideline and the one month operational expenditure
buffer
proposed as a minimum by the liquidity policy, it is recommended
that
Council set a target of one month’s operational expenditure liquidity
buffer
to be achieved at the end of the transitional period.
The cash provisions made to repay external loan commitments, if
specifically
earmarked, should also be added to this minimum working capital
liquidity, to
prevent fluctuations in the working capital reserve that could put the
minimum
level of liquidity levels under pressure.
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3.

SECTION B: FUNDING POLICY

3.1

LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS
The Local Government Municipal Budget and Reporting Regulation, Regulation
393, published under Government Gazette 32141, 17 April 2009 stipulates:
8.

(1) Each municipality must have a funding and reserves policy which must
set out the assumptions and methodology for estimating
—

(a)

projected billings, collections and all direct revenues;
the provision for revenue that will not be collected;

(b)
(c)

the funds the municipality can expect to receive from investments;
the dividends the municipality can expect to receive from municipal

(d)

entities;
(e)

the proceeds the municipality can expect to receive from transfer or
disposal of assets;

(f)

the municipality’s borrowing requirements;

(g)

the funds to be set aside in reserves.

In terms of Section 18 and 19 of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No
56 of 2003) (MFMA) an annual budget may only be funded from:
•

Cash backed accumulated funds from previous years’ surpluses not
committed for other purposes:

Transfers from the accumulated surplus to fund operating expenditure will
only be allowed for specific once-off projects with no recurring operating
expenditure resulting thereof.

•

Borrowed funds, but only for capital projects:
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Actual capital expenditure may only be incurred on a capital project if the
funding for the project has been appropriated in the Capital Budget, but has
also been secured from the financial source that is not committed for another
purpose.
Realistically anticipated revenues to be collected:

Realistic anticipated revenue projections must take into account projected
revenue for the current year based on actual collection levels in previous
financial years.

Furthermore, spending on a capital project may only be commenced once the
funding sources have been considered, are available and have not been
committed for other purposes.

The requirements of the MFMA are therefore clear in that the budget must be
cash funded i.e. cash receipts inclusive of prior cash surpluses must equal or
—

be more than cash paid.

In determining whether the budget is actually cash funded and in addition
ensuring long term financial sustainability, the municipality will use analytical
processes, including those specified by National Treasury from time to time.

3.2

STANDARD OF CARE
Each functionary in the budgeting and accounting process must do so with
judgment and care, under the prevailing circumstances, as a person of prudence,
discretion and intelligence would exercise to the management of his or her own
finances with the primary objective of ensuring that the objectives of this policy
are achieved.

3.3

STATEMENTOFINTENT
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The municipality will not pass a budget which is not cash funded
or where any
of the indicators as listed in this document are negative, unless accept
able reasons
can be provided for non-compliance, provided that the require
ments of the MFMA
must at all times be adhered to.
—

3.4

CASH MANAGEMENT
Cash must be managed in terms of the municipality’s Cash
Management and
Investment Policy.

3.5

DEBT MANAGEMENT
Debt must be managed in terms of the municipality’s Debt
Management Policy,
together with any requirements in this policy.
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3.6

FUNDING THE OPERATING BUDGET
3.6.1. INTRODUCTION

The municipality’s objective is that the user of municipal resources must pay for
such usage in the period it occurs.

The municipality however, recognises the plight of the poor, and in line with
national and provincial objectives, the municipality commits itself to subsidised
services to the poor. This will necessitate cross subsidisation in tariffs to be
calculated in the budget process.

3.6.2. GENERAL PRINCIPLE WHEN COMPILING THE OPERATING BUDGET
The following specific principles apply when compiling the budget:
a)

The budget must be cash

—

funded,

i.e. revenue and expenditure

projections must be realistic and the provision for impairment of receivables
must be calculated on proven recovery rates;

b)

Growth parameters must be realistic and be based on historic patterns
adjusted for current reliable information;

c)

Tariff adjustments must be fair, taking into consideration general inflation
indicators as well as the geographic region’s ability to pay;”

d)

Revenue from Government Grants and Subsides must be in accordance
with the amounts promulgated in the Division of Revenue Act, proven
provincial transfers and any possible transfers to or from other
municipalities.

Policy Title: Liquidity, Funding and Reserves Policy

Financial Year: 202012021

Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 31/3/2020 with Draft Budget per Item C/2/172/03/20

109

DRAFT LIQUIDITY, FUNDING AND RESERVES POLICY
Page 12

For the purpose of the Cash flow budget any National or Provincial grants
that have been re-appropriated for roll—over purposes must be excluded
from the calculation as it must be included in changes in Cash and Cash
Equivalents and Payables.

Furthermore, in the budget the total grants recognised as revenue must
equal the total expected expenditure from grants, inclusive of capital
expenditure and VAT as per directive given in MFMA circular 48.

e)

Revenue from public contributions, donations or any other grants may only
be included in the Budget if there is acceptable documentation that
guarantees the funds and if the transfers are unconditional of nature.

f)

Projected revenue from services charges must be reflected as net (all billing
less revenue foregone, which is free basic services, discounts and rebates).

g)

Projected revenue from property rates must include all rates to be levied,
but rebates and discounts must be budgeted for as either revenue foregone
or a grant, as per directive in MFMA Budget Circular 51, depending on the
conditions of the exemption, rebate or reduction.

For the purpose of the Cash flow Budget all rebates and discounts must be
deducted from the projected revenue.

h) Provision for revenue that will not be collected is made against the
expenditure item bad debt and based on actual collection levels for the
previous financial year and the reasonably projected annual non-payment
rate.

i)

Interest received from actual Long-term and or Short-term Investments are
based on the amount reasonably expected to be earned on cash amounts
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available during the year according to the expected interest rate trends.
The actual amount allocated for interest on investments is to be
contributed to the Capital Replacement Reserve.

j)

Only changes in fair values related to cash may be included in the cash
flow budget. Changes to unamortised discount must be included in the
Operating Budget but excluded in the cash flow budget.

k) A detailed salary budget is compiled on an annual basis. All funded
positions are budgeted for in total as well as new and/or funded vacant
positions. As a guiding principle the salary budget should not constitute
more than 35% of annual Operating Expenditure.

I)

Employee related costs include contributions to non-current and current
employee benefits, It is acknowledged that the non-current benefits’
requirements are well above the initial cash capabilities of the municipality,
and it is therefore determined that provision for the short term portion of
employee benefits, as well as an operating surplus calculated at 5% of the
prior year balance of the long—term benefits, be included in the operating
budget, in order to build sufficient cash for these requirements. The cash
portion of the employee benefits must be accounted for in an “Employee
Benefits Reserve”.

m) Depreciation must be fully budgeted for in the operating budget.

In order to ensure a sufficient accumulation of cash for the replacement of
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets, the amount of
depreciation on assets funded from own sources, excluding assets funded
from grants, public contributions and external loans must be reflected as a
surplus on the cash flow budget.
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n)

A provision is recognised when the Municipality has a present obligation
as
a result of a past event and it is probable, more likely than not, that
an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential
will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made
of
the amount of the obligation.

o)

Provisions are revised annually and those estimates to be settled within the
next twelve (12) months are treated as current liabilities.

p)

The Municipality should have the following provisions:
• Leave Provision
Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as they accrue to employees.
An
annual provision is made from the operating budget to the leave provision.
Due to the fact that not all leave balances are to be redeemed for cash
at
once, only 75% of the leave provision is to be cash backed.
• Landfill Rehabilitation Provision
The landfill site rehabilitation provision is created for the current operational
site at the future estimated time of closure. The value of the provision
is
based on the expected future cost to rehabilitate the landfill site. This
provision must be cash backed to ensure availability of cash for rehabilitation
on closure. This provision must be 100% backed by cash.
•

Long Services Awards

Municipal employees are awarded leave days according to years in service
at year end. Due to the fact that not all long service leave balances are
redeemed for cash at once, only 75% of the long service leave provision
must be cash backed.
•
The

Post-Employment Medical Care Benefits
Municipality provides

post-retirement medical

care

benefits by

subsidizing the medical aid contributions to retired employees and their
legitimate spouses. The entitlement to post-retirement medical benefits
is
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based on employees remaining in service up to retirement age and the
completion of a minimum service period. The expected cost of these
benefits is accrued over a period of employment. This provision must be
80% cash backed to ensure the availability of cash for the payment of
medical aid payments.

It is therefore a requirement that all provision be backed by cash, the
contribution to all current provisions be set at 70%.

q)

The annual cash flow requirement for the repayment of borrowings must
fully be taken into consideration with the setting of tariffs.

r)

Sufficient provision

must be made for the maintenance of existing

infrastructure based on affordable levels. The maintenance budgets are
normally lower than the recommended levelsAs a guiding principle repair
and maintenance should constitute between 5% and 8% of total operating
expenditure and should annually be increased incrementally until the
required targets are achieved.

s)

3.7

Individual expenditure line items are to be revised each year when
compiling the budget to ensure proper control over expenditure.

FUNDING THE CAPITAL BUDGET
3.7.1. INTRODUCTION
The municipality’s objective is to maintain, through proper maintenance and
replacement measures, existing levels of service and to improve and implement
services which are neglected or non existent.
—

The capital budget provides funding for the municipality’s capital programme
based on the needs and objectives as identified by the community through the
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Integrated Development Plan and provides for the eradication of infrastructural
backlogs, renewal and upgrading of existing infrastructure, new developments
and enlargement of bulk infrastructure.

In order to achieve this objective the municipality must annually, within financial
means, budget for the replacement of redundant assets as well as new assets.
3.7.2. FUNDING SOURCES FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
The capital budget can be funded by way of own contributions, grants, public
contributions as well as external loans. The capital budget is also limited by the
availability and access to these sources of funding.

Own Contributions

The capital budget financed from own contributions must primarily be funded
from the Capital Replacement Reserve.

Notwithstanding the above the capital budget or portions thereof may also be
funded from surplus cash. The allocations of the funding sources from own
contributions are determined during the budget process.
Grants (Including Public Contributions)
Grants for capital expenditure have become a common practice, especially in
order to extend service delivery to previously disadvantaged areas. While such
grants are welcomed, care should also be taken that unusual grant funding does
not place an unreasonable burden on the residents for future maintenance costs
which may be higher than their ability to pay.

It is therefore determined that the accounting officer must evaluate the long term
effect of unusual capital grants on future tariffs, and if deemed necessary, report
on such to Council.
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It is furthermore determined that the depreciation charges on assets financed
from grants and donations must not have a negative effect on tariffs charged to
the users of such assets. The Accounting Officer must put such accounting
measures in place to comply with this requirement, to a reasonable extent.
Only Government Gazetted allocations or transfers as reflected in the Division of
Revenue Act or allocations as per Provincial Gazettes may be used to fund
projects. The conditions of the specific grant must be taken into consideration
when allocated to a specific project.

In the case of public contributions, donations and/or other grants, such capital
projects may only be included in the annual budget if the funding has been
received by the municipality already.

External Loans
The municipality may only raise loans in accordance with its Debt Management
Policy.

The Accounting Officer must also put such accounting measures in place to
ensure that no unspent portions of loans are utilised for operating purposes.

For budgeting purposes any difference between proposed capital spending from
loans and proposed loans raised must be included in the cash surplus for the
year.

All capital projects have an effect on future operating budget therefore the
following additional cost factors should be considered before approval:

a) Personnel cost to staff new facilities once operational;
b) Contracted services, that is, security, cleaning etc.;
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c) General expenditure such as services cost, stationery, telephones,
material etc.;
d) Other capital requirements to the operate facility such as vehicles, plant
and equipment, furniture and office equipment etc.;
e) Costs to maintain the assets;
f)

Interest and redemption in the case of borrowings;

g) Depreciation charges;
h) Revenue generation as the additional expenses incurred may be offset by
additional revenue generated to determine the real impact on tariffs.

3.8

FUNDING COMPLIANCE MEASUREMENT
3.8.1. INTRODUCTION
The municipality wants to ensure that the budget or adjustments budget complies
with the requirements of the MFMA and this policy. For this purpose a set of
indicators must be used as part of the budget process and be submitted with the
budget. These indicators include all the indicators as recommended by National
Treasury as well as reconciliations according to this policy. Any additional
indicators recommended by National Treasury in future must also be taken into
account, as well as any additional reconciliation items as either determined by
the Council or the Accounting Officer.

If any of the indicators are negative during the compilation or approval process of
the budget, the budget may not be approved until all the indicators provide a
positive return, unless any negative indicators can be reasonably explained and
future budget projections address the turn-around of these indicators to within
acceptable levels.
3.8.2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS
A positive Cash and Cash Equivalents position throughout the year is crucial. In
addition, the forecasted cash position at year-end must at least be the amount as
calculated in the Reconciliation of Cash Requirements as determined by the
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Liquidity Policy and attached to this policy as Appendix “A”.
3.8.3. CASH PLUS INVESTMENTS LESS APPLICATION OF FUNDS
The overall cash position of the municipality must be sufficient to include:

•

unspent conditional grants;

•

unspent conditional public contributions;

•

unspent borrowings;

•

vatduetoSARS;

•

secured investments;

•

the cash portion of statutory funds such as the Housing Development Fund;

•

other working capital requirements; and

•

In addition, it must be sufficient to back reserves as approved by the
municipality and the portions of provisions as indicated elsewhere in this
policy.

3.8.4. MONTHLY AVERAGE PAYMENT COVERED
CASH EQUIVALENTS (“CASH COVERAGE”)

BY

CASH

AND

This indicator shows the level of risk should the municipality experience financial
stress.
3.8.5. SURPLUS/DEFICIT EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION OFFSETS
It is almost certain that the operating budget, which includes depreciation charges
on assets funded by grants and public contributions, as well as on revalued
assets, will result in a deficit.

As determined elsewhere in this policy it is not the intention that the users of the
assets funded from grants, public contributions and revaluations must be
burdened with tariff increases to provide for such depreciation charges. In order
to ensure a “balanced” budget but excluding such depreciation charges, the
depreciation charges may be offset against the net surplus I deficit.
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Should the budget result in a deficit after the offsetting, the budget will be
deemed
unfunded and must be revised.
3.8.6. PROPERTY RATES/SERVICE CHARGE
REVENUE
INCREASE LESS MACRO INFLATION TARGET

PERCENTAGE

The intention of this indicator is to ensure that tariff increases are in line
with
macro economic targets, but also to ensure that revenue increases
for the
expected growth in the geographic area is realistically calculated.
The formula to be used is as follows:
DESCRIPTION

PROPERTY
RATES

SERVICE
CHARGES

TOTAL

A

Revenue of budget year

R XX

R XX

RXX

B

Less: Revenue of prior year

R XX

R XX

R XX

C

=Revenue increase/decrease

RXX

RXX

RXX

D

% lncrease/(Decrease)

C/B %

C/B %

C/B %

E

Less: Upper limit
Inflation target

macro

%

%

%

F

=Growth in excess of inflation
target

%

%

%

G

Less: Expected growth %

%

%

H

lncrease attributed to tariff %
Increase
above
macro
inflation target

%

of

%

In the event that the percentage in (h) above is greater than zero, a
proper
motivation must accompany the budget at submission, or the budget
must be
revised.
3.8.7. CASH COLLECTION % RATE
The object of the indicator is to establish whether the projected cash
to be
collected is realistic and complies with section 18 of the MFMA.
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The collection rate for calculating the provision for impairment of receivables
must be based on past and present experience. Past experience refers to the
collection rates of the prior years and present experience refers to the collection
rate of the current financial year as from 1 July.

It is not permissible to project a collection rate higher than the rate currently being
obtained, even if the municipality recently approved a debt collection policy or
implemented additional debt collection measures. Any improvement in collection
rates during the budget year may be appropriated in an Adjustment Budget.
3.8.8. DEBT IMPAIRMENT
BILLABLE REVENUE

EXPENSE

AS

A

PERCENTAGE

OF

This indicator provides information whether the contribution to the provision for
impairment of receivables is adequate. In theory it should be equal to the
difference between 100% and the cash collection rate, but other factors such as
past performance might have an influence on it. Any difference, however, must
be motivated in the budget report.
3.8.9. CAPITAL PAYMENTS AS A PERCENTAGE OF CAPITAL EXPENDITURE
This indicator provides information as to the timing for payments on capital
projects and utilising allowed payment terms.
38.10.

BORROWING
AS
A
PERCENTAGE
OF
EXPENDITURE (EXCLUDING GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS)

CAPITAL

This indicator provides information as to compliance with the MFMA in
determining borrowing needs. The Accounting Officer must ensure compliance
with the Municipality’s Debt Management Policy.

3.8.11.

GRANTS REVENUE AS A PERCENTAGE OF GRANTS AVAILABLE

The percentage should never be less than 100% and the recognition of expected
unspent grants at the current year-end as revenue in the next financial year must
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be substantiated in a report.
3.8.12.
CONSUMER DEBTORS CHANGE (CURRENT AND NON
CURRENT)

-

The object of the indicator is to determine whether budgeted reductions
in
outstanding debtors are realistic.

An unacceptable high increase in either current— or non— current debtor
s’
balances should be investigated and acted upon.
3.8.13.

REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURE LEVEL

It is of utmost importance that the municipality’s Property Plant and Equipment be
maintained properly, in order to ensure sustainable service delivery. The budget
should allocate sufficient resources to maintain assets and care should be
exercised not to allow a declining maintenance program in order to fund other
less important expenditure requirements.

Similarly, if the maintenance requirements become excessive, it could indicat
e
that a capital renewal strategy should be implemented or reviewed.
As a general benchmark the maintenance budget should be between 4% and
8%
of the asset values.
3.8.14.

ASSET RENEWALIREHABILITATION EXPENDITURE LEVEL

This indicator supports further the indicator for repairs and maintenance.
The Accounting Officer must, as part of the capital budget, indicate whether each
project is a new asset or a replacement/renewal asset in order to determine
whether the renewal program is sufficient or needs revision.
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38.15.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE BUDGET

Although it is not a legal requirement that the financial performance budget
should balance, it only makes management sense that it should balance.

A number of line—items influence the net result of the financial performance
budget. It includes capital grant revenue, depreciation charges including those
where assets were funded from grants and public contributions, unamortised
discounts and gains/losses on the disposal of Property Plant and Equipment.
These items need to be taken into consideration in order to establish if the
operating budget is realistic and credible.

3.8.16.

FINANCIAL POSITION BUDGET

This indicator provides an overall view of the projected financial position over the
periods of the Medium Term Expenditure framework, including movements in
inventory and payables.
3.8.17.

CASH FLOW BUDGET

A positive cash flow is a good indicator of a balanced budget, as well as the
ability of the municipality to meet its future commitments.

The cash flow budget, however, does not include those items such as
contributions to the provisions described elsewhere in this policy, the effect of
depreciation charges etc., and care must be taken not to let a projected positive
cash

inflow lead to additional expenditure

requests, without taking the

requirements of those items into consideration.
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4.

SECTION C: RESERVES POLICY

4.1

INTRODUCTION
Fund accounting historically formed a huge part of municipal finance in the IMFO
standards.

Since the municipality changed to General Recognised Accounting Practices
(GRAP) fund accounting is no more allowed.

The municipality, however, recognises the importance of providing to the
municipality itself, as well as its creditors, financiers, staff, and general public a
measure of protection for future losses, as well as providing the necessary cash
resources for future capital replacements and other current and non-current
liabilities.
This policy aims to provide for such measure of protection by creating certain
reserves.

4.2

LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
There are no specific legal requirements for the creation of reserves, except for
the Housing Development Fund. The GRAP Standards itself also do not provide
for reserves.

However, the GRAP “Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements” states in paragraph 91 that such reserves may be created,
but “Fund Accounting” is not allowed and any such reserves must be a “legal”
reserve, i.e. created by law or Council Resolution.
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4.3

TYPES OF RESERVES
Reserves can be classified into two main categories being “cash funded
reserves” and “non

—

cash funded reserves”.

4.3.1. CASH FUNDED RESERVES
In order to provide for sufficient cash resources for future expenditure, the
municipality hereby approves the establishment of the following reserves:
4.3.1.1.

Capital Replacement Reserve (CRR)

The CRR is to be utilised for future capital expenditure from own funds
and may not be used for maintenance— or other operating expenditure.

The CRR must be cash—backed and the Accounting Officer is hereby
delegated to determine the contribution to the CRR during the compilation
of the annual financial statements.

The municipality endeavours to effectively utilise and maintain the Capital
Replacement Reserve for the funding of capital replacement and renewal
for future financial years. This reserve needs to be cash backed. This will
provide the municipality with a more balanced capital funding approach in
the longer term thereby reducing the risk of reaching its maximum gearing
ability or depleting its free cash.

This Reserve can be generated as follows from the Operating Budget: the
following methodology needs to be read in conjunction with the Liquidity
Policy:

a) Cash generated from Operating Activities:
a. The municipality has maintained a marginal ability to
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generate surplus operational cash flow which it has used to
fund most of its capital spending in the past;
b. Depreciation is a method to generate future cash. Therefore
it is prudent to annually measure the cash coverage for
depreciation charges to ensure it is fully funded from cash
through tariff setting. Cash generated from depreciation is to
be transferred to the Capita) Replacement Reserve;
c. As at year end it is to be determined whether the municipality
meets its Minimum Liquidity Criteria as stipulated in the
Liquidity Policy, excess cash in addition to this prescribed
level is to be calculated and appropriated to the Capital
Replacement Reserve and no more than 50% of the balance
of the Capital Replacement Reserve as at year end should
be allocated to the following year’s capital budget unless
sufficient

recommendations

are

made

to

Council

to

substantiate such a decision.

b) Interest

received

on

the

investment

made for the

Capital

Replacement Reserve
4.3.1.2.

Employee benefits reserve

The aim of the reserve is to ensure sufficient cash resources are available
for the future payment of employee benefits.

The contributions to the reserve must be made in accordance with the
directives set in this Funding Policy.
4.3.1.3.

Non-current provisions reserve

The aim of this reserve is to ensure sufficient cash resources are available
for the future payment of non

—
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The contributions to the reserve must be made in accordance with the
directives set in this Funding Policy.
4.3.1.4.

Valuation reserve

The aim of this reserve is to ensure sufficient cash resources are available
to undertake a General Valuation as per the Municipal Property Rates Act.

The contribution to this reserve should be approximately 25% of the
anticipated cost of the General Valuation and the Accounting Officer is
hereby delegated to determine this amount annually during the compilation
of the annual financial statements.
4.3.1.5.

Other statutory reserves

It may be necessary to create reserves prescribed by law, such as the
Housing Development Fund. The Accounting Officer must create such
reserves according to the directives in the relevant laws.
4.3.2. NON

—

CASH FUNDED RESERVES

It might be necessary to create non

—

cash funded reserves for a variety of

reasons, including GRAP requirements. The Accounting Officer must create any
reserves prescribed by the accounting standards, such as the Revaluation
Reserve, if required.

The Accounting Officer is hereby delegated and may also in the discretion of the
Accounting Officer, create reserves for future depreciation offsetting, in the
absence of a standard similar to lAS 20.

4.4

ACCOUNTING FOR RESERVES
4.4.1. REVALUATION RESERVE
The accounting for the Revaluation Reserve must be done in accordance with
the requirements of GRAP 17.
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4.4.2. OTHER RESERVES
The accounting for all other reserves must be processed through the Statement
of Financial Performance. The required transfer to or from the reserves must be
processed in the Statement of Net Assets to or from the accumulated surplus.

It is a condition of GRAP and this policy that no transactions may be directly
appropriated against these reserves.
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5.

SECTION D: REVIEW OF THE POLICY
This Funding and Reserves Policy is the only policy of the munic
ipality and
replaces any past policies in this regard. Any revision of the
policy must be
approved by the Municipal Council.

Whenever the Minister of Finance or the National Treasury or the
Auditor
General requests changes to the policy by way of legislation, change
s to GRAP
or otherwise, it must be reviewed and submitted for consideration
by the Council
on an annual basis. Such submission must be accompanied
with a full
description of the reasons for the change to the policy.

—

5.1.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (OVERSIGHT)
Compliance with the various stipulations as documented in this Borrow
ing, Funds
and Reserves Policy need to be monitored by the Chief Financial
Officer and
reported on to the Municipal Manager on a monthly basis
and to the
Finance/Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.
Where compliance has been breached the Chief Financial Office
r must present
an action plan to correct the non-compliance. The Finance Comm
ittee must
monitor the successful implementation of the corrective action
plans and report
progress to Council.

5.2. TRANSITIONAL ARRANGEMENT
Upon adoption of this policy by the Council, the Municipal Manager in
conjunction
with the Chief Financial Officer must determine the current perform
ance levels of
the municipality against this Policy and present a plan of action
towards
achieving and maintaining the stipulation as set out in this policy thereby
utilising
a more blended funding mix for capital infrastructure investment.
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The Council must approve an appropriate timeframe within which
the municipality
must achieve the approved stipulations as set out in this
Policy. The period
between the date of the policy adoption by Council and
the target date for
compliance shall be known as the Transitional Period.
The Finance Committee must report progress during the approv
ed Transitional
Period to the Council.

5.3. POLICY MANAGEMENT
The Borrowing, Funds and ReseR’es Policy forms part of the
municipality overall
financial objectives and therefore forms part of approved Budge
t Policies. The
policy must be reviewed at least annually during the
budget revision and
presented to Council for approval. The Policy is effective from
the date it is
approved by Council.

Policy Title: Liquidity, Funding and Reserves Policy

Financial Year:

2020/2021
Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 3 1/3/2020 with Draft
Budget per Item C/2/172/03/20

128

_____

___

DRAFT LIQUIDITY, FUNDING AND RESERVES POLICY
Page 31
APPENDIX A: Liquidity Requirem
ent as per Liquidity Policy

Financial Year End:
Liquidity Requirement Calculation [as stipulated in Paragraph 2.4.1.]
All earmarked and/or conditional grants received but not yet
utilised
Value of legally entrenched short term rights and benefits of
employees related to Medical benefits & Retirement benefits
Funds held for agency services not yet performed
Funds held for unspent long term loans
Reserve funds reflected in Statement of Financial Position that
are assumed to be held in cash
Capital redemption and interest payments on external loans not
reflected as part of normal operational expenditure
1 month operational expenditure excluding non-cash items
Commitments resulting from contracts concluded as part of
Capex Programme, not reflected in operational budget
TOTAL LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENT
Actual available liquidity held [reference paragraph 2.4.2.]
Bank Balance at e.g.:
ABSA, FNB, Standard Bank, Nedbank, Investec, Money Market
Bank balance sub total
95% of_all_other term_investments_with_Banks
90% of Market value of all Bonds on the JSE that are held
Consumer debtors (current 60 days)
Other reserves held in cash not reflected in bank balances
mentioned above for e.g.:
-__Unspent_conditional_grants
Payments received for agency functions not yet performed
The_cash_value_of_reserves_held
Cash deposits held as part of loan covenants or ceded
Undrawn bank overdraft facility or committed liquidity lines
available_or_unspent_loans
TOTAL LIQUIDITY AVAILABLE
-

—

-

-

-

-

LIQUIDITY SURPLUS (SHORT FALL)
SURPLUS
TO
BE
APPROPRIATED
REPLACEMENT RESERVE

TO

CAPITAL

Liquidity ratio: Current AssetslCurrent Liabilities
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Supply Chain Management Policy, adopted in terms of Section 111 of the Local Government:
Municipal Finance Management Act, No. 56 of 2003 and the Municipal Supply Chain Management
Regulations, Notice 868 of 30 May 2005.

Council resolves in terms of Section 111 of the Local Government Municipal Finance Management Act
(No. 56 of 2003), to adopt the following as the Supply Chain Management Policy of the Bitou Local
Municipality:
VERSION CONTROL

:

POLICY OWNER:

Bitou Municipality Supply Chain Management Unit

POLICY EFFECTIVE DATE:

01 JULY 2018

Version

Revision

Date

1

14 December 2005

2

2007
: 29 May 2013

3

Section

Page

All

All

Policy Approval

Yes

All

All

Annual Review

Yes

All

All

Annual Review

Reason for change

4

31 March 2014

Yes

All

All

Alignment of SCM Policy to the
National Treasury Model Policy.

5

31 March 2015
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All

All

Annual review of Budget-related
policies
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31 May2016
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1

6
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Family for GRAP Disclosure

6

31 May 2016
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2

9

Withdraw exception from the Policy
relating to public notices &
advertisements

6

31 May 2016

Yes

14

15

Introduce the use of the National
Treasury Central Suppliers Database
as a primary vehicle for the
accreditation of suppliers

All

The separation of the Preferential
Procurement Policy from the SCM
Policy as an incorporation. The PPP
will become the main driver of
procurement in the organization in
terms of the Council’s strategic goal to
increase localized procurement to
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Policy will focus on goods & services.
with a potentially new Infrastructure
Delivery Policy for construction-related

,

7
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21. Defin itions
In this Policy, unless the context otherwise indicates, a word or expression to which a meaning has
been assigned in the Municipal Finance Management Act, no 56 of 2003, has the same meaning
as in the Act, and
—

“Accounting Officer”

in relation to a Municipality means the Municipal Manager as described in
Section 60 of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, no
56 of 2003 as well as Section 82 of the Municipal Structures Act, no 117 of
1998.

“Bid”

means a written offer in a prescribed or stipulated form in response loan
invitation by an organ of state for the provision of services, works or goods

“Close Family Member”

means:
(i) spouse or partner,
(ii) child,
(iii) parent

“Close Members of the Family for
GRAP Disclosure”

means those family members who maybe expected to influence, or be
influenced by that person in their dealings with the entity. As a minimum, a
person is considered to be a close member of the family of another person if
they:
(a) are married or live together in a relationship similar to a marriage: or
(b) are separated by no more than two degrees of natural or legal
consanguinity or affinity.

“Competitive Bidding Process”

means a competitive bidding process referred to in paragraph 12 (1( (d) of this
Policy:

“Competitive Bid”

means a bid in terms of a competitive bidding process;

“Consultants”

means consulting firms, engineering firms, legal firms, construction managers,
management firms, procurement agenlu. inspection agents, auditors, other
multinational organizations, investments and merchant banks, universities,
research agencies, government agencies, non-governmental (NGO’s( and
individuals.

“contract”

means the agreement that results from the acceptance of a bid by the
Municipality;

“Contract Manager”

means the official within a specific department, responsible for all day to day
activities (including performance management and dispute resolution) during
the life cycle of the contract (with delegated powers to perform this function), as
the contract champion. The Contract Manager can also be seen as the Budget
holder accountable for eupenditure from, and income to, particular budgef.

“Contract Owner”

means the official who is, as the owner of a budget vote, ultimately accountable
for all the activities during the life cycle of a contract.
in relation to a duty, includes an instruction, a request to perform, or to assist in
performing the duty.

“delegation”

21
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‘Emergency”

means a serious, unexpected, unforeseen and potentially dangerous and
damaging situation requiring immediate action and which is not due to a lack of
planning.

“Exceptional Case’

means unusual not typical circumstances where it is impractical or impossible
in practice to follow procurement processes.

“Final Award”

in relation to bids or quotations submitted for a contract, means the final
decision on which bid or quote to accept;

“Formal Written Price Quotation”

means quotations referred to in Section 12 (1) (c) of this Policy;

“tad-ef—DepamentOtrecto:”

means a person in the employment of Sitou Municipality who heads a
department or who reports to the Municipal Manager

“IDP”

means Integrated Development Plan

“In the service of the State”

means to be

—

(a) a member of
i)

—

any municipal council;

ii)

any provincial legislature; or

iii)

the National Assembly or the National Council of Provinces;

(b) a member of the board of directors of any municipal entity;
(c) an official of any municipality or municipal entity;
(d) an employee of an’J national or provincial department, national or
provincial public entity or constitutional institution within the meaning of
the Public Finance Management Act. 1999 (Act No I of 199g(;
(e) an executive member of the accounting authority of any national or
provincial public entity; or
(f)

an employee of Padiameni or a provincial legislature;

“Irregular Expenditure”

For the purpose of this Policy means expenditure incurred by the municipality
in contravention of, or that is vol in accordance with, a requirement of the
Supply Chain Management Policy of the municipality, and which is not been
condoned in terms of the Policy

“Long Term Contract”

means a contract with a duration period exceeding one year;

“List of Accredited Prospective
Providers”

means the list of accredited prospective providers which the municipality must
keep in terms 01 Section 14 of this Policy;

“Municipality”

means Bitou Local Municipality

“Manicipal Systems Act”

means the Local Government Municipal System Act 32 of 2000

“Notice Boards”

means the official notice boards at the municipal offices libraries and any
notice boards at the dedicated directorates

“Other Applicable Legislation”
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b)

he Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No. 53sf
2003):

c)

the Construction Industry Develcpment Board Act, 2000 (Act No.38 of
2000);

d(

the Local Government Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No.
56 of 2003(:

e)

the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000(:

f)

the Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of
1998):

g)

the Prevention and Combating of Corrupt Activities Act. 2000 (Act No. 12
of 2004);

h(

the Locat Governrnenf Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act No
56 of 2003) Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations;

i)

the Preferential Procurement Regulations, 2017

j(

the Competitions Act 1998 (Act No.89 of 1998(

“Policy”

means the Supply Chain Management Policy of the Bitcu Local Municipality

‘Quotation”

means a stated pnce that a supplier expects to receive for the provision of
specified services, works or goods:

“Sole Supplier”

i

means the Only supplier in the South African market that can provide a
parbcutar product or service;

“supply chain management
practitioners”

inclsdes the Chief Financial Officer, the Head of the Budget and Treasury
Office and the Head of Supply Chain Management:

“Tender”

means ‘bid’ or ‘quotation in relation to ‘Tender Box

“‘Treasury Guidelines”

means any guidelines on supply chain management issued by the Minister in
terms of Section 168 of the Act;

‘validity period”

means the pedod for which a bid is to remain valid and binding as stipulated in
the relevant lender document.

--
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CHAPTER 1
ESTABLISHMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT POLICY
T.2.Supply Chain Management Policy
1)

The Bitou Municipality resolved in terms of Section 111 of the Municipal Finance
Management Act, No 56 of 2003, to have and implement a Supply Chain Management Policy
that:
gives effect tO—

a)
(I)

Section 217 of the Constitution; and

(ii)

Part 1 of Chapter 11 and other applicable provisions of the Act;

b)

Is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective;

c)

complies with

ii)

the Regulations: and

—

iii) any minimum norms and standards that may be prescribed in terms of Section 16801 the
Act:

2)

3)

d)

is consistent with other applicable legislation;

e)

does not undermine the objective for uniformity in supply chain management systems
between organs of state in all spheres;

f)

is consistent with national economic policy concerning the promotion of investments
and doing business with the public sector:

g)

applies the highest ethical standards;

h)

promotes local economic development: and

I)

assign responsibility for the implementation of the policy to the Accounting Officer of
the Municipality.

The Municipality may not act otherwise than in accordance with this Supply Chain
Management Policy when:
a)

procuring goods or services;

b)

disposing of goods no longer needed;

c)

selecting contractors to provide assistance in the provision of municipal services
otherwise than in circumstances where Chapter 8 of the Municipal Systems Act
applies: or

d)

selecting external mechanisms referred to in Section 80 (1) (b) of the Municipal
Systems Act for the provision of municipal services in circumstances contemplated in
Section 83 of that Act.

This Policy, except where provided otherwise, does not apply in respect of the procurement of
goods and services contemplated in Section 110(2) of the Act, including
—

a)

water from the Department of Water Affairs or a public entity, another municipality or a
municipal entity; and

b)

electricity from Eskom or another public entity, another municipality or a municipal
entity.

4.3,

Amendment of the Supply Chain Management Policy

I)

The Accounting Officer must
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a)

at least annually review the implementation of this Policy: and
when the Accounting Officer considers it necessary, submit proposals for the
amendment of this Policy to the Council,

b)
2)

If the Accounting Officer submits proposed amendments to the council that differs from the
model policy issued by the National Treasury, the Accounting Officer must
a)

ensure that such proposed amendments Comply with the Regulations: and
report any deviation from the model policy to the National Treasury and the Provincial
Treasury.

b)

5-.4
1)

c)

When amending this Supply Chain Management Policy the need for uniformity in
supply chain practices, procedures and forms between organs of state in all spheres,
particularly to promote accessibility of supply chain management systems for small
businesses must be taken into account,

d)

The Accounting Officer must, in terms of Section 62(1) (f) (i) of the Act, take all
reasonable steps to ensure that the Municipality has and implements this Supply
Chain Management Policy.

Delegation of supp’y chain management powers and duties
The council hereby delegates all powers and duties to the Accounting Officer which are
necessary to enable the Accounting Officer
—

a)

to discharge the Supply chain management responsibilities conferred on the
Accounting Officer in terms of
—

(i)

Chapter 8 of the Act; and

(ii)

the Supply Chain Management Policy.

b)

to maximize administrative and operational efficiency in the implementation of this
Policy:

c)

to enforce reasonable cost-effective measures for the prevention of fraud, corruption,
favouritism and unfair and irregular practices in the implementation of this Policy: and
to comply with his or her responsibilities in terms of Section 115 and other applicable
provisions of the Act.

d)
2)

Section 79 of the Act applies to the Sub-delegation of powers and duties delegated to an
Accounting Officer in terms of Sub-Section (1).

3)

The Council or Accounting Officer may not sub-delegate any supply chain management
powers or duties to a person who is not an official of municipality or to a committee which is
not exclusively composed of officials of the municipality.

4)

Section 4(3) may not be read as permitting an official to whom the power to make final awards
has been delegated, to make a final award in a competitive bidding process otherwise than
through the committee system provided for in Section 26 of this Policy.

6.5Sub-detegations
1)

2)

The Accounting Officer may in terms of Section 79 of the Act sub-delegate any supply chain
management powers and duties, including those delegated to the Accounting Officer in terms
of this Policy, but any such sub-delegation must be consistent with Sub-Section (2) of this
Section and Section 4 of this Policy.
The power to make a final award
a)
b)

(i)
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(ii) a Head-ef-Oe-oa#mentDirector; or
(iii) a Bid Adjudication Committee of which the Chief Financial Officer or a senior manager is
a member.
3)

not exceeding R 2 million may be sub-delegated but only to
(i)

4)

5)

—

the Chief Financial Officer;

(ii)

a Head of Departmen(Director;

(iii)

a manager directly accountable to the Chief Financial Officer or a l=tewd-esf
DepartmentDirector, or

(iv)

a Bid Adjudication Committee.

An official or Bid Adjudication Committee to which the power to make final awards has been
sub-delegated in accordance with Sub-Section (2) must within five working days of the end of
each month submit to the Accounting Officer a written report containing particulars of each
final award made by such official or committee during that month, including—
a)

the amount of the award;

b)

the name of the person to whom the award was made; and

c)

the reason why the award was made to that person.

A written report referred to in Sub-Section (3) must be submitted
a)
(i)

to the Accounting Officer, in the case of an award by

—

—

the Chief Financial Officer;

(ii) a senior manager; or
(iii) a Bid Adjudication Committee of which the Chief Financial Officer or a senior manager is
a member.
b)

to the Chief Financial Officer or the senior manager responsible for the relevant bid, in
the case of an award by
—

(i)

a manager referred to in subparagraph (2)(c)(iii): or

(ii) a Bid Adjudication Committee of which the Chief Financial Officer or a senior manager is
not a member.
6)

Sub-Section (3) of this Section does not apply to procurements out of petty cash.

7)

This Section may not be interpreted as permitting an official to whom the power to make final
awards has been sub-delegated, to make a final award in a competitive bidding process
otherwise than through the committee system provided for in Section 26 of this Policy.

8)

No supply chain management decision-making powers may be delegated to an advisor or
consultant.

7._Oversight role of council
1)
2)

The council reserves its right to maintain oversight over the implementation of this Policy.
For the purposes of such oversight the Accounting Officer must

—

a)

within 30 days of the end of each financial year, submit a report on the implementation
of this Policy and the Supply Chain Management Policy of any municipal entity under
the sole or shared control of the municipality, to the council of the municipality; and

b)

whenever there are serious and material problems in the implementation of this Policy,
immediately submit a report to the council.
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(3)

The reports must be made public in accordance with Section 21A of the Municipal Systems
Act.

(4)

The Accounting Officer will, within 60 days of the end of each financial year, submit to the
Provincial Treasury any information concerning supply chain management in such format as
the National Treasury and Provincial Treasury may determine

87

Supply Chain Management Unit

1)

The Accounting Officer must establish a Supply Chain Management Unit to implement this
Policy.

2)

The Supply Chain Management Unit operates under the direct administrative eharge
ofcharge of the Chief Financial Officer, supervised by the Manager: Supply Chain
Management as the Head of Supply Chain Management to whom this duty has been subdelegated in terms of Section 82 of the Act.

98.

Training of supply chain management officials

1)

The training of officials involved in implementing this Policy should be in accordance with any
Treasury guidelines on supply chain management training.
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CHAPTER 2
SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
1D9.Forrnat of supply chain management system
(1) This Supply Chain Management Policy provides systems for

—

(a) demand management;
(i) acquisition management;
(ii) logistics management;
(iii) disposal management;
(iv) risk management; and
(v) performance management.

Part 1: Demand Management

1-tlO. System of demand management
1)

The Accounting Officer must establish and implement an appropriate demand management
system in order to ensure that the resources required by the municipality to support its
operational commitments and its strategic goals outlined in the Integrated Development Plan.
The demand management system must

2)

include timely planning and management processes to ensure that all goods and services
required by the municipality are quantified, budgeted for and timely and effectively
delivered at the right locations and at the critical delivery dates, and are of the appropriate
quality and quantity at a fair cost;

(b)

take into account any benefits of economies of scale that may be derived in the case of
acquisitions of a repetitive nature;

(c)
(d)

provide for the compilation of the required specifications to ensure that its needs are met;
undertake appropriate industry analysis and research to ensure that innovations and
technological benefits are maximized; and

(e)

include the following demand management considerations
(I)

3)

—

(a)

—

understanding of future and current needs;

(ii)

requirements are linked to the budget;

(iii)

specifications are determined;

(iv)

needs form part of the strategic plan and Integrated Development Plan of the
Municipality;

(v)

analysis of past and current expenditure;

(vi)

optimum methods to satisfy needs;

(vii)

frequency of requirements are specified.

(viii)

calculation of economic order quantity; and

(ix)

conducting of industry and market analysis.

The Demand Management Plan must be developed in conjunction with the IDP, Service
Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) and annual budget.
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4)

AU user departments are required to submit their procurement plans to the Supply Chain
Management Unit by 31 May in terms of the lOP and Budget processes.

5)

The Demand Management Plan must be submitted to and approved by the Accounting Officer
or his or her delegate before 30 June of each year.

6)

The Demand Management Plan must be reviewed regularly and submitted to the Accounting
Officer or his delegate on a quarterly basis.

7)

Demand management must be co-ordinated by SCM officials of the Municipality in
consultation with budget holders

8)

The outcome of this activity should be a detailed planning document that outlines what goods,
works or services should be procured, the manner in which they should be procured as well
as the time-lines to execute the procurement functions.
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Part 2: Acquisition management
1211. System of acquisition management

(1) The Accounting Officer must establish, through operational procedures, an effective system of
acquisition management in order to ensure:(a) that goods and services are procured by the municipality in accordance with authorized
processes only;
(b) that expenditure on goods and services is incurred in terms of an approved budget in terms of
Section 15 of the Act;
(c) that the threshold values for the different procurement processes are complied with;
(d) that bid documentation, evaluation and adjudication criteria, and general conditions of a
contract, are in accordance with any applicable legislation; and
(e) that any Treasury guidelines on acquisition management are properly taken into account.
(2) When procuring goods or services contemplated in Section 110(2) of the Act, the Accounting
Officer must make public the fact that such goods or services are procured otherwise than
through the municipality’s supply chain management system, including
-

(a) the kind of goods or services; and
(b) the name of the supplier.

I3i 2

Range of procurement processes

(1) Goods and services may only be procured by wayof —
(a) petty cash purchases in terms of Councils Petty Cash Policy for procurement transactions
with a value up to R2 000 (IncI. VAT);
(b) written or verbal quotations for procurement transactions of a value up to RiO 000;
(c) formal written price quotations for procurement transactions of a value over RiO 000 up to
R200 000; and
(d) a competitive bidding process for—
(i)

procurement transactions with a value above of R200 000; and

(ii) the procurement of long term contracts.
(2) The Accounting Officer may, in writing(a) lower, but not increase, the different threshold values specified in Sub-Section (1); or
(b) direct that —
(i)

written or verbal quotations be obtained for any specific procurement of a transaction
value lower than R2 000;

(ii)

formal written price quotations be obtained for any specific procurement of a
transaction value lower than RiO 000; or

(iii)

a competitive bidding process be followed for any specific procurement of a
transaction value lower than R200 000.

(3) Goods or services may not deliberately be Split into parts or items of a lesser value merely to
avoid complying with the requirements of the policy. When determining transaction values, a
requirement for goods or Services consisting of different parts or items must as far as possible be
treated and dealt with as a single transaction.
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(a) has furnished that providers
(i)

—

full name:

(ii) identification number or company or other registration number: and
(iii) tax reference number and VAT registration number, if any:
(b) has authorised the Municipality to verify any of the documentation referred to in Sub-Section (a)
above: and
(c) has indicated
(i)

—

whether he or she is in the service of the state, or has been in the service of the state in the
previous twelve months;

(ii) if the provider is not a natural person, whether any of its directors, managers, principal
shareholders or stakeholder is in the service of the state, or has been in the service of the
state in the previous twelve months; or
(iii) whether a spouse, child or parent of the provider or of a director, manager, shareholder or
stakeholder referred to in Sub-Section (ii) is in the service of the state, or has been in the
service of the state in the previous twelve months.
(d) has indicated the status of the providers municipal accounts with Bitou Municipality, where
applicable.

15,14. Lists of accredited prospective providers
1)

The Accounting Officer must
a)

—

keep a list of accredited prospective providers of goods and services that must be
used for the procurement requirements through written or verbal quotations and formal
written price quotations:

b)

ensure that the listing platforms comply with National Treasury instructions:

c)

at least once a year through newspapers commonly circulating locally, the website and
any other appropriate ways. invite prospective providers of goods or services to apply
for evaluation and listing as accredited prospective providers: and

d)

ensure that prospective providers meet the following listing criteria;
(i)

Name of Supplier / service provider;

(ii)

Street address;

(iii)

Postal address;

(iv)

Contact person in Sales Department;

(v)

Sales Department’s telephone number;

(vi)

Sales Department’s fax number;

(vii)

Sales Department’s cell number;

(viii)

Sales Department’s email address,

(ix)

Contact person in Accounts Department:

(x)

VAT registration number;

(xi)

Bank details;

(xii)

Type of industry;

(Xci)

Valid certification for specialised services:
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Relevant identification numbers of all members, directors and partners

(xvi)

disallow the listing of any prospective provider whose name appears on the National
Treasury’s database as a person prohibited from doing business with the public
sector.

e)

2)

The list must be updated at least quarterly to include any additional prospective providers and
any new commodities or types of services. Prospective providers must be allowed to submit
applications for listing at any time.

3)

The list must be compiled per commodity and per type of service

4)

Once a list has been compiled per commodity and per type of service, price quotations will be
invited from the suppliers in a manner that promotes on-going competition, including on a
rotation basis

5)

The inclusion of any supplier in the database of suppliers does not exempt the supplier from
the obligation to respond in the prescribed manner to notices of the municipality’s supply chain
management requirements.

6)

Suppliers who wish to be included in the list of accredited suppliers without waiting for the next
invitation may approach the Procurement Section for inclusion, provided that they supply the
necessary documentation and information for evaluation. Once these requirements have been
satisfied, the Procurement Section will ensure that the prospective supplier is evaluated and
will provide a response as to approval or not within a reasonable time.

46,1 5, Petty cash purchases
1)

The conditions for the procurement of goods by means of petty cash purchases referred to in
Section 12(1)(a) of this Policy must be stipulated in a Petty Cash Policy and must include the
following
a)

the terms on which a manager may delegate responsibility for petty cash to an official
reporting to the manager;

b)

maximum number of petty cash purchases or the maximum amounts per month for
each manager;

c)

any types of expenditure from petty cash purchases that are excluded, where this is
considered necessary; and

d)

a monthly reconciliation report from each manager must be provided to the chief
financial officer, including
—

2)

(i)

the total amount of petty cash purchases for that month; and

(ii)

receipts and appropriate documents for each purchase.

The Chief Financial Officer have the discretion to approve transactions that does not exceed
R 2 000 per transaction.

17.16. Written or verbal quotations
1)

The conditions for the procurement of goods by means of verbal quotations, for minor items
with a value up to R2 000, are as follows:
a)

Verbal quotations must be obtained from at least one prospective supplier or service
provider preferably from, but not limited to, suppliers or service providers whose
names appear on the list of accredited prospective providers of the Municipality
provided that if quotations are obtained from providers who are not listed, such
providers must meet the listing cnteria set out in Section 14(1) (b), (c) and (d) of this
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c)
2)

3)

4)

if a quotation was submitted verbally, the order may be placed only against written
confirmation by the selected provider.

The conditions for the procurement of goods or services for a value over R2 000 up to
RiO 000, through written quotations are as follows.
a)

Written quotations must be obtained from at least three different providers preferably
from, but not limited to, providers whose names appear on the list of accredited
prospective providers of the municipality, provided that if quotations are obtained from
providers who are not listed, such providers must meet the listing criteria set out in
Section 14(1)(b) and Cc) of this Policy:

b)

to the extent feasible, providers must be requested to submit such quotations in
writing:

c)

if it is not possible to obtain at least three quotations, the reasons must be recorded
and reported quarterly to the Accounting Officer or another official designated by the
Accounting Officer:

d)

the Accounting Officer must record the names of the potential providers requested to
provide such quotations with their quoted prices: and

Quotations must:
a)

be signed by a person with the necessary authority to act on behalf of the prospective
supplier:

b)

comply with the specifications set out in the quotation notice,

c)

be marked for identification in relation to the particular quotation.

Re-imbursements to personnel are subject to emergency situations only, and have to be
authorized by the relevant Ha#of—Ue-Oepa4nawn4Director as well as the Chief Financial
Officer.

817. Formal written price quotations
I)

2)

3)

The conditions for the procurement of goods or services for a value over RiO 000 up to
R200 000, through formal written price quotations are as follows:
a)

quotations must be obtained in writing from at least three different providers whose
names appear on the list of accredited prospective providers of the municipality:

b)

quotations may be obtained from providers who are not listed, provided that such
providers meet the listing criteria set out in Section 14(1 )(b) and (c) of this Policy:

c)

if it is not possible to obtain at least three quotations, the reasons must be recorded
and approved by the Chief Financial Officer or an official designated by the Chief
Financial Officer, and

d)

the Accounting Officer must record the names of the potential providers and their
written quotations.

Quotations must:
a)

be in writing, and signed by a person with the necessary authority to act on behalf of
the prospective supplier:

b)

comply with the specifications set out in the quotation notice:

c)

be marked for identification in relation to the particular quotation.
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1)

The procedure for the procurement of goods or services through written or verbal quotations
or formal written price quotations is as follows:
a)

when using the list of accredited prospective providers the Accounting Officer must
promote on-going competition amongst providers by inviting providers to submit
quotations on a rotation basis;

b)

all goods and services in excess of R30 000 that are to be procured by means of
formal written price quotations must, in addition to the requirements of Section 17, be
advertised for at least seven days on the website and an official notice board of the
municipality;

c)

re-imbursements to personnel are Subject to emergency situations only, and have to
be authorized by the relevant Head of the--Department-Drector as well as the Chief
Financial Officer;

d)

offers received must be evaluated on a comparative basis taking into account
unconditional discounts;

e)

the Accounting Officer or Chief Financial Officer must on a monthly basis be notified in
writing of all written or verbal quotations and formal written price quotations accepted
by an official acting in terms of a sub delegation;

f)

offers below R30 000 must be awarded based on compliance to specifications and
conditions of contract, ability and capability to deliver the goods and services and
lowest price;

g)

acceptable offers, which are subject to the preference points system (PPPFA and
associated regulations), must be awarded to the bidder who scored the highest points;
and
requirements for proper record keeping such as:

h)

2)

(i)

filing of documents for audit purposes;

(ii)

ensure the correctness of documents:

(iii)
before awards proper checking of documents must be done.
Notwithstanding the above requirements for consideration, quotations not to specification may
not be accepted.

3)

Only quotations complying with the specifications will be considered to be accepted, provided
that there are sufficient funds within the appropriate budget.

4)

Where no quotation complies with the specification, as determined by the Head-of-th-e
OepartmentDirector, the SCM Manager may re-invite quotations.

20.19 Competitive bids

1)

Goods or services above a transaction value of R200 000 and long term contracts may only
be procured through a competitive bidding process, subject to Paragraph 11(2) of this Policy.

2)

The bid documentation will be prepared by the S-C.M-MaciagecBid Scecilication Committee in
consultation with the relevant directorate and displayed on notice boards, placed on the
council’s website, and-or advertised in commonly circulated local and/or provincial
newspapers with a closing date of at least 14 days after the date that the advertisement first
appears.

3)

No requirement for goods or services above an estimated transaction value of R200 000 may
deliberately be split into parts or items of lesser value merely for the sake of procuring the
goods or services otherwise than through a competitive bidding process,
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a)

Compilation of bidding documentation as detailed in Section 21;

b)

Public invitation of bids as detailed in Section 22;

c)

Site meetings or briefing sessions as detailed in Section 22;

d)

Handling of bids submitted in response to public invitation as detailed in Section 23;

e)

Evaluation of bids as detailed in Section 28;

f)

Award of contracts as detailed in Section 29;

g)

Administration of contracts, after approval of a bid, the Accounting Officer and the
bidder must enter into a written agreement.

h)

Proper record keeping; Original / legal copies of written contract agreements should
be kept In a secure place for reference purposes.

2221. Bid documentation for competitive bids
1)

The criteria with which bid documentation for a competitive bidding process must comply,
must
—

a)

take into account
(i)

—

the general conditions of contract and any special conditions of contract, if
specified;

(ii)

any Treasury guidelines on bid documentation; and

(iii)

the requirements of the Infrastructure Procurement & Development Policy, in the
case of a bid relating to construction, upgrading or refurbishment of buildings or
infrastructure;

b)

include the preference points system to be used, goals as contemplated in the
Preferential Procurement Regulations and evaluation and adjudication criteria,
including any criteria required by other applicable legislation;

c)

include the compulsory submission of B-BBEE status level verification certificates or
certified copies thereof;

d)

include evaluation and adjudication criteria, including any criteria required by other
applicable legislation;

e)

include evaluation criteria for measuring of functionality (where applicable);

f)

include conditions for sub-contracting according to applicable legislation;

g)

ensure that a due diligence process is conducted to determine whether the preferred
bidders have the capability and ability to execute the contract;

h)

compel bidders to declare any conflict of interest they may have in the transaction for
which the bid is submitted;

i)

if the value of the transaction is expected to exceed RiO million (VAT included),
require bidders to furnish—
(i)

if the bidder is required by law to prepare annual financial statements for
auditing, their audited annual financial statements

(ii)

(aa)

for the past three years; or

(bb)

since their establishment if established during the past three years;

a certificate signed by the bidder certifying that the bidder has no undisputed
commitments for municipal services towards a municipality or other service
provider in respect of which payment is overdue for more than 30 days;
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(iv)

a statement indicating whether any portion of the goods or services are
expected to be sourced from outside the Republic, and, if so, what portion and
whether any portion of payment from the municipality or municipal entity is
expected to be transferred out of the Republic.

j)

stipulate that disputes must be settled by means of mutual consultation, mediation
(with or without legal representation), or, when unsuccessful, in a South African court
of law;

k)

a requirement to supply tax references, tax clearance certificates, VAT registration
numbers and identification or registration numbers;

I)

details of any contracts above R200 000 carried out on behalf of the municipality
within the last five years;

m)

contract management processes and procedures including provision for the
Accounting Officer to cancel the contract on the grounds of unsatisfactory
performance; and

n)

any other matters as required by the MFMA and the Supply Chain Management
Regulations.

2322, Public invitation for competitive bids

1>

The procedure for the invitation of competitive bids is as follows:
Any invitation to prospective providers to submit bids must be by means of a public
advertisement in newspapers commonly circulating locally, the website of the
municipality or any other appropriate ways (which may include an advertisement in the
Government Tender Bulletin); and

a)

the information contained in a public advertisement, must include

b)

—

(i)

the closure date for the submission of bids, which may not be less than 30 days
in the case of transactions over RiO million, or which are of a long term nature
(longer than 3 years), or 14 days in any other case, from the date on which the
advertisement is placed in a newspaper, subject to Sub-Section (2) of this policy;

(ii)

a statement that bids may Only be submitted on the bid documentation provided
by the municipality; and

(iii)

date, time and venue of any proposed site meetings or briefing sessions.

2)

The Accounting Officer may determine a closure date for the submission of bids which is less
than the 30 or 14 days requirement, but only if such shorter period can be justified on the
grounds of urgency or emergency or any exceptional case where it is impractical or
impossible to follow the official procurement process.

3)

Bid documents must be made available on Council’s Website at no charge, as far as possible.

4)

The Municipality charges a non-refundable fee for provision of bid documentsjojiard copy
format. This is subject to annual review. Values of the fees will be determined annually and
included in the official lists of tariffs. Bid documents issued in electronic form will be available
free of charge.

5)

Bids submitted must be sealed.

24.23. Procedure for handling, opening and recording of bids
1)
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(iii)

received after the closing time should not be considered and returned unopened
immediately.

b)

Any bidder or member of the public has the right to request that the names of the
bidders who submitted bids in time must be read out and, if practical, also each
bidder’s total bidding price;

c)

No information, except the provisions in Sub-Section (b), relating to the bid should be
disclosed to bidders or other persons until the successful bidder is notified of the
award; and
The Accounting Officer must

d)
(i)

—

record in a register all bids received in time;

(ii)

make the register available for public inspection; and

(iii)

publish the entries in the register on the website.

2>

In order for a bid to be considered it must be placed in the official tender box located at the
Supply Chain Management Unit.

3)

The Manager: Supply Chain will ensure that tender boxes are sealed until the time of their
official opening, and ensure that they are properly secured.

4)

At the advertised time, the tender box will be unlocked by officials from the Supply Chain
Management Unit.

5)

A Supply Chain Management practitioner will open bid documents in the presence of bidders
or other interested parties.

6)

The tender box may be opened without any members of public being present provided that
the appropriate procedure for advertising the time and venue has been followed.

7)

Unmarked or incorrectly marked tenders will not be opened

8)

The names and total bid amounts will be read out and recorded in the tender register, which
will be available for public inspection on request.

9)

A copy of the record must be kept in the office of the SCM Manager and a complete schedule
provided as soon as is practical.

10)

Bid results will be published on the municipality’s website.

25.24. Negotiations with preferred bidders
1)

2)

The Accounting Officer may negotiate the final terms of a contract with bidders identified
through a competitive bidding process as preferred bidders, provided that such negotiation
a)

does not allow any preferred bidder a second or unfair opportunity;

b)

is not to the detriment of any other bidder; and

c)

does not lead to a higher price than the bid as submitted.

—

Minutes of such negotiations must be kept for record purposes.

2625.Two.stage bidding process

1)

A two-stage bidding process is allowed for
large, complex projects;

b)

projects where it may be undesirable to prepare complete detailed technical
specifications; or

c)
2)

—

a)
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3)

In the second stage final technical proposals and priced bids should be invited.

27-26 Committee system for competitive bids
1)
The Accounting Officer is required to establish a committee system for competitive bids of
at
least
(i)

a Bid Specification Committee;

(ii)

a Bid Evaluation Committee; and

(iii)

a Bid Adjudication Committee.
The Accounting Officer appoints the members of each committee, taking into account Section
117 of the Act.

2)
3)

A neutral or independent observer, appointed by the Accounting Officer, must attend or
oversee a committee when this is appropriate for ensuring fairness and promoting
transparency.

4)

The committee system must be consistent with
Section 27, 28 and 29 of this Policy; and

—

a)
b)
5)

any other applicable legislation.

The Accounting Officer may apply the committee system to formal written price quotations.

28,27

Bid Specification Committees

1)

The bid specification committee must compile the specifications for each procurement
transaction of goods or services by the municipality.
Specifications

2)

—

a)

must be drafted in an unbiased manner to allow all potential suppliers to offer their
goods or services;

b)

must take account of any accepted standards such as those issued by Standards
South Africa, the International Standards Organization, or an authority accredited or
recognized by the South African National Accreditation System with which the
equipment or material or workmanship should comply;

c)

must, where possible, be described in terms of performance required rather than in
terms of descriptive characteristics for design;
may not create trade barriers in contract requirements in the forms of specifications,
plans, drawings, designs, testing and test methods, packaging, marking or labelling of
conformity certification;

d)

e)

may not make reference to any particular trade mark, name, patent, design, type,
specific origin or producer unless there is no other sufficiently precise or intelligible
way of describing the characteristics of the work, in which case such reference must
be accompanied by the word “equivalent”;

f)

3)

4)

must indicate each specific goal for which points may be awarded in terms of the
points system sel Out in the Preferential Procurement Regulations-2O1-; and
must be approved by the Bid Specification Committee prior to publication of the
g)
invitation for bids in terms of Section 22 of this Policy.
A bid specification committee must be composed of at least three (3) officials of the
municipality. The attendance of the relevant Project Manager is compulsory and the
Committee may, when appropriate, include external specialist advisors.
No person, advisor or corporate entity involved with the bid specification committee, or
director of such a corporate entity, may bid for any resulting contracts.

Commented [PPS): Reference to the Year issued ie order to
allow for generic application, regardless whether the Fieguiations is

updated

Formatted: Font: (Default) Anal, 8 pt
,

,

.,‘

:‘;‘

Formatted: Font: Not Bold,

English (United States)i

Formatted: Normal, Tab stops: 8,25 cm, Centered
on, Right

,: Formatted: Font: (Default) Ahal, 8 pt
Formatted: Normal

.

.‘,

Policy Titie: Bitou Locai Municipality Suppiy Chain Management Poilcy
Financiai Ycar: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for rooiew- Submitted to Councii on 31(312020 with Draft Budgoi per itoos
C/2!172j03I20.
Statsas:Finai-Approvedby-Counciion31-May-20l8per-item-C/2I93l0811

.‘,

Formatted: Font: (Default) Anal, 8 pt

-‘

154

Page 26 of 46

5)

The quorum for each meeting of the specification committee is 50% of the members plus one.
One member from the Supply Chain Management Unit and one member of the directorate as
minimum. A member of the specification committee can also be a member of either the Bid
Evaluation or Bid Adjudication Committee (but not both committees) that considers any of the
bids for the same goods or services.

6)

The advertisement must be approved by the Accounting Officer or the official or Bid
Specifications Committee delegated by the Accounting Officer, prior to advertisement of the
bid.

2922 Bid evaluation committees
1)

The bid evaluation committee must
a)

—

evaluate bids in accordance with

—

(i)

the specifications for a specific procurement; and

(ii)

the points system set Out in terms of Section 27(2)(f);

b)

evaluate each bidder’s ability to execute the contract,

c)

check in respect of the each bidder whether municipal rates and taxes and municipal
service charges are not in arrears,

d)

check in respect of each bidder that their tax matters are in order and,
may use the following remedies where a bidder does not comply to any or certain
requirements—

e)
(i)

disqualify bidders from the bidding process;

(ii)

recover all costs, losses or damages the municipality has suffered from the
bidder’s non-compliance;

(iii)

1)

claim any damages as a result of having to make less favourable arrangements
submit to the adjudication committee a report and recommendations regarding the

award of the bid or any other related matter.

2)

A bid evaluation committee must as far as possible be composed ofa)
officials from departments requiring the goods or services; and
b)
c)
d)

e)

at least one supply chain management practitioner of the municipality,
Technical experts, consultants or advisors, provided that these experts can Only
actively contribute to discussions, and not vote on the items
The quorum for each meeting of the Bid Evaluation Committee is 50.% of the
members plus one, provided that one isa sen40.cusuppiy chain management
practitioner.

-

--
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f)

Members of the bid evaluation committees may not serve on any adjudication
committee that adjudicates on any of the items that has been considered at a bid
evaluation committee.

g)

Notwithstanding the above requirements for consideration, bids not according to
specification may not be accepted and the evaluation committee may recommend that
new tenders be called if necessary.
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2)

(i)

depending on its delegations, make a final award or a recommendation to the
Accounting Officer to make the final award; or

(ii)

make another recommendation to the Accounting Officer how to proceed with
the relevant procurement

The Bid Adjudication Committee must consist of at least four senior managers of the
municipality which must include
—

a)

the Chief Financial Officer or, if the Chief Financial Officer is not available, another
manager in the budget and treasury office reporting directly to the Chief Financial
Officer and designated by the Chief Financial Officer; and

b)

at least one senior supply chain management practitioner who is an official of the
municipality; and

c)

3)

a technical expert in the relevant field who is art official, if such an expert exists,
The Accounting Officer must appoint the chairperson of the committee. If the chairperson is
absent from a meeting, the members of the committee who are present must elect one of
them to preside at the meeting.

4)

The quorum for each meeting of the Bid Adjudication Committee is 50 % of the members plus
one.

5)

Neither a member of a bid evaluation committee, nor an advisor or person assisting the
evaluation committee, may be a member of a Bid Adjudication Committee.
If the Bid Adjudication Committee decides to award a bid other than the one recommended by
the bid evaluation committee, the Bid Adjudication Committee must prior to awarding the bid
a)
check in respect of the preferred bidder whether that bidder’s municipal rates and
taxes and municipal service charges are not in arrears,

6)

—

7)

b)

check in respect of the preferred bidder whether the bidder’s taxation matters are in
order,

c)

notify the Accounting Officer.

The Accounting Officer may

—

after due consideration of the reasons for the deviation, ratify or reject the decision of
the Bid Adjudication Committee referred to in paragraph (a): and
if the decision of the Bid Adjudication Committee is rejected, refer the decision of the
b)
adjudication committee back to that committee for reconsideration.
The Accounting Officer may at any stage of a bidding process, refer any recommendation
made by the evaluation committee or the adjudication committee back to that committee for
reconsideration of the recommendation.
a)

8)

9)

10)

The Accounting Officer must:
a)

Comply with Section 114 of the Act within 10 working days if a tender other than the
one recommended in the normal course of implementing the supply chain
management policy is approved.

b)

Notify the Auditor-General, the Provincial Treasury and the National Treasury of the
reasons for deviating from such recommendation, in writing..

c)

This Section does not apply if a different tender was approved in order to rectify an
irregularity.
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b)

must be consistent with Section 7 of the Act; and
may not be for a period of more than five years at a time.
The process for procuring a contract for banking services must commence
at east nine
months before the end of an existing contract.
The closure date for the submission of bids may not be less than 60 days
from the date on
which the advertisement is placed in a newspaper in terms of Section 22(1). Bids
must be
restricted to banks registered in terms of the Banks Act, 1990 (Act No. 94 of 1990).
c)

2)
3)

32.31. Procurement of IT related goods or services
1)
The Accounting Officer may request the State Information Technology
Agency (SITA) to assist
with the acquisition of IT related goods or services through a competitive bidding
process.
2)
Both parties must enter into a written agreement to regulate the services rendered
by, and the
payments to be made to, SITA.
The Accounting Officer must notify SITA together with a motivation of
3)
the IT needs if
a)
the transaction value of IT related goods or services required in any financial year
will
exceed R50 million (VAT included): or
b)
the transaction value of a contract to be procured whether for one or more years
exceeds R50 million (VAT included).
4)
SITA may comment on the procurement needs submitted per Sub-Section(
3)
—

5)

If the municipality disagrees with comments made by SITA, the comments
and the reasons
for rejecting or not following such comments must be submitted to the Council,
the National
Treasury, the Provincial Treasury and the Auditor-General.

33.32. Procurement of goods and services under contracts secured by other
organs of state
1)
The Accounting Officer may procure goods or services under a contract secured
by another
organ of state, but only if
—

a)

the contract has been secured by that other organ of state by means of a competitive
bidding process applicable to that organ of state:

b)

there is no reason to believe that such contract was not validly procured:
there are demonstrable discounts or benefits to do so: and
that other organ of state and the provider have consented to such procurement in
writing.

c)
d)
2)

Sub-Sections (1 )(c) and (d) do not apply if

—

a)

a municipal entity procures goods or services through a contract secured by its parent
municipality; or

b)

a municipality procures goods or services through a contract secured by a municipal
entity of which it is the parent municipality.

34.33. Procurement of goods necessitating special safety arrangements

1)

The acquisition and storage of goods in bulk (other than water). which necessitate special
safety arrangements, including gasses and fuel, should be avoided wherever possible.

2)

Where the storage of goods in bulk is justified, such justification must be based
on sound
reasons, including the total cost of ownership, cost advantages and environment
al impact and
must be approved by the Accounting Officer.
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35.,,,Proudly SA Campaign
1)

The municipality supports the Proudly SA Campaign to the extent that, all things being equal,
preference is given to procuring local goods and services from:
a)

Firstly

b)

Secondly

c)

Thirdly

—

—

suppliers and businesses within the municipality or district;
—

suppliers and businesses within the relevant province;

suppliers and businesses within the Republic.

3635. Appointment of consultants
1)
2)

The Accounting Officer may procure consulting services provided that any Treasury guidelines
in respect of consulting services are taken into account when such procurements are made.
Consultancy services must be procured through competitive bids if:
(a) the value of the contract exceeds R200 000; or
(b) the duration period of the contract exceeds one year.

3)

In addition to any requirements prescribed by this policy for competitive bids, bidders must
furnish particulars of
—

(a) all consultancy services provided to an organ of state in the last five years; and
(b) any similar consultancy services provided to an organ of state in the last five years.
4)

The Accounting Officer must ensure that copyright in any document produced, and the patent
rights or ownership in any plant, machinery, thing, system or process designed or devised, by
a consultant in the course of the consultancy service, is vested in the municipality

5)

The appointment of advisors must also follow the same competitive bidding process as set Out
in this Policy.

6)

No advisor will take any part in the final decision-making process regarding the award of bids.
No decision-making authority may be delegated to an advisor.

7)

37 36. Deviation from, and ratification of minor breaches of, procurement processes
1)

The Accounting Officer may
a)

—

dispense with the official procurement processes established by this Policy and to
procure any required goods or services through any convenient process, which may
include direct negotiations, but only
—

b)

c)

(i)

in an emergency which is considered an unforeseeable and sudden event with
materially harmful or potentially materially harmful consequences for the
municipality which requires urgent action to address.

(ii)

where it can be demonstrated that goods or services are produced or available
from a single provider only;

(Hi)

tor the acquisition of Special works of art or historical Objects where
specifications are difficult to compile;

(iv)

acquisition of animals for zoos and/or nature and game reserves; or

(v)

in any other exceptional case where it is impractical or impossible to follow the
official procurement processes.

ratify any minor breaches of the procurement processes by an official or committee
acting in terms of delegated powers or duties which are purely of a technical nature;
and
may-condone any irregular expenditure incurred in contravention of, or that is not in
accordance with a requirement of this Policy, provided that such condonation and the
reasons therefore shall be reported to Council at the eert-ensuing meeting.
-
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2)

The Accounting Officer must record the reasons for any deviations in terms of Sub-Sections
(1 )(a) and (b) of this policy and report them to the next meeting of Council and include as
a
note to the annual financial statements.

3)

Sub-Section (2) does not apply to the procurement of goods and services contemplated in
Section 11(2) of this policy.

3.8.37. Unsolicited bids
1)

In accordance with Section 113 of the Act there is no obligation to consider unsolicited
bids
received outside a normal bidding process.

2)

The Accounting Officer may decide in terms of Section 113(2) of the Act to consider an
unsolicited bid, Only if—
a)

the product or service offered in terms of the bid is a demonstrably or proven unique
innovative Concept;

b)

the product or service will be exceptionally beneficial to, or have exceptional cost
advantages;

c)

the person who made the bid is the sole provider of the product or service; and
the reasons for not going through the normal bidding processes are found to be sound
by the Accounting Officer.

d)
3)

If the Accounting Officer decides to consider an unsolicited bid that complies with Sub-Section
(2) of this policy, the decision must be made public in accordance with Section 21A of the
Municipal Systems Act, together with
—

a)
b)
c)

reasons as to why the bid should not be open to other competitors,
an explanation of the potential benefits if the unsolicited bid were accepted; and
an invitation to the public or other potential suppliers to submit their comments within
30 days of the notice.

4)

The Accounting Officer must submit all written comments received pursuant to Sub-Section
(3), including any responses from the unsolicited bidder, to the National Treasury and the
relevant provincial treasury for comment.

5)

The adjudication committee must consider the unsolicited bid and may award the bid or make
a recommendation to the Accounting Officer, depending on its delegations.

6)

A meeting of the adjudication committee to consider an unsolicited bid must be open to the
public.

7)

When considering the matter, the adjudication committee must take into account
any comments submitted by the public; and

—

a)
b)
8)

any written comments and recommendations of the National Treasury or the Provincial
Treasury.

If any recommendations of the National Treasury or Provincial Treasury are rejected or not
followed, the Accounting Officer must submit to the Auditor-General, the Provincial Treasury
and the National Treasury the reasons for rejecting or not following those recommendations.
Such submission must be made within seven days after the decision on the award of the
unsolicited bid is taken, but no contract committing the municipality to the bid may be entered
into or signed within 30 days of the submission.
Formatted: Font; (Default) Ar/al, S pt
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b)

investigate any allegations against an official or other role player of fraud, corruption,
favouritism, unfair or irregular practices or failure to comply with this Policy, and when
justified—
(i)

take appropriate steps against such official or other role player; or
report any alleged criminal conduct to the South African Police Service;
check the National Treasury’s database prior to awarding any contract to ensure that
no recommended bidder, or any of its directors, is listed as a person prohibited from
doing business with the public sector;

(ii)
c)

d)

take cognizance of the provisions of Chapter 2 of the Competition Act no 89 of
1998, with specific reference to:
(I)

restrictive practices;

(ii)

abuse of a dominant position; and

(iii)

exemption from application of Chapter 2 of the Act.

e)

reject any bid from a bidder—
(i)

if any municipal rates and taxes or municipal service charges owed by that
bidder or any of its directors to the municipality, or to any other municipality or
municipal entity, are in arrears for more than three months; or

(ii)

who during the last five years has failed to perform satisfactorily on a previous
contract with the municipality or any other organ of State after written notice was
given to that bidder that performance was unsatisfactory;

f)

reject a recommendation for the award of a contract if the recommended bidder, or
any of its directors, has committed a corrupt or fraudulent act in competing for the
particular contract;

g)

cancel a contract awarded to a person if

—

(i)

the person committed any corrupt or fraudulent act during the bidding process or
the execution of the contract; or

(ii)

an official or other role player committed any corrupt or fraudulent act during the
bidding process or the execution of the contract that benefited that person; and

h)

reject the bid of any bidder if that bidder or any of its directors
(i)

—

has abused the supply chain management system of the municipality or has
committed any improper conduct in relation to such system;

(s)

has been convicted for fraud or corruption during the past five years;
has wilfully neglected, reneged on or failed to comply with any government,
municipal or other public sector contract during the past five years; or has been
listed in the Register for Tender Defaulters in terms of Section 29 of the
Prevention and has been in contravention of the Competition Act no 89 Of 1998.
No person placing a procurement requisition for goods or Services shall knowingly
understate the requirements of the estimated value with the intention of avoiding a
more stringent procurement process. This includes the deliberate splitting of
requirements to reduce individual order values. Procurement is limited to R200 000
per commodity type per month unless a competitive bidding process has been
undertaken. The Municipal Manager shall promptly institute disciplinary action against
any person infringing this requirement.

(iii)

i)

j)

No official shall engage in contact with a prospective supplier in respect of a quotation
or tender which the supplier intends to submit except where clarification of
requirements is required from either party, or where the Accounting Officer may
negotiate with identified preferred bidders. Any such communication must be recorded
and appropriately filed with the bid documentation.
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k)

The Accounting Officer may, where a bidder has contravened the prescriptions
of the
Competition Act no 89 of 1998—
(i)

recover all costs, losses or damages the Municipality suffered as a result of the
bidder’s conduct;

(ii)

cancel the contract and claim any damages which the Municipality has suffered
as a result of having to make less favourable arrangements due to such
cancellation;

(iii)

restrict the bidder or contractor, its shareholders and directors, or Only the
shareholders and directors who acted on a fraudulent basis; and

(iv)
forward the matter for criminal prosecution.
j___The Accounting Officer must inform the National Treasury and relevant
Provincial Treasury in
writing of any actions taken in terms of Sub-Sections (1 )(b)(U), (e) or(f) of
this policy.
Businesses submitting tenders to the municipality
3)
In lerms of the Credit Control and Debt Collection Policy, the Supply Chain
Management Poljçygd Tender conditions of the municipality shall include the

a)

:‘Formatted:style2l

•

)ggjendergre called for the provisioning of seivices or goods. potepI
contractors can submit tenders subject to a condition that the consideration
and evaluation thereof shall eguire of the tenderer to obtain a certificate from
the municipality that confirms that all applicable municipal accounis of the
tenderer or his/her directors, owners or partners. are paid in full or that
appropriate arrangements

(ii)

2ib/

(which includes the right of Settlement in tre case of non-performance) are
made for the payment of any amounts due;
No tender shall be awarded to a person unless an appropriate arrangement has
been made for the payment of amounts due. No further debt may accrue during
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Part 3: Logistics, Disposal, Risk and Performance Management
4O39

Logistics Management

1)

The Accounting Officer must establish and implement an effective
system of logistics
management, which must include
-

(a)

the monitoring of spending patterns on types or classes of goods
and services
incorporating, where practical, the coding of items to ensure that
each item has a unique
number;

(b)

the setting of inventory levels that includes minimum and maximum
levels and lead times
wherever goods are placed in stock;

(c)

the placing of manual or electronic orders for all acquisitions other
than those from petty
cash;

(d)

before payment is approved certification by the responsible
officer that the goods and
services are received or rendered on time and is in accordance with
the order, the
general conditions of contract and specifications where applicable
and that the price
charged is as quoted ri terms of a contract;
appropriate standards of internal control and warehouse management
to ensure that
goods placed in stores are secure and only used for the purpose
for which they were
purchased;

(e)

,

(f)

regular checking to ensure that all assets including official vehicles
are properly
managed, appropriately maintained and only used for official purposes;
and

(g)

monitoring and review of the supply vendor performance to ensure
compliance with
specifications and contract conditions for particular goods or services.

(h)

monitoring and review of the distribution of items,
monitoring and review of losses and surpluses.

(i)

4440. Disposal management
1)
2>

The criteria for the disposal or letting of assets, including unserviceabl
e redundant or obsolete
assets wilt be subject to Sections 14 of the Act, and asset transfer regulations;
Assets may be disposed of by
—

3>

(i)

transferring the asset to another organ of state in terms of a provision of
the Act
enabling the transfer of assets;

(ii)

transferring the asset to another organ of state at market related value
or, when
appropriate, free of charge;

(iii)

selling the asset; or

(iv)

destroying the asset

The Accounting Officer must ensure that

—

a)

immovable property is sold only at market related prices except when
the public
interest or the plight of the poor demands otherwise;

b)

movable assets are sold either by way of written price quotations a competitive
bidding process, auction or at market related prices, whichever is
the most
advantageous;

c)

firearms are not sold or donated to any person or institution
within or outside the

d)

Republic unless approved by the National Conventional Arms Control
Committee;
immovable property is let at market related rates except when the public
interest or the
plight of the poor demands otherwise;
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e)

all fees, charges, rates, tariffs, scales of fees or other charges relating to the letting of
immovable property are reviewed annually;

f)

where assets are traded in for other assets, the highest possible trade-in price is
negotiated; and

g)

in the case of the free disposal of computer equipment, the provincial department of
education is first approached to indicate within 30 days whether any of the local
schools are interested in the equipment.

42.41. Risk management

1)

The criteria for the identification, consideration and avoidance of potential risks in the supply
chain management system, must be identified.

2)

Risk management must include

3)

4)

—

(i)

the identification of risks on a case-by-case basis:

(ii)

the allocation of nsks to the party best suited to manage such risks:

(iii)

acceptance of the cost of the risk where the cost of transferring the risk is
greater than that of retaining it;

(iv)

the management of risks in a pro-active manner and the provision of adequate
cover for residual risks; and

(v)

the assignment of relative risks to the contracting parties through clear and
unambiguous contract documentation.

The Accounting Officer must ensure that risks are identified utilizing the following methods
(i)
Focus group sessions;
(ii)

Personal interviews;

(iii)

Questionnaires:

(iv)

Audit reports analysis;

(v)

Statistical analysis of related risk data,

(vi)

Trend analysis:

(vii)

Scenario analysis; and

(viii)

Forecasting methodologies.

The Accounting Officer must ensure that a risk register is implemented consisting of the
following—
(i)

Each risks identified with a unique number;

(ii)

Description of the risk;

(iii)

Assessment of occurrence or likelihood and its impact if it does;

(iv)

Grading of risk:

(v)

Responsibility for managing the risk: and

(vi)

Proposed mitigation processes.

5)

The Accounting Officer must ensure that all risks are assessed and indicating the magnitude
of the risk as welt as the probability of occurrence:

6)

The Accounting Officer must ensure that a risk strategy is implemented which may include the

Formatted: Font. (Default) Anal,8pt
Formatted:

following-

,.

(i)

(ii)

cm, Right

avoiding the risk by eliminating the action

Font: Not Bold English (United States)
cm, Centered

Formatted: Normal, Tab stops: 8,25

+

16,5t1

Formatted Ford (Default) Anal 8 pt

treating the risk, how the risk can be prevented and if it were to occur how the
impact can be minimized;.

:

Policy Title; Bitou Locai Municipality Supply Chain Management Policy
Financiai Your: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for review Submitted to Council on 311312020 with Draft Budget per item Cl21172j0312s
Staius:Fina/ApprovedbyCouncilon31May201aperiteniCI2/53l05i1a
-F’

Normal
.‘:

Formatted: Font: (Default) Anal, 8 pt

.

.

-

.

-

163

Page 35 of 46

7)

(iii)

transfer or outsource the risk;

(iv)

tolerate the risk.

The Accounting Officer must ensure that all risk related matters are reported and that a
communication plan which may consist of the following is implemented
—

(i) responsibility for the communication;
(ii)

frequency of communication;

(iii)

format of communication;

(iv)

record of communication.

4342. Performance management

1)

The Accounting Officer must establish and implement an internal monitoring system in order
to determine, on the basis of a retrospective analysis, whether the authorised supply chain
management processes were followed and whether the objectives of this Policy were
achieved;

2)

The Accounting Officer must ensure that the following issues are reported on a quarterly basis
(i)

Achievement of preferential procurement goals and objectives;

(ii)

Implementation of the Supply Chain Management Policy of the municipality;

(iii)

Compliance to SCM norms and standards such as the municipal supply chain
management regulations, National Treasury’s model policy, standard bid
documents and the general conditions of contract;

(iv)

Savings generated, amongst others, by arranging contracts for the purpose of
developing economies of scale;

(v)

Stores efficiency, (the proper layout of stores through clear bin locations and bin
numbering, promptly satisfying the users requirements. etc.)

(vi>

Contract breach either by the municipality or contractors,

(vii)

Cost efficiency of the procurement process;

(viii)

That the supply chain objectives are consistent with Government’s broader
policy focus on trade, small business development, anti-corruption measures
and the proudly South African.
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Part 4: Other matters
4443. Prohibition on awards to persons whose tax matters
are not in order
1>
No award above R30 000 may be made in terms of this Policy to
a person whose tax matters
have not been declared by the South African Revenue Service to
be in compliance.
2)

Before making an award to a person the Accounting Officer must tirst
check with SARS
whether that person’s tax matters are in compliance.

3)

Where the recommended bidder is not tax compliant, the bidder
should be notified of their
non-compliant status and the bidder must be requested to submit to
the municipality, within 7
working days, written proof from SARS of their tax compliance status
or proof from SARS that
they have made an arrangement to meet their outstanding tax obligations.
The proof of tax
compliance status submitted by the bidder to the municipality must
be verified via the CSD or
e-Filing.

4)

The Accounting Officer should reject a bid submitted by the bidder if
such a bidder fails to
provide proof of tax compliance status within the timeframe stated
above.

45.44, Prohibition on awards to persons in the service of the state
1)
Irrespective of the procurement process followed, no award may
be made to a person in terms
of this Policy
—

a)

who is in the service of the state;
if that person is not a natural person, of which any director, manager,
principal
shareholder or stakeholder is

b)

—

(i)

a member of any municipal council, any provincial legislature or the National
Assembly or the National Council of Provinces;

(ii)

an official of any municipality:

(iii)

an employee of any national or provincial department, national or provincial
public entity or constitutional institution within the meaning of the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 (Act No.1 of 1999):

(iv)

a member of the board of directors of any municipal entity:
an executive member of the accounting authority of any national or provincial
public entity:

(v)
c)

a person who is an advisor or consultant contracted with the municipality
.

46.45. Awards to close family members of persons in
the service of the state
1)
The Accounting Officer must ensure that the notes to Ihe

annual financial statements disclose
particulars of any award of more than R2000 to a person who is a spouse,
child or parent of a
person in the service of the state, or has been in the service of the state in
the previous twelve
months, including
—

a)

the name of that person;

b)

the capacity in which that person is in the service of the state: and

c)

the amount of the award.
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2)

A code of ethical standards is hereby established for officials and other role players in the
Supply Chain Management System in order to promote
—

3)

a)

mutual trust and respect: and

b)

an environment where business can be conducted with integrity and in a fair and
reasonable manner.

An official or other role player involved in the implementation of the Supply Chain
Management Policy:
a)

must treat all providers and potential providers equitably:
may not use his or her position for private gain or to improperly benefit another person:
may not accept any rewards, gift, favour, hospitality or other benefit directly, including
to any close family member, partner or associate of that person, of a value more than
R350;

b)
c)

d)

notwithstanding Sub-Section 48(2)(c), must declare to the Accounting Officer details of
any reward, gift, favour, hospitality or other benefit promised, offered or granted to that
person or to any close family member, partner or associate of that person;

e)

must declare to the Accounting Officer details of any private or business interest which
that person, or any close family member, partner or associate, may have in any
proposed procurement or disposal process of, or in any award of a contract by, the
Municipality;

f)

must immediately withdraw from participating in any manner whatsoever in a
procurement or disposal process or in the award of a contract in which that person, or
any close family member, partner or associate, has any private or business interest;

g)

must be scrupulous in his or her use of property belonging to the Municipality:
must assist the Accounting Officer in combination fraud, corruption, favouritism and
unfair and irregular practices in the supply chain management system: and
must report to the Accounting Officer any irregular conduct in the supply chain
management system which that person may become aware of, including

h)
i)

—

(i)

any alleged fraud, corruption, favouritism or unfair conduct

(ii)

any alleged contravention of Section 49(1) of this Policy: or
any alleged breach of this of this code of ethical standards.

(iii)

j)

Declarations in terms of Sub-Sections 49 (2) (d) and (e)
(i)

must be recorded in a register which the Accounting Officer must keep for this
purpose;

(ii)

by the Accounting Officer must be made to the Mayor of the Municipality who
must ensure that such declarations are recorded in the register.

k)

The National Treasury Code of Conduct must also be taken into account by supply
chain management practitioners and other role players involved in supply chain
management.

I)

The National Treasury Code of Conduct for Supply Management Practitioners,
attached as Annexure A, is adopted by the Municipality and shall apply mutatis
mutandis to and be binding on supply chain management of the Municipality.

m)

A breach of the code of conduct adopted by the Municipality must be dealt with in
accordance with Schedule 1 (code of Conduct for Councillors) and Schedule 2 (Code
of Conduct for Municipal Staff Members) of the Municipal Systems Act, No 32 of 2000.
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No person who is a provider or prospective provider of goods or services, or a recipient or
prospective recipient of goods disposed or to be disposed of may either directly or through a
representative or intermediary promise, offer or grant
—

a)

any inducement or reward to the municipality for or in connection with the award of a
contract; or

b)

any reward, gift, favour or hospitality to
(i)

2)

3)

—

any official; or

(ii)
any other role player involved in the implementation of this Policy.
The Accounting Officer must promptly report any alleged contravention of Sub-Section (1) to
the National Treasury for considering whether the offending person, and any representative or
intermediary through which such person is alleged to have acted, should be listed in the
National Treasury’s database of persons prohibited from doing business With the public
sector.
Sub-Section (1) does not apply to gifts less than R350 in value.

49.48. Sponsorships

1)

The Accounting Officer must promptly disclose to the National Treasury and the relevant
provincial treasury any sponsorship promised, offered or granted, whether directly or through
a representative or intermediary, by any person who is
—

a)

a provider or prospective provider of goods or services; or

b)

a recipient or prospective recipient of goods disposed or to be disposed

50.49

Objections and complaints

1)

Persons aggrieved by decisions or actions taken in the implementation of this supply chain
management system, may lodge within 14 days of the decision or action, a written objection or
complaint against the decision or action.

51.51)

Resolution of disputes, objections, Complaints and queries

1)

The Accounting Officer must appoint an independent and impartial person, not directly
involved in the supply chain management processes
—

a)

to assist in the resolution of disputes between the municipality and other persons
regarding
-

(i)

any decisions or actions taken in the implementation of the supply chain management
system; or

(ii) any matter arising from a contract awarded in the course of the supply chain
management system; or
(iii) to deal with objections, complaints or queries regarding any such decisions or actions or
any matters arising from such contract.
b)

Suppliers must provide details of the reasons for their appeal including any non
compliance with this Policy, the MFMA and related legislation. The Accounting Officer
shall provide written acknowledgement of the receipt of appeals to the appellant;

c)

lithe appeal is based on a technically complex matter, the Accounting Officer may
engage an impartial external advisor, provided that their engagement is compliant with
this Policy and sufficient budgetary provision exists. The Accounting Officer is not
bound by any opinion provided.

d)
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Accounting Officer determines there are grounds for delay, the approved supplier
will
be advised in writing of the reasons for the delay.
o)
2)

When a ruling on an appeal has been made. the Accounting Officer will advise the
appellant in writing of the outcome.

The Accounting Officer, or another official designated by the Accounting Officer,
is responsible
for assisting the appointed person to perform his or her functions effectively.
The person appointed must

3)

—

a)

4)

strive to resolve promptly all disputes, objections, complaints or queries received:
and
b)
submit monthly reports to the Accounting Officer on all disputes, objections,
complaints or queries received, attended to or resolved.
A dispute, objection, complaint or query may be referred to the relevant Provincial Treasury
if
a)

the dispute, objection, complaint or query is not resolved within 60 days: or
no response is forthcoming within 60 days.

b)
5)
6)

The Provincial Treasury may refer the query to the National Treasury for resolution.
This Policy must not be read as affecting a person’s rights to approach a court
at any time.

52. 51. Ap pea Is

1)

A person whose rights are affected by a decision taken to award a tender by a municipality
, in
terms of a power or duty delegated or sub-delegated by a delegating authority,
may appeal
against that decision, by giving written notice of the appeal and reasons to the
Accounting
Officer within 21 days of the date of the notification of the decision.

2)

When the appeal is against a decision taken by a staff member or committee other
than the
Accounting Officer, the Accounting Officer must consider the appeal or refer it
to the appeal
authority when appropriate:

3)

The Accounting Officer must promptly submit the appeal to the appropriate appeal
authority.
The appeal authority must consider the appeal, and confirm, vary or revoke the
he decision,
but no such variation or revocation of a decision may detract from any rights that
may have
accrued as a result of the decision.

4)

5)

An appeal authority must commence with an appeal within six weeks and decide
the appeal
within a reasonable period.

6)

This Policy must not be read as affecting a person’s rights to approach a court
at any time.

53.52. Contracts and contract management
1)

A contract or agreement procured through the Supply chain management System of the
municipality must—
a)

be in writing;

b)

stipulate the terms and conditions of the contract or agreement, which must include
provisions providing for—
(i)

the termination of the contract or agreement in the case of non- or
underperformance,

(ii)

dispute resolution mechanisms to settle disputes between the parties:
a periodic review of the contract or agreement once every three years in the
case of a contract or agreement for longer than three years: and

(iii)
(iv)
2)
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a)

take all reasonable steps to ensure that a contract or agreement procured through the
supply chain management policy of the municipality or municipal entity is properly
enforced;

b)

monitor on a monthly basis the performance of the contractor under the contract or
agreement;

c)

establish capacity in the administration of the municipality or municipal entity—
(i)

to assist the accounting officer in carrying out the duties set out in paragraphs
(a) and (b); and

(ii)

to oversee the day-to-day management of the contract or agreement; and

(iii)

regularly report to the council of the municipality or the board of directors of the
entity, as may be appropriate, on the management of the contractor agreement
and the performance of the contractor

d)

A contract or agreement procured through the supply chain management policy of the
municipality may be amended by the parties, but only after—

e)

the reasons for the proposed amendment have been tabled in the council of the
municipality or, in the case of a municipal entity, in the council of its parent
municipality; and

f)

the local community—
(I)

has been given reasonable notice of the intention to amend the contract or
agreement; and

(ii)

has been invited to submit representations to the municipality or municipal entity.

An
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54.53. Contract Management

)

The Accounting Officer must ensure that all bids and contracts are subject to the General
Conditions of Contract and any Special Conditions of Contract, if specified;

2)

All contracts must be based on the General Conditions of Contract, issued by the National
Treasury. Any aspect not covered by the General Conditions of Contract must be dealt with in
the Special Contract Conditions;

3)

Matters such as attendance of compulsory site meetings, briefing sessions and special
delivery conditions must be covered in the Special Conditions of Contract with the proviso that
the standard wording of the General Conditions of Contract should not be amended;

4)

The General Conditions of Contract, International Federation of Consulting Engineers (FIDIC)
regulations and the Joint Building Contracts Committee (JBCC) guidelines issued by the
Construction Industry Development Board are utilized in cases of bids related to the
construction industry;

5)

Where the Special Conditions of Contract is in conflict with the General Conditions of
Contract, the Special Conditions of Contract will prevail;

6)

These conditions must form an integral part of the bidding documents.
.

.

‘

55.54. Contract Administration
—.-——

1)

Contract administration includes all administrative duties associated with a contract that has
arisen through one of the acquisition/procurement processes described in this policy.

2)

All contracts must be administered by a contract manager, who will be an internal official
assigned to ensure the effective administration of the contract. The contract manager will
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typically be the internal project manager assigned to the project as a whole, but may
also be a
cost centre owner or other responsible official.
3)

A contract manager must be assigned to each contract and, where possible. should
be
involved from the earliest stages of the acquisition process.

4)

The contract manager’s duties and powers shall be governed by the conditions of contract
and the general law.

5)

The contract manager shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that a contract
procured
through the provisions of this policy is properly enforced.
In administering a contract, the contract manager will be required to form opinions and
make
decisions which, while in the Municipality’s best interests, must be fair to all parties concerned.
Depactmental—Nea4s-Directcrs_shall be responsible for ensuring that contract managers:

6)
7)

8)

a)

are assigned to all contracts within the DeparimeniHe-adDirector’s area of
responsibility:

b)

are adequately trained so that they can exercise the necessary level of responsibility
in the performance of their duties.

In discharging his duties, the contract manager shall:
ensure that all the necessary formalities in signing up the contract and/or issuing the
purchase order(s) are adhered to:
b)
ensure that contracts related to the procurement of goods and services are captured
on the contract management system in the form of a price schedule:
c)
ensure that alt original contract documentation is lodged with the Supply Chain
Management Unit for record purposes;
a)

d)

monitor, on a monthly basis, the performance of the contractor in order to ensure that
all of the terms and conditions of the contract are met, including the contractor’s
obligations as regards Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment, targeted labour
and/or resources and local production and content, as applicable:

e)

where necessary, take appropriate action where a contractor is underperforming or is
in default or breach of the contract:

f)

manage contract variation or change procedures:

g)

administer disputes where necessary, in terms of this policy and the applicable
Conditions of Contract:

h)

conduct, as appropriate, post contract reviews:
maintain adequate records (paper and/or electronic) in sufficient detail on an
appropriate contract file to provide an audit trail:
act with care and diligence and observe all accounting and legal requirements.

i)
j)

56.55. Contracts providing for compensation based on turnover
1)
If a service provider acts on behalf of a municipality to provide any service or act as a collector
of fees, service charges or taxes and the compensation payable to the service provider
is
fixed as an agreed percentage of turnover for the service or the amount collected, the contract
between the service provider and the municipality must stipulate
a)
a cap on the compensation payable to the service provider: and
—

b)
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57.56 Contracts having future budgetary implications

1)

A municipality may enter into a contract which will impose financial obligations on the
municipality beyond a financial year, but if the contract will impose financial obligations on
the
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municipality beyond the three years covered in the annual budget for that financial year, it may
do so Only t
a)

the municipal manager, at least 60 days before the meeting of the municipal council at
which the contract is to be approved—
(i)

has, in accordance with Section 21A of the Municipal Systems Act—
(aa) made public the draft contract and an information statement
summarising the municipality’s obligations in terms of the proposed
contract; and
(bb) invited the local community and other interested persons to submit to
the municipality comments or representations in respect of the
proposed contract; and

(ii)

has solicited the views and recommendations of—
(cc) the National Treasury and the relevant provincial treasury;
(dd) the national department responsible for local government; and
(ee)if the contract involves the provision of water, sanitation, electricity,
or any other service as may be prescribed, the responsible national
department;

b)

the municipal council has taken into account—
(i)

the municipality’s projected financial obligations in terms of the proposed
contract for each financial year covered by the contract;

(ii)

the impact of those financial obligations on the municipality’s future municipal
tariffs and revenue;

(iii)

any comments or representations on the proposed contract received from the
local community and other interested persons; and

(iv)

any written views and recommendations on the proposed contract by the
National Treasury, the relevant provincial treasury, the national department
responsible for local government and any national department referred to in
paragraph (a)(n)(cc); and

c)

the municipal council has adopted a resolution in which—
(i)

it determines that the municipality will secure a significant capital investment or
will derive a significant financial economic or financial benefit from the contract;

(ii)it approves the entire contract exactly as it is to be executed, and
it authorises the municipal manager to sign the contract on behalf of the
municipality.

(iii)
2>

The process set out in subsection (1) does not apply to—
a)

contracts for long-term debt regulated in terms of section 46(3):

b)

employment contracts; or

c)

contracts—
(i)

for categories of goods as may be prescribed; or

(ii)

in terms of which the financial obligation on the municipality is below—

(aa) a prescribed value; or
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3)

All contracts referred to in subsection (1) and all other contracts that impose a financial
obligation on a municipality—
a)

must be made available in their entirety to the municipal council; and
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b)
4)

may not be withheld from public scrutiny except as provided for in terms of the
Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act No. 2 of 2000).

Sub-Section (a)(i) does not apply to contracts in respect of which the financial obligation on
the municipality is below a prescribed value.
Commencement

This Policy takes effect on the date as approved per Council resolution.
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Annexure A

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT PRACTITIONERS AND OTHER
ROLE PLAYERS
The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to promote mutual trust and respect and an environment where
business can be conducted with integrity and in a fair and reasonable manner.

1

General Principles

1)

The municipality commits itself to a policy of fair dealing and integrity in the conducting of its
business. Officials and other role players involved in supply chain management (SCM) are in
a position of trust, implying a duty to act in the public interest. Officials and other role players
should not perform their duties to unlawfully gain any form of compensation, payment or
gratuities from any person, or provider/contractor for themselves, their family or their friends.

2)

Officials and other role players involved in SCM should ensure that they perform their duties
efficiently, effectively and with integrity, in accordance with the relevant legislation, policies
and guidelines. They should ensure that public resources are administered responsibly.

3)

Officials and other role players involved in SCM should be fair and impartial in the
performance of their functions. They should at no time afford any undue preferential treatment
to any group or individual or unfairly discriminate against any group or individual They should
not abuse the power and authority vested in them.

2
1)

Conflict of interest
An official or other role player involved with supply chain management

—

a)

must treat all providers and potential providers equitably;

b)

may not use his or her position for private gain or to improperly benefit another person;
may not accept any reward, gift, favour, hospitality or other benefit directly or
indirectly, including to any close family member, partner or associate of that person, of
a value more than R350;

c)

d)

must declare to the Accounting Officer details of any reward, gift, favour, hospitality or
other benefit promised, offered or granted to that person or to any close family
member, partner or associate of that person;

e)

must declare to the Accounting Officer details of any private or business interest which
that person, or any close family member, partner or associate, may have in any
proposed procurement or disposal process, or in any award of a contract by the
municipality;

f)

must immediately withdraw from participating in any manner whatsoever in a
procurement or disposal process or in the award of a contract in which that person, or
any close family member, partner or associate, has any private or business interest;

g)

must declare any business, commercial and financial interests or activities undertaken
for financial gain that may raise a possible conflict of interest;

h)

; Formatted: Font: (Default) Anal, 8 pt
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I)

3

Accountability

1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)

should not take improper advantage of their previous office
after leaving their official
position.

Practitioners are accountable for their decisions and actions
to the public.
Practitioners should use public property scrupulously.
Only Accounting Officers or their delegates have the
authority to commit the municipality to
any transaction for the procurement of goods and I or service
s.
All transactions conducted by a practitioner should be record
ed and accounted for in an
appropriate accounting system.
Practitioners should not make any false or misleading entries
into such a system for any
reason whatsoever.
Practitioners must assist the Accounting Officer in combating
fraud, corruption, favouritism
and unfair and irregular practices in the supply chain manag
ement system.
Practitioners must report to the Accounting Officer any alleged
irregular conduct in the supply
chain management system which that person may becom
e aware of. including:
a) any alleged fraud, corruption, favouritism or unfair
conduct:
b) any alleged contravention of the policy on inducements,
rewards, gifts and favours to
municipalities or municipal entities, officials or other role
players: and
c) any alleged breach of this code of conduct.

8)

Any declarations made must be recorded in a register which
the Accounting Officer must keep
for this purpose.

9)

Any declarations made by the Accounting Officer must be
made to the mayor who must
ensure that such declaration is recorded in the registe
r

4

Openness
Practitioners should be as open as possible about all the decisio
ns and actions that they take. They
should give reasons for their decisions and restrict information
only if it is in the public interest to do
so.

5

Confidentiattty

1)

Any information that is the property of the municipality or
its providers should be protected at all
times. No information regarding any bid / contract / bidder
/ contractor may be revealed if such
an action will infringe on the relevant bidders / contractor’s personal
rights.

2)

Matters of confidential nature in the possession of officials and
other role players involved in
SCM should be kept confidential unless legislation, the perform
ance of duty or the provisions
of law requires otherwise. Such restrictions also apply
to officials and other role players
involved in SCM after separation from service.

6
1)

2)

Bid Specification I Evaluation I Adjudication Committees
Bid specification, evaluation and adjudication committees should
implement supply chain
management on behalf of the municipality in an honest, fair,
impartial, transparent, cost-effective
and accountable manner.
Bid evaluation I adjudication committees should be familiar with
and adhere to the prescribed
legislation, directives and procedures in respect of supply
chain management in order to
perform effectively and efficiently.
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3)

All members of Bid Adjudication Committees should be cleared by the Accounting Officer
at
the level of CONFIDENTIAL” and should be required to declare their financial
interest
annually.

4)

No person should
a)
b)

7

—

interfere with the supply chain management system of the municipality; or
amend or tamper with any price quotation / bid after its submission.

Combative Practices
1)

Combative practices are unethical and illegal and should be avoided at all cost. They
include
but are not limited to:
a)

Suggestions to fictitious lower quotations;

b)

Reference to non-existent competition;

c)

Exploiting errors in price quotations I bids;
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DEFINITION OF KEY WORDS

In this policy the following words shall have the meanings assigned as follows:“Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act 56 of

2003),
“Accounting Officer” refers to the Municipal Manager of the municipality,

“Chief Financial Officer” refers to the Head of the Finance Department,
“Councillor” refers to a member of the municipal council,
“Current assets” refers to Debtors, Cash, Stock and the short-term portion of long-term
debtors,

“Current liabilities” refers to Creditors, Bank overdrafts and the short-term portion of longterms liabilities,

“Investments” refers to funds not immediately required for the defraying of expenses and
invested at approved financial institutions,

“Investment Register” refers to an electronic spreadsheet which contains details of all
municipal investments,

“Investment Regulations” refers to the regulations as prescribed under the MFMA (Act No.
56 Of 2003) through Government Gazette No. 27431 dated 1 April 2005,

“Liquidity” refers to a financial ability of the municipality or any other company to service its
debts when falling due,

“MFMA” refers to the Municipal Finance Management Act, (Act 56 of 2003),
“Minister” refers to a Cabinet member responsible for a particular national government
department,
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“Negotiable certificate” refers to a loan certificate, tradable on the capital market,
“Net current assets” refers to the difference between current assets and current liabilities,
“Optimal Yield” refers to maximum interest earned on investment,
“Policy” refers to the Cash Management and Investment Policy of the Bitou Municipality,
“Public funds” all monies received by the municipality to perform the functions allocated to
them,
“Short-term portion of long-term debtors” refers to the capital repayment of long-term
debtors due and in arrears in the current financial year,
“Short-term portion of long-term liabilities” refers to the capital repayment of long-term
loans due in the current financial year,
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LEGAL COMPLIANCE
1 .1. In terms of Section 13 (2) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act no.
56 of 2003), municipalities are required to establish an appropriate and
effective Cash Management and Investment Policy, in accordance with any
framework that may be prescribed by the Minister acting with the concurrence
of the Cabinet member responsible for local government and consistent with
the Municipal Cash Management and Investment Regulations.
1.2. National Treasury, through Government Gazette No: 27431, published
Municipal Investment Regulations, which municipalities are required to apply
as guidelines when preparing a Cash Management and Investment Policy with
effect from 1 April 2005.

2.

SCOPE OF THE POLICY
2.1. This policy applies to the Bitou Municipality and any municipal entity
established, in terms of the Act.

3.

OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY
3.1. The objectives of the Cash Management and Investment Policy of the Bitou
Municipality are as follows:3.1.1. Ensuring that cash resources are managed efficiently and effectively,
3.1.2. Ensuring that investments are placed with reputable institutions, for the
purpose of safety of capital investment, and diversification of the
Investment Portfolio,
3.1.3. Ensuring that adequate liquidity is maintained at all times, for
management of cash-flows,
3.1 .4. Ensuring that the municipality receives optimal yield/interest on its
investments with financial institutions, at minimal risk,
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3.1.5. Striving for reasonable growth on capital investments in addition to
interest earned on investments,
3.1.6. Ensuring that monies due to Council are collected and banked
appropriately as soon as they are received, and
3.1.7. Ensuring that payments to creditors are made by the due dates.

4.

EFFECTIVE CASH MANAGEMENT
4.1. All efforts must be made to ensure that:

-

•

Collection of Cash I Revenue,

•

Payment of Creditors,

•

Management of Proper Cash Flows,

•

Administration of Banking Accounts, and

•

Petty Cash Procedures are properly maintained to ensure that excess
cash is invested.

4.2. Collection of Cash/Revenue

4.2.1. The cash collection process as determined by Chapter 9 of the Local
Government: Municipal Systems Act (Act 32 of 2000) and the Customer
Care should at all times be adhered to. All cash due to Council will be
collected immediately when it becomes due. The municipality will bank and
deposit all monies on receipt.

4.2.2. Debtors:

4.2.2.1.

The Municipal council must set a target for debt collection based

on the performance of the Municipal Manager during the last financial
year.
4.2.2.2.

The target must be expressed as a percentage of potential

income and/or the turnover rate of debtors.
4.2.2.3.

All monies owing to the municipality must be correctly reflected in

the debtors system.
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4.2.2.4.

All funds due the Municipality must be collected timeously and
banked on a on a daily basis.

4.2.2.5.

Large sums of money received must be deposited into the bank
account on the same day that payments are received.

4.2.2.6.

Extensions for payment of rates and services charges must only
be granted in terms of the municipality’s credit control and debts

collection by-law and in exceptional circumstances.
4.2.2.7.

Money collected by an agency on behalf of the municipality shall
be paid over to the municipality and deposited into the bank account

in a manner prescribed by the Municipal Manager (Daily deposit are
preferable).

4.2.3. Cash:

4.2.3.1.

Money received over the counter

4.2.3.1.1.

Every amount of payment received by a cashier or other
officer responsible for the receipt of money shall be

acknowledged at once by the issue of numbered official receipt.
4.2.3.1.2.
Every receipt form for a cancelled receipt will be re
attached, in the correct place, in the receipt book.
4.2.3.1.3.
In the case of computer generated receipts, the original
receipt form, for a cancelled receipt, must be filed for record
purposes.
4.2.3.2.

Money received by post

4.2.3.2.1.

When money (including postal orders) is received with the
municipality’s mail, the Registry Clerk shall record all payment

remittances as and when received in the register in the presence
of a witness.
4.2.3.2.2.

The register together with all remittances received must be
sent to a designated official in the finance section.
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4.2.3.2.3.

The designated official, on the receipt of the register
together with the remittances, will code all remittances and
submit it to the cashier for receipting.

4.2.3.2.4.

The cashier will receipt all remittances and issue official
receipts to the designated official.

4.2.3.2.5.

The designated official will record all receipts in the register
and return same to the Registry Clerk.

4.2.3.2.6.

The Registry Clerk must ensure that all receipts are
recorded in the register.

4.2.3.2.7.

All documents relating to remittances received in the mail
must be filed for audit purposes.

4.2.4. Management of Cash:
4.2.4.1.

The cash holding of the municipality must be kept at a minimum
level required to finance the day to day operations of the municipality.

4.2.4.2.

Daily, weekly, monthly and annual cash flow forecast must be
maintained.

4.2.4.3.

The maximum cash in the primary bank account must kept at the
amount of R30 000 000 (Thirty Million Rands)

4.3. Payment of Creditors
4.3.1. The payment cycle of all trade creditors must be strictly maintained
as
required by the Creditors, Councillors and Personnel Payment Policy
, or
as per payment terms stipulated on individual contracts. If there are
incentives (e.g. trade discount) favourable to Council when payments are
made before due dates, such incentives, where appropriate, must
be
applied. Wherever possible, payments must be effected by means
of
electronic transfers rather than by cheques. Urgent payments to creditors
outside standard process shall only be made with the express approval
of
the Chief Financial Officer, who shall be satisfied that there are compelling
reasons for making such payments. The municipality will avoid the pre
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payment of goods and services, unless when required by the contractual
arrangements with the supplier. The municipality will accept settlement
discounts to effect early payment release only when payment(s) are
included in the monthly cash-flow estimates.
4.4. Management of Cash-flow
4.4.1. The Chief Financial Officer shall maintain a cash-flow system, and
ensure that funds not immediately required are invested on a daily basis.
All Executive Directors and Office Managers, shall in this regard, furnish
the Chief Financial Officer with their respective cash-flow needs of all
payments in excess of R100 000, clearly indicating possible future dates
of payments, as well as any possible inflow of cash from other sources of
finance arranged by Directorates themselves.
4.5. Administration of Banking Accounts
4.5.1. The opening / closing of municipal bank accounts, deposits/withdrawals
into or from the municipal bank accounts, signing of cheques / appointment
of cheque signatories, and signing of other payment documents, are the
responsibilities of the Accounting Officer but may be delegated in writing
to the Chief Financial Officer.
4.5.2. Bank overdraft:

4.5.2.1.

A bank overdraft may only be obtained in anticipation of a positive
income stream or to finance capital projects in anticipation of an

approved capital grant or long-term loan.
4.5.2.2.

The bank overdraft must be repaid by the end of the financial
year.

4.5.2.3.

The council can only approve a bank overdraft on the submission
of a cash flow statement indicating the anticipated income stream or

a certificate stating the approval grant or long-term loan.
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4.5.3. Short-term portion of long-term debtors:
4.5.3.1.

Debtors outstanding relating to long-term debtors must be treated
as any other outstanding account for rates and services charges.

4.5.4. Provisions:

4.5.4.1.

Provisions for known short-term liabilities must be made for each
order issued.

4.5.4.2.

Sufficient cash must be available when payments are due.

4.5.5. Short-term portion of long-term liabilities:
4.5.5.1.

Loan instalments due in the current financial year must be
provided for in the financial statements.

4.5.5.2.

Sufficient cash must be available when payments are due.

4.6. Petty Cash Procedures
4.6.1. All petty cash procedures relating to viz:- (i) Petty Cash Limits, (ii)
Petty
Cash Custodians per Directorate, (iii) Balancing / Reconciliation of Cash
Floats, (iv) Petty Cash Requisitions and Authorisations, (v) Petty Cash
Registers, (vi) Supporting Documents, etc. is governed by the Council’s
Financial Standing Orders.

5.

CASH-FLOW ESTIMATES
5.1. Before money can be invested, the Chief Financial Officer or his/her delega
te
must determine whether there will be surplus funds available for the term
of
the investment.
5.2. In order to be able to make investments for a fixed term, it is essential
that
cash flow estimates be drawn up.
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5.3. Provisions must be made in the cash flow estimates for operating and capital
requirements of the municipality:
5.3.1. The operating requirements must include provisions for:5.3.1 .1. Payment of monthly salaries;
5.3.1.2.

Payment of bulk purchases of electricity and water;

5.3.1.3.

Repayment of long-term loans;

5.3.1.4.

Maintenance of assets;

5.3.1.5.

General expenditure;

5.3.1.6.

Expected daily and monthly income.

5.3.2. Capital requirement must provide for:5.3.2.1.

6.

The anticipated cash flow requirements for each capital project.

INVESTMENT ETHICS, PRINCIPLES AND PROCEDURES
6.1.The following ethics, principles and procedures shall apply:6.1.1. The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for the management and
approval of municipal investments,
6.1.2. The Chief Financial Officer is permitted to utilize senior finance officials
to assist in the execution of the investment responsibilities,
6.1.3. No improper outside influence or internal interference will be permitted
at any time in regard to management of cash and placing of investments,
6.1.4. Quotations for call and/or fixed deposits from the approved financial
institutions (a minimum of three) will be obtained at the time of
contemplating an investment,
6.1.5. Financial institutions will be required to submit confirmation certificates
upon the placement of investments, which will include a declaration that
no commission was paid relating to the investment,
6.1 .6. The Chief Financial Officer shall maintain a detailed investment register,
6.1.7. The Chief Financial Officer shall hold in safe custody all investment
certificates and other related documents, for audit purposes and proper
record keeping,
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6.1.8. Investments made must be in the name of the Bitou Municipality (S12 of
the Municipal Regulations),
6.1.9. No funds will be borrowed for the purpose of investments (S12 of the
Municipal Investment Regulations),
6.1.10.

The Chief Financial Officer shall ensure that interest and capital

is received and receipted when due,
6.1.11.

Any risk arising from any investment transaction rest with the

municipality (S12 of the Municipal Investment Regulations).
6.1.12.

Under no circumstances may he/she be forced or bribed into

making an investment.
6.1.13.

No member of staff may accept any gift unless that gift can be

deemed so small that it would not have an influence on his/her work or
was not intended to so, and can merely be seen as goodwill.
6.1.14.

Short-term Investments:

6.1 .14.1. Written quotations should be obtained from at least three financial
institutions for the term of which the funds will be invested.
6.1.14.2. Should one of the institutions offer a better rate for a term, other
than what the municipality had in mind, the other institutions which
were approach should also be asked to quote a rate for the other term.
6.1.14.3. Quotations should be obtained in writing, as rates generally
change on a regular basis and time is a determining factor when
investments are made.
6.1.14.4. The person responsible for requesting quotations from financial
institutions must record the following particulars:6.1.14.4.1.

Name of the institution;

6.1.14.4.2.

Name of person quoting rates;

6.1 .14.4.3.

Period of the investment;

6.1.14.4.4.

Relevant conditions; and

6.1.14.4.5.

Other facts, such as interest payable monthly or on

maturation.
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6.1.14.5. Once the required number of quotes have been obtained, a
decision must be taken regarding the best term offered and the
institution with which funds are going to be invested.
6.1.14.6. Short-term investments should be made with financial institutions
with at least a minimum B rating (where B refers to higher risk
institutions).
6.1.14.7. The best offer must under normal circumstances be accepted,
with thorough consideration of investment principles.
6.1.14.8. The municipality may not borrow money for reinvestment, as this
would mean interest rates have to be estimated in advance, which
can be seen as speculation with public funds.
6.1 .14.9. If the Municipal Manager or his/her delegate invests with financial
institutions, he/she must ensure that such institutions are registered
in terms of the Banks Act, (Act 94 of 1990) and that they are approved
financial institutions, as approved by the Reserve Bank from time to
time.
6.1.14.10.When the Municipal Manager or his/her delegate makes an
investment it must be guaranteed that at least the capital amount
invested is safe, and due diligence must be exercised in this regard.
6.1.14.11 .No attempt must be made to make institutions compete with each
other as far as their rates and terms are concerned.
6.1.14.12.Once a quote has been accepted written confirmation of the
details must be obtained from the financial institution.
6.1.14.13.The investment capital must only be paid over to the institution
with which it is to be invested and not to an agent or third party.
6.1 .14.14.The financial institution where the investment is made must issue
a certificate stating the details of the investments.
6.1.14.15.The Municipal Manager or his/her delegate must make sure that
the investment document received is a genuine document and issued
by the approved institution.
6.1.14.16.The financial institution, where the investment is made, must
issue a certificate which states that no commission has or will be paid
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to any agent or third party, or to any person nominated by an agent or
third party.
6.l.14.17.Where money is kept in current accounts, the municipality must
bargain for more beneficial rates with regard to deposits.
6.1 .14.1 8.The Municipal Manager or his/her delegate must ensure that the
financial institution where the investment is to be made is creditworthy
and the performance of the institution is to his/her satisfaction, before
investing money in the institution.
6.1.14.19.The Municipal Manager or his/her delegate

must obtain

information from which the creditworthiness of financial institutions
can be determined. This must be obtained and analyse annually.
6.1.15.

Long-term Investment:-

6.1.15.1. Written quotations must be obtained for all investments made for
a period longer than twelve months.
6.1.15.2. The municipal council must approve all investments made for
periods longer than twelve months after considering the cash
management requirements for the next three years.
6.1.15.3. Long-term investments should be made with financial institutions
with at least a minimum BBB rating (where BBB refers to lower risk
institutions).

7.

CONTROL OVER INVESTMENTS
7.1 An investment register should be kept and reconciled on a monthly basis. The
following information must be recorded:
.

7.1.1. Name of the institution;
7.1.2. Capital invested;
7.1 .3. Date invested;
7.1 .4. Interest rate;
7.1 .5. Maturation date;
7.1.6. Interest received;
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7.17. Capital repaid; and
7.1.8. Balance invested.
7.2. The investment register must be examined on a fortnightly basis to identify
investments falling due within the next two weeks. It must then be established
what to do with the funds, bearing in mind the cash-flow requirements.
7.3. Interest must be received timeously, together with any distributable capital.
7.4. At the maturity date of the investment, the financial institution must transfer the
capital plus interest received to the Municipality’s main bank account.
7.5. The Chief Financial Officer must check that the interest is calculated correctly.
7.6.The investment documents and certificates must be safeguarded in a fire
resistant safe, with dual custody. The following documents must be
safeguarded:
7.6.1. Fixed deposit letter or investment certificate;
7.6.2. Receipt for the capital invested;
7.6.3. Copy of electronic transfer or cheque requisition;
7.6.4. Schedule of comparative investment figures;
7.6.5. Commission certificate indicating no commission was paid on the
investment;
7.6.6. Interest rate quoted.

8.

STANDARD OF CARE
8.1.Section 5 of the Municipal Investment Regulations emphasises that
investments made by a municipality, through municipal officials must be made
with such judgement and care, under the prevailing circumstances, as a
person of prudence, discretion and intelligence, who is entrusted with
management of public funds, would exercise.
8.2. Investments made by the municipality may not be made for speculation. A high
standard of care which includes (i) Preservation and Safety of Capital Invested,
(ii) Liquidity, and (iii) Yield, must at all times be maintained when making
investments.
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9.

PERMITTED INVESTMENTS
9.1. In terms of Section 6 of the Municipal Investment Regulations, municipalitie
s
are permitted to invest in the following instruments and investments:
9.1 .1. Securities issued by the National Government,
9.1.2. Deposits with Banks registered in terms of the Banks Act, 1990 (Act 94
of 1990),
9.1.3. Listed corporate bonds with an investment grade rating from
an
internationally recognized credit rating agency,
9.1.4. Deposits with the Public Investment Commissioners as contemplated
by
the Public Investment Commissioner’s Act, 1984 (Act 46 of 1984),
9.1.5. Deposits with the Corporations for Public Deposits as contemplated
by
the Corporation for Public Deposits Act, 1984 (Act 46 of 1984),
9.1.6. Banker’s acceptance certificates or negotiable certificates of deposit of
banks registered in terms of the Banks Act, 1990 (Act 94 of 1990),
9.1.7. Guaranteed endowment policies with the intention of establishing

a

sinking fund,
9.1.8. Repurchase agreements with banks registered in terms of the Banks
Act, 1990 (Act 94 of 1990),
9.1.9. Municipal bonds issued by a municipality, and
9.1.10.
Any other investment type as the Minister may identify by
regulation in terms of section 168 of the Act, in consultation with the
Financial Services Board.

10.

PROHIBITION OF INVESTMENTS DENOMINATED IN FOREIGN
CURRENCY
10.1.

In terms of Section 7 of the Municipal Investment Regulations,
municipalities are not permitted to place investments denominated in foreign

currencies.

11.

PAYMENT OF COMMISSION
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11 .1

Section 8 of the Municipal Investment Regulations, states that:
No fee, commission or other reward may be paid to a councillor or official

11 .2.

of a municipality or to a spouse or close family member of such councillor, or
official in respect of any investment made or referred by a municipality.

12.

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
12.1.

In compliance with Section 9 of the Municipal Investment Regulations
the Accounting Officer shall report within 10 working days of the beginning of

each month, to the Executive Mayor, the investment position / portfolio of the
municipality as at the end of the previous month. A similar report shall also be
submitted to the Budget and Treasury Committee.
12.2.

Such report must at a minimum provide:

-

12.2.1.

The market value of each investment as at the beginning of the
reporting period,

12.2.2.

Any changes to the investment portfolio during the reporting

period,
12.2.3.

The market value of each investment as at the end of the
reporting period, and

12.2.4.

Fully accrued interest and yield for the reporting period.

12.3.

In complying with Section 70(2) of the Act, the Chief Financial Officer
must report to the National Treasury/Provincial Treasury and Council

whenever the consolidated bank balances shows a net overdrawn balance for
a period exceeding 14 days (two weeks).
12.4.

Such report must at a minimum provide:

-

12.4.1.

The amount by which the accounts are overdrawn,

12.4.2.

Reasons for the overdrawn accounts, and

12.4.3.

Steps taken or to be taken to correct the matter.
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13.

CREDIT REQUIREMENTS
13.1.

In terms of Section 10 of the Municipal Investment Regulations
reasonable and prudent steps shall be taken by the Chief Financial Office
r, to
ensure that investments are placed with creditworthy institutions. The

investment policy of a municipality must determine acceptable investment
ratings of financial institutions, and must liquidate any investment that no
longer has a minimum acceptable rating.
13.2.

The following will determine the suitability of a financial institution and
will set investment limits within which municipal investments can be placed
:
-

13.2.1.

Must be an approved instrument in terms of Paragraph
7(Permitted Investments) of this policy,

13.2.2.
13.2.3.

The institution must be highly rated by credible Rating Agencies,
The shareholder equity of the institution must be in excess of at

least RlObn,
13.2.4.

The investment limit per approved financial institution must be
limited at 10% of the bank’s distributable reserves, as per their latest

financial statements.
13.2.5.

The credit rating of deposit taking institutions must be confirmed
in writing at lease on an annual basis to ensure a suitable credit rating and
limit the risk to and exposure of the municipality.

14.

INVESTMENT DIVERSIFICATION
14.1.

In terms of Section 11 of the Municipal Investment Regulations requires
municipalities to take all reasonable and prudent steps, consistent with its

investment policy and standard of care, to diversify its investment portfol
io
across institutions, types of investments and investment maturities.
14.2.

The Chief Financial Officer must ensure that municipal investments are
placed equitable amongst the approved financial institutions. Investment limits

must be determined as stipulated in Paragraph 9 of this policy, and no more
than 50%’ of municipal investments can be placed with one institution. The
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Chief Financial Officer must review the investment limits with approv
ed
financial institutions at least once a year, or whenever the need exist
for a
review.

15.

ACCOUNTING FOR TRUST FUNDS
15.1.

Unless required otherwise by trust deeds, trust funds will be investe
d
within the terms of this policy but be recorded separately in the
municipal

accounting system. If pooled with Municipality investments, trust funds
will
earn the average interest rate applicable to the municipality. The require
ments
as stipulated by Trust Deed will take priority.

16.

RAISING OF DEBT
16.1.

Municipal debt (short or long term) shall be raised in strict compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 6 of the Municipal Finance Management
Act
(Act 56 of 2003).

17.

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT OF INTEREST EARNED ON INVESTMEN
TS
17.1.

The interest accrued on all municipal investments shall, in compliance
with the requirements of generally accepted municipal accounting practic
e, be
recorded in the first instance in the municipality’s operating account as ordina
ry
operating revenues, and may thereafter be appropriated to the fund or accoun
t
in respect of which such investment was made depending on the conditions
which apply to the fund or account.

18.

REVIEW OF THE POLICY
18.1.

This Cash Management and Investment Policy is the sole policy
governing cash management and investments in the Bitou Municipality
and
this policy will be reviewed annually by the Bitou Council.
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Whereas section 14 of the Local Government:

Municipal Finance Management Act,

2003 (Act no. 56 of 2003) determines that a municipal council may not dispose of assets
required to provide minimum services, and whereas the Municipal Asset Transfer
Regulations (Government Gazette 31346 dated 22 August 2008) has been issued.

And whereas the municipal council of Bitou Municipality wishes to adopt a policy to guide
the municipal manager in the management of the municipality’s assets.

And whereas the municipal manager as custodian of municipal funds and assets is
responsible for the implementation of the asset management policy which regulate the
acquisition, safeguarding and maintenance of all assets.

And whereas these assets must be protected over their useful life and may be used in the
production or supply of goods and services or for administrative purposes.
Now therefore the municipal council of the Bitou Municipality adopts the following asset
management policy:
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Accounting Officer means the Municipal Manager appointed in terms of Section 82 of the
Local Government: Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act no. 117 of 1998) and being the
head of administration and accounting officer in terms of section 55 of the Local
Government: Municipal Systems Act 2000 (Act no. 32 of 2000).
Agricultural Produce is the harvested product of the municipality’s biological assets.
BiologicalAssets are defined as living animals or plants.
Capital Assets (assets) are items of Biological Assets, Intangible Assets, Investment
Property or Property, Plant or Equipment defined in this Policy.
Carrying Amount is the amount at which an asset is included in the statement of financial
position after deducting any accumulated depreciation (or amortisation) and accumulated
impairment losses thereon.
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) means an officer of a municipality designated by the
Municipal Manager to be administratively in charge of the budgetary and

treasury

functions.

Community Assets are defined as any asset that contributes to the community’s well
being. Examples are parks, libraries and fire stations.
Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other
consideration given to acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction, or,
where applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in
accordance with the specific requirements of other Standards of GRAP.
Depreciable Amount is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost in the
financial statements, less its residual value.
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its
useful life.
Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a liability between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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GAAP are standards of Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.
GRAP are standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice.
Heritage Assets are defined as culturally significant resources. Examples are works of art,
historical buildings and statues.
Infrastructure Assets are defined as any asset that is part of a network of similar assets.
Examples are roads, water reticulation schemes, sewerage purification and trunk mains,
transport terminals, car parks and electricity supply.
Intangible Assets are defined as identifiable non-monetary assets without physical
substance.

Investment Properties are defined as properties (land or buildings) that are acquired for
economic and capital gains. Examples are office parks and undeveloped land acquired for
the purpose of resale in future years.
Land and Buildings are defined as a class of PPE when the land and buildings are held
for purposes such as administration and provision of services. Land and Buildings therefore
exclude Investment properties and Land Inventories.
MFMA refers to the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management Act (Act no. 56 of
2003).

OtherAssets are defined as assets utilised in normal operations. Examples are plant and
equipment, motor vehicles and furniture and fittings.
Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) are tangible assets that:(a)

Are held by a municipality for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
for rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and

(b)

Are expected to be used during more than one period.

Recoverable Amount is the amount that the municipality expects to recover from the future
use of an asset, including its residual value on disposal.
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Recoverable Service Amount is the higher of a non-cash generating assets
fair value
less cost to sell and its value in use.

Residual Value is the net amount that the municipality expects to obtain for
an asset at the
end of its useful life after deducting the expected costs of disposal.

Useful Life is:
(c)

The period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the municipality
;
or

(d)

The number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset
by
the municipality’s accounting officer.
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7

The MFMA was introduced with the objective of improving accounting in the municipalities
sector in keeping with global trends. Good asset management is critical to any business
environment whether in the private or public sector. In the past municipalities used a cashbased system to account for assets, whilst the trend has been to move to an accrual system.

With the cash system, assets were written off in the year of disposal or, in cases where
infrastructure assets were financed from advances or loans, they were written off when the
loans were fully redeemed. No costs were attached to subsequent periods in which these
assets would be used.

With art accrual system the assets are incorporated into the books of accounts and
systematically written off over their anticipated lives. This necessitates that a record is kept
of the cost of the assets, the assets are verified periodically, and the assets can be traced
to their suppliers via invoices or other such related delivery documents. This ensures good
financial discipline, and allows decision makers greater control over the management of
assets. An Asset Management Policy should promote efficient and effective monitoring and
control of assets.

According to the MFMA, the Accounting Officer in the Municipality should ensure:
(e)

that the municipality has and maintains an effective and efficient and transparent
system of financial and risk management and internal control;

(f)

the effective, efficient and economical use of the resources of the municipality;

(g)

the management (including safeguarding and maintenance) of the assets of the

(h)

that

municipality;
the

municipality has and

maintains a

management,

accounting and

information system that accounts for the assets and liabilities of the municipality;
(i)

that the municipality’s assets and liabilities are valued in accordance with
standards of generally recognised accounting practice; and

(j)

that the municipality has and maintains a system of internal control of assets and
liabilities, including an asset and liabilities register. as may be prescribed.

The objective of this Asset Management Policy is to ensure that the municipality:
(k)

has consistent application of asset management principles;

(I)

implements accrual accounting;
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(m)

complies with PFMA, MFMA, Treasury Regulation, GAAP, GRAP and
other
related legislation;

(n)

safeguards and controls the assets of the municipality; and
optimises asset usage.

(o)

Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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-

The main challenges associated with managing fixed assets can be characterised as
follows:
Moveable assets
(p)
controlling acquisition, location, use, and disposal (over a
relatively short term lifespan)
—

(q)

Immovable assets

—

life-cycle management (over a relatively long-term lifespan).

The policy approach has been to firstly focus on the financial treatment of assets, which
needs to be consistent across both the movable and immovable assets, and secondly to
focus on the management of immovable assets as a fundamental departure point for
service delivery. This arrangement is summarised in Figure 1

-.

rmmovable Asset
anagement Strategy

-

movable Assj
Movable Asset
aintenance StrateYJntrol ProceduJ

1

mmovable Asset
rmovable AsseJ1
Management Plan Jntenance Plan

L

J

Figure 1: Proposed policy and strategic framework
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CLASSIFICATION OF CAPITAL ASSETS

5.1

I

General
When accounting for Capital Assets, the municipality should follow the various standards
of GRAP relating to the capital assets. An item is recognised in the statement of financial
position as a Capital Asset if it satisfies the definition and the criteria for recognition of
assets. The first step in the recognition process is to establish whether the item meets the
definition of an asset. Secondly, the nature of the asset should be determined, and
thereafter the recognition criterion is applied. Capital Assets are classified into the following
categories for financial reporting purposes:
1.

Property, Plant and Equipment (GRAP 17)
• Land and Buildings (land and buildings not held as investment)
• Infrastructure Assets (immovable assets that are used to provide basic
services)
• Community Assets (resources contributing to the general well-being of the
community)
• Other Assets (ordinary operational resources)

2.

Intangible Assets (GRAP 31)
• Intangible Assets (assets without physical substance held for ordinary
operational resources)

3.

Investment Property (GRAP 16)
• Investment Assets (resources held for capital or operational gain)

4.

Heritage Assets (GRAP 103)
• Heritage Assets (culturally significant resources)

5.

Biological Assets (GRAP 27)
• Biological Assets (livestock and plants held)

6.

Discontinued Operations (GRAP 100)
• Discontinued Operations (Component of an entity that has been disposed of)

7.

Land Inventories (GRAP 12)
• Land Inventories (land or buildings owned or acquired with the intention of
selling such property in the ordinary course of business)

Further asset classification has been defined in GRAP. The classifications used for
infrastructure are limited and do not represent all asset types.
However, these
classifications are used for financial reporting consistency and should be used.
To facilitate the practical management of infrastructure assets and asset register data,
infrastructure assets have been further classified. The recommended classifications are
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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provided in the Immoveable Asset Update Strategy, which is periodically reviewed
and approved by the Chief Financial Officer in conjunction with Heads of
Departments.
Policy
The asset classification specified by GRAP shall be adhered to as a minimum standard.

The extended asset classification specified in the Immoveable Asset Update Strategy
shall be adopted.
Procedures and Rules
•

The CFO shall ensure that the classifications specified by National Treasury,
GRAP, and those adopted by the municipality are adhered to.
The CFO shall inform the Heads of Departments of the classification requirements.
Every Head of Department shall ensure that all fixed assets under their control are
classified correctly.

•

•

5.2

IDENTIFICATION OF ASSETS

I

General
An asset identification system is a means to uniquely identify each asset in the municipality
in order to ensure that each asset can be accounted for on an individual basis. Movable
assets are usually identified using a barcode system by attaching a barcode to each item.
Immovable assets are usually identified by means an accurate description of their physical
location.

Policy
An asset identification system shall be operated and applied in conjunction with an asset
register. As far as practicable, every individual asset shall have a unique identification
number.

Procedures and Rules
•
•
•
•

The CFO shall develop and implement an asset identification system, while acting
in consultation with the Heads of Departments.
The Heads of Departments shall ensure that all the assets under their control are
correctly identified.
As far as practicable, all movable assets must be bar-coded or uniquely marked.
Immovable assets must be identified using naming and numbering conventions
that enable easy location of the assets in the field.
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ASSET REGISTER

General
An asset register is a database of information related to all the assets under the control
of
the municipality. The asset register consists of an inventory of all the assets, with
each
asset having a unique identifying number. Data related to each asset should be able
to be
stored in the asset register. The data requirements for the asset register are as follows:

Identification
.

Unique identification number or asset mark

V

V

.

Unique name

‘

“

.

National Treasury Classification

‘

‘‘

V

.

Internal Classification

V

V

V

V

.

Descriptive data (make, model, etc.)

V

V

V

.

Erf/Registralion

V

V

V

.

Title deed reference

V

V

V

Accountability
.

Department

.

Insurance reference

V

Performance
.

Age

/

V

.

Condition

V

V

.

Remaining Useful life

V

V

.

Expected Useful Life

V

V

V

Accounting
.

Historic cost

V

V

.

Takeonvalue

V

V

/

.

Takeondate

V

V

V

.

Depreciation charge for the current financial year

V

V

V

.

Impairment losses in the current year

V

V

V
V

.

Accumulated depreciation

V

V

.

Carrying value

V

V

V

.

Residual value

V

V

V

.

Source of financing

V

V

V
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Assets remain in the asset register for as long as they are in physical existence or until
being written off. The fact that an asset has been fully depreciated is not in itself a reason
for writing-off such an asset.
The asset register does not include assets that belong to other third parties, unless it is
classed as a finance lease or comply with conditions set out in other relevant standards and
legislation.
Policy
An asset register shall be maintained for all assets. In some cases, such as Investment
Properties and Intangible Assets, separate asset registers will have to be maintained. The
format of the register shall include the data needed to comply with the applicable accounting
standards and data needed for the technical management of the assets. The asset register
should be continuously updated and asset records should be reconciled to the general
ledger on a quarterly basis.
Procedures and Rules
•

•
•

The CFO must define the format of the asset register in consultation with the Heads
of Departments and must ensure that the asset register format complies with
legislative requirements.
The CFO must ensure that a defined process and forms exist to update and maintain
the asset register.
The Heads of Departments must provide the CFO with the information required to
compile and maintain the asset register.

5.4

RECOGNITION OF CAPITAL ASSETS: INITIAL MEASUREMENT

I

General
A Capital Asset should be recognised as an asset in the financial and asset records when:
•
It is probable that future economic benefits or potential service delivery associated
with the item will flow to the municipality;
•
The cost or fair value of the item to the municipality can be measured reliably:
•
The cost is above any municipal capitalisation threshold (if any); and
•
The item is expected to be used during more than one financial year.
Spare parts and servicing equipment are usually carried as inventory in terms of the
Standard of GRAP on Inventories and recognised in surplus or deficit as consumed.
However, major spare parts and stand-by equipment qualify as property, plant and
equipment when the municipality expects to use them during more than one period.
Similarly, If the spare parts and servicing equipment can be used only in connection with an
item of property, plant and equipment, they are accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Further guidance for the recognition of assets is provided below:
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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Capital/sat/on Threshold
The capitalisation threshold is a policy decision of the municipality and
is the value above
which assets are capitalised and reported in the financial statements
as tangible or
intangible capital assets as opposed to being expensed in the year of
acquisition. As a
result, the threshold has a significant impact on the size of the asset
register and the
complexity of asset management. However the capitalisation threshold
is regarded as a
deviation from GRAP standards and should be determined annually against materiality
and
must be determined at a level that will ensure that the municipality do not deviate
materially
from the requirements of GRAP 17.
The capitalisation threshold should not be applied to the components of an
asset, but should
be applied to the value of the capital asset as a whole. If the threshold
is applied at
component level, the asset register would be incomplete in the sense that
an asset recorded
as such would not be a complete asset.
The municipality should take the following into account when considering
a capitalisation
threshold:
•
The impact of the threshold on the financial statements
and the
decisions/assessments the users of the financial statement may or may not
make:
•
The cost of maintaining financial and management information on assets
when the
threshold is very low;
•
The impact on comparability and benchmarking cost of services may
be difficult if
different capitalisation thresholds are applied;
•
The size of the municipality or the size of its service areas when setting capitalisation
thresholds levels. Municipalities vary greatly in size, so what is relevant to
one may
be immaterial to another.
•
The nature of the asset

Every Head of Department shall, however, ensure that any movable asset item with
a value
lower than the capitalisation threshold and with an estimated useful life of
more than one
year, shall be recorded on a Minor Assets inventory listing. Every Head of Department
shall
moreover ensure that the existence of items recorded on such inventory stock
lists are
physically verified from time to time, and at least once in every financial
year, and any
amendments which are made to such inventory stock lists pursuant
to such stock
verifications shall be retained for audit purposes.

Calculation of/nit/al cost price
Only costs that comprise the purchase price and any directly attributable costs
necessary
for bringing the asset to its working condition should be capitalised. The
purchase price
exclusive of VAT should be capitalised, unless the municipality is not allowed
to claim input
VAT paid on purchase of such assets. In such an instance, the municipality
should
capitalise the cost of the asset together with VAT. Any trade discounts and
rebates are
deducted in arriving at the purchase price. Listed hereunder is a list, which
list is not
exhaustive, of directly attributable costs:
•

Costs of employee benefits (as defined in the applicable standard on Employee
Benefits) arising directly from the construction or acquisition of the item of
the
Capital Asset

Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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The cost of site preparation;
Initial delivery and handling costs;
Installation costs;
Professional fees such as for architects and engineers; and
The estimated cost of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site.

When payment for an asset is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash
price equivalent. The difference between this amount and the total payments is recognised
as an interest expense over the period of credit.

Component approach
The component approach is a GRAP-supported approach where complex assets are split into
separate depreciable parts for recording. The key considerations in determining what should
become a separately depreciable part (component) are:
•
Significant cost; and
•
Considerable difference in useful life
If the value of a part of the asset is significant (i.e. material) compared to the value of the asset
as a whole and/or has a useful life that is considerably different to the useful life of the asset a
whole, it should be recognised as a separately depreciable part (component).

Subsequent Expenses
The municipality should not recognise the costs of day-to-day servicing of the item in the
carrying amount of an item of capital asset. These costs are recognised as expenditure as
and when incurred. Day-to-day costs are primarily the costs of labour and consumables
and may include the costs of small parts. The purpose of these expenditures is usually for
the ‘repair and maintenance’ of the capital asset.
Parts of some capital assets may require replacement at regular intervals. For example, a
road may need resurfacing every few years. It may be necessary to make less-frequently
recurring replacement of parts, such as replacing the interior walls of a building, or to make
a non-recurring replacement. Under the recognition principle, an entity recognises in the
carrying amount of the capital asset the cost of replacing the part of such an item when that
cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met. At the same time the part to be replaced
should be derecognised.
Rehabilitation/Enhancements/Renewa/s of capital assets
Expenditure to rehabilitate, enhance or renew an existing capital asset (including separately
depreciable parts) can be recognised as capital if:
•
The expenditure satisfies the recognition criteria;
•
that expenditure is enhancing the service provision of that capital asset beyond its
original expectation and either that expenditure:
increases the useful life of that capital asset (beyond its original useful life);
o
o increases the capital asset capacity (beyond its original capacity);
increases the performance of the capital asset (beyond the original
o
performance);
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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increases the functionality of that capital asset;
reduces the future ownership costs of that capital asset significantly; or
increases the size of the asset or changes its shape.

The expenditure to restore the functionality of the capital asset to its original level is a
maintenance/refurbishment expense and will not be capitalised to the carrying value of the
capital asset.
The rehabilitated or renewed separately depreciable part will be derecognised and the
replacement will be recognised. Where the separately identifiable asset is rehabilitated or
renewed, the amount incurred will be added to the carrying value of the asset.

Leased Assets
A lease is an agreement whereby the lessor conveys to the lessee, in return for a payment
or series of payments, the right to use an asset for an agreed period of time. Leases are
categorised into finance and operating leases:
•
A Finance Lease is a lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
incident to ownership of an asset, even though the title may or may not eventually be
transferred. Where the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are substantially
transferred, the lease is regarded as a finance lease and is recognised as a Capital
asset.
•
Where there is no substantial transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, the lease is
considered an Operating Lease and payments are expensed in the income statement
on a systematic basis.

Policy
All capital assets shall be correctly recognised as assets and capitalised at the correct value
in its significant components. The capitalisation threshold will be determined annually by
the municipality. All assets with values less than the capitalization threshold shall be
recorded in a minor assets inventory

Procedures and Rules
•
•

•

•
•

Every Head of Department shall ensure that all assets under their control are correctly
accounted for and recognised as assets in its significant depreciable components.
Every Head of Department shall identify major spare parts held by its department and
ensure that these spare parts are correctly classified as either PPE or Inventory.
Every Head of Department shall identify all subsequent expenditure or expenditure
incurred on rehabilitation/enhancements/renewals to evaluate whether these costs
should be included in the carrying values of capital assets or expensed when the
costs is incurred.
The Council shall specify which kinds of leases the municipality may enter into.
The CEO must keep a lease register with all the information that is necessary for
reporting purposes, for example, opening balance, acquisitions, disposals, transfers,
capital redemption, etc.

Policy Title: Asset Management Policy

Financial Year: 2020/2021

Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 31/3/2020 with Draft Budget per Item C/2/172/03/20

212

17

eitou Municipality
Asset Management Pohcy

SUBSEQUENT MEASUREMENT OF CAPITAL ASSETS
General
After initial recognition of Property, plant and Equipment, the municipality values its assets using
the cost model, unless a specific decision have been taken to revalue a certain class of assets
and in such instance the PPE will be valued using the revaluation model.
When an item of PPE is revalued, the entire class of property to which that asset belongs, should
be revalued.
When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of the revaluation, the increase should
be credited to a revaluation surplus. However, the increase shall be recognised in surplus or
deficit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in surplus or deficit.
When and asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of devaluation, the decrease should
be recognised as an expense in the annual financial statements. However, the decrease shall be
debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the
revaluation surplus in respect of that asset.

Procedures and Rules
The CFO shall ensure that all Property. Plant and Equipment are correctly recorded
in the asset register and revaluated (if applicable) in terms of the municipality’s
policies.

RECOGNITION OF INVENTORY ITEMS (NON CAPITAL ITEMS)
General
Inventories encompass finished goods purchased or produced, or work in progress being
produced by the municipality. They also include materials and supplies awaiting use in the
production process and goods purchased or produced by the municipality, which are for
distribution to other parties for no charge or for a nominal charge. GRAP 12.7 defines
Inventories as assets:
•
In the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process;
•
In the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering
of services;
•
Held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or
•
In the process of production for sale or distribution.

Examples of Inventories may include the following:
•
•
•
•

Ammunition;
Consumable stores;
Maintenance materials;
Spare parts for plant and equipment other than those dealt with under PPE;

Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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Strategic stockpiles (Energy reserves, Water reserves);
Work in progress; and
Land I Property held for sale.

Cost of inventories shall comprise of all costs of purchase (i.e. purchase price, import duties,
other taxes and transport, handling and other costs attributable to the acquisition of finished
goods, materials and supplies), costs of development, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Trade discounts,
rebates and other similarities are deducted. Taxes recoverable by the entity from the SARS
may not be included.
Costs of development for housing or similar developments which are acquired or developed
for resale will include costs directly related to the development— e.g. purchase price of land
acquired for such developments, surveying, conveyance costs and the provision of certain
infrastructure.
Infrastructure costs relating to extending the capacity of existing
infrastructure are excluded. The costs of inventories of a service provider consisting of
direct labour and other costs of personnel directly engaged in providing the service and
other attributable overheads are included.

Policy
Assets acquired or owned by the municipality for the purpose of selling or developing such
assets with the intention to sell it or utllising the asset in the production process or in the
rendering of services, shall be accounted for in the municipality’s financial statements as
inventory items and not as property, plant and equipment.

Procedures and Rules
•

•

The CFO must record inventories in a dedicated section of the Inventory Register
and maintain it for this purpose. The amount of cost of inventories is to be
recognised and carried forward until related revenues are recognised.
Inventories shall be measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost
where they are held for:
Distribution at no charge or for nominal charge, or
Consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge
or for a nominal charge.
In cases where the above does not apply, inventories shall be measured at lower
of cost and net realisable value.
-

-

•
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: LAND AND BUILDINGS

Genera!
Land and Buildings comprise any land and buildings held (by the owner or by the lessee
under a finance lease) by the municipality to be used in the production or supply of goods
or for administrative purposes. Land held for a currently undetermined future use, should
not be included in PPE: Land and Buildings, but should be included in Investment
Properties. For this class of Land and Buildings there is no intention of developing or selling
the property in the normal course of business. This land and buildings include infrastructure
reserves.
The municipality shall apply Interpretation Standard, IGRAP18, relating to the the initial
recognition and de-recognition of land. This interpretation also considers joint control of land
by more than one entity.
When the municipality concludes that it controls the land after applying the principles in this
Interpretation, it applies the applicable Standard of GRAP, i.e. the Standard of GRAP on
Inventories (GRAP 12), Investment Property (GRAP 16), Property, Plant and Equipment
(GRAP 17) or Heritage Assets (GRAP 103), as this Interpretation does not apply to the
classification, initial and subsequent measurement, presentation and disclosure
requirements of land, the entity applies the applicable Standard of GRAP to account for the
land once control of the land has been determined.
An entity also applies the applicable Standards of GRAP to the de-recognition of land when
it concludes that it does not control the land after applying the principles in this
Interpretation.
The municipality shall choose either the cost model or the revaluation model as its
accounting policy and shall apply that policy to an entire class of property, plant and
equipment.
If the municipality chooses the cost model for its Land and Buildings, then after recognition as
an asset, Land and Buildings shall be carried at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.
If the municipality chooses the revaluation model for its Land and Buildings, then after
recognition as an asset, Land and Buildings whose fair value can be measured reliably shall
be carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations shall be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the
reporting date.
Policy
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Municipality choose the cost model as the accounting policy
for its Land and Buildings. Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite useful
life.
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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Procedures and Rules
•
•

The CFO shall ensure that all and and buildings are correctly recorded in the asset
register and revaluated (if applicable) in terms of the municipalitys policies.
The CFO shall ensure the recognition and measurement of Land and Buildings in
terms of GRAP 17.

62

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

6.2.1

General

Infrastructure Assets comprise assets used for the delivery of infrastructure-based services.
These assets typically include electricity, sanitation, solid waste, storm water, transport, and
water assets. Many infrastructure assets form part of a greater facility e.g. a pump in a
pump station.
Level of detail of componentisation
For the technical management of infrastructure, the most effective level of management is
at the maintenance item level. This data is useful for maintenance analysis to improve
infrastructure management decision making. However, the collection of data at this of detail
can be very costly when dealing with assets that are very numerous in nature e.g. water
meters, street signs, household connections, etc. It is therefore prudent to balance the
value of the information with the cost of collecting the data. The different levels of detail can
be viewed in the Immoveable Asset Update Strategy.
The compilation of a detailed infrastructure asset register in one financial term is a costly
and onerous exercise. To ensure the practicality of implementing asset registers (and asset
management planning as a whole), the International Infrastructure Management Manual
(11MM) recommends the adoption of a continuous improvement process as a practical
implementation approach. This approach recognises the value of limited data above no
data and enables the municipalities to slowly, but steadily, increase their knowledge in the
assets they own.

Policy
The infrastructure asset register shall ensure complete representation of all infrastructure
asset types. The level of detail of componentisation shall be defined to a level that balances
the cost of collecting and maintaining the data with the benefits of minimising the risks of
the municipality.
Infrastructure assets should be valued at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment. If cost can however not be established, then
infrastructure assets will be valued at depreciated replacement cost. Depreciated
replacement cost is an accepted fair value calculation for assets where there is no active
and liquid market. Depreciation shall be charged against such assets over their expected
useful lives. The remaining useful life and residual value of, and the depreciation methods
applied to Infrastructure assets should be reviewed regularly, but the cost related to such
reviews should be measured against benefits derived to ensure value for money.
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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Procedures and Rules
•

The CFO shall define the level of detail of the infrastructure asset register in
consultation with the Heads of Department.
The CFO shall prepare an improvement process that defines the target level of
detail for each infrastructure asset type with the target year of implementation in
consultation with the Heads of Department.
The CEO shall ensure the recognition and measurement of Infrastructure Assets
in terms of GRAP 17.

•

•

6.3

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: COMMUNITY ASSETS

I

General
Community Assets include a variety of assets used to provide services to the community.
These assets include building assets such as aquariums, cemeteries, clinics, hospitals,
game reserves, museums, parks, etc. Community assets also include recreational assets
such as tennis courts, swimming pools, golf courses, outdoor sports facilities, etc.
Policy
Community assets are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation shall be charged against such assets over their expected
useful lives.
The different levels of detail can be viewed within the Immoveable Asset Update Strategy
Procedures and Rules
The CEO, in consultation with the Heads of Department, shall ensure that all
community assets are appropriately recorded and valued in terms of the
municipality’s policies.

6.4

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT: OTHER ASSETS

General
OtherAssets include a variety of assets that are of indirect benefit to the communities they

serve. These assets include office equipment, furniture and fittings, bins and containers,
emergency equipment, motor vehicles, plant and equipment.
Policy
Other assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. Depreciation shall be charged against such assets over their expected useful lives.
Other assets are not revalued.
Other Assets shall be recorded under the following main categories:
•
Aircraft;
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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Bins and Containers;
Emergency Equipment;
Furniture and Fittings;
Motor Vehicles;
Office Equipment;
Plant and Equipment;
Specialised Vehicles;
Watercratt; and
Other Assets as indicated in the Municipality’s accounting policy.

•
•
•
•
•
•

Procedures and Rules
•

The CFO. in consultation with the Heads of Department, shall ensure that all other
assets are appropriately recorded in terms of the municipalitys policies.

6.5

HERITAGE ASSETS

General
A Heritage Asset is an asset that has historical, cultural or national importance and needs
to be preserved. The following is a list of some typical heritage assets encountered in the
municipal environment:
•
Archaeological sites;
•
Conservation areas;
•
Historical buildings or other historical structures (such as war memorials);
•
Historical sites (for example, an Iron Age kiln, historical battle site or site of a
historical settlement);
•
Museum exhibits;
•
Public statues; and
•
Works of art (which will include paintings and sculptures).

Policy
Heritage assets are valued at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation shall be charged against such assets. If the cost price
of heritage assets are not known, then the heritage asset will be valued at fair value.

Procedures and Rules
•
•

For reporting purposes, the existence of such heritage assets shall be disclosed
by means of an appropriate note in the asset register.
The CFO, in consultation with the Heads of Department, shall ensure that all
heritage assets are appropriately recorded and valued in terms of the
municipality’s policies.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

I

General
Intangible Assets can be purchased, or can be internally developed, by the municipality
and
includes, but are not limited to, computer software, website development cost, servitudes
and mining rights.
Policy
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated
impairment losses. Such assets are amortised over the best estimate of the useful
life of
the intangible asset. If an intangible asset is generated internally by the municipality
, then
a distinction should be made between research and development costs. Research
costs
should be expensed and development costs may be capitalised if all the criteria
set out in
GRAP 31 has been met.
Procedures and Rules
•

[T

The CFO, in consultation with the Heads of Department, shall ensure that
all
intangible assets are appropriately recorded in terms of the municipality’s policies.
INVESTMENT PROPERTY

General
Investment Property comprise of land or buildings (or parts of buildings) or both, held
by
the municipality as owner, or as lessee under a finance lease, to earn rental revenues
or
for capital appreciation or both. Investment property does not include property used
in the
production or supply of service or for administration. It also does not include property
that
will be sold in the normal course of business. Typical investment properties include:
•
Office parks (which have been developed by the municipality itself or jointly
between the municipality and one or more other parties);
•
Shopping centres (developed along similar lines):
•
Housing developments (developments financed and managed by the municipality
itself, with the sole purpose of selling or letting such houses for profit).
Policy
Investment Properties shall be accounted for in terms of CRAP 16 and shall not be classified
as PPE for purposes of preparing the municipality’s Statement of Financial Position.
Investment Property shall initially be measured at its cost. Transaction costs shall
be
included in this initial measurement. Where an investment property is acquired at no
cost,
or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at the date of acquisition.
If the Council of the municipality resolves to construct or develop a property for future
use
as an investment property, such property shall in every respect be accounted for as PPE
until it is ready for its intended use, where after it shall be reclassified as an investment
asset.
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After initial recognition, all investment property shall
be measured in terms of the
municipality’s Accounting Policy.

Procedures and Rules
•

The CFO shall ensure that investment assets are
recorded in an Investment
Property register.
The CFO shall ensure the recognition and measurement
of In vestment Property in
terms of GRAP 16.

•

i1tÔGILASSETS

I

General
Biological Assets are living plants and animals such
as trees in a plantation or orchard,
cultivated plants, sheep and cattle. Managed agricul
tural activity such as raising

livestock, forestry, annual or perennial cropping, fish farmin
g that are in the process of
growing, degenerating, regenerating and / or procre
ating which are expected to eventually
result in agricultural produce. Such agricultural produc
e is recognised at the point of
harvest.. Future economic benefits must flow to the munic
ipality from its ownership or
control of the asset.
Point-of-sale costs include commissions to broker
s and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and commodity exchanges, and transfer taxes
and duties. Point-of-sale costs
exclude transport and other costs necessary to get assets
to the market.
Where the municipality is unable to measure the fair value
of biological assets reliably, a
biological asset should be measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Policy
Biological assets, such as livestock and crops, shall
be valued annually at fair value less
estimated point-of-sales costs.

Procedures and Rules
The CFO, in consultation with the Heads
biological assets obtained from a managed
and crops, are valued at 30 June each year
the biological assets concerned.
The CFO shall ensure the recognition and
terms of GRAP 27.

6.9

of Department, shall ensure that all
agricultural activity, such as livestock
by a recognised valuator in the line of
measurement of Biological Assets in

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (GRAP 100)

General
A Discontinued Operation is a component of an entity that
has been disposed of and:
represents a distinguishable activity, group of activities or
geographical area of operations;
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a distinguishable activity, group of activities
or geographical area of operations; or
is a controlled entity acquired exclusively with a view to resale

•
•

Policy
Discontinued operations shall be presented and disclosed in accordance with GRAP 100 and
other related standards and legislation.

Procedures and Rules
• The CFO, in consultation with the Heads of Department, shall ensure that discontinued
operations are appropriately recorded in terms of the municipality’s policies as well as the
relevant GRAP Standards.

[6.10

INVENTORY PROPERTY (GRAP 12)

General
Inventory Property comprises any land or buildings owned or acquired by the municipality
with the intention of selling such property in the ordinary course of business, or any land or
buildings owned or acquired by the municipality with the intention of developing such
property for the purpose of selling it in the ordinary course of business.
Policy
Inventory land and buildings shall be accounted for as inventory, and not included in either
PPE or Investment Property in the municipality’s Statement of Financial Position, Inventory
property shall be valued annually at reporting date at the lower of its carrying value or net
realisable value, except where they are held for:
(a) distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge, or
(b) consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge
or for a nominal charge, then they shall be measured at the lower of cost and
current replacement cost.

Procedures and Rules
•
•

[.i I

The CFO shall ensure that inventory properties are recorded in the Inventory
register.
The CFO shall ensure the recognition and measurement of Inventory Property in
terms of GRAP 12.

MINOR ASSETS (CAPITAL ASSETS BELOW APPROVED THRESHOLD)

General
Minor Assets comprise movable assets not capitalised in terms of the threshold policy of
the municipality. However, these assets must still be controlled, safeguarded and verified
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by the municipality. They are not capitalised for the number of assets compared to their
value does not warrant the complex procedures applicable to asset management, rendering
a manageable asset register by concentrating on what is material and significant to the
municipality’s operation.

Policy
Minor assets shall be expensed in the Statement of Financial Performance and not be
capitalised. However, these assets shall be bar-coded for identification purposes and
recorded at cost in the Minor Asset Inventory Listing. These assets shall not be depreciated
or tested for impairment and shall not generate any further transactions, except in the cases
where losses are recovered by means of insurance claims or recoveries from disciplinary
actions.

Procedures and Rules
The CEO shall ensure that minor assets are recorded in the asset register in the
same manner as other assets, but a separate section of the asset register shall be
maintained for this purpose.
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ACQUISITION OF ASSETS

General
Acquisition of assets refers to the purchase of assets by buying, building (construction), or leasing.
Policy
Should the municipality decide to acquire a Capital asset, the following fundamental
principles should be carefully considered prior to acquisition of such an asset:
•
The purpose for which the asset is required is in keeping with the objectives of the
municipality and will provide significant, direct and tangible benefit to it;
•

The asset fit the definition of a Capital Asset (as defined by the relevant GRAP

•

The asset has been budgeted for;

•

The future annual operations and maintenance needs have been calculated and
have been budgeted for in the operations budget;

Standards)

•

The purchase is absolutely necessary as there is no alternative municipal asset
that could be economically upgraded or adapted:

•

The asset is appropriate to the task or requirement and is cost-effective over the
life of the asset.

•

The asset is compatible with existing equipment and will not result in unwarranted
additional expenditure on other assets or resources;

•

Space and other necessary facilities to accommodate the asset are in place; and

•

The most suitable and appropriate type, brand, model, etc. has been selected.

Procedures and Rules
•
•
•

•

•

The CFO shall ensure that the Supply Chain Management Policy makes provision
for these principles.
The CEO shall ensure that all acquired assets are appropriately insured.
The CFO, in conjunction with the Heads of Departments shall ensure that all
planned moveable asset acquisitions (including delivery), as approved within the
original budget, are done by 31 January each year.
The CFO, in conjunction with the Heads of Departments shall ensure that all
planned moveable asset acquisitions (including delivery), as approved within an
adjustment budget are done by 31 March each year.
The CFO, in conjunction with the Heads of Departments shall ensure that in
addition to the existing Supply Chain Management documentation, all moveable
asset acquisitions are accompanied with the relevant Asset Procurement
documentation, required by Asset Register custodians, prior to the approval of
these orders.
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CREATION OF NEW INFRASTRUCTURE ASSETS

General
Creation of new infrastructure assets refers to the purchase and / or construction of totally
new assets that has not been in the control or ownership of the municipality in the past.
Policy
The cost of all new infrastructure facilities (not additions to or maintenance of existing
infrastructure assets) shall be allocated to the separate assets making up such a facility
and values may be used as a basis for splitting up construction costs of new infrastructure
into the component parts, each of which have an appropriate useful life.
Work in progress shall be flagged as such in the asset register until such time that the facility
is completed. Depreciation will commence when the construction of the asset is finalised
and the asset is in the condition necessary for to operate in the manner intended by
management.
Each part of an item of Infrastructure with a cost that is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item shall be depreciated separately.
Procedures and Rules
The Heads of Department shall ensure that a form is completed and submitted to
the Asset Register Custodian that includes the details of the work in progress
relating to the work in progress.
The Heads of Department shall notify the Asset Register Custodian when the
works have been completed and the assets can be recognised.
The Heads of Department shall guide the service provider to submit invoices of
work in progress as per the components and classification of assets as in the asset
register.

[ 7.3

SELF-CONSTRUCTED ASSETS

General
Self-constructed assets relate to all assets constructed by the municipality itself or another
party on instructions from the municipality.
Policy
All assets that can be classified as assets and that are constructed by the municipality
should be recorded in the asset register and depreciated over its estimated useful life for
that category of asset. Work in progress shall be flagged as such in the asset register until
such time that the facility is completed. Depreciation will commence when the construction
of the asset is finalised and the asset is in the condition necessary for to operate in the
manner intended by management.

Financial Year: 202012021
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Procedures and Rules
•

Heads of Department shall ensure that proper records of staff time, transport and
material costs are kept such that all costs associated with the construction of these
assets are completely and accurately accounted for.
Heads of Department shall open a job card for each infrastructure project
constructed by the municipality.
On completion of the infrastructure project, the Heads of Department shall ensure
that all costs (both direct and indirect) associated with the construction of the
assets be summed and be capitalised to the assets that make up the project.

•
•

7.4

DONATED ASSETS

General
A donated asset is an item that has been given to the municipality by a third party in
government or outside government without paying or actual or implied exchange.

Policy
Donated assets should be valued at fair value, reflected in the asset register, and
depreciated as normal assets.

Procedures and Rules
•
•

•
•
•

All donated assets must be approved by the Municipal Manager and ratified by
Council prior to acceptance.
Management of the municipality must evaluate the future operational costs of
donated assets and the effect it might have on future tariffs and taxes, before a
donated asset is accepted by the municipality.
The conditions associated with the donation must be agreed upon and signed by
the Municipal Manager.
Municipal officers must first get approval from the Municipal Manager prior to
accepting any donation.
The Asset Register custodian must be informed in writing of all donated assets
approved and accepted by the Municipal Manager.

Policy Title; Asset Management Policy
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USEFULLIFEOFASSETS

General
Useful Life of assets is defined in paragraph 2 of the Policy and is basically the period or
number of production units for which an asset cart be used economically by the municipality
.
National Treasury (NT) published its Local Government Asset Management Guideline
in
August 2008 that includes directives for useful lives of assets, but municipalities must use
their own judgement based on operational experience and in consultation with specialists
where necessary in determining the useful lives for the particular classes of assets. The
calculation of useful life is based on a particular level of planned maintenance.

Policy
The remaining useful life of assets shall be reviewed annually. Changes emanating from
such reviews should be accounted for as a change in accounting estimates in terms of
GRAP 3.

Procedures and Rules
•

•
•

Every Head of Department must determine the reasonable remaining useful lives
of the assets under their control. Changes in remaining useful lives must be
approved by the CEO or Senior Manager: Budget and Treasury Office
The CEO shall ensure that remaining useful lives, and changes thereof, are
properly recorded and accounted for in the asset register and the general ledger.
The CEO shall ensure that the Remaining Useful Life of an asset shall be reviewed
at each reporting date.

RESIDUAL VALUE OF ASSETS
General
The Residual Value of an asset is the estimated amount that the municipality would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset
were already of the age and in the condition expected at the end of its useful life.

Policy
Residual values should be determined upon the initial recognition (capture) of assets.
However, this will only be applicable to assets that are normally disposed of by selling them
once the municipality does not have a need for such assets anymore, e.g. motor vehicles.
In practise, the residual value of an asset is often insignificant and therefore immaterial in
the calculation of the depreciable amount.
The residual value of assets shall be reviewed annually at reporting date. Changes in
depreciation charges emanating from such reviews should be accounted for as a change
in accounting estimates in terms of GRAP 3.
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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Procedures and Rules
•
•
•

Every Head of Department must determine the reasonable residual values of the
assets under their control.
The CFO shall ensure that residual values, and changes thereof, are properly
recorded and accounted for in the asset register and the general ledger.
The CFO shall ensure that the residual value of an asset shall be reviewed at each
reporting date.
DEPRECIATION OF ASSETS

General
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over
its
useful life. Depreciation therefore recognises the gradual exhaustion of the asset’s service
capacity. The depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted
for
cost in the financial statements, less its residual value.
The depreciation method used must reflect the pattern in which economic benefits
or
service potential of a Capital Asset is consumed by the municipality. The following are the
allowed alternative depreciation methods that can be applied by the municipality:
8.
Straight-line;
Diminishing Balance; and
9.
10.
Sum of the Units.
Policy
All assets, except land and heritage assets, shall be depreciated over their reasonable
useful lives. The residual value and the useful life of an asset shall be reviewed at each
reporting date. The depreciation method applied must be reviewed at each reporting date.
Reasonable budgetary provisions shall be made annually for the depreciation of all
applicable assets controlled or used by the municipality, or expected to be so controlled
or
used during the ensuing financial year.
Depreciation shall take the form of an expense both calculated and debited on a monthly
basis against the appropriate line item in the department or vote in which the asset is used
or consumed. Depreciation of an asset should begin when the asset is ready to be used,
i.e. the asset is in the location and condition necessary for it to be able to operate in the
manner it is intended by management. Depreciation of an asset ceases when the asset
is
derecognized. Therefore, depreciation does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is
retired from active use and held for disposal unless the asset is fully depreciated. However,
under certain methods of depreciation the depreciation charge can be zero while there is
no production.
In the case of intangible assets being included as assets, the procedures to be followed in
accounting and budgeting for the amortisation of intangible assets shall be identical to those
applying to the depreciation of other assets.
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Procedures and Rules

•

•

•

•

Every Head of Department must determine the reasonable useful life of the asset
classifications under their control. Deviations from the standards of useful life must
be motivated in writing to the Municipal Manager and provided to the CFO.
In the case of an asset which is not listed in the asset classification list, the Head
of Department shall determine a useful operating life, in consultation with the CFO,
and shall be guided in determining such useful life by the likely pattern in which the
asset’s economic benefits or service potential will be consumed.
Alternative depreciation methods may be used in exceptional cases, if motivated
by the Head of Department controlling the asset to the Municipal Manager and in
consultation with the CFO. The Head of Department must then provide the CFQ
with sufficient statistical information to make estimates of depreciation expenses
for each financial year.
The CFO shall ensure that depreciation shall be up to date on a monthly basis
and be reconciled between the asset register and the general ledger.
The CFO shall ensure that the residual value, useful life and depreciation method
of an asset shall be reviewed at each reporting date.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
General
Impairment is the loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over
and above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits or
service potential through depreciation. The following serve as examples of impairment
indicators:
•
Significant decline in market value:
•
Carrying amount of an asset far exceeds the recoverable amount or market value;
•
There is evidence of obsolescence (or physical damage);
•
The deterioration of economic performance of the asset concerned; and
•
The loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and
above the systematic recognition of the loss of the asset’s future economic benefits
or service potential through depreciation (such as through inadequate
maintenance).
The impairment amount is calculated as the difference between the carrying value and the
recoverable se,vice value. The recoverable service value is the higher of the asset’s value
in use or its net selling price. Where the recoverable service amount is less than the
carrying amount, the carrying amount should be reduced to the recoverable service amount
by way of an impairment loss. The impairment loss should be recognised as an expense
when incurred unless the asset is carried at revalued amount.
If the asset is carried at a revalued amount (in the case of investment property, infrastructure
and community assets) the impairment should be recorded as a decrease in the revaluation
reserve. Where immovable property, plant and equipment surveys are conducted, the
recoverable service value is determined using the depreciated replacement costs method
by assessing the remaining useful life.
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Policy
Assets shall be reviewed annually for all assets with impairment indicators.
Impairment of
assets shall be recognised as an expense, unless it reverses a previous
revaluation in
which case it should be charged to the Revaluation Surplus. The
reversal of previous
impairment losses recognised as an expense, is recognised as an income.
Procedures and Rules
•
•

_8.5

The CFO, in consultation with the Heads of Department must ensure that
regular
impairment testing and surveys are performed.
The CFO shall ensure that impairment losses, or reversals thereof, are
properly
recorded and accounted for in the asset register and the general ledger.

MAINTENANCE OF ASSETS AND THE ASSET REGISTER

General
Maintenance refers to all actions necessary for retaining an asset as near
as practicable to
its original condition in order for it to achieve its expected useful life,
but excluding
rehabilitation or renewal. This includes all types of maintenance
corrective and
preventative maintenance.
—

For linear infrastructure assets, such as pipes and roads, the following
test is applied to
differentiate between maintenance and renewal when partial sections of linear
assets are
renewed:
•
If a future renewal of the entire pipe will include the renewal of the partial
section
that is now renewed, then the renewal of the partial section is treated
as
maintenance.
•
If a future renewal of the entire pipe will retain the partial section that
is now
renewed, then the renewal of the partial section is treated as renewal and
the pipe
is split into two separate assets.
The splitting of linear infrastructure has a data management implication, but it is
the easiest
method that maintains the data integrity over time.
Maintenance analysis is an essential function of infrastructure management
to ensure costeffective and sustainable service delivery. In order to analyse maintenance
data,
maintenance actions undertaken against individual infrastructure assets
should be
recorded against such assets.
Policy
Maintenance actions performed on Infrastructure assets shall be recorded against
the
individual assets that are individually identified in the asset register.
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Procedures and Rules
All Heads of Department responsible for the control and utilisation of infrastructure
assets shall monitor maintenance actions and budget for the operation and
maintenance needs of each asset or class of assets under their control. Operating
expenses must include all labourand material costs for the repair and maintenance
of the assets. This includes both contracted services and services performed by
employees.
Heads of Department shall ensure that the operating expenses are expended
against the operating budget and not the capital budget.
The Heads of Department shall report to the Council annually of the extent to which
the approved maintenance plan has been complied with and the extent of deferred
maintenance.
The Heads of Department shall report to the Council annually on the likely effects
that maintenance budgetary constraints may have on the useful operating life of
the infrastructure asset classes;
The Heads of Department shall ensure that maintenance plans make provision for
the additional maintenance burden of future infrastructure to be acquired.

6

RENEWAL OF ASSETS

General
Asset Renewal is restoration of the service potential of the asset Asset renewal is required
to sustain service provision from infrastructure beyond the initial or original life of the asset.
If the service provided by the asset is still required at the end of its useful life, the asset
must be renewed. However if the service is no longer required, the asset should not be
renewed.
Asset renewal projections are generally based on forecast renewal by
replacement, refurbishment, rehabilitation or reconstruction of assets to maintain desired
service levels.

Policy
Assets renewal shall be accounted for against the specific asset. The renewal value shall
be capitalised against the asset and the expected life of the asset adjusted to reflect the
new asset life.

Procedures and Rules
The CFO, in consultation with Heads of Department, must ensure that processes
are in place to capture renewals data against specific assets and to capitalise it
correctly.
Heads of Department shall ensure that renewals expenditure are correctly
budgeted for in the capital budget and expensed against this budget.
Heads of Department must ensure that renewals expenditure data are correctly
captured against the assets and the expected lives adjusted.
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REPLACEMENT OF ASSETS

General
This paragraph deals with the complete replacement of an asset that has reached the end
of its useful life so as to provide a similar or agreed alternative level of service.

Policy
Assets that are replaced shall be written off at their carrying value. The replacement asset
shall be accounted for as a separate new asset. All costs incurred to replace the asset
shall be capitalised against the new asset.

Procedures and Rules
•

•

The CFO, in consultation with Heads of Department, must ensure that processes
are in place to capture replacement data against specific assets and to capitalise
it correctly.
Heads of Department shall ensure that replacement expenditure are correctly
budgeted for in the capital budget and expensed against this budget.
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TRANSFEROFASSETS

9.1
General

The processes and rules for the transfer of a capital asset to another municipality
, municipal
entity or national/provincial organ of state are governed by an MFMA regulation
namely “the
Local Government: Municipal Asset Transfer Regulations”.
Transfer of assets or inventory items refers to the internal transfe
r of assets within the
municipality or from the municipality to another entity. Procedures need
to be in place to
ensure that the Asset Control Department can keep track of all assets
and ensure that the
fixed asset register is updated with all changes in asset locations. These
procedures must
be followed and apply to all transfers of assets from:
•
One Department to another Department;
•
One location to another within the same department;
•
One building to another; and
•
One entity to another.
Policy
The transfer of assets shall be controlled by a transfer process and the asset
register shall
be updated.
Procedures and Rules
•
•
•
•

9.2

The Head of Department must ensure that all asset transfer information is
passed
to the Asset Control Officer.
The CFO must ensure that a process is in place to capture and record
asset
transfer data.
Staff of the Municipality, except for duly authorised staff, shall not move
rented
assets, such as photocopy machines.
Only authorised IT officials will be allowed to transfer any IT network
equipment.The Head of a Department must immediately report to the
CFO of any
damages caused to an asset and will be held responsible to investigate the
cause
or nature of such damage.

EXCHANGE OF ASSETS

General
According to GRAP 17 an item of PPE may be acquired in exchange for a
non-monetary
asset or assets, or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets. The
cost of such
an item of property, plant and equipment is measured at fair value unless:
•
the exchange transaction lacks commercial substance; or
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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the fair value of neither the asset received nor the asset given up is reliably
measurable.

If the acquired item is not measured at fair value, its cost is measured at the carrying amount
of the asset given up.
Policy
The cost of assets acquired in exchange for another asset shall be measured at the fair
value of the asset received, which is equivalent to the fair value of the asset given up,
adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred.
Procedures and Rules
•

•

9.3

An item of PPE may be acquired in exchange for a similar asset that has a similar
use in the same line of operations and which has a similar fair value or may be
sold in exchange for an equity interest in a similar asset. No gain or loss is
recognised in both cases.
The CFO shall approve all asset exchanges in consultation with the relevant Head
of Department.
ALIENATION / DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

General
Alienation! Disposal (alienation) is the process of disowning redundant and obsolete assets
by transferring ownership or title to another owner, which is external to the municipality.
The MFMA (section 14 and 90) and the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulation
no. 27636 have specific requirements regarding the disposal of capital assets. Specifically:
• A municipality may not
permanently dispose of a capital asset needed to provide
the minimum level of basic municipal services”
• Where a municipal council has decided that a specific asset is not needed to provide
the minimum level of basic services, a transfer of ownership of an asset must be
fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and consistent with the municipalitys supply
chain management policy.
Policy
There are various methods of disposal. Different disposal methods will be needed for
different types of assets. Before deciding on a particular disposal method, the following
should be considered:
•
The nature of the asset
•
The potential market value
•
Other intrinsic value of the asset
•
Its location
Its volume
Its trade-in price
Its ability to support wider Government programmes;
Environmental considerations
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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Market conditions
The asset’s life

Appropriate means of disposal may include:
•
Public auction
•
Public tender
•
Transfer to another institution
•
Sale to another institution
•
Letting to another institution
•
Trade-in
•
Controlled dumping (for items that have low value or are
unhygienic)
Alienated assets shall be written-off in the asset register.
Procedures and Rules
•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•

•
•

•

Every Head of Department shall report in writing to the
CFO on 30 April of each
financial year on all assets which they wish to alienate.
The CFO shall consolidate the requests received from
the various departments,
and shall promptly report the consolidated information
to the Municipal Manager
of the municipality, recommending the process of alienat
ion to be adopted.
The Council shall delegate to the Municipal Manager the
authority to approve the
alienation of any asset with a carrying value less than R5
000 (five thousand rand).
The Council shall ensure that the alienation of any asset
with a carrying value
equal to or in excess of R5 000 (five thousand rand)
takes place in compliance
with Section 14 of the Municipal Finance Management
Act, 2004. The Act states
that the municipality may not alienate any capital asset
required to provide a
minimum level of service. The municipality may alienat
e any other capital asset,
provided the Council has considered the fair market value
and the economic and
community value to be received in exchange for the asset.
Selling: Assets to be sold shall be sold in terms of paragr
aph 9.4 below.
Donations: Donations may be considered as a metho
d of alienation, but such
requests must be motivated to the Municipal Manag
er for approval.
Destruction: Assets that are hazardous or need to be destroy
ed must be identified
for tenders or quotations by professional disposal agenci
es.
Scrapping: Scrapping of assets that cannot be alienat
ed otherwise may be
considered as a method of alienation, but such reques
ts must be motivated to the
Municipal Manager.
Once the assets are alienated, the CFO shall write-off the
relevant assets in the
asset register.
The letting of immovable property, excluding municipal
housing for officials and
political office bearers, must be done at market-related
tariffs, unless the relevant
treasury approves otherwise. No municipal property may
be let free of charge
without the prior approval of the relevant treasury.
The CFO must review, at least annually when finalisi
ng the budget, all fees,
charges, rates, tariffs or scales of fees or other charges
relating to the letting of
municipal property to ensure sound financial planning and
management.
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SELLING OF ASSETS

9.4
General

Selling of assets refers to the public sale of municipal assets approved for alienation.
Policy
All assets earmarked for sale must be sold by public auction or tender and the following
steps shall be followed:
•
A notice of the intention of the municipality to sell the asset shall be published in a
local newspaper;
•
The municipality shall appoint an independent appraiser to fix a minimum selling
price;
•
In the case of a public auction, the municipality shall appoint an independent
auctioneer to conduct the auction; and
•
In the case of a tender, the prescribed tender procedures of the municipality shall
be followed.
Sold assets shall be written-off in the asset register.
Procedures
•

A request for assets to be sold must be submitted to the Municipal Manager and
approved by Council. The request must be accompanied by a list of assets to be
sold and the reasons for sale as described in paragraph 9.3 above.

•

Auctioneers may be engaged either on a quotation basis or by tender depending
on the goods to be alienated.
Bidding: Bidders are afforded the opportunity to make an offer on identifiable
items. Bids are compared and the highest bidder is awarded the bid.
Tenders: Tenders shall be invited according to the municipality’s tender
procedures.
Once the assets are sold, the CEO shall write-off the relevant assets in the asset
register.
If the proceeds of the sales are less than the carrying value recorded in the asset
register, such difference shall be recognised as a loss for the department or vote
concerned in the Statement of Financial Performance. If the proceeds of the sales,
on the other hand, are more than the carrying value of the asset concerned, the
difference shall be recognised as a gain for the department or vote concerned in
the statement of financial performance.
Transfer of assets to other municipalities, municipal entities (whether or not under
the municipality’s sole or partial control) or other organs of state shall take place in
accordance with the above procedures, except that the process of alienation shall
be by private treaty.

•
•
•
•

•
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WRITING-OFF OF ASSETS

9.5
General

The write-off of assets is the process to permanently remove the assets from the asset
register. Assets can be written-off after approval of the Municipal Manager of a report
indicating that:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The useful life of the asset has expired;
The asset has been destroyed;
The asset is outdated;
The asset has no further useful life;
The asset does not exist anymore;
The asset has been sold; and
Acceptable reasons have been furnished leading to the circumstances set out
above.

Policy
The only reasons for writing off assets, other than the sale of such assets during the process
of alienation, shall be the loss, theft, destruction, material impairment, or decommissioning
of the asset in question.

Procedures and Rules
•

•

•

•

Every Head of Department shall report to the CFO on 30 April of each financial
year on any assets which such Head of Department wishes to have written-off,
stating in full the reason for such recommendation. The CFO shall consolidate all
such reports, and shall promptly submit a recommendation to the Municipal
Manager on the assets to be written off.
An asset, even though fully depreciated, shall be written-off only on the
recommendation of the Head of Department controlling or using the asset
concerned, and with the approval of the Municipal Manager.
In every instance where a not fully depreciated asset is written off with no proceeds
for the asset being obtained, the CFO shall immediately debit to such department
or vote the full carrying value of the asset concerned as impairment expenses.
Assets that are replaced should be written-off and removed from the asset register.
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PHYSICAL CONTROL/VERIFICATION

10.1
General

Movable assets require physical control and verification of existence.
Policy
All movable assets shall be actively controlled, including an annual verification process.
Procedures and Rules
•
•

•
•
•

•

•

•

•

•

All movable assets that are supposed to be bar-coded must have a visible bar code
in a universal manner as determined by the Municipal Manager.
Annual verification of movable assets should be conducted under the direction of
an individual who neither has responsibility for the custody of fixed assets nor
maintains asset records. This procedure would enable the municipality to identify
discrepancies and dispositions and properly investigate and record the
transactions.
Procedures should be established to adequately identify assets owned by others
or subject to reclamation by donors.
The CFO shall co-ordinate and control regular physical checks, and all
discrepancies are to be reported immediately to the CFO.
Registers must be kept for those assets allocated to staff members. The
individuals are responsible and accountable for the assets under their control.
These registers should be updated when the assets are moved to different
locations or allocated to a different staff member in order to facilitate control and
physical verification.
Where a change in person in direct control of equipment takes place, a handingover certificate shall be completed and a copy retained for record purposes. If
surpluses or deficiencies are found, the certificates shall be dealt with as with
stock-taking reports.
If for any reason the person from whom the asset is being taken over is not
available, the his/her supervisor and/or the asset controller should assist the
person taking over with the checking of the equipment and the certification of any
discrepancies.
In case of failure to comply with the requirements of a handing-over certificate, the
person taking over shall be liable for any shortages, unless it can be established
that the shortages existed prior to their taking over.
Any losses of and damage to equipment, excluding discrepancies at stocktaking
of losses resulting from normal handing or reasonable wear and tear, shall be
reported to the CFO.
Independent checks from asset records shall be conducted to ensure that the
assets physically exist, especially those that could be disposed of without a
noticeable effect on operations.

Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft Review, submitted to Council on 31/3/2020 with Draft Budget per Item 0/2/172/03/20

237

42

Sitou Municipality
Asset Management Pokcy

Yearly physical inspections of assets shall be performed to identify items which
are damaged, not in use or are obsolete due to changed circumstances, to ensure
that they are appropriately repaired, written off or disposed off.

INSURANCE OF ASSETS

110.2
General

Insurance provides selected coverage for the accidental loss of the asset value. Generally,
government infrastructure is not insured against disasters because relief is provided from
the Disaster Fund through National Treasury.

Policy
Assets that are material in value and substance shall be insured at least against destruction,
fire and theft. All municipal buildings shall be insured at least against fire and allied perils.

Procedures and Rules
The Heads of Department shall annually submit a list of insurable asset types to
the Insurance Section for approval by the CFO. The CFO shall ensure that the
insurable asset types are insured in accordance with council’s Insurance Policy.

SAFEKEEPING OF ASSETS

10.3
General

Asset safekeeping is the protection of assets from damage, theft, and safety risks.

Policy
Directives for the safekeeping of assets shall be developed and the safekeeping of assets
shall be actively undertaken.

Procedures and Rules
•
•
•
•

•

•

The Municipal Manager must issue directives that detail the safekeeping of assets.
The Heads of Department must ensure that safekeeping directives are adhered to.
Malicious damage, theft, and break-ins must be reported to the Municipal Manager
or delegated person within 2 working days of its occurrence or awareness.
Any costs linked to damages or theft of assets due to the negligence of the
responsible official/asset custodian, will be recovered from that official once the
negligence had been confirmed by the relevant authority (HoD), after due
processes have been followed.
Once negligence has been confirmed, and where the insurance claim has been
approved by the insurer, the excess amount is the amount payable by the
responsible official.
Once negligence has been confirmed, and where the insurance claim is rejected
by the insurer, the official will be liable for the total costs incurred by council.
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The Municipal Manager must report criminal activities to the South African
Police
Service.
If any biological asset is lost, stolen or destroyed, the matter shall
be reported in
writing by the Head of Department concerned in exactly the same
manner as
though the asset were an ordinary asset.
Loss of assets identified during the physical verification process, and not
reported
to the relevant stakeholders, will have to be investigated by each respective
Head
of Department and reported to the CFO.
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CAPITAL REPLACEMENT RESERVE_(CRR)

General
The Capital Replacement Reserve is a reserve account to set aside funds for
the financing
of property, plant and equipment. The CRR is therefore an asset financing source
that
represents an alternative to the other funding sources available to the municipality
, namely
external loans (interest bearing borrowings) and government grants & subsidies.
The value
of this reserve is not represented by any values of assets under the municipality
’s control
and shall preferably be cash-backed.
Policy
It is the policy of Council to annually make contributions to the CRR to ensure that
the CRR
remains a capital funding source for the future. The municipality will determine
its future
capital financing requirements and transfer sufficient cash to its CRR in terms of
this
determination. The Integrated Development Plan, the municipality’s ability to raise
external
finance and the amount of government grants and subsidies that will be received
in future
will need to be taken into account in determining the amount that must be transferred
to the
CRR.
Whenever an asset is sold by the municipality, the proceeds on the sale of the assets
must
be transferred from the Accumulated Surplus to the CRR via the Statement of Changes
in
Net Assets.
All proceeds on the sale of land will be transferred from the Accumulated Surplus
to the
CRR via the Statement of Changes in Net Assets.
Whenever an asset is purchased out of the CRR an amount equal to the cost price
of the
asset purchased, is transferred from the CRR into accumulated surplus on the
Statement
of Changes in Net Assets.
Procedures and Rules
•
•
•
•
•
•

The CFO is responsible for creating and maintaining the CRR.
The CFO must ensure the annual transfers to the CRR from the municipality
’s
appropriation account.
The CFO must ensure the transfers from the CRR to the municipality’s
appropriation account in respect of assets purchased.
The balance on the CRR must always be represented by cash, which must be held
in a separately identifiable bank or investment account.
The CRR may only be utilised for the purpose of purchasing items of PPE for the
municipality and may not be used for the maintenance of these items.
Interest earned on the CRR investments is recorded as interest earned in the
Statement of Financial Performance and must then be transferred to the CRR
in
the Statement of Changes in Net Assets.
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FUNDING SOURCES

General
The Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA) provides guidelines on how to utilise
funds in financing assets (Section 19 of MFMA). The municipality shall utilise any of the
following sources to acquire and / or purchase assets:
•
Grants, Subsidies and Public Contributions;
•
Revenue Contributions;
•
Capital Replacement Reserve;
•
Cash Surplus; and Jar
•
Extemal I Donor Funds.
Policy
The annual capital budget must be funded and the sources of finance must be disclosed as part
of the Council’s budget.
Procedures and Rules
•
•

11.3

The CFO will ensure that the capital budget is financed and that the finance sources
have been identified and confirmed in writing.
The CFO will ensure that all legislation and prescripts regarding the various funding
sources be adhered too.

DISASTER

General
In terms of the Disaster Management Act, 2002, Disaster means a progressive or sudden,
widespread or localised, natural or human caused occurrence which causes or threatens
to cause:
•
death, injury or disease;
•
damage to property, infrastructure or the environment; or
•
disruption of life of community; and
•
is of a magnitude that exceeds the ability of those affected by the disaster to cope with
its effects using only their own resources.
—

In terms Section 56 (b) of the Disaster Management Act, 2002 the cost
replacing public sector infrastructure should be borne by the organ of state
the maintenance of such infrastructure. The National, Provincial and Local
may contribute financially to response efforts and post
disaster
rehabilitation.
—

of repairing or
responsible for
organs of state
recovery and

Policy
The Municipality will correspond with the Eden District Municipality to gain funds for
repairing assets damaged in disaster events.
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Procedures and Rules
The municipality must adhere to the disaster management plan for prevention and
mitigation of disaster in order to be able to attract the disaster management
contribution during or after disaster.
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LEGAL FRAMEWORK

A municipality exercises its legislative and executive authority by, among others, developing
and adopting policies, plans, strategies and programmes. including setting targets for
delivery (section 11(3) of the MSA).
Participation by the local community in the affairs of the municipality must take place
through, among others, generally applying the provisions for participation as provided for in
the MSA (section 17(1)of the MSA).
A municipality must communicate to its community information concerning, among others,
municipal governance, management and development (section 18(1) of the MSA).
As head of administration the Municipal Manager is, subject to the policy directions of the
municipal council, responsible and accountable for, among others, the following:
•
The management of the provision of services to the local community in a
sustainable and equitable manner;
•
Advising the political stwctures and political office bearers of the municipality
(section 55(1) of the MSA); and
•
Providing guidance and advice on compliance with the MFMA to the political
structures, political office-bearers and officials of the municipality (section 60 of the
MFMA).
As accounting officer of the municipality the Municipal Manager is responsible and
accountable for, among others, all assets of the municipality (section 55(2) of the MSA).
The Municipal Manager must take all reasonable steps to ensure, among others, that the
resources of the municipality are used effectively, efficiently and economically (section 62(1)
of the MFMA).

f 12.2

RATIONALE FOR MANAGEMENT OF ASSETS

The South African Constitution requires municipalities to strive, within their financial and
administrative capacity, to achieve the following objectives:
•
Providing democratic and accountable government for local communities;
•
Ensuring the provision of services to communities in a sustainable manner;
•
Promoting social and economic development;
•
Promoting a safe and healthy environment; and
•
Encouraging the involvement of communities and community organisations in
matters of local government.
In temis of the MFMA, the accounting officer is responsible for managing the assets and
liabilities of the municipality, including the safeguarding and maintenance of its assets.
The MFMA further requires the accounting officer to ensure that:
•
The municipality has and maintains a management, accounting and information
system that accounts for its assets and liabilities;
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
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The municipality’s assets are valued in accordance with standards
of generally
recognised accounting practice; and
The municipality has and maintains a system of internal control
of assets and
liabilities.

The OHSA requires the municipality to provide and maintain a safe and
healthy working
environment, and in particular, to keep its infrastructure assets safe.

According to the International Infrastructure Management Manual
(11MM), the goal of
infrastructure asset management is to meet a required level of service,
in the most costeffective manner, through the management of assets for present and future
customers. The
core principles of infrastructure asset management are:
•
Taking a life-cycle approach;
•
Developing cost-effective management strategies for the long-term:
•
Providing a defined level of service and monitoring performance;
•
Understanding and meeting the impact of growth through demand management
and infrastructure investment;
•
Managing risks associated with asset failures;
•
Sustainable use of physical resources; and
•
Continuous improvement in asset management practices.

POLICY OBJECTIVE
The municipality is committed to providing municipal services for which the
municipality is
responsible, in a transparent, accountable and sustainable manner and in
accordance with
sound infrastructure management principles.

POLICY PRINCIPLES
The following policy principles serve as a framework for the achievement
of the policy
objective stated above:

12.5.1

Effective Governance

The municipality strives to apply effective governance systems to provide
for consistent
asset management and maintenance planning in adherence to and compliance
with all
applicable legislation to ensure that asset management is conducted
properly, and
municipal services are provided as expected. To this end, the municipality
will:
•
Adhere to all constitutional, safety, health, systems, financial and asset-related
legislation;
•
Regularly review and update amendments to the above legislation;
•
Review and update its current policies and by-laws to ensure compliance with
the
requirements of prevailing legislation; and
•
Effectively apply legislation for the benefit of the community.
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Sustainable Service Delivery

The municipality strives to provide to its customers services that are technically,
environmentally and financially sustainable. To this end, the municipality will:
•
Identify levels and standards of service that conform with statutory requirements
and rules for their application based on the long-term affordability to the
municipality;
•
Identify technical and functional performance criteria and measures, and establish
a commensurate monitoring and evaluation system;
•
Identify current and future demand for services, and demand management
strategies;
•
Set time-based targets for service delivery that reflect the need to newly construct,
upgrade, renew, and dispose assets, where applicable in line with national targets;
•
Apply a risk management process to identify service delivery risks at asset level
and appropriate responses;
•
Prepare and adopt an immovable (infrastructure) asset management strategy and
immovable (infrastructure) asset management plans to support the achievement of
the required performance;
•
Prepare and adopt an immovable (infrastructure) asset maintenance strategy and
immovable (infrastructure) asset maintenance plans to execute maintenance
timeously;
•
Allocate budgets based on long-term (20 year) financial forecasts that take
cognisance of the full life-cycle needs of existing and future assets and the risks to
achieving the adopted performance targets; and
•
Implement its Tariff and Credit Control and Debt Collection Policies to sustain and
protect the affordability of services by the community.
12.5.3

Social and Economic Development

The municipality strives to promote social and economic development in its municipal area
by means of delivering municipal services in a manner that meet the needs of the various
customer user-groups in the community. To this end, the municipality will:
Regularly review its understanding of customer needs and expectations through
effective consultation processes covering all service areas;
•
Implement changes to services in response to changing customer needs and
expectations where appropriate;
•
Foster the appropriate use of services through the provision of clear and
appropriate information,
•
Ensure services are managed to deliver the agreed levels and standards: and
•
Create job opportunities and promote skills development in support of the national
EPWP.
12.5.4

Custodianship

The municipality strives to be a responsible custodian and guardian of the community’s
assets for current and future generations. To this end, the municipality will:
o
Establish a spatial development framework that takes cognisance of the
affordability to the municipality of various development scenarios;
•
Establish appropriate development control measures including community
information;
Policy Title: Asset Management Policy
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Cultivate an attitude of responsible utilisation and maintenance of its assets, in
partnership with the community;
Ensure that heritage resources are identified and protected; and
Ensure a long-term view and life-cycle costs are taken into account in immovable
asset management decisions.
Transparency

The municipality strives to manage its immovable assets in a manner that is transparent to
all its customers, both now and in the future. To this end, the municipality will:
•
Develop and maintain a culture of regular consultation with the community with
regard to its management of immovable assets in support of service delivery;
•
Clearly communicate its service delivery plan and actual performance through its
Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP);
•
Avail asset management information on a ward basis; and
•
Continuously develop the skills of councillors and officials to effectively
communicate with the community with regard to service levels and standards.
12.5.6

Cost-effectiveness and Efficiency

The municipality strives to manage its immovable assets in an efficient and effective
manner. To this end, the municipality will:
•
Assess life-cycle options for proposed new immovable assets;
•
Regularly review the actual extent, nature, utilisation, criticality, performance and
condition of immovable assets to optimise planning and implementation works;
•
Assess and implement the most appropriate maintenance of infrastructure assets
to achieve the required network performance standards and to achieve the
expected useful life of immovable assets;
•
Ensure the proper utilisation and maintenance of existing assets;
•
Establish and implement demand management plans;
•
Timeously renew immovable assets based on capacity, performance, risk
exposure, and cost;
•
Timeously dispose of immovable assets that are no longer in use;
•
Establish documented processes, systems and data to support effective life-cycle
immovable asset management;
•
Strive to establish a staff contingent with the required skills and capacity, and
procure external support as necessary; and
•
Conduct annual assessments to support continuous improvement of immovable
asset management practice.
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a esmm

Commented [WBZ): ANNEXURES B (ASSET
CLASSIFICATION)&C(IMPROVEMENT PLAN) WAS
REMOVED DURING ThE 2016 POLICY REVIEW.

!J

.

,‘,

FOR ILLUSTRATIVE AND DISCUSSION PURPOSES, IT
WAS INCLUDED WITH THE ITEM THAT SERVED BEFORE
COUNCIL. HOWEVER, WITh TABLING THE POLICY
DURING 2017, ThESE ANNEXURES WERE NOT
REMOVED, HENCE
THE ABOVE ANNEXURES WERE REPLACED WITH THE
ASSET UPDATE STRATEGY, AS REFERRED TO ABOVE.
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ANNEXURE A
ABBREVIAIIONS
AM
AMS
AR
CEO
CRR
DM
EPWP
GAMAP
GIS
GRAP
HR
lAM
lAMP
IAR
lAS
IDP
11MM
LM
MFMA
MSA
NT
O&M
OAG
PPE
SCM

Asset Management
Asset Management System
Asset Register
Chief Financial Officer
Capital Replacement Reserve
District Municipality
Expanded Public Work Program
Generally Accepted Municipal Accounting Practice
Geographical Information System
Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
Human Resource
Infrastructure Asset Management
Infrastructure Asset Management Plan
Infrastructure Asset Register
International Accounting Standards
Integrated Development Plan
International Infrastructure Management Manual
Local Municipality
Municipal Finance Management Act
Municipal Services Act
National Treasury
Operation and Maintenance
Office of the Accountant General
Property, Plant and Equipment
Supply Chain Management
V
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BITOU LOCAL MUNICIPALITY
PREAMBLE
WHEREAS section 3 of the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (No of 2004)
6
(Herein after called “The Act)
determines that a municipality must adopt a rates policy in accordance to the determinatio
n of the
Act and,
In terms of section 229 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (no. 106 of 1996),
a municipality may impose rates on property and;
In terms of the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (no 6 of 2004)
a
municipality in accordance with

—

(a) section 2(1) may levy a rate on property in its area: and
(b) section 2 (3) must exercise its powers to levy a rate on property subject to
(i)

Section 229 and any other applicable provisions of the Constitution;

(ii)

The provisions of the Property Rates Act; and;

(iii)

The Rates Policy and;

In terms in terms of section 4 (1) (c) of the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act, 2000
(no 32 of 2000), the municipality has the right to finance the affairs of the municipality
by
imposing, inter a/ia, rates on property and;
In terms of section 62 (1) (f) (ü) of the Local Government: Municipal Finance Management
Act, 2003 (no 56 of 2003) the municipal manager must ensure that the municipality has and
implements a rates policy.
NOW THEREFORE the following draft policy on the levying of property rates is accepted.
1.

OBJECTIVES:

In developing and adopting this rates policy the council has sought to give effect to the sentiments
expressed in the preamble of the Property Rates Act, namely that:
the Constitution enjoins local government to be developmental in nature, in addressing the
ser.nce delivery pnonties of our country and promoting the economic and financial viability

—
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•

there is a need to provide local government with access to a sufficient and buoyant source
of revenue necessary to fulfil its developmental responsibilities:

•

revenues derived from property rates represent a critical source of income for
municipalities to achieve their constitutional objectives, especially in areas neglected in
the past because of racially discriminatory legislation and practices: and:

•

it is essential that municipalities exercise their power to impose rates within a statutory
framework which enhances certainty, uniformity and simplicity across the nation, and
which takes account of historical imbalances and the burden of rates on the poor.
In applying its rates policy, the council shall adhere to all the requirements of the
Property Rates Act no. 6 of 2004 including any regulations promulgated in terms of that
Act.
The objectives of this policy are also to ensure that-

•

all ratepayers within a specific category are treated equal and reasonable:
All rates levied are affordable. In dealing with the poor/indigent ratepayers the municipality

•

will provide relief measures through exemptions, reductions or rebates.
•

rates are levied in accordance with the market value of the property as determined
through a valuation.

•

the rate will be based on the value of all rateable property in that category and the amount
required by the municipality to balance the operational budget, taking into account the
surplus obtained from the trading- and economical ser,’ices and the amounts required to
finance exemptions, reductions and rebates that the municipality may approve from time
to time;

•

income derived from rates will be used to finance community- and subsidized services
only;

•

to optimally safeguard the income base of the municipality through exemptions,
reductions and rebates that are reasonable and affordable taking into account the
poor/indigent ratepayers;

•

In order to minimize major shocks to certain ratepayers the market values in the new
valuation roll or tariffs determent by Council may be phased—in over the entire periods as
stipulated in the Rates Act.

•

to adhere to the legal requirements of the Property Rates Act (Act 6/2004)

2.

Formatted: Font: 9 pt

DEFINITIONS

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

In this policy, unless the context indicates otherwise—

:

“Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No 6 of 2004)

Agent

property

Formatted: Space After: 0,25 Pt, Line spacing: Multiple
1,53 Ii, Tab stops: Not at 8,25cm
16,51 cm
•

:

in relation to the owner of a property means a person appointed by the owner of the

Formatted: Font: Not Bold, No underline
Formatted EngI nh (South Africa)

—

Policy Title: Property Rates Policy
)raf;
s. u-’t:-:

.

Financial Year: 2020/2021
.:‘

::

Li;

:c

-

.:

Formatted: Normal

,

-

253

Page 5 of 43

(a) to receive rental or other payments in respect of the property on behalf of the owner; or
(b) to make payments in respect of the property on behalf of the owner;
“Accommodation establishment means a Guesthouse or Bed a Breakfast.
(a) a Guest House” means a dwelling house which is used for the purpose of letting
individual rooms for residential accommodation, with or without meals, and which
exceeds the restrictions of a bed and breakfast establishment.( Includes Self Catering
units)
(b) “Bed and Breakfasts” establishment means a dwelling house or second dwelling unit
in which the occupant of the dwelling house supplies lodging and meals for
remuneration to transient guests who have permanent residence elsewhere.

“agricultural purpose”, in relation to the use of a property, excludes the use of a property for
the purpose of eco-tourism or for the trading in or hunting of game; and any portion thereof which
is used for the hospitality and or accommodation of guests”

“annually” means once every financial year;

-

“bona-fide farmers” means a genuine or real farmer whose dominant income is generated from
farming activities, on an agricultural property, within the Bitou municipal area, and is taxed by
SARS as a bona-fide farmer.

“business” means the activity of buying, selling or trade in goods or services and includes any
office or other accommodation on the same erf, the use of which is incidental to such business,
with the exclusion of the business of mining, agriculture, farming. or inter alia, any other business
consisting of cultivation of soils, the gathering in of crops or the rearing of livestock or consisting
of the propagation and harvesting of fish or other aquatic organisms The category business
includes accommodation establishments eg: Guest Houses and Bed and Breakfasts.
“category”
(a)

(b)

—

in relation to property, means a category of property determined in terms of section 8 (2)
of the Act,

in relation to owners of property, means a category of owners determined in terms of
section 15(2) of the Act;

“district management area” means a part of a district municipality, which in terms of section 6
of the Municipal Structures Act has no local municipality and is governed by that municipality
alone;
district municipality’ means a municipality that has municipal executive and legislative
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“exclusion” in relation to a municipality’s rating power, means a restriction of that power
as
provided for in section 17 of the Act;
“exemption” in relation to the payment of a rate, means an exemption granted in terms of section
15 of the Act;
“financial year” means the period starting from 1 July in a year to 30 June of the next year;
household income” means the income accruing to all members of the household permanently
residing at the address. It includes income of spouses:
“income tax act” means the Income Tax Act 1962 (Act 58 of 1962)
“indigent person” means a person whose household income does not exceed the minimum
household income as predetermined by the council:
“land reform beneficiary” in relation to a property means a person who(a) acquired the property through
(i) the Provincial Land and Assistance Act,1993 (Act 126/1993); (ii)
the Restitution of Land Rights Act, 1994 (act 22/1 994);
(b) holds the property subject to the Communal Property Associations Act 1996 (Act 28 of
1996); or
(c) holds or acquires the property in terms of such other land tenure reform legislation as
may pursuant to section 25(6) and (7) of the Constitution be enacted after this Act has
taken effect;
“land tenure right” means an old order right or a new order right as defined in section 1 of the
Upgrading of Land Tenure Rights Act,
1991 (Act No.112 of 1991)
“local community”, in relation to a municipality—
(a)

means that body of persons comprising—

(i)

the residents of the municipality:

(ii)

the ratepayers of the municipality;

(iii)

any civic organisations

and non-govemmental, private sector or labour
organisations or bodies which are involved in local affairs within the municipality:
and

(iv)

visitors and other people residing outside the municipality who, because of their
presence in the municipality, make use of services or facilities provided by the
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“local municipality” means a municipality that shares municipal executive and
legislative
authority in its area with a district municipality within whose area it falls, and which is described
in section 155(1) of the Constitution as a category B municipality;
“market value”, in relation to a property, means the value of the property determined in
accordance with section 46 of the Act;
“MEC for Local Government” means the member of the Executive Council of a province who is
responsible for local government in that province:
“mining” means any operation or activity for extracting any mineral on, in or under the earth,
water or any residue deposit, whether by underground or open working or otherwise and
includes any operation or activity incidental thereto; as defined in the Mineral and Petroleum
Resources Development Act, 2002. (Act no 28 of 2002)
“minister” means the Cabinet member responsible for local government;
“multiple purposes”, in relation to a property, means the use of a property for more than one
purpose and cannot be assigned to a single category.
“municipal council” or “council” means a municipal council referred to in section 18 of the
Municipal Structures Act:
“Municipal Finance Management Act” means the Local Government; Municipal Finance
Management Act, 2003 (Act 56 /2003);
“municipality”—
(a)

as a corporate entity, means a municipality described in section 2 of the Municipal Systems
Act; and

(b)

as a geographical area, means a municipal area demarcated in terms of the Local
Government: Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of 1998);

“municipal manager” means a person appointed in terms of section 82 of the Municipal
Structures Act;
“municipal properties” means those properties of which the municipality is the owner;
“Municipal Systems Act” means the Local Government: municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32
/2000);
“newly rateable property” means any rateable property on which property rates were not levied
before the end of the financial year (2004) preceding the date on which this Act took effect,(2 July
2005) excluding a property which was incorrectly omitted from a valuation roll and for that reason
was not rated before that date;
“occupier”, in relation to a property, means a person in actual occupation of a property whether
or not that person has a right to occupy the property,
“owner”—
(a)

in relation to property referred to in paragraph (a) of the definition of “propert”, means—
a person in whose name ownership of the property is registered;
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(b)

in relation to a right referred to in paragraph (b) of the definition of “property”, means
a
person in whose name the right is registered; or

(c)

in relation to a land tenure right referred to in paragraph (c) of the definition of “propert/’,
means a person in whose name the right is registered or to whom it was granted in terms
of legislation, provided that a person mentioned below may for the purposes of this Act
be
regarded by a municipality as the owner of a property in the following cases
(i)

A trustee, in the case of a property in a trust excluding state trust land;
an executor or administrator, in the case of a property, in a deceased estate;
a trustee or liquidator, in the case of a property, in an insolvent estate or in
liquidation;

(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

a judicial manager, in the case of a property. in the estate of a person under judicial
management;

(v)

a curator, in the case of a property, in the estate of a person under curatorship;
an usufructuary or other person in whose name a usufruct or other personal
servitude is registered, in the case of a property that is subject to a usufruct or
other personal servitude;

(vi)

(vii)

a lessee, in the case of a property that is registered in the name of a municipality
and is leased by it; or

(viii)

a buyer, in the case of a property that was sold and of which possession was given
to the buyer pending registration of ownership in the name of the buyer;

“permitted use”, in relation to a property, means the limited purposes for which the property
may
be used in terms of
—

(a)

any restrictions imposed by
(i)

—

a condition of title;

(ii)

(b)

a provision of a town planning or land use scheme; or
(iü)
any legislation applicable to any specific property or properties; or
any alleviation of any such restrictions;

“person” includes an organ of the state;
“place of public worship” means property used primarily for the purposes of congregation
,
excluding a structure that is primarily used for educational instruction in which secular or
religious
education is the primary instructive medium. Provided that the property is (a) registered in
the
name of the religious community, (b) registered in a trust for the sole benefit of the religious
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“private open space” means any land in private ownership used primarily as a private site for
play, rest or recreation without financial gain.
“property” means—
(a)

immovable property registered in the name of a person, including, in the case of a sectional

title scheme, a sectional title unit registered in the name of a person;
(b)

a right registered against immovable property in the name of a person, excluding a

(c)

a land tenure right registered in the name of a person or granted to a person in terms of

mortgage bond registered against the property;

legislation;
“property register” means a register of properties referred to in section 23 of the Act;
“protected area” means an area that is or has to be listed in the register referred to in section 10
of the National Environmental Management: Protected Areas Act 2003;
“public benefits organisation” means an organisation conducting specified public benefit
activities as defined in the act and registered in terms of the Income Tax Act for tax reductions
because of those activities.
“publicly controlled” means owned by or other wise under the control of an organ of the state,
including
(d)

a public entity listed in the Public Finance Management Act, (Act 1/1 999)

(e)

a municipality; or
(c) a municipal entity as defined in the Municipal Systems Act

“public service infrastructure” means publicly controlled infrastructure as determined in terms
of chapter 1 of the Local Government Municipal Property Rates Act (Act 6/2004)
public service purposes” in relation to the use of the property, means property owned and used
by the organ of state and excludes property contemplated in the definition of public service
infrastructure”
“Occupational Practice”

“rate” means a municipal rate on property envisaged in section 229(1 )(a) of the Constitution;
“rateable property” means property on which a municipality may in terms of section 2 of the Act
levy a rate, excluding property fully excluded from the levying of rates in terms of section 17 of
the Act;
“rebate”, in relation to a rate payable on a property, means a discount on the amount of the rate
payable on the property;
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“Sectional titles Act” means the Sectional Titles Act 1986 (Act 95/1 986)
“Sectional title unit” means a unit defined in section 1 of the Sectional Titles Act,
“Specified public benefit activity” means an activity listed in item 1 (welfare and humanitarian
),
item 2 (health care) and item 4 (education and development) of Part I of the Ninth
Schedule to
the Income Tax Act:
“Sport Clubs and fields” means sport grounds and clubs used for the purpose
of amateur
and any social activities, which are connected with such sport.
“State-owned properties” means properties owned by the State, which are not included
in the
definition of public service infrastructure in the Act. These state-owned properties is
classified as
follows:
(a)

State properties that provide local services.

(b)

State properties that provide regional/municipal district-wide! metro-wide service.
State properties that provide provincial/national service.

(c)

“The Act” means the Local Government Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (No
6 of 2004).
“Vacant land “means land where no immovable improvements have been erected.
Vacant
land can be classified as follows:
(a) Residential vacant, means a property included a valuation roll in terms of section 8(2)
of the Act (read with section 8(3)) as vacant.
(b) Business vacant means a property included a valuation roll in terms of section 8(2) of
the Act (read with section 8 (3)) as business vacant.
(c) Industrial vacant, means a property included a valuation roll in terms of section 8(2)
of the Act (read with section 8(3)) as industrial vacant.
(d) Agricultural Vacant, means a property included in the valuation roll in terms of section
8 (2) of the Act (read with section 8 (3) as Agricultural vacant
3.

PURPOSE OF THE POLICY

The purposes of the policy are to.
(1)
(2)

Comply with the provisions section 3 of the Act.
Determine criteria to be applied fora) the levying of differential rates for different categories of properties;
b) exemptions;
c)

grants and rebates; and
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(4)

Detennine how the municipality’s powers must be exercised in relation to multi
purpose properties.

(5)

Identify and provide reasons for:
a) exemptions, rebates and reductions;
b) exclusions; and
c) rates on properties that must be phased in.

(6)

Take into account the effect of rates on the poor.

(7)

Take into account the effect of rates on organisations conducting specified public
benefit activities and registered in temis of the Income Tax Act for tax exemptions
because of those activities, in the case of property owned and used by such
organisations for those activities.

(8)
(9)

Take into account the effect of rates on public service infrastructure.
Determine measures to promote local economic and social development.

(10) Identify all rateable property that is not rated.
4.

POLICY PRINCIPLES

The rates policy will be based on the following principles:
(a) Equity
(b) Affordability
(c) Sustainability
(d) Cost efficiency
The council shall as part of each annual operating budget component impose a rate in the rand
on the market value of all ra-(ab1erateable property as recorded in the municipality’s valuation roll
or supplementary valuation roll.

Ra4aNeRateable property shall include any rights registered

against such property, with the exception of a mortgage bond.

The council pledges itself to limit each annual increase as far as possible to the increase in the
consumer price index over the period preceding the financial year to which the increase relates,
The council shall, in imposing the rate for each financial year, take proper cognisance of the
aggregate burden of rates and service charges on representative property owners, in the various
categories of property ownership, and of the extent to which this burden is or remains competitive
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municipality’s aggregate budgeted net revenues for the financial year concerned. By doing so,
the municipality will ensure that its revenue base and the collect ability of its revenues remain
sound.

Other policy principles:
1

All ratepayers, in a specific category, as determined by council from time to time, will be
treated equitably.

2. Rates will be raised in proportion to the market value of the property as determined by the
municipal valuer through a valuation process.
3. The rates tariff will be based on the value of all rateable properties and the amount required
by the municipality to balance the operating budget after taking in account profits generated
on trading and economic services and the amounts required to finance exemptions, rebates
and grants in-aid of rates as approved by council from time to time.
4. Trading and economic services will be ring fenced and tariffs and service charges calculated

in such a manner that the income generated covers the cost of the services or generates a
profit.

5. Property rates will be used to finance community and subsidised services and not to subsidise
trading and economic services.
6. Profits on trading and economic services can be used to subsidise community and subsidised
services.
7

The provision for working capital for community and subsidised services must be equal to the
non-payment of rates during the previous financial year and must not include any working
capital provision relating to trading and economic services.

8. The income base of the municipality will be protected at all costs, by limiting exemptions,
reductions and rebates.
The policy will be reviewed annually during the Budget process.
5.

SCOPE OF THE POLICY

This policy document guides the annual setting (or revision) of property rates. It does not make
specific property rates proposals. Details pertaining to the applications of the various property

rates are published in the Provincial Gazette and the municipality schedule of tariffs, which must
be read in Conjunction with this policy.
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7. CATEGORIES OF PROPERTY
7.1 Criteria for determining categories of properties for the purpose of levying
and for the purpose of granting exemptions will be according to the

different rates

—

(a)
(b)
(c)

use of the property
permitted use of the property, or
a combination of (a) and (b)

7.2 The municipality must determine the following categories of rateable properties if —such
categories exist in the municipal jurisdiction;
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)
(h)
(i)
(j)

residential properties:
business and commercial properties;
industrial properties;
public service infrastructure:
properties used for public benefit purposes;
agricultural properties:
properties owned by an organ of state and used for public service purposes;
multiple use properties:
mining properties
any other category of property of property as may be determined by the minister,
with concurrence of the Minister of Finance, by notice in the gazette

7.3 The category of Sport Club is a distinct category of property inserted in the valuation roll in
terms of section 8 (3) of the Act.
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8. CATEGORIES OF OWNERS
Criteria for determining categories of owners of properties, for the purpose of granting exemptions,
rebates and reductions will be according to the(a) indigent status of the owner of a property
(b) sources of income or/and monthly household income of the owner of a property
(c) owners of property situated within an area affected by
i)

a disaster within the meaning of the Disaster Management Act, 20002 (Act no 57 of
2002 ; or

ii)

any other serious adverse social or economic conditions;

(d) owners of residential properties with a market value below a determined threshold; or
(e) owners of agricultural properties who are bona fide farmers.
9. PROPERTIES USED FOR MULTIPLE PURPOSES
Properties used for multiple purposes will be categorized as follows for rating purposes:
The entire property can be categorized in terms of the permitted use of the property
The entire property can be categorized in terms of the dominant (main or primary) use; or
(iii) The entire property must be categorized in terms of the actual use (this categorization does
not make the unauthorized land use legal)
by apportioning the market value of a property to the different purposes for which the property is
used as determined in item 8 (categories of properties) above.
If the market value of the property can be apportioned, each portion must be categorized
according to its individual use as determined in item 8 above. If the market value of the property
cannot be apportioned to its various use purposes, then such a property must be categorized as
either (i) or (ii) above and;
applying the relevant cent amount in the rand to the corresponding apportioned market value.
10. CLASSIFICATION OF SERVICES AND EXPENDITURE
The Chief Financial Officer shall, subject to the guidelines provided by the National Treasury and
Mayoral Committee of the Council, make provision for the classification of services as outlined in
the Municipality’s annual budget into trading and economic services.

11.

LEVYING OF RATES

(1) Liability for rates by property owners:
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Rates levied by a municipality on a property must be paid by
the owner of the property, subject to
section 9 of the Municipal Systems Act.
Joint owners are jointly and severally liable for the amoun
t due for rates on that property. In a
case of agricultural property owned by more than one owner
in undivided shares where the
holding of such undivided shares was allowed before the
commencement of the subdivision of
the Agricultural Land Act (Act 70 of 1970) the municipality may
consider the following options for
determining the liability for rates:
•

If the joint owners are all available, the issue of who is liable
for rates will be dealt with
in the context of whether they have entered into an agreem
ent or not regarding payment
of rates liabilities.

•

Where the joint owners have a written agreement that a specific
joint owner is liable for all
the rates, the municipality will hold such a joint owner liable in
respect of all the rates.
A certified copy of the agreement must be submitted to the municipality
.

•
•

Where there is no agreement, the municipality will hold anyone
of the joint owners
responsible for the whole property or hold any joint owner
only liable for his undivided
share
i)

ii)

If the joint owners are not traceable with the exception of one
joint owner and such
joint owner is occupying or using the entire property or a significant
larger portion
the municipality will hold that joint owner liable for the total rates
bill.
If the traceable joint owner is only using or occupying a small portion
of the entire
property, the municipality will hold that joint owner only respon
sible for his own
undivided share in that property

(2) Method and time of payment
The municipality will recover the rate levied in periodic instalm
ents of equal amounts in twelve
months. The instalment is payable on or before the l5 day
of every month, following the month
in which it has been levied Interest will be charged at 1% above
the prime interest rate for any
late payments received.

(3) Annual Payment Arrangements
By prior arrangement with the municipality the rate may be paid
in a single amount before 30
September of the year it is levied in, however, application must
be submitted before 31 May prior
to the financial year of implementation of the arrangement. The
Director: Financial Services will
consider any applications after this date.
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(4) (i) Recovery of arrear rates from owner
As soon as the annual rates becomes overdue, an overdue notice must be issued on the owner
at the address selected by the owner.
If there is no response from the owner, a further overdue notice should be served at the property
with a rider that the services to the property will be terminated within a reasonable period,
the
minimum being 30 days, should the rates not be paid or satisfactory arrangements made.
This notice should enquire whether the occupier is paying rent and other monies to an agent of
the owner and the state that the municipality can, legally, attach the net payment. (I.e. gross
receipts by the agent less commission due to the agent on those gross receipts) due to the owner
by the agent to settle the arrears. Should the tenant refuse to co-operate, the services should be
disconnected and the other debt management actions implemented.
(4) (ii) Recovery of arrear rates from tenants, occupiers and agents
If an amount due for rates levied in respect of a property is unpaid after the day determined, the
municipality may recover the amount in whole or in part from a tenant or occupier of the property.
The amount the municipality might recover from the tenant or occupier of the property is limited
to the amount of the rent or other money due and payable by the tenant or occupier to the owner
of the property. Any amount the municipality recovers from the tenant or occupier of the property
may be set off, by the tenant or occupier, against any money owed by the tenant or occupier to
the owner.
The municipality may recover the amount due for rates from an agent of the owner after it has
given written notice to that agent or person. The amount the municipality may recover from the
agent or other person is limited to the amount of that rent received by the agent or person, less
the commission due to that agent or person (subject to the Estate Agents Act, 1976 (Act No. 112
of 1976). The agent or other person must, on request by the municipality, furnish the municipality
with a written statement specifying all payments for rent on the property received by that agent or
person during a period determined by the municipality.
If the managing agent is identified through the tenants assistance, a copy of the notice, which
was served on the tenant, must be served on the agent stating that failure to co—operate would
lead to action being taken against the agent as well as the termination of the services at the supply
address.
Should the payments by the agent not be able to redeem the arrears within the next 12 months,
the monies must be attached and the next step in the debts management plan of the municipality
implemented. The municipality may however decide to extend the 12 month period to such longer
period that they deem fit based on the merit.

(5) Deferral of payment of rates liabilities
The municipality will consider each and every application for deferral of rates, taking into account
the merits and demerits of each and the financial implications thereof in so far the cash-flow of
the municipality is concerned.
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(7) Ownership
Properties, which vest in the Municipality during developments, i.e open spaces and roads should
be transferred at the cost of the developer to the Municipality.
Until such time, rates levied will be for the account of the developer.
•

Formatted: Normal

(8) Clearance Certificate
With the sale of a property within the municipal jurisdiction the council shall withhold rates
clearance certificate until all rates, services and sundry costs attached to the property is paid and
an amount equal to four months rates and service charges will be collected in advance as part of
the rates clearance process. The clearance certificate remains valid for 120 days from the date
of issuing.
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(9) Levying of rates on property in sectional title scheme
A rate on property, which is subject to a sectional title scheme. will be levied on the individual
sectional title units in the scheme.

12.

DIFFERENT RATING AND RATIOS

12.1 The following has been taken into consideration for the purpose of

differential rating

•

The nature of the property, including its sensitivity to rating e g. agricultural properties used
for farming purposes.

•

Vacant land may be rated higher (in terms of cent amount in a rand) as the municipality is
encouraging owners of vacant land to develop it and that owners should not use the vacant
land for speculation purpose.

• Promotion of social and economic development of the municipality.
Differential rating among the various property categories will be done by way of setting different
Cent amount in the Rand for each property category, rather than by way of reductions and
rebates.
The Chief Financial Officer will annually calculate the costs of these services and determine
through a public participation process to which extent these services are used by the various
categories of ratepayers. Inputs from representatives from the various categories of ratepayers
must be considered and agreed upon.

Different categories of properties may pay different rates in the rand based on the market
value of their properties.
12.2

The following ratios published under GN R195 in 0033016 of 12 March 2010 are

applicable in levying rates:
Categories

Ratio in relation to residential

.
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Agricultural Property

1:0.25

Public Service Infrastructure

1:0.25

Public Benefit Organisation Property

1:025

13. IMPERM)SS)BLE RATES
A municipality may not levy the following rates in terms of sections 16 (1) and 17 (1) of the Act:
Rates that would prejudice national economic policies.

(i)

(ii)

Rates that would prejudice economic activities across boundaries

(iii)

Rates that would prejudice national mobility of goods, services, capital or labour

•

Subject to Section 17 paragraph aA of the Act, on the first 30% of the market value of
public service

•

On any part of the seashore as defined in the National Environmental Management:
Integrated Coastal Management Act, 2008. (Act no 24 of 2008)

•

On any part of the territorial waters of the Republic in terms of the Marine Zones Act
(15/1 994)

•

On any island of which the state is the owner including the Prince Edward Islands

•

On a special nature reserve, national park or nature reserve within the meaning of the
National Environmental Management: National Environmental Management: Protected
Areas Act 2003 (Act no.57 of 2003), or of a national botanical garden within the meaning
of the National Environment Management: Biodiversity Act of 2004(Act no 10 of 2004)
which are not developed or used for commercial, business or residential agricultural
purposes.

•

On a mineral right within the definition of property

•

On a property belonging to a land reform beneficiary or his or her heirs, dependents or
spouse provided that this exclusion lapses ten years from the date on which such
beneficiary’s title was registered in the office of the Registrar of deeds, or upon alienation
of the property by the land reform beneficiary or his or heirs dependents or spouse.

•

On the first Ri 5, 000 of the market value of a property assigned in the valuation roll or
supplementary valuation roll to a category determined as residential property or multiple
used property provided that one or more component is used for residential purposes.

:1

.On property registered in the name of and used primarily as a place of public worship by
a religious community, including the official residence registered in the name of that
community, which is occupied by the office-bearer of that community who is, officiates at
services at that place of worship. (The exclusion lapses if not used for the purposes
as indicated above)
•

-,

:

,‘

.
,

On any property referred to in paragraphs a, b e, g and h of Section 17 in the Act of lhe
definition of “public service infrastructure”
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14.

EXEMPTIONS, REBATES AND REDUCTIONS

14(a) In imposing the rate in the Rand for each annual operating budget component, the council
shall grant the following exemptions, rebates and reductions to the categories of properties and
categories of owners indicated, but the council reserves the right to amend these exemptions,
rebates and reductions if the circumstances of a particular annual budget so dictates.
14(b) In determining whether a property forms part of a particular category indicated, the
municipality shall have regard to the actual use to which the relevant property is put. In the case
of vacant land not specifically included in any of the categories indicated, the permitted use
(zoning) of the property shall determine into which category it falls.
Municipal properties shall include properties owned by municipal entities.
NOTE: In terms of Section 17(1)(h) of the Property Rates Act, the first R15 000 of the maiii]
value of all residential properties and of all properties used for multiple purposes, provided
one or more components of such properties are used for residential purposes, is exempt
from the payment of rates. This amount is R15 000.

14(c) The council ygrants exemptions. reductions and rebates in recognition of the following
factors:
•

The inability of residential property owners to pass on the burden of rates, as opposed to
the ability of the owners of business, commercial, industrial and certain other properties to
recover such rates as part of the expenses associated with the goods or services. which
they produce.

•

The need to accommodate indigents, less affluent pensioners and people depending on
social grants for their livelihood.

•

Owners temporarily without income

•

The services provided to the community by public service organisations.
The value of agricultural activities to the local economy coupled with the limited municipal

•

services extended to such activities, but also taking into account the municipal services
provided to municipal residents who are employed in such activities.
•

The need to preserve the cultural heritage of the local community

•

The need to encourage the expansion of public service infrastructure.

•

The indispensable contribution which property developers (especially In regard to

Formatted: Font: 9 pt
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development and the continuing needs to encourage such development.
•

Owners of property situated within an area affected by a disaster within the meaning of
the Disaster management Act or any other serious social or economic conditions
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•

Owners of residential properties with a market value lower than an amount determined
by
the municipality

•

The requirements of the Property Rates Act no. 6 of 2004.

The municipal manager shall ensure that the revenues forgone in respect of the foregoing rebates
etc. are appropriately disclosed in each annual operating budget component, in the annual
financial statements and annual report as stipulated in section 15(3) &(4) of the act
and that such
rebates are also clearly indicated on the rates accounts submitted to each property owner.
14(d) Applications for rebates
.All applications for rebates as required must be addressed in writing on the prescribed’application form to the municipality;
•

.
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must reach the municipality by 30 September preceding the start of the new
municipal financial year for which relief is sought. The last tax assessment proving
that the owner is taxed by SARS as a bona fide farmer must be attached to the
application
A SARS tax exemption certificate / sufficient proof of status / income of household
I affidavits for proof of reasons / identity documents must be attached to all
applications;

•

•

Applicants must occupy the property and not be the owner of more than one

•

Where the owner is for acceptable reasons due to no fault of his/her own unable
to occupy the property, the spouse or minor children may satisfy the occupancy
reguirements;
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EXEMPTIONS

I
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The following categories of property are conditionally partially or fully exempted form rates:
(i)
municipal properties
(ii)

municipal public infrastructure

(iii)

informal settlements

(iv)

museums

(v)

national monuments

(vi)

property lower in value than the amount determent by the municipality
a right registered against immovable property

(vii)
(viii)

public benefit organisations uses their property for specific public
benefit
activities and listed in part 1 of the 9th schedule of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act
58 of 1962)

The following Public Benefit Organisation may apply for the exemption of property rates
subject
to producing a tax exemption certificate issued by the South African Revenue Service (SARS
as contemplated in Part 1 of the 9th schedule of the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act 58 of 1962)
a) Welfare and humanitarian
Rateable property registered in the name of an institution ororganisation, which, in the opinion
of
the council, performs welfare and humanitarian work as contemplated in the ninth Schedule of
the Income Tax Act, 1962 (Act 58 of 1962).
Rateable property, registered in the name of a trustee or trustees or any organisation, which
is
maintained for the welfare of war veterans.
Formatted: Pont 9 Pt

b) Conservation, environment and animal welfare:
Properties that is in the name if an organisation or institution, that is engaging in the conservation
,
rehabilitation or protection of the natural environment, including flora and fauna. Rateable property
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c) Education and development:
Rateable property registered in the name of an educational institution established, declared or
registered by or under any law.
d) Health care:
Rateable property registered in the name of an institution or organisation which has as its
exclusive objective is health care or counselling of terminally ill persons or persons with a severe
physical or mental disability and persons affected with HIV/AIDS.

Rateable property registered in the name of an institution or organisation which, in the opinion of
the Council, performs charitable work;
Applications for Public Benefit organizations must reach the municipality before end October
preceding the start of the new municipal financial year in which relief is sought. A tax exemption
certificate issued by the South African Revenue Services(SARS) as contemplated in Part 1 of the
Ninth Schedule of the Income Tax Act 1962 No 58 of 1962.The municipal manager or his
nominee must approve all applications.
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14.2 REBATES Categories of properties & owners
(1) Rebates for the following categories of properties or owners w)lyl be considered:
—..---(a) Rebates in respect of income categories:
The following owners may be granted a rebate on or a reduction in the rates payable on their
property if they meet the following criteria• Registered owner of the property that resides on the property;
• Income must not exceed an amount annually set by the Council
(b) Cultural:
Rateable property registered in the name of Boy Scouts, Girl Guides,
Sea Scouts, Voortrekkers or any other organisation which in the opinion of the council is similar
or any rateable property let by a council to any of the said organizations
The promotions, establishment, protection. preservation or maintenance of areas,
collections or buildings of historical or cultural interest, national monuments, proclaimed national
heritage sites, museums, including art galleries, archives and libraries.
—

(c) Agricultural (Experimental Farms):

—Rateable property, registered in the name of an agricultural society affiliated to or recognised
by the South African Agricultural Union, which is used for the purposes of such a society.
—(d) Municipal property and usage:
A pro-rata rebate will be granted where the municipality is engaged in land sales
transactions which have taken place after the financial year has started.
Where the municipality register a road reserve or servitude on a privately owned property a pro
rata rebate equal to the value of the reserve or servitude will be given to the owner of the property.
—Rateable property registered in the name of the Council, if such property is used in supplying
electricity, water, or sewerage service
—

(e) Owners of agricultural properties who are bona tide farmers

When considering grants on property used for agricultural purposes the council must take into
account the following factors:
The contribution of agriculture to the local economy
The assistance of agriculture to meet the service delivery- and development obligations of the
municipality and
The contribution to the social and economic welfare of the farm workers.
These proposals also apply to the mining sector.
The following rebate may be applicable to bona fide farmers.
•

The rate ratio that the Minister for Provincial and Local Government in concurrence with
the Minister of Finance from time to time may determine and publish in the Government

Gazette
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Grants-in-lieu-of-rates will be granted subject to:
•

A certificate issued by the registered auditor of the organisation or institution stating that
the activities performed is not for gain.

•

A certified income and expenditure statement and balance sheet that indicate the inability
to pay for rates.

•

An assessment by the Chief Financial Officer, which indicates that the organization or
institution qualifies in terms of council’s policy.

•

Council’s approval on annually providing
circumstances/needs to the municipality

credible

proof

of

the

ratepayers

Applications for the rebate must be submitted before the end of October preceding the
new financial year for which relief is sought.
MUNICIPALITY TO DECIDE ACCORDING TO THEIR CIRCUMSTANCES/NEEDS WHAT
PERCENTAGE REBATE TO GRANT

14.3 REDUCTIONS Categories of property
(1) A reduction in the municipal valuation as contemplated in section 15(1 )(b) of the Act will
be granted where the value of a property is affected by fire damage, demolishment or
floods or any area declared as a disaster area in terms of the Disaster Management Act
The reduction will be in relation to the certificate issued for this purpose by the
municipal valuer
(2) any other serious adverse social or economic condition;
(3) Management of rates shocks:
The municipality may limit rates shocks to property owners due to the increase in the
market value of their properties as a result of the compilation and implementation of the
new valuation roll by phasing-in the new market value as reflected in the valuation roll
over the four year life cycle of the valuation role or by reducing the rate in the Rand levied
on the new valuation roll drastically
The table below explains the phasing-in method.
Valuation
Value on a roll
Rates payable
without
assuming
Cycle
phasing-in (in
lCentlRand
Rand)
Last Year of cycle
1°Yearinnewcycle
2 Year in new cycie
3”tYearinnewcycle
4th
(last) Year in cycle

60 000
70000
70 000
70000
70 000

600
700
700
700
700

Value on a roll
after phasing-in
(in Rand),
Assuming 25%
phasing_in.
60 000
62500
65 000
67500
70 000

Rates
payable
assuming
lCentlRand
600
625
650
675
700
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15

COMPULSORY PHASING-IN OF CERTAIN RATES

Rates levied on newly rateable properties must be phased in over a period of three years,
the
MEG for local govemment may extend, on written request by the municipality, this period
to a
maximum of six financial years.
When extending a phasing-in period, the MEG must determine the minimum phasing—
in discount
on the rate payable during each financial year in the extended period
16. COSTS OF EXEMPTIONS, REBATES, REDUCTIONS, PHASING IN OF RATES
AND
GRANTS-IN-LIEU OF RATES
1. During the budget process the Director: Financial Services must inform council of all the
costs associated with the suggested exemptions, rebates, reductions, phasing in of rates and
grants-in-lieu of rates.
2. Provisions must be made in the operating budget

—

•

for the full potential income associated with property rates; and

•

for the full costs associated with exemptions, rebates, reductions, phasing in of
rates and grants-in-lieu of rates.

3. Projections regarding revenue foregone for a financial year in relation to exemptions,
rebates, reductions, exclusions, phasing in etc. must be reflected
in the council’s annual
budget for that year.
—

4. A list of all exemptions, rebates, reductions, exclusions, phasing in etc. must be tabled before
council as per the MPRA.

17.

SPECIAL RATING AREA

The municipality may by council resolution determine an area within its boundaries as a special
rating area for the purpose of raising funds for improving or upgrading that area; and
differentiate between categories of property when levying an additional rate.
Before determining a special rating area the municipality must consult the local community
on
the proposed boundaries of the area, the proposed improvement or upgrading of the area and
obtain the consent of the majority of the ratepayers in that proposed special rating area.
The municipality must determine the boundaries and indicate how the area is to be improved or
upgraded by the funds derived from the additional rate. Establish a separate accounting and
record-keeping system regarding the revenue generated by the special rate and the
improvement or upgrading of the area.
The municipality may establish a committee composed of persons representing the
community to act as a consultative and advisory forum. Representivity, including gender must
be taken into account when such a committee is established.
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18

RATE INCREASES
The municipality shall consider increasing rates annually during the budget process taking
into account the following criteria:

1.

•

Priorities of the municipality reflected in its Integrated Development Plan (IDP)

•

The revenue needs of the municipality

•

The need for management of rates shocks

•

Affordability of rates to ratepayers

Rates increases will be used to finance the increase in operating costs of community and
subsidised services.
Relating to community and subsidised services the following annual adjustments will at least
be
made:
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

All salary and wage increases as agreed at the National Bargaining Council
(ii)An inflation adjustment for general expenditure, repairs. maintenance, and
contributions to funds, and
Additional depreciation costs or interest and redemption on loans associated with the
assets created during the previous financial year.

Extraordinary expenditure not foreseen during the previous budget period and approved by
the
council during a budget review process will be financed by an increase in property rates.
All increases in the property rates will be communicated to the local community in terms of the
council’s policy on community participation.
The Minister may, with the concurrence of the Minister of Finance and by notice in
the
Gazette, set an upper limit on the percentage by which rates on property categories or a rate on
a specific category of properties may be increased; or the total revenue derived from rates on all
property categories or a rate on a specific category of properties may be increased.
19. DISREGARDED ITEMS FOR VALUATION PURPOSES
The following must not be taken into account in determining the market value of a property:
(i) Any building or other immovable structure under the surface of the property which is the
subject matter of any mining authorization or mining right defined in the Mineral and
Petroleum Resources Development Act, 2002 (Act no 28 of 2002)
(ii) the value of any equipment or machinery which, in relation to the property concemed, is
immovable property, excluding(a) a lift
(b) an escalator
Formatted Font
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(iv) in respect of property used for agricultural purposes the value of
any annual crops or growing
timber on the property that have yet not been harvested at
the date of valuation.
20. LOCAL, SOCIAL AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTS
The municipality may grant rebates to organisations that remotes
local, social and economic
development in its area of jurisdiction based on the criteria determined
in its local, social and
economic development policy. The following criteria will apply:
(a) job creation in the municipal area;
(b) social upliftment of the local community; and poverty alleviation
to the indigents (c)
Improve local economic growth
(d) Promote service delivery
21.

REGISTER OF PROPERTIES

The Chief Financial Officer must draw up and maintain a register of
properties as contemplated
in section 23 of the Act.

22.

NOTIFICATION OF RATES
•

The council will give notice of all rates approved at the annual budget
meeting at least 30
days prior to the date that the rates become effective. Accounts delivered
after the 30
days notice will be based on the new rates.

•

A notice stating council’s resolution, date on which the new rates shall
become
operational will be published in the media and the Provincial Gaze
fte and displayed by
the municipality at places installed for that purpose.

23. CORRECTION OF ERRORS AND OMISSIONS
Where the rates levied on a particular property have been incorrectly
determined, whether by an
error or omission on the part of the municipality, or false information provided
by the property
owner concerned, or a contravention of the permitted use to which the
property concerned may
be put, the rates payable shall be appropriately adjusted for the period extending
from the date
on which the error or omission is detected, back to the date on which
rates were first levied in
terms of the current valuation roll. In addition, where the error
occurred because of false
information provided by the property owner or because of a contravention
of the permitted use of
the property concerned, interest on the unpaid portion of the adjusted
rates payable shall be levied
at the maximum rate permitted by prevailing legislation.
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25. GENERAL VALUATION AND PREPARATION OF VALUATION ROLLS
A municipality intending to levy a rate on property must cause a general valuation to be made of
all properties in the municipality, and must prepare a valuation roll of all properties in terms of
such valuation.
All ratablerateable properties in a municipal area must be valued during such general valuation,
including all properties fully or partially excluded from rates in terms of Section 17 of the present
Act. However, if the municipality does not intend to levy rates on its own property, on public
service infrastructure owned by a municipal entity, on rights in properties, and on properties in
respect of which it is impossible or unreasonably difficult to establish a market value because of
legally insecure tenure resulting from past racial discrimination, the municipality is not obliged to
value such properties as part of the valuation process.
A municipality may also apply to the Minister for exemption from the obligation to value properties
excluded from rates in terms of Section 17 if the municipality can demonstrate that the valuation
of such properties is too onerous for it, given its financial and administrative capacity.
Properties which have not been valued, because of any of the foregoing considerations;must
nevertheless be included in the valuation roll.
26. DATE OF VALUATION
For the purposes of a general valuation a municipality must determine a date that may be not
more than 12 months before the start of the financial year in which the valuation roll is to be first
implemented.
The general valuation must reflect the market values of properties in accordance with market
conditions which apply as at the date of the valuation, and in accordance with any other applicable
provisions of the present Act.
27. COMMENCEMENT AND PERIOD OF VALIDITY OF VALUATION ROLLS
A valuation roll takes effect from the start of the financial year following completion of the public
inspection period required by the present Act, and remains valid for that financial year or for one
or more subsequent financial years, as the municipality may decide, but in total not for more than
five financial years in respect of a local municipality.
Section 32(2) provides for the extension of the period of validity of the valuation roll by the MEC
for Local Govemment, but only up to a period of seven financial years, and only in specified
circumstances.

28. GENERAL BASIS OF VALUATION
The market value of a property is the amount the property would have realised if sold on the date
of valuation in the open market by a willing seller to a willing buyer.
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29. VALUATION OF PROPERTY IN SECTIONAL TITLE SCHEMES
When valuing a property which is subject to a sectional title scheme, the valuer must determine
the market value of each sectional title unit in the scheme.
30. SUPPLEMENTARY VALUATION
A municipality must regularly, but at least once a year. update its valuation roll by causing a
supplementary valuation roll to be prepared, or the valuation roll itself to be amended.
32. ENFORCEMENT I IMPLEMENTATION
This policy has been approved by Municipal Council on

33. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS
A paraphrase and in some instances an abridgement of the key requirements of the Local
Government: Property Rates Act no. 6 of 2004 is attached as an Addendum “Ato this policy.
33. SHORT TITLE
This policy is the Property Rates Policy for the Bitou Local Municipality
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ADDENDUM “A”
LEGAL REQUIREMENTS:

CAUTIONARY NOTE
This paraphrase is not meant to cover the complete contents of the Property
Rates Act, but is
focused rather on those requirements, which are immediately relevant to a municipality
’s rates
policy. Thus, the section dealing with transitional arrangements has been omitted,
and so have
most of the provisions dealing with the valuation process.
SECTION 2: POWER TO LEVY RATES
A metropolitan or local municipality may levy a rate on property in its municipal
area.A municipality
must exercise its power to levy a rate on property subject to Section 229 and any
other applicable
provisions of the Constitution, the provisions of the present Act, the regulations
pertaining thereto
and the rates policy it must adopt in terms of this Act
SECTION 3: ADOPTION AND CONTENTS OF RATES POLICY
Logical order of processes for implementation of the Act.
(b) Rates policy development and adoption including categorization of properties
for
(c) the purpose of compiling the valuation roll.
(d) Compilation of the valuation roll in order to determine the maiiet value
of
properties so as to inform the determination of a reasonable amount in a Rand
to
be determined in respect of the various categories of ratab1erateable property
taking into account the budget.
(e) Tabling of the municipal budget accompanied by an adopted rates policy in terms
of section 3 (2) of the Act.
(2) Section 3(3) (e) of the Act must be complied with by providing a general description
of that which may be foregone by the municipality without quantifying it in Rand & Cent
The council
of a municipality must adopt a policy consistent with the present Act on the levying
of rates on
ra4aNerateable property in the municipality.
Such a rates policy will take effect on the effective date of the first valuation roll prepared
by the
municipality in terms of the present Act, and such policy must accompany
the municipality’s
budget for the financial year concemed when that budget is tabled in the council in
terms of the
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determine the criteria to be applied by the municipality if it:

levies different rates for

different categories of property;
-

-

exempts a specific category of owners of properties, or the owners of specific
a
category of properties, from payment of a rate on their properties;
grants to a specific category of owners of properties, or to the owners of a specific
category of properties, a rebate on or a reduction in the rate payable in respect of
their properties; or

-

increases rates;

•

determine or provide criteria for the determination of categories of properties
for the
purposes of levying different rates, and categories of owners of properties, or
categories
of properties, for the purpose of granting exemptions, rebates and reductions;

•

determine how the municipality’s powers in terms of Section 9 must be exercised
in
relation to properties used for multiple purposes;

•

identify and quantify in terms of cost to the municipality and any benefit
to the local
community, exemptions, rebates and reductions; exclusions, and rates on properties
that
must be phased in in terms of Section 21;

•

take into account the effect of rates on the poor and include appropriate measures
to
alleviate the rates burden on them;

•

take into account the effect of rates on organisations conducting specified public
benefit
activities and registered in terms of the Income Tax Act for tax reductions because of
those
activities, in the case of property owned and used by such organisations
for those
activities;

•

take into account the effect of rates on public service infrastructure;
allow the municipality to promote local, social and economic development; and
identify, on a basis as may be prescribed, all esOablerateablo properties in the municipality

•
•

that are not rated in terms of Section 7
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•

framework that may be prescribed after consultation with organized local government.
No
municipality may grant relief in respect of the payment of rates to:
a category of owners of properties. or to the owners of a category of properties, other than
by way of an exemption, rebate or reduction as provided for in its rates policy and granted
in terms of Section 15 of the present Act; or

•

the owners of properties on an individual basis

SECTION 4: COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION
Before a municipality adopts its rates policy, the municipality must follow the process of
community
participation envisaged in Chapter 4 of the Municipal Systems Act; and comply with
the following
requirements, as set out below. The municipal manager of the municipality must:
•

conspicuously display the draft rates policy for a period of at least 30 days at the
municipality’s head and satellite offices and libraries, and, if the municipality has an official
website or a website available to it, on that website as well; and

•

publish in the media a notice stating that a draft rates policy has been prepared for
submission to the council, and that such policy is available at the various municipal offices
for public inspection, and (where applicable) is also available on the relevant website;
and
inviting the local community to submit comments and representations to the municipality

within a period specified in the notice, but which period shall not be less than 30
days. The council
must take all comments and representations made to it into account when it considers the
draft
rates policy.

SECTION 5: ANNUAL REVIEW OF RATES POLICY
The council must annually review, and

if needed amend its rates policy. Any amendments to
the rates policy must accompany the municipality’s annual budget -when it is tabled in the
council in terms of the Municipal Finance Management Act.
—

—

When the council decides to amend the rates policy, community participation must be allowed
for
as part of the municipality’s annual budget process.

SECTION 6: BY-LAWS TO GIVE EFFECT TO RATES POLICY
A municipality must adopt by-laws to give effect to the implementation of its rates policy, and such
by-laws may differentiate between different categories of properties, and different categories
of
owners of properties liable for the payment of rates

—---—-
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•
•
•
•

properties of which the municipality itself is the owner;
public service infrastructure owned by a municipal entity;
rights registered against immovable property in the name of a person;
properties in respect of which it is impossible or unreasonably difficult to establish a market
value because of legally insecure tenure attributable to past racially discriminatory laws or
practices.

The requirement to levy rates on all raab1erateable properties does not prevent a municipality
from granting exemptions or rebates on, or reductions in rates levied.
SECTION 8: DIFFERENTIAL RATES
A municipality may in terms of the criteria set out in its rates policy levy different rates for different
categories of Fatab4erateable property, and these categories may be determined according to the:
•

use of the property;

•

permitted use of the property;
Categories of ratab1erateable property that may be determined include the following
•
residential properties
•

industrial properties

•

business and commercial properties

•

agricultural properties
mining properties
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properties owned by public benefit organisations and used for any specific public benefit
activities
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properties used for multiple purposes.
Any other category of property as may be determined by the Minister of Finance, by notice
in the Gazette

SECTION 9: PROPERTIES USED FOR MULTIPLE PURPOSES
A property used for multiple purposes must, for rates purposes, be assigned to a category
determined by the municipality for properties used for:
•

a purpose corresponding with the permitted use of the property, if the permitted use of the
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A rate levied on a property assigned to a catego of
ry
properties used for multiple purposes must
be determined by:
•

apportioning the market value of the property, in manne
a
r as may be prescribed to the
different purposes for which the property is used;
and

•

applying the rates applicable to the categories determ
ined by the municipality for
properties used for those purposes to the different
market value apportionments.

0
SECTION 10: LEVYING OF RATES ON PROPERTY
IN SECTIONAL TITLE SCHEMES
A rate on a property, which is subject to a sectional title
scheme, must be levied on the individual
sectional title units in the scheme, and not on the proper
ty on a whole.
SECTION 11: AMOUNT DUE FOR RATES
A rate levied by a municipality on property must be stated
as an amount in the rand.
•
on the market value on the property;
•

•

in the case of public service infrastructure, on the
market value of the public service
less 30% of that value, considering Section 93 A of the
Act,
infrastructure
in the case of property to which Section 17(1)(h
) applies, on the market value of the
property less the amount stated in that section (note
the section concerned deals with the
requirement that the first R15 000 of the market
value of certain properties is not
ratabterateable).

SECTION 12: PERIODS FOR WHICH RATES MAY BE
LEVIED
In levying rates, a municipality must levy the rate for a financi
al year. A rate lapses at the end of
the financial year for which it was levied.
The levying of rates forms part of the municipality
’s annual budget process, and the municipality
must therefore annually, at the time of its budget proces
s, review the amount in the rand of its
current rates in line with the annual budget for the next
financial year.
SECTION 13: COMMENCEMENT OF RATES
A rate becomes payable as from the start of the particular
financial year, or if the municipality’s
annual budget is not approved by the start of the financi
al year, as from such later date when the
municipality’s annual budget, including the resolut
ion levying the rates, is approved by the
provincial executive in terms of section 26 of the Munic
ipal Finance Management Act.
SECTION 14: PROMULGATION OF RESOLUTIO
NS LEVYING RATES
A rate is levied by a municipality by a resolution passed
by the council with a supporting vote of a
simple majority of its members.
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The resolution for levying the rates must be promulgated
by publishing the resolution in the
provincial gazette.
Whenever a municipality passes a resolution to levy rates,
the municipal manager must, without
delay, conspicuously display the resolution for a period of
at least 30 days at the municipality’s
head and satellite
and libraries, and if the municipality has an official website or website
a
is available to it, on that website as well, and advertise in
the media a notice stating that the
resolution levying the property rates has been passed by the council,
and that the resolution is
available at the municipality’s head and satellite offices as so
forth.
offices

SECTION 15; EXEMPTIONS, REDUCTIONS AND REBATES
A municipality may in
of the criteria, which it has set out in its rates policy
•
exempt a specific category of owners of properties, or the owners
of a specific
of properties, from payment of the rate levied on their property: or
terms

•

•

category

grant to a specific category of owners, or to the owners of a specific
category of properties,
a rebate on or a reduction in the rates payable in respect of their
properties.
In granting exemptions. reductions and rebates in respect of
owners or categories of
properties, a municipality may determine such categories in accordance
with Section 8 of
the Act, and when granting exemptions, reductions or rebates in
respect of categories of
owners of properties, such categories may include:

•

indigent owners;

•

owners dependent on pensions or social grants for their livelihood
including owners of
properties within the income group of pensions or social grants

•

owners temporarily without income;
owners of property situated within an area affected by a disaste
r or any other serious
adverse social or economic conditions;

•

•

owners of residential properties with a market value lower than
an amount determined by
the municipality; and

•
owners of agricultural properties who are bona fide farmers.
The municipal manager must annually table in the council:
•

a list of all exemptions, reductions and rebates granted by the municipality
during the
previous financial year; and

•

a statement reflecting the
which the municipality has forgone during the previous
financial year by way of such exemption, reductions and rebates,
exclusions referred to
in the Act, and the phasing in discount granted in terms of Section
21.
All exemptions, reductions and rebates projected for a financial year
must be reflected in the
income,
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rates on property in a manner that materially and unreasonably
prejudices national economic
policies, economic activities across its boundaries, or the national
mobility of goods, services,
capital and labour.
If a rate on a specific category of properties, or a rate on a specific
category of owners of properties
above a specific amount in the rand, is materially and unreasonably
prejudicing any of the matters
referred to above, the Minister of Provincial and Local Government
may, by notice in the gazette,
give notice to the relevant municipality that the rate must
be limited to an amount in the rand
specified in the notice.

SECTION 17: OTHER IMPERMISSIBLE RATES (ABRIDGED)
A municipality may not levy a rate on:
•

the first 30% of the market value of public service infrastructure
,_cjderftection93A
of the Act:

•

any part of the seashore;

•

any part of the territorial waters of the Republic,
any islands of which the state is the owner;
those parts of a special nature reserve, national park or nature
reserve or national
botanical garden which are not developed or used for commercial,
business, agricultural
or residential purposes;

•
•

•

mineral rights;

•

property belonging to a land reform beneficiary or his or her
heirs, provided that this
exclusion lapses 10 years from the date on which such beneficiary’s
title was registered
in the office of the registrar of deeds;

•

the first R15 000 of the market value of a property assigned
in the valuation roll or
supplementary valuation roll to a category determined by the
municipality for residential
purposes or for properties used for multiple purposes, provided
one or more components
of the property are used for residential purposes;

•

a property registered in the name of and used primarily as a place of
public worship by a
religious community, including an official residence registered
in the name of that
community which is occupied by an office bearer of that community
and who officiates at
services at that place of workshop.

•

On any property referred to in paragraphs a. b, e. g and ft of Section
17 in the Act of the
definition of ‘public service infrastructure’
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public infrastructure, the exemptions on nature reserves, national parks
and national botanical
gardens, the exemption on property belonging to land beneficiaries, and
the exemption applying
to the first Ri 5 000 of the market value of residential and multiple used property.
If the municipality
can demonstrate that such exclusions are compromising or impeding its ability
or right to exercise
its powers or perform its functions within the meaning of the Constitution.

SECTION 19: IMPERMISSIBLE DIFFERENTIATION
A municipality may not levy:
•

different rates on residential properties (except where transitional arrangements
apply or
where some of the properties are newly Fa1abferateable) as provided for
in terms of
section 11(i) (b) and section 89 of the act supra.

•

a rate on non-residential properties that exceeds a prescribed ratio to the rate
on
residential properties;

•

rates which unreasonably discriminate between categories of non-residenti
al properties;
and

•

additional rates, except as provided for in Section 22.
—-The municipality will comply with the ratios set by the Minispf_Pro
vincial and Local
Government in concurrence with the Minister of Finance.
The munidpaIity-wiI4-mnl” with the rafios-aetby the Minister of Provincial

.
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SECTION 20: LIMITS ON ANNUAL INCREASES OF RATES
The Minister of Provincial Local Govemment may, with the concurrence of the Minister
of Finance
and by notice in the gazette, set an upper limit on the percentage by which rates
on properties or
a rate on a specific category of properties may be increased. Different limits
may be set for
different kinds of municipalities or different categories of properties
The Minister may. on written application by a municipality, and on good cause shown,
exempt
such municipality from a limit set in terms of the foregoing. This section must be read
with section
43 of the Municipal Finance Management Act
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SECTION 21:

COMPULSORY PHASING IN OF CERT
AIN RATES

A rate levied on newly FatalerateabIe property must
be phased in over a period of three financial
years. Similarly, a rate levied on property owned
by a land reform beneficiary must, after the
exclusion period of ten years has lapsed, be phased
in over a period of three financial years.
A rate levied on a newly Fata4erateable property owned
and used by organisations conducting
specified public benefit activities must be phased in over
a period of four financial years.
The phasing in discount on a property must:
•
in the first year, be at least 75% of the rate for that
year otherwise applicable to that
property;
•

in the second year, be at least 50% of the rate for that
year otherwise applicable to that
property, and;

•

in the third year, be at least 25% of the rate for that year
otherwise applicable to that
property.

No rate may be levied during the first year on newly ratable
rateabie property owned and used by
organisations conducting specified public benefit activit
ies Thereafter the phasing in discount
shall apply as for other newly ratablerateable proper
ty except that the 75% discount shall apply
to the second year, the 50% to the third year, and the 25%
to the fourth year.
A rate levied on newly ratabterateable property may not
be higher than the rate levied on similar
property or categories of property in the municipality
SECTION 22: SPECIAL RATING AREA
S (ABRIDGED)

A municipality may by a resolution of its council determ
ine an area within that municipality as a
special rating area, levy an additional rate on property in
that area for the purpose of raising funds
for improving or upgrading that area, and differentiate
between categories of properties when
levying such additional rate.
For determining such a special rating area, the munic
ipality must undertake a prescribed process
of consultation with the local community, and obtain the consen
t of the majority of the members
of the local community in the proposed special rating
area who will be liable for paying the
additional rate.
The levying of an additional rate may not be used
to reinforce existing inequities in the
development of the municipality, and any determination
of a special rating area must be consistent
with the objectives of the municipality’s lOP.
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Part A of the register consists of the current valuation
roll of the municipality, including any
supplementary valuation rolls prepared from time to time.
Part B of the register specifies which properties on the
valuation roll or any supplementary
valuation rolls are subject to:
•
•
•

an exemption from rates in terms of Section 15 of the presen
t Act:
a rebate on or a reduction in the rate in terms of Sectio
n 15,
a phasing in of the rate in terms of Section 21; and 0

an exclusion referred to in

Section 17.
The register must be open for inspection by the public during
office hours, and if the municipality
has an official website or a website available to it, the registe
r must also be displayed on that
website.
The municipality must at regular intervals, but at least annually,
update part B of the register.
SECTION 24: PROPERTY RATES PAYABLE BY OWNERS
The owner of the property must pay a rate levied by a municipality

on property.
Joint owners of a property are jointly and severally liable for
the amount due for rates on that
property.
In the case of agricultural property owned by more than
one owner in undivided shares, the
municipality must consider whether in the particular circum
stances it would be more appropriate
for the municipality to hold any one of the joint owners liable
for all rates levied in respect of the
agricultural property, or to hold any joint owner only liable for
that portion of the rates levied on
the property that represent that joint owner’s undivided share in
the agricultural property.
SECTION 25: PAYMENT OF RATES ON PROPERTY IN SECTIONAL
TITLE SCHEMES
The rate levied by a municipality on a sectional title unit is payabl
e by the owner of the unit. The
municipality may not recover the rate on such sectional title unit,
or any part of such rate, from the
body corporate controlling the sectional title scheme, except
when the body corporate itself is the
owner of any specific sectional title unit.

SECTION 26: METHOD AND TIME OF PAYMENT
A municipality must recover a rate on a monthly basis, or less
often as may be prescribed in terms
of the Municipal Finance Management Act, or annually. as
may be agreed to with the owner of
the property.
If the rate is payable in installments, it must be paid on or before
a date in each period determined
by the municipality.
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SECTION 27: ACCOUNTS TO BE FURNISHED
A municipality must furnish each person liable for the payment of
a rate with a written account
specifying:
•
•
•
•
•

•

the amount due for rates payable,
the date on or before which the amount is payable;
how the amount was calculated;
the market value of the property;
if the property is subject to any compulsory phasing in discount
in terms of Section 21, the
amount of the discount, and
if the property is subject to any additional rate in terms of Section
22, the amount due for
additional rates.

The person liable for payment of the rates remains liable for such
payment whether or not such
person has received a written account from the municipality. If the
person concerned has not
received a written account, that person must make the necessary enquiries
from the municipality.
SECTION 28: RECOVERY OF RATES IN ARREARS FROM TENANTS
AND OCCUPIERS
If an amount due for rates levied in respect of a property is unpaid
by the owner of the property
after the date determined for payment by the municipality, the
municipality may recover the
amount in whole or in part from a tenant or occupier of the property,
despite any contractual
obligation to the contrary on the tenant or occupier. The municipality
may recover an amount only
after it has served a written notice on such tenant or occupier.
The amount that the municipality may recover from the tenant or occupier
is limited to the amount
of the rent or other money due or payable, but not yet paid, by
such tenant or occupier to the
owner of the property.

SECTION 29: RECOVERY OF RATES FROM AGENTS
A municipality may recover the amount due for rates on a property
in whole or in part from the
agent of the owner, if this is more convenient for the municipality
, but only after the municipality
has served a written notice on the agent in this regard.

atted:underIin
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The amount that the municipality may recover from the agent limited
is
to the amount of any rent
or other money received by the agent on behalf of the owner, less
any commission due to the
agent
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SECTION 30: GENERAL VALUATION AND PREPARATION
OF VALUATION ROLLS
A municipality intending to levy a rate on property must cause
a general valuation to be made of
all properties in the municipality, and must prepare a valuation
roll of all properties in terms of
such valuation.
All rat3blcrateable properties in a municipal area must be valued
during such general valuation,
including all properties fully or partially excluded from rates
in terms of Section 17 of Act.
However, if the municipality does not intend to levy rates on its
own property, on public service
infrastructure owned by a municipal entity, on rights in properties,
and on properties in respect of
which it is impossible or unreasonably difficult to establish
a market value because of legally
insecure tenure resulting from past racial discrimination, the municipality
is not obliged to value
such properties as part of the valuation process
A municipality may also apply to the Minister for exemption from
the obligation to value properties
excluded from rates in temis of Section 17 if the municipality can
demonstrate that the valuation
of such properties is too onerous for it, given its financial and administrativ
e capacity.
Properties, which have not been valued, because of any of the
foregoing considerations, must
nevertheless be included in the valuation roll.
SECTION 31: DATE OF VALUATION
For the purposes of a general valuation, a municipality must
determine a date that may be not
more than 12 months before the start of the financial year
in which the valuation roll is to be first
implemented.
The general valuation must reflect the market values of properties
in accordance with market
conditions, which apply as at the date of the valuation, and
in accordance with any other
applicable provisions of the present Act.
SECTION 32: COMMENCEMENT AND PERIOD OF VALIDITY
OF VALUATION ROLLS
(ABRIDGED)
A valuation roll takes effect from the start of the financial year following
completion of the public
inspection period required by the present Act, and remains valid
for that financial year or for one
or more subsequent financial years, as the municipality may decide,
but in total not for more than
four fInancial years.
Section 32(2) provides for the extension of the period of validity
of the valuation roll by the
MEC for Local Government, but only up to a period of five financial
years, and only in
specified circumstances.

SECTION 46: GENERAL BASIS OF VALUATION (ABRIDGED)
The market value of a property is the amount the property would have
realised if sold on the date
of valuation in the open market by a willing seller to swilling buyer.

Formatted: Font: 9 pt
Formatted: Font: Not 8o

Formatted: Space After: 0,25 pt, Line spacing: Multiple
1,53 Ii, Tab stops: Not at 8,25cm
1651 cm
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SECTION 77: GENERAL
A municipality must regularly, but at least once a year, update its valuation
roll by causing a
supplementary valuation roll to be prepared, or the valuation roll itself to
be amended.
SECTION 80: CONDONATION OF NON-COMPLIANCE WITH TIME PERIODS:
(1) The MEC for local government in a province may, on good cause
shown, and on such
conditions as the MEC may impose, condone any non- compliance with a provision
of
this Act requiring any act to be done within a specified period or permitting
any act to be
done only within a specific period.
(2) Non-compliance with section 21,23 or 32 may not be condoned in
terms of subsection (1
(3) The powers conferred in terms of this section on an MEC for local government
may only
be exercised within a framework as may be prescribed.
SECTION 81: PROVINCIAL MONITORING:
(1) The MEC for local government in a province must monitor whether
municipalities in the
province comply with the provisions of this Act
(2) If the municipality fails to comply with the provisions of this Act, the
MEC may take any
appropriate steps to ensure compliance, including proposing an intervention
by the
provincial executive in terms of section 139 of the Constitution.
SECTION 87: APPLICATION WHEN IN CONFLICT WITH OTHER LAWS
This Act prevails in the event of any inconsistency between this Act and
any other legislation
regulating the levying of municipal rates
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DEFINITIONS
“child headed household” means a household where both parents are deceased
and
where all occupants of property are children of the deceased and are all under
the legal
age to contract of service and are considered as minors in law by the state;
“household” means as a registered owner or tenant with children who reside
on the
same premises;
“indigent” means any household which is unable to fully meet their obligations
for
municipal services consumed and property taxes on their monthly accounts.
“Indigent Management System” an process followed by the municipality
in the
identification, registration and provision of basic municipal services to indigent
households.
“municipality” means the Municipality of Bitou, established in terms of Section
12 of the
Municipal Structures Act, 117 of 1998, and includes any political structure, political
office
bearer, councilor, duly authorized agent or any employee acting in connection with
this
by-law by virtue of a power vested in the municipality and delegated or sub-delegate
d to
such political structure, political bearer, councilor, agent of employee;
“program officer” and official duly authorized by the municipality, or an employee
of a
service provider appointed by the municipality, who is responsible for the following:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)

to ensure that applications for indigent support are received and assessed;
to ensure that applications are captured on the Indigent Management System;
to ensure that information on applications are verified and that regular audits are
executed;
and
to authorize expenditure with regard to indigent support.

“indigent register” means the Municipal database, which has to be updated
on a
monthly basis, designed to contain all the captured data contained within completed
indigent application forms which contains the following key information:
._jndigent customer details
• Anoroval Status
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n addition the indigent register is able to provide reports relating to, but not limited to the
following:
Indigent application exceptions
Sill&repo’Lrc: e4u red for LE-Dex4f 4c

“owner” in relation to immovable property, means
2[a]

the person in whom is vested the legal title thereto provided that
[ij

the lessee of immovable property which is leased for a period of not less
than fifty years, whether the lease is registered of not, shall be deemed to
be the owner thereof; and

[iiJ

the occupier of immovable property occupied in terms of servitude or right
analogous thereto shall be deemed the owner thereof;

[bJ

if the owner is deceased, insolvent, has assigned his or her estate for the benefit
of this or her creditors, has been placed under curatorship by order of court or
is a company being wound up or under judicial management, than the person in
whom the administration of such property is vested as executor, administrator,
trustee, assignee, curator, liquidator or judicial manage, as the case may be;

[C]

if the owner is absent for the Republic or if his or her address is unknown to the
municipality, then any person who as agent or otherwise receives or is entitled to
receive the rent in respect of such property; or

[dj

if the municipality is unable to determine who such person is, then the person who
is entitled to the beneficial use of such property;

[ej

if the owner is deceased and the family or a member on behalf of the family issue
an affidavit that the occupier are the legal benefice of the estate.

“premises” includes any piece of land, the external surface boundaries of which are
delineated on[a]

a general plan diagram registered in terms of the Land Survey Act, 1997 [Act No.
8 of 1997] or in terms of the Dees Registries Act, 1937 [Act No. 47 of 1937];
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[bj

a general plan registered in terms of the sectional Titles Act, 1986 [Act No. 95 of
19861, and situated within the jurisdiction of the municipality

“rates” means any tax, duty or levy imposed on property by the Council;
“tenant” means any person other than the main family members described as a
household, occupying the premises i.e. lodger, paying guest, renter etc.
1.

INTRODUCTION
As a development institution, the municipality needs to commit to supporting
measures that assist and empower its community. It is accepted that large
sections of the community cannot exist without intervention and it is
therefore the duty of the municipality to support and to ensure that citizens
are able to access their constitutional right to have access to a basic level of
services.
The municipality therefore adopts an indigent support policy which embodies an
indigent support program not only providing procedures and guidelines for the
subsidization of services charges to indigent households in its area of
jurisdiction, but also to increase the quality of life of the beneficiaries by
assisting them to exit from indigence.

2.

POLICY PRINCIPLES
It is against the above background that the municipality undertakes to promote the
following principles:
2.1

To ensure that a portion identified by Council of the Equitable Share
received annually will be utilized for the benefit of the poor;

2.2

To link this policy with the municipality’s IDP, local economic development
(LED) initiatives and poverty alleviation programs;

2.3

To promote an integrated approach to free basic service delivery; and

2.4

To engage the community in the development and implementation of this
policy;
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POLICY OBJECTIVES

3.

In support of the above principles, the objective of this policy will be to ensure the
following;

4.

3.1

Establishment of a framework for the identification and management of
indigent households including a socio-economic analysis where
necessary and an exit strategy;

3,2

The provision of procedures and guidelines for the subsidization of basic
charges and the provision of free basic energy and water to indigent
households; and

3.3

To control the indigent register of the Bitou Municipality

THE LEGISLATIVE FRAMEWORK
This policy is designed and implemented with the framework of the following
legislation:

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
5.

The Constitution of the RSA, 1996,
The Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act 32 of 2000);
National Framework for Municipal Indigent Policies of 2005.
The Municipal Finance Management Act, 2003 (Act 56 of 2003);
The Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, 2000 (Act 3 of 2000);
The Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 (Act 2 of 2000);
The Property Rates Act, 2000 (Act 6 of 2004).
QUALIFICATION CRITERIA
Qualification criteria for indigent support and the municipal services qualifying for
such support shall be determined by the municipality from time to time, provided
that until the municipality determines otherwise, the following criteria shall apply:
5.1

The applicant must be a resident of the municipality;
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5.2

The applicant must be a South African citizen;

5.3

The combined or joint gross income of all occupants or dependents in a
single household which receives services from the municipality does not
exceed R3 500 per month excluding any social grants.
The property should be used exclusively as private dwelling.
Where there are income earning tenants or any other people living on the
property with income it has to be declared on the application form.

5.4
5.5

a.
b.
c.
d.

e.

These applications have to be dealt with and income verified.
These application to be recommended by the OFO or delegated
official.
These applications have to be submitted separately to the indigent
committee for approval.
The norm should be that the applicant do not receive indigent
benefits for services also used by people living on the premises or a
tenant with income
The elderly status of applicant and if or not married should also be
taken into account under 5.5(a).

5.7

The applicant must be the owner or tenant who receives municipal services;

5.8

Any occupant or resident of the single household referred to above must
not own any property in addition to the property in respect of which
indigent support is provided. Indigent subsidy will not apply to vacant
stands:

5.9

A tenant can apply for the benefits in respect of the charges he/she is billed
for and the landlord will still be liable for rates.

5.10

The value of the property should not exceed R350 .000

5.11
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Estate accounts
(1)

(2)

Where the applicant is deceased the surviving next of kin
(husbandlwifefchildlgrandchild) who then is responsible for the
running of the household will qualify for the same benefits as the
deceased applicant once a new application form has been
completed by the above person and received by the Municipality.
Where the house has already been an Estate house for a period of
time the heir to the house (husband! wife! child! grandchild) which
.
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has applied for indigent status may receive the same benefit as the
deceased owner.
(3)

In both of the above mentioned events the following must be done:
(a)

the applicant must indicate on the application form that the
owner is deceased and that the house is an estate house
AND;

(b)

the applicant must attach an affidavit (declaration) starting
that he or she is the person to whom the house has been
allocated to in the estate.

6.

ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES

6.1

Communication
The municipality will develop a communication strategy in terms of which
communities will be informed and educated in order to have a clear
understanding
of this policy and its implementation. Regular information
dissemination -------through ward committees, awareness campaigns, community
based organizations ----------and face-to-face contact by means of imbizo’s will be
undertaken to eliminate —unrealistic expectations both in terms of qualifying for
subsidy as well as service delivery in general.

6.2

Application/Registration

6.2.1 A person applying for assistance must complete a formal indigent support
application form approved by the municipality. Such forms will be available at
approved registration points provided by the municipality. These forms will be
reviewed annually and adopted by council.
6.2.2 Applications must be accompanied by the following:
6.2.2.1 Certified copies of all occupants’ identity documents;
6.2.2.2 The latest municipal account;
6.2.2.3 Certified documentary proof of income, or o proof of registration as
unemployed from UlFor Department of Labour, plus bank,
—-statement
(Where applicable);
,‘
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6.2.2.4 Particulars of any other grants received by the accountholder;
6.2.2.5 Recent pre-paid electricity token.
6.2.3 Consent for the installation of any form of pre-paid electricity meters or flow
limited water meters as a system to limit the consumption of services and to
abate the accumulation of debt, needs to be obtained from the applicnt.
7.2.4 As part of the application, the applicant must be willing to give consent for external
scans and credit bureau checks;
6.2.5 If the application is approved, the indigent debtor who is in arrears will have the
initial arrears on approval of indigence written off by the Municipality.
6.2.6 The indigent status for household will valid as follows:
62.6.1 If the applicant is on pensionable age living with under age dependents, the
status will remain valid for 24 months. The municipality will review the
_appIication every 24 months and if status remain the same the status will
automatically renewed for 24 months after verification.
6.2.6.1 If the applicant is below 60 years, the indigent status is valid for 12 months. The
applicant should reapply after 12 months if they want support from the municipality.

-

6.2.7 All accepted appca:or’N.: mus c.L.ce ce:ñen supporting documentation fvhch
certificato must that
cani .it a.:Jat. ms- m+----cerfiei ac -not be older than 3 months.

6.3

Assessment & Screening of Applicants
63 1

After the application/registration process all information must be verified by
municipal official
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-6.3.4 The applicant should give consent to the municipality to conduct verification
if information provided through SARS, UIF, SASSA, Credit Information
Agencies. Failure to give consent the application will be rejected.

6.5
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EXTENT OF INDIGENT ASSISTANCE AND SUPPORT
The extent of the monthly indigent support granted to indigent households will
be
based on budgetary allocations for a particular financial year and the tariffs
determined for each financial year. Within the above framework, the following
Assistance and support will be granted:

7.1

Free basic water

,
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Each registered indigent household shall receive water
fully subsidized to a
maximum of 6 kiloliters per month, including the basic charge
s for such supply:
provided that•
•
•

7.2

Where the consumption exceeds 6kl per month the municipality
shall be
entitled to restrict water supply to the property.
Where excessive consumption is partly due to leaking the
household
should apply for rectification under 8.8 of this Policy.
The municipality must install a water restrictor to ensure that
the indigent
household does not exceed the 6k1 provided.

Free basic electricity
Each registered indigent household shall receive electricity fully
subsidized to a
maximum of 50 kWh per month. The municipality will install prepaid
electricity if
the household is on conventional to ensure better management
of electricity
consumption.

7.3

Free basic refuse removal
Each registered indigent household shall be fully subsid
ized for refuse as provided
for in the annual budget.

7.4

Free basic sanitation
Each registered indigent household shall be fully subsid
ized for sanitation as
provided for in the annual budget. Where an indigent househ
old has a sewerage
tank, only 1 (one) sanitation suction will be granted free of
charge per month.

7.5

Property Rates
Each registered indigent household shall be fully subsidized for property
rates
provided that the property value does not exceed R350 000 as
per the qualification
criteria.

7.6

Rental (Dwellings and sites)
100% subsidy on rates will be granted in respect of all dwellings or
sites
registered in the name of the municipality in the event of an existing
contract
between the municipality and the beneficiary to pay rent.
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7.7

Burials
In the event of the death of a member of an indigent household, the munic
ipality
may exempt the household from the cost of digging and preparation of
a grave,
provided that the burial takes place in a municipal cemetery. The
affected
household has to apply for above benefit._ Jhat, in exceptional
cases, the
municipality will assist indigent households with burial where it
has been
established they have no means as per Ward Councillor recomm
endation and
Executive Mayor’s approval

7.8
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Unforeseen property expenditures
The municipality may, upon its discretion and based on merit subsid
ise an indigent
household in full for any unforeseen expenditure associated with:
•
•

Water leakages
Faulty electricity meters etc.

This benefit will be dealt with by the municipal help desk.
7.9

Assistance on arrears

(a)
Approved applicants will qualify for a debt write-off on arrears for the
property applied for.
(b)
An indigent account holder qualifies for a write-off if the arrears are linked
to a water leakage and evidence of such a repair can be shown by the
municipal help desk.
Any write-off regarding (a) & (b) above have to be approved by the accoun
ting officer or
delegated official.
7.10

Transfer of property

Transfer of the property in the name of a deceased debtor to a benefic
iary.
7.1 0.1 If a beneficiary was legally appointed (testament) by the deceas
ed accountholder,
and the beneficiary is an indigent person the beneficiary (occupant) of
the
property will continue to qualify for indigent subsidy until the proper
ty is
transferred into the beneficiaries name.
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Where it is found that the beneficiary (occupant) will also qualify for indigent
subsidy, all the costs associated with the transfer of the property into the
beneficiaries’ name to be paid from the equitable share relating to the
indigent subsidy earmarked subject to the availability of budget and/or legal
aid.
Annually the Bitou Municipality has to budget for 10 houses to be transferred under
this policy. The names of the beneficiaries under this scheme
have
to
be
approved by Council.
The above process will be executed by the appointed attorneys of the
Bitou
Municipal Council.
7.10.2 If there is no legal beneficiary for the property of the deceased accountholde
r and
the deceased name appear on the list for transfers to be made and approved by
council the deceased account will be handed over to the attorneys of the Bitou
Municipality to get hold of the legal beneficiary of the property. The procedure as
described in 8.10.1 will then take place. The cost of the above will also be paid out
of the Indigent subsidy vote subject to availability of budget and/or legal aid.

8. INDIGENT HOUSEHOLD IN BODIES CORPORATE AND RETIREMENT CENTERS
Indigent consumers living in body corporate or retirement centers shall be eligible
to
qualify for assistance and support in terms of this policy, subject to the following
rules and procedures:
8.1

The onus will be on the Board of Trustees/Managing Agent/Chairperson of a Body
Corporate (hereinafter referred to as the representative of the Body Corporate of
Retirement Centre) to apply to the municipality, for indigent status to be granted in
respect of water consumption on behalf of the owners of those units, who meet
the criteria and conditions for qualification.

8.2

The onus will be on the unit owner to apply to the municipality for indigent status
to be granted in respect of indigent related charges.

8.3

The representative of the Body Corporate or Retirement Centre will submit
applications to the Chief Financial Officer which applications must be
accompanied by a certified copy of the Sectional Title Plan of the Body Corporate
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or Retirement Centre, which indicates the participation quota
for each unit, as
registered in the Deeds Office.
8.4

The Program Officer must verify all applications and after consid
eration by the
Indigent Committee he or she must notify:
8.4.1 The representative or the Body Corporate or Retirem
ent Centre whether an
application was successful or not, with regard to the water consum
ption;
and
8.4.2

8.5

The unit owner whether an application was successful or not, with
regard
to the property rates and other related charges.

The Chief Financial Officer will credit the monthly municipal:
8.5.1

account of a Body Corporate or Retirement Centre with related indigent
subsidy charges, the amount of which will be calculated by dividing
the
total number of kiloliters of water consumed by Body Corporate by
the
number of units in the complex, but up to a maximum of 200 liters
of water
per day for each unit that qualifies for assistance or by opening separa
a
te
separate account for the indigent and bill the normal non-indigent
levies
for normal consumers on the account of the Body Corporate or
retirement village.

8.6

The representative of the Body corporate or Retirement Centre in
respect which
monthly indigent credits are allowed under indigent support, must ensure
that such
credits are off-set against the monthly levies of the relevant individuals
units; such
representative also being required, once every six months, or at such
intervals as
may be determined by the municipality, to provide proof to
the Chief Financial
Officer: that the monthly levies of poor households which qualify
for assistance,
have been adjusted by the amounts of the account of the
Body Corporate or
Retirement Centre. This will be applicable if the indigent doesn’t have
a separate
account in his own name.

9.

PROCESS MANAGEMENT

9.1

Death of registered applicant
In the event that the approved applicant passes away the heir/s
of the property
must re-apply for indigent support, provided that the stipula
ted criteria are met.
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9.2

Publication of registered of indigent households
Names of indigent beneficiaries must be open for public perusal and comment.
Written objections from the public must be referred to the Program Officer who
will be responsible for investigating the validity of the complaint and referral to the
Indigent Committee for appropriate action.

9.3

Excess usage of allocation
10.3.1 If the level of consumption of the indigent household exceeds the
consumption level approved by the municipality, the household will be
obliged to pay for the excess consumption on a monthly basis. Such
accounts will be subject to the municipality’s credit control and debt
collection measures.
10.3.2 If a consumer’s consumption or use of a municipal service is less than the
subsidized service, may the unused portion not be accrued to the
consumer and will t not entitle the consumer to cash or a rebate with
regard to the unused portion.

10.4

Termination of indigent support
10.4.1 Indigent Support will be terminated under the following
circumstances:
10.4.1.i..Death of account-holder and where 5.9 is not applicable.
10.4.1.2

Upon application for de-registration as an indigent.

10.4.1.3

Upon sale of the property.

10.4.1.4 When circumstances in the indigent household have
improved to such an extent that the gross household income exceeds
the household income.
10.4.1.5 If the applicant is found to have left about his/her personal circumstances
or has furnished false information regarding indigent status, in which
case the following will apply:
Policy Title: Draft Review
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(a) All arrears will become payable immediately;
(b) Stringent credit control measures will apply; and
(c) The applicant will not be eligible to apply for
indigent support for a period of 2 years.
10.4.1.6 If in the case of a tenant, the indigent have to evacuate the house and
not moving into another house. The tenant has to inform Bitou Municipality.
10.4.1.7 In the case of an owner or tenant the indigent family leaving the house
temporarily for a period more than three months.
10.5.2 Moving of indigent people
(i) When an indigent family move from one house to another the family has
to inform the Municipality of the move by way of an affidavit. Then the
administration will verify the account and original application of applicant.
(ii) When a non-indigent family move into a house where free services were
provided the indigent support for the previous
occupant has to be
stopped and a new application form needs to be filled in.
(iii) On all application forms indigent applicants should be informed that
they have to report their movement to the Bitou Municipality.
(iv) When a tenant indigent family move out of a house, any debt that may
occur after moving out will be on the account of the owner.
(v) If an indigent family leave their house temporarily for more than 3 months
their benefits cease and if the house is being occupied by another family
they have to make a new application.
(vi) The indigent technical assistance will not be applicable to those
indigent people not living in their houses.
10.6

Audit and review

The municipality will conduct an audit of the indigent register on a quarterly basis
with
regard to the information furnished by applicants and possible changes in
status, the
usage of allocations and debt collection measures applied.
10.7

Exit program
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Members of households registered as indigent should be prepar
ed to participate in exit
programs coordinated by the municipality in collaboration
with other government
departments and the private sector organizations.
As part of its broader poverty reduction program the municipality
undertakes to provide
for the participation and accommodation of indigent person
s in its local economic
development (LED) initiatives! Expanded Public Works
Programme and in the
implementation of integrated development programs where
possible.
11.

MONITORING AND REPORTING

11.1

The Chief Financial Officer shall report quarterly to the Municipal
Manager in a
suitable format to enable the Municipal Manager to report
to the Mayor and other
interested parties. Such report shall reflect on:

11.1 .1 Number of indigent households applied;
11.1.2 Amount of subsidy allocated per service category;
11.1 .3Amount of debt accumulating and debt recovery information
(number
of customers; enquires; default arrangements; growth or diminishing
of arrear debtors; ideally divided into wards, domestic, state, insbtutional
and other such divisions);
11.1.4 Performance of all areas against targets set in the
municipality’s
performance management system
11.1.5 Changes in the registered status of indigents.

12.

CONCLUSION

jhat the policy be reviewed annually or as and when the need
arises.
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1.

PREAMBLE

In the spirit of the Municipal Finance Management Act, (No.56 of 2003)
to
modernize budget and financial management practices by placing local government
finances on a sustainable footing in order to maximize the capacity of municipalities
to deliver services to all residents customers, users and investors” and,

Whereas chapter 4 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, (No 56 of 2003)
determines that a municipality may, except where otherwise provided in the Act,
incur expenditure only in terms of an approved budget; and within the limits of the
amounts appropriated for the different votes in an approved budget,

In terms of the Budget and Reporting Regulations the municipality has to adopt a
policy which include the following:
1. A policy dealing with the shifting of funds within votes
2. A policy dealing with the introduction of adjustment budgets
3. Policies dealing with unforeseen and unavoidable expenditure
4. Policies dealing with management and oversight

Therefore the Bitou Municipality revised its Budget Policy to give effect to the Budget
and Reporting Regulations as set out in this policy.
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2.

DEFINITIONS

“Accounting officer” means a person appointed in terms of section 82(I) (a) or (b)
of the Municipal Structures Act; “Allocation”, means(a) A municipality’s share of the local government’s equitable share referred to in
section 214(l)
(a) Of the Constitution;
(b) An allocation of money to a municipality in terms of section 214(1) (c) of the
Constitution;
(c) An allocation of money to a municipality in terms of a provincial budget; or
(d) Any other allocation of money to a municipality by an organ of state, including by
another
Municipality, otherwise than in compliance with a commercial or other business
transaction;
“Annual Division of Revenue Act” means the Act of Parliament, which must be
enacted annually in terms of section 214(1) of the Constitution;
“Approved budget,” means an annual budget(a) Approved by a municipal council, or
(b) Includes such an annual budget as revised by an adjustments budget in terms of
section 28 of the MFMA;
“Basic Municipal Service” means a municipal service that is necessary to ensure
an acceptable and reasonable quality of life and which, if not provided, would
endanger public health or safety or the environment;
“Budget-related Policy” means a policy of a municipality affecting or affected by
the annual budget of the municipahty, including(a) The tariff policy, which the municipality must adopt in terms of section 74 of the
Municipal
Systems Act;
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(b) The rates policy which the municipality must adopt in terms of legislation
regulating municipal property rates; or
(c) The credit control and debt collection policy, which the municipality must adopt in
terms of section 96 of the Municipal Systems Act:
“Budget transfer” means transfer of funding within a function I vote subject to
limitations.
“Budget Year” means the financial year of the municipality for which an annual
budget is to be approved in terms of section 1 6(1) of the ME MA:
“Chief Financial Officer” means a person designated in terms of section 80(2) (a)
of the
MFMA:
“Councillor” means a member of a municipal council:
“Current year” means the financial year, which has already commenced, but not yet
ended:
“Delegation”, in relation to a duty, includes an instruction or request to perform or to
assist in performing the duty:
“Executive mayor” means the councillor elected as the executive mayor of the
municipality in terms of section 55 of the Municipal Structures Act;
“Financial recovery plan” means a plan prepared in terms of section 141 of the
MFMA
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“Financial year” means a twelve months period commencing on 1 July and ending
on 30 June each year
“Financing agreement” includes any loan agreement, lease, and instalment
purchase contract or hire purchase arrangement under which a municipality
undertakes to repay a long-term debt over a period of time;
“Fruitless and wasteful expenditure” means expenditure that was made in vain
and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised;
“Irregular expenditure”, means(a) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or
that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the MFMA, and which has not been
condoned by Council;
(b) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or
that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the Municipal Systems Act, and
which has not been
condoned in terms of that Act;
(c) expenditure incurred by a municipality in contravention of, or that is not in
accordance with, a requirement of the Public Office-Bearers Act, 1998 (Act No. 20 of
1998); or
(d) expenditure incurred by a municipality or municipal entity in contravention of, or
that is not in accordance with, a requirement of the supply chain management policy
of the municipality or entity or any of the municipality’s by-laws giving effect to such
policy, and which has not been condoned in terms of such policy or by-law, but
excludes expenditure

by a municipality which falls within the definition of

“unauthorised expenditure”;
“Investment/s”, in relation to funds of a municipality, means(a) the placing on deposit of funds of a municipality with a financial institution; or
(b) the acquisition of assets with funds of a municipality not immediately required,
with the primary aim of preserving those funds;
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“Local community” has the meaning assigned to it in section 1 of the Municipal
Systems Act;
“Municipal Structures Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Structures
Act, 1998 (Act No. ll7of 1998);
“Municipal Systems Act” means the Local Government: Municipal Systems Act,
2000 (Act No. 32 of 2000);
“Long-term debt” means debt repayable over a period exceeding one year;
“Municipal council” or “council” means the council of a municipality referred to in
section 18 of the Municipal Structures Act;
“Municipality”(a) when referred to as a corporate body, means a municipality as described in
section 2 of the Municipal Systems Act; or
(b) when referred to as a geographic area, means a municipal area determined in
terms of the Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 (Act No. 27 of
1998);
“Municipal service” has the meaning assigned to it in section 1 of the Municipal
Systems Act (refer to the MSA for definition);
“Municipal tariff” means a tariff for services which a municipality may set for the
provision of a service to the local community, and includes a surcharge on such
tariff;
“National Treasury” means the National Treasury established by section 5 of the
Public
Finance Management Act;
“Official”, means(a) an employee of a municipality or municipal entity;
(b) a person seconded to a municipality or municipal entity to work as a member of
the staff of the municipality or municipal entity; or

Policy Title: Budget Implementation and Monitoring Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for review Submitted to Council on 20/03/2020 with Draft Budget per Item
-

316

Page 9 of 26

(c) a person contracted by a municipality or municipal entity to work as a member of
the staff of the municipality or municipal entity otherwise than as an employee;

“Overspending”(a) means causing the operational or capital expenditure incurred by the municipality
during a financial year to exceed the total amount appropriated in that year’s budget
for its operational or capital expenditure, as the case may be;
(b) in relation to a vote, means causing expenditure under the vote to exceed the
amount
appropriated for that vote; or
(c) in relation to expenditure under section 26 of the MFMA, means causing
expenditure under that section to exceed the limits allowed in subsection (5) of this
section;
“Quarter’ means any of the following periods in a financial year:
(a) 1 July to 30 September;
(b) 1 October to 31 December;
(c) 1 January to 31 March; or
(d) 1 April to 30 June;
“Service delivery and budget implementation plan” means a detailed plan
approved by the executive mayor of a municipality in terms of section 53(l)(c)(ii) of
the MFMA for implementing the municipality’s delivery of municipal services and its
annual budget, and which must indicate(a) projections for each month of
(i) revenue to be collected, by source; and
(ii) operational and capital expenditure, by vote;
(b) service delivery targets and performance indicators for each quarter; and
(c) any other matters that may be prescribed, and includes any revisions of such
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plan by the executive mayor in terms of section 54(l) (c) of the MFMA;

“Unauthorised expenditure”, means any expenditure incurred by a municipality
otherwise than in accordance with section 1 5 or 11(3) of the MFMA, and includes(a) overspending of the total amount appropriated in the municipality’s approved
budget;
(b) overspending of the total amount appropriated for a vote in the approved budget;
(c) expenditure from a vote unrelated to the department or functional area covered
by the vote;
(d) expenditure of money appropriated for a specific purpose, otherwise than for that
specific
purpose;
(e) spending of an allocation referred to in paragraph (b), (c) or (d) of the definition of
“allocation” otherwise than in accordance with any conditions of the allocation; or
(f) a grant by the municipality otherwise than in accordance with the MFMA;

“virement” refer to the definition of budget transfer
“vote” means(a) one of the main segments into which a budget of a municipality is divided for the
appropriation of money for the different departments or functional areas of the
municipality; and
(b) which specifies the total amount that is appropriated for the purposes of the
department or functional area concerned.
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3.

OBJECTIVES OF POLICY

The policy sets out the budgeting principles which Bitou Municipality will follow in
preparing and implementing each annual budget. This policy shall give effect to the
requirements and stipulations of the Municipal Finance Management Act and
Municipal Budget and Reporting Framework in terms of the planning, preparation
and approval of the annual and adjustments budgets.
The policy shall apply to all staff and councillors of the Bitou Municipality that are
involved in budget implementation.

4. BUDGET PRINCIPLES
The municipality shall ensure that revenue projections in the budget are realistic
taking into account actual collection levels. The expenses may only be incurred in
terms of the approved annual budget (or adjustments budget) and within the limits of
the amounts appropriated for each vote in the approved budget.
Bitou Municipality shall prepare a three-year budget (medium term revenue and
expenditure framework (MTREF)) which will be reviewed annually and will be
approved by Council. The MTREF budget will at all times be within the framework of
the Municipal Integrated Development Plan (IDP).
The annual budget will consist of a Capital and Operating Budget which will be
discussed below:

4.1. Capital Budgets
The capital budget refers to the allocations made to specific infrastructural projects
and the purchase of equipment and other forms of assets having a lifespan of more
than one year.
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4.1.1. Basis of Calculation
a) The zero based method is used in preparing the new MTREF capital budget,
except in cases where a contractual commitment has been made that would
span over more than one financial year.
b) The annual capital budget shall be based on realistically anticipated revenue
(capital loans to be taken up will be deemed to be part of this), which should
be equal to the anticipated capital expenditure in order to result in a balanced
budget.
c) The impact of the capital budget on the current and future operating budgets
in terms of finance charges to be incurred on external loans, depreciation of
fixed assets, maintenance of fixed assets and any other operating expenditure
to be incurred resulting directly from the capital expenditure, should be
carefully analysed when the annual capital budget is being compiled.
d) In addition, the council shall consider the likely impact of such operational
expenses- net of any revenues expected to be generated by such item- on
future property rates and service tariffs.

4.1.2. Financing
Own Financing Sources
The Council shall establish a Capital Replacement Reserve (CRR) for the purpose of
financing capital projects and the acquisition of capital assets. Such reserve shall be
established from the following:
a) Unappropriated cash-backed surpluses to the extent that such surpluses are
not required for operational purposes.
b) Further amounts appropriated as contributions in each annual or adjustments
budget; and
c) Net gains on the sale of fixed assets in terms of the fixed asset management
and accounting policy.
a) interest on the investments of the asset financing reserve, appropriated in
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Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for review Submitted to Council on 20/03/2020 with Draft Budget per Item
-

320

Page 13o126

terms of the banking and investments policy;

Other Finance Sources
The Ad- Hoc capital budget shall be financed from external sources such as the
fo I lowing:
a) Grants and subsidies as allocated in the annual Division of Revenue of Act.
b) Grants and subsidies as allocated by Provincial government.
c) External Loans
d) Private Contributions
e) Contributions from the Capital Development Fund (developer’s contributions)
and,
f) Any other financing source secured by the local authority.

4.13. Process and responsible parties
The process to be followed in the compilation of the capital budget is as follows:
a) The CFO, in conjunction with the Manager: Budget Office, and after
consultation with the Portfolio Councillor of Finance sets the realistic growth
level of the capital budget to be financed out of own sources (CRR).
b) The draft capital budget is compiled based on the projects that emanated out
of the engagements with the different stakeholders.
c) The CFO, together with Councillors, the Manager: Budget and Treasury
Office, engage with the Directors and the IDP Manager in order to determine
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the priorities for a particular financial year and to determine the ranking of
projects based on these priorities.
d) The draft capital budget is submitted to the Mayoral Committee for their
perusal and suggestions.
e) The draft capital budget is tabled to Council 90 days before the start of the
new financial year (31 March).
f)

After the draft budget is approved by Council, it is released for public
comment.

g) Once the comments from the public have been submitted, noted and
considered, amendments are made to the draft budget and the budget is
tabled to Council for final approval 30 days before the start of the financial
year (30 May).

4.1.4. Implementation
a) After the budget has been approved, the service delivery and budget
implementation plan (SDBIP) should be compiled.
b) The SDB)P must be tabled to the Mayor within 28 days after aforementioned
approval.
c) Each director has to indicate the intended spending patterns of both their
capital and operating budgets. (Cash flows)
d) These listed cash flows are consolidated into the Service Delivery and Budget
Implementation Plan of the organisation.
e) The SDBIP will be monitored on a monthly basis where actual spending will
be compared with the planned spending as indicated by the directors at the
beginning of the year.
f)

Each directorate can use their respective vote numbers as indicated on the
capital budget

Before approving the capital budget component of the annual or adjustments budget,
the council shall consider the impact of the capital component on the present and
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future operating budgets of the municipality in relation depreciation charges; repairs
and maintenance expenses; interest payable on external borrowings; and other
operating expenses.

4.2. Operational Budget
The operational budget refers to the funds that would be raised in the delivery of
basic services, grants and subsidies and any other municipal services rendered.
These funds are in turn used to cover the expenses incurred in the day to day
running of the organization.

4.2.1. Basis of Calculation
a) A combination of the incremental approach and zero based method, with
incremental in the main being used in preparing the annual operating budget,
except in cases where a contractual commitment has been made that would
span over more than one financial year. In these instances the zero based
method will be followed.
b) The annual operating budget shall be based on realistically anticipated
revenue.
c) An income based approach shall be used whereby realistically anticipated
income is determined first and the level of operating expenditure would be
based on the determined income flow.

4.2.2. Financing
The operating budget shall be financed from the following sources:
a) Service Charges
(i)

Electricity Charges
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(ii)

Water Sales

(iii)

Refuse Removal Fees

(iv)

Sewerage Fees

b) Taxes

Increases in tariffs and rates will as far as possible be limited to
inflation plus an additional percentage increase to accommodate the growth of
the town.
-

c) Grants and Subsidies Grants and subsidies shall be based on all the gazetted
grants and subsidies plus all other subsidies received by the organization.
d) Interest on Investments The budget for interest and investment shall be in
-

-

accordance with the Cash Management and Investment policy of the
organization.
e) Rental Fees

Income from rental property will be budgeted for based on the
percentage growth rate as determined by Financial Services for a particular
-

budget year.
f)

Fines

Income from fines will be budgeted for based on the actual income
received in the preceding year (calculated on the basis of actual receipts until
-

end of February of each year, extrapolated over 12 months) and the
percentage growth rate as determined by Financial Services for a particular
budget year
g) Other Income

All other income items will be budgeted for based on the
actual income received in the preceding year (calculated on the basis of
-

actual receipts until end of February of each year, extrapolated over 12 months)
and the percentage growth rate as determined by Financial Services for a
particular budget year.
h) Notwithstanding the aforementioned, National and other benchmarks and
ratios
shall also be utilized to prevent uncontrolled negative growth of this source of
income.
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4.2.3. Budget Categories
The following expenditure categories shall be accommodated in the
operating budget:
a) Salaries, Wages and Allowances The salaries and allowances are calculated
-

based on the percentage increases as per the collective agreement between
organised labour and the employer for a particular period. The remuneration
of all political office bearers is based on the limitations and percentages as
determined by the responsible National Minister.
a) Employee related cost shall be separately prepared, and shall not exceed
34% of the aggregate operating budget component of the annual or
adjustments budget. For purposes of applying this principle, the remuneration
of political office bearers and other councillors shall not be included in this
limit.
b) Collection Costs

-

It refers to costs attributed to the maintenance of the

financial system used for the collection of outstanding amounts and is based
on the service level agreement.
c) Depreciation

-

The above is calculated at cost, using the straight line method,

to allocate their cost to their residual values over the estimated useful lives of
the assets.
d) Interest External Borrowings

The above refers to interest that has to be paid

-

on an external loan taken up by Council. The budget will be determined by the
repayments that the municipality is liable for based on the agreements entered
into with the other party.
e) Bulk Purchases

-

The expenditure on bulk purchases shall be determined

using the tariffs as stipulated by the Water Boards and NERSA and by any
other service provider from time to time.
f) Other General Expenditure

-

A percentage growth for all other general

expenditure will be based on the percentage determined by Financial
Services in line with prevailing growth rates, CPI and prior actual expenditure
trends.
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g) Repairs and Maintenance

-

The budget of repairs and maintenance shall be

based on the increment as determined by Financial Services in conjunction
with the needs of the departments in terms of repairing their assets.
h) Contributions to Funds

Refers to the contribution made to provisions (e.g.
leave reserve fund) on annual basis and is determined based on the actual
-

expenditure in the previous year and any other factor that could have an
effect.
i)

Less: Debited Elsewhere

j)

within the organization. The performance of each of line item is analysed
where after the budget is based on the preceding year’s performance.
Appropriations Refers to the transfers to- and from the Capital Replacement

-

This category refers to interdepartmental charges

-

Reserve, to offset depreciation charges. Appropriations are determined on an
annual basis.
4.2.4. Process
a) The CFO, in conjunction with the Manager: Budget Office, and after
consultation with the Executive Mayor and Portfolio Councillor of Finance, set
the reasonable growth level of the operational budget based on the current
financial performance and the prevailing industry growth levels. (i.e. CPI).
b) After the income has been determined, an acceptable growth level for the
operating

expenditure

is

determined and

the

principles informing

the

compilation of the draft operating budget are discussed at Budget Steering
Committee meeting.
c) The draft operating budget is compiled based on realistically anticipated
revenue resulting from detailed income modelling exercises.
d) The draft operating budget is submitted to the Mayoral Committee for
consideration.
e) The draft operating budget is tabled to Council 90 days before the start of the
new financial year (31 March).
f) After the draft operating budget is approved by Council, it is released for
public comment.

Policy Title: Budget Implementation and Monitoring Policy
Financial Year: 2020/202 1
Status: Draft for review Submitted to Council on 20/03/2020 with Draft Budget per Item
-

326

Page 19 of 26

g) Once the comments from the public have been submitted, same is considered
in terms of the MFMA, where after the draft budget is tabled to Council for
final approval, at least 30 days before the start of the new financial year (31
May).
4.2.5. Implementation
a) The draft SDBIP must be submitted with the draft budget as per the new
treasury guideline and can be refined after budget approval.
b) The SDBIP must be tabled to the Mayor within 28 days after aforementioned
approval.
c) Each director has to indicate the intended spending patterns of both their
capital and operating budgets. (Cash flows)
d) These listed cash flows are consolidated into the Service Delivery and Budget
Implementation Plan of the organisation.
e) The SDBIP will be monitored on a monthly basis where actual spending will
be compared with the planned spending as indicated by the directors at
the beginning of the year.
f)

Each directorate can use their respective vote numbers as indicated on the
capital budget.

g) The principles of efficient, effective and economic implementation should at all
times be applied.
h) Standard for income and expenditure where such have been determined via
NT Circulars shall be adhered to, e.g. Water losses and electricity distribution
allowable losses.
5. BUDGET STEERING COMMITTEE
5.1. The Mayor of the Municipality shall establish a Budget Steering Committee as
required by Regulation 4 of the Regulations.
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5.2. The function of the Budget Steering Committee is to provide technical
assistance to the Mayor in discharging the responsibilities set out in Section 53 and
elsewhere in the MFMA.

The Budget steering committee will meet at least four times in a year as determined
by the Chief Financial officer in consultation with the Mayor.

6. TIME SCHEDULE
6.1. The IDP Manager in consultation with the Senior Manager Budget and Treasury
shall draft the budget time schedule as required by Section2l (1) (b) for the ensuing
financial year for the Council’s approval.

6.2. Such time schedule shall indicate the target dates for the draft revision of the
IDP and the preparation of the annual budget for the ensuing financial year, which
target dates shall follow the prescriptions of the Municipal Finance Management Act,
for the submission of all the budget-related documentation to the mayor, finance
committee, executive committee and council.
6.3. Such time schedule shall provide for the deadlines, unless the Mayor, after
consultation with the Chief Financial Officer, determines otherwise: provided that the
requirements of the MFMA shall at all times be adhered to.
6.4. The Chief Financial Officer shall be responsible for ensuring that the time
schedule is adhered to.
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7. ADJUSTMENT BUDGET
a) An adjustments budget will be compiled only once a year if intended adjustments
fall in one of the following categories:
(i) to appropriate additional revenues that have become available over and above
those anticipated in the annual budget, but only to revise or accelerate
spending programmes already budgeted for;
(ii) to authorise the utilisation of projected savings in one vote towards spending
under another vote;
(iii)to authorise the spending of funds that were unspent at the end of the past
financial year where the under-spending could not reasonably have been
foreseen at the time to include projected roll-overs when the annual budget for
the current year was approved by the council;
(iv)To correct any errors in the annual budget.

The adjustments budget for above mentioned categories will be tabled to council at
any time
after the mid-year budget and performance assessment but not later than 28
February of the that financial year.
b) An adjustments budget will be compiled more than once a year if intended
adjustments fall in one of the following categories:
(i) To adjust the revenue and expenditure downwards if there is material under
collection of revenue during the current year
(ii) To appropriate additional revenues from National and Provincial Government
that have become available over and above those anticipated in the annual
budget, but only to revise or accelerate spending programs already budgeted
for;
(iii)To authorise unforeseeable and unavoidable expenditure recommended by
the Mayor
(iv)To authorise unauthorised expenditure as anticipated by section 28(2)(g) of
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the MFMA to authorise the spending of funds that were unspent at the end of
the past financial year where the under-spending could not reasonably have
been foreseen at the time to include projected roll-overs when the annual
budget for the current year was approved by the council.
(v) To correct any errors in the annual budget.
The adjustments budgets for above mentioned categories will be tabled to council at
the first available opportunity after above mentioned events occurred.
c) The adjustments budget will be treated in the same manner as the annual
budget in terms of calculation and implementation.
d) The adjustments budget must be approved by Council.
8. BUDGET VIREMENTATION
8.1 Virement Clarification
Virement is the process of transferring budgeted funds from one line item number to
another, with the recommendation of the relevant Director to the CFO or delegated
finance official, to enable the Budget Office to effect the adjustments.

8.2. Virement Procedure
a) All virement proposals must be completed on the appropriate documentation
and

forwarded

to

the

relevant

Finance

Officer

for

checking

and

implementation.
b) All virements must be signed by the Director of the directorate within which
the vote is allocated. (Section 79 MFMA)
c) Projected cash flows in the SDBIP should be adjusted in line with the virement.
d) All documentation must be in order and approved before any expenditure can
be committed and incurred. (Section 79 MFMA)
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e) No virements of funds across votes (directorates) will be accommodated during
the year; unless within the adjustments budget.
f) All virementations must be motivated and need to be approved by the CFO or
a delegated official after the Director of the department has recommended
said transfer. The latter requires that such application reaches the office of the
CEO prior to incurring expenditure. No virementation will be entertained if
found to facilitate the incurring of unauthorized expenditure.
g) No virementations will be considered after the February Adjustment budget
facilitating fiscal dumping
h) No Capital virementation will be considered if the transferred amount is more
than 20% of the Capital projects’ budgeted amount.
i)

Projects not having been committed in line with the approved SDBIP by the
end of November or the latest by 15 December, will be re-prioritized if the
motivations regarding actual performance, are found to not be credible

j)

A project/s that will not materialize for one or the other reason will only be
considered via the adjustment budget envisaged with the consideration of the
mid-year budget performance assessment.

k) No virementations after the closing of orders as stipulated in the financial
protocol and/or formally communicated in line with the financial year-end
preparation, will be considered unless in an absolute emergency that could
reasonable not have been foreseen.
8.3. Virement Restrictions
a) No funds can be viremented between the different types of budgets (E.g.
virements can only be made from basic capital to basic capital and operating
to operating).
b) No virement may be made where it would result in over expenditure of a line
item (section 32 MFMA).
c) No virement shall create new capital projects without the approval as
contemplated or allowed by the adjustments budget process.
d) No virement that would result in an increase in the staff establishment will be
allowed.
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e) The budget savings from the following line items (necessary adjustments)
may only be considered and transferred by the CFO
Salaries and allowances in case of an absolute emergency per
notification to MM and duly motivated
ii.

Depreciation

iii.

Finance Charges (Interest on Loan)

iv.

Appropriations

v.

Contributions to Funds

vi.

Administration Cost

vii.

Municipal Services Consumption (Water,

Electricity,

Refuse and

Sewerage)

f)

viii.

Internal charges

ix.

Bulk Purchases (Water and Electricity)

x.

Agency Fees

An approved virement does not give expenditure authority outside of what is
allowed by Council’s Supply Chain Management Policy.

g) Virements may not be made between Expenditure and Income.
h) Virements across expenditure categories can only be authorised by the CFO.
(E.g. from one “Repairs and Maintenance” vote number to a “General
Expenses” vote number and will be limited to emergencies only.
i)

No virements are permitted in the first three months or the final month of the
financial year without the express agreement of the CEO.

j)

Virement amount may not be rolled over to subsequent years, or create
expectations on following budgets (Section 15 MFMA).

k) Virements may not exceed a maximum of Ri, 000, 000.00 per vote per
financial year as periodically reviewed by Council except in an exceptional case
where service delivery is affected negatively. These exceptional events that
deem for virement to be approved must be reported to in the next council
meeting.
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9. BUDGET IMPLEMENTATION

9.1 Monitoring (Section 71 of MFMA)
The Accounting Officer with the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer and other
senior managers is responsible for the implementation of the budget, and must take
all reasonable steps to ensure that:
a) funds are spent in accordance with the budget:
b) expenses are reduced if expected revenues are less than projected: and
c) revenues and expenses are properly monitored.

9.2 Reporting

9.2.1 Monthly budget statements (Section 71 of the MFMA)
The Accounting Officer with the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer must, not
later than ten working days after the end of each calendar month, submit to the
Executive Mayor and Provincial and National Treasury a report in the prescribed
format on the state of the municipality’s budget for such calendar month, as well as
on the state of the budget cumulatively for the financial year to date.
This report must reflect the following:
a) actual revenues per source, compared with budgeted revenues;
b) actual expenses per vote, compared with budgeted expenses:
c) actual capital expenditure per vote, compared with budgeted expenses;
d) actual borrowings, compared with the borrowings envisaged to fund the
capital budget:
e) the amount of allocations received, compared with the budgeted amount:
f) actual expenses against aHocations, but excluding expenses in respect of the
equitable share;
g) explanations of any material variances between the actual revenues and
expenses as
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h) indicated above and the projected revenues by source and expenses by vote
as set out in the service delivery and budget implementation plan;
i)

the remedial or corrective steps to be taken to ensure that the relevant
projections remain within the approved or revised budget; and

j)

projections of the revenues and expenses for the remainder of the financial
year, together with an indication of how and where the original projections
have been revised.

9.2.2 Quarterly Reports (Section 52 of MFMA)
The Executive Mayor must submit to Council within thirty days of the end of each
quarter a report on the implementation of the budget and the financial state of
affairs of the municipality. The report submitted to National and Provincial Treasury
must be both in electronic format and in a signed written document.
9.2.3 Mid-year budget and performance assessment (Section 72 and 88 of
MFMA)
The Accounting Officer must assess the budgetary performance of the municipality
for the first half of the financial year, taking into account all the monthly budget
reports for the first six months, the service delivery performance of the municipality
as against the service delivery targets and performance indicators which were set in
the service delivery and budget implementation plan.
The Accounting officer must then submit a report on such assessment to the
Executive Mayor by 25 January each year and to Council, Provincial Treasury and
National Treasury by 31 January each year. The Accounting Officer may in such
report make recommendations after considering the recommendation of the Chief
Financial Officer for adjusting the annual budget and for revising the projections of
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revenues and expenses set out in the servi
ce delivery and budget implementation
plan.

10. REVIEW OF POLICY
This policy took effect on 1 July 2020
(excluding the amended sections for
consideration) and shall be reviewed on an
annual basis to ensure that it is in line
with the municipality’s strategic objective
s, good governance, and prudent
expenditure management and with relevant legis
lation.
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1.

OBJECTIVES OF THE SCHEME

The scheme must provide for participation by employees of the municipality
who, with the consent of the Council make use of private transport in the
execution of official duties. The policy also provides for the payment of a
travelling allowance as part of benefits payable to employees in terms of the
position occupied and conditions of appointment. Participation is thus
determined by the usage of private transport for official purposes, irrespective
of whether the utilisation of such transport is temporary, occasional or
continuous, as well as conditions of appointment, taking cognisance of the cost
benefits and financial considerations.

2.

PRINCIPLES OF A TRAVELLING ALLOWANCE SCHEME

2.1 Must be reasonable towards both the municipality and the employee.
2.2 Must primarily be aimed at compensating for actual transport cost
incurred in the execution of duties.
2.3 Must provide a meaningful basis of compensation
2.4 Must prescribe benefits and conditions for employees who have to use
private transport for the in the execution of official duties
2.5 Must be updated regularly to prevent over or under compensation.
2.6 Must take into consideration the geographical area of the municipality
when limits or conditions are determined
2.7 Must provide for adequate compensation for employees travelling on an
ad-hoc basis.
2.8 Must use up to date market related values for calculation of
compensation amounts
2.9 Must provide for fixed as well as running cost components.
2.10 Must provide for minimum and maximum kilometres travelled.
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2.11 Must provide for adequate control by supervisors.
2.12 Must provide for the suspension of benefits under certain conditions.
3.

REQUIREMENTS FOR PARTICIPATION

3.1 Sole use of own transport by the incumbent must be a prerequisite in
the execution of official duties.
3.2 Appropriate private transport, in accordance with the job requirements
and duties of the position must be available for daily official use. The
preferred vehicle to be used by the incumbent for the purpose of official
travel must be registered on the scheme and a valid vehicle registration
certificate which must be in the names of the incumbent must be
presented prior to the payment of any allowance in terms of the scheme
3.3 Log sheets substantiating travelling may be required to be submitted to
a relevant Departmental Director from time to time. Any official can be
required by the respective Departmental Director to make use of an
electronic trip logging system as supplied by the municipality to
substantiate actual kilometres travelled and/or claimed.
3.4 Appointment on, promotion to, or grading as a level in the organization
regarded as being management and to which a travelling allowance
therefore accrues as part of the conditions of service.
4.

RULES AND PRINCIPLES APPLIED

4.1.
Basis of calculation of monthly allowance:
4.1.1. The appropriate A.A. Rates Table should be used in determining
the monthly travelling allowance.
4.1.2. The fixed cost component to be determined as follows: The basic
salary of an incumbent, annual notch amount plus 1 3tl cheque as
a total value are to be used as an equivalent of the purchase price
of the vehicle, the fixed cost per kilometre as reflected in the
10,000km column of the table equal to the fixed cost determined
should then be multiplied by the kilometre allowance applicable
to the incumbent to determine the monthly fixed cost amount. (D)
4.1 .3. The Vehicle running cost to be determined as follows:
FINANCIAL YEAR: 2020/21
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4.1.3.1. Calculate the fuel cost per kilometre relevant to the vehicle
of the incumbent registered on the scheme to a maximum
engine capacity of a 2200cc vehicles in accordance with
column ‘A” of the running cost tables of the AA rates Table,
by taking the fuel factor and multiplying it with the fuel price
as updated bi-annually (1 April and 1 October) as follows:
(Fuel factor) x (Fuel Price) = fuel cost per kilometre (A)
Add the service and repair cost in cent per kilometre as
4.1.3.2.
reflected in column “B” of the running cost table of the AA
rates tables (B)
4.1 .3.3.

Add the tyre cost in cent per kilometre as reflected in
column “C” of the running cost table of the AA rates
tables (C)

4.1.3.4.

Add together the result of (A) + (B) + (C) to determine the
total vehicle running cost per kilometre.

4.1.3.5.

Now add together the fixed cost per month (D) as
determined in 4.1.2 above and (A) + (B) + (C) to
determine the total cost per kilometre that the
incumbent is entitled to. This amount is then to be
multiplied by the kilometre allowance allocated to the
position to determine the monthly travelling allowance.

4.2. The geographical area of the municipality as well as the level of seniority
of the position must be taken into consideration in determining the
kilometre limits and the following is proposed:
4.2.1 Positions qualifying will receive allowances based on the following
kilo metres
4.2.1.1 Post level T15 to T20 including all management staff and
fixed terms contract employees where the T-level is
determined by Council 850Km
4.2.1.2 Employees in T14 level, all management staff and fixed terms
contract employees where the T-level is determined by
Council 750 Km.
-

-

4.2.2 If the fixed kilometre allowance above is exceeded, running cost
equal to that of the vehicle registered on the scheme will be paid
for all kilometres in excess of the kilometre quota that is
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substantiated either by log sheets or electronic log sheets
generated from the electronic trip logger system submitted.
4.2.3 The monthly fixed allowance as determined in terms of the post
level applies to all official travel inside the area of jurisdiction of
the Bitou.
4.2.4 No additional compensation will be paid to incumbents for official
travel if travelling is less than the kilometre quota determined for
the position.
5.

AD-HOC TRAVELLING NON-PARTICIPANTS IN TRAVELLING
SCHEME INSIDE AREA OF JURISDICTION

4.3. An employee who does not qualify for participation in terms of the
requirements of the scheme will be compensated for Ad-Hoc
kilometres travelled through a reimbursement of the actual kilometres
return trip, measured from the place of residence (accept if the
employee is at work, when he/she is expected to travel for official
purposes, in which case, the place of work will be used to calculate
actual distance travelled) to the destination on the shortest possible
route (return trip)
4.4. Reimbursement for travelling will be calculated at the rates approved by
the Department of Transport for private transport used for official
purposes.
4.5. Employees requesting re-imbursement for ad-hoc travelling must
provide the municipality with proof of the vehicle particulars to enable
the processing of the claim.
4.6. All ad-hoc travelling must be approved by the respective Departmental
Directors in advance.

6.

COMPENSATION

6.1 The travelling allowances applicable to incumbents will be paid monthly
in arrears.
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6.2 Kilometres in excess of the maximum kilometre limit will be paid with the
monthly travelling allowance in arrears.
6.3 Ad hoc travelling claims will be paid to employees upon submission of
an approved claim on a weekly basis with the provision that not more
than 2 (Two) claims per employee will be paid per month.
6.4 Ad hoc travelling claims for trips outside the area of jurisdiction may be
considered to be paid on an advance basis with the provision that no
advance be paid to employees more than 5 days prior to the
scheduled trip.

7.

REIMBURSEMENT FOR KILOMETERS OUTSIDE AREA OF
JURISDICTION

7.1 Staff taking part in the travelling allowance scheme A reimbursement
of the actual kilometres travelled return trip, measured from the place
of work to the destination calculated at the rates approved by the
Department of Transport for private transport used for official
purposes. For the purpose of calculation the reimbursement the
interval for a 1951-2150cc petrol sedan vehicle, category ‘A” on the
rates table of the Department of Transport must be used.
—

7.2 Staff not taking part in a travelling allowance scheme and essential car
user scheme participants A reimbursement of the actual kilometres
travelled return trip, measured from the place of residence to the
destination calculated at the rates approved by the Department of
Transport for private transport used for official purposes. For the
purpose of calculating the reimbursement, the vehicle particulars
used for the trip will be used subject thereto that the engine capacity
will be capped at 2150cc
-

7.3 Councillors A reimbursement of the actual kilometres travelled return
trip, measured from the place of residence to the destination
calculated at the rates approved by the Department of Transport for
private transport used for official purposes as determined in terms of
the Remuneration of Public Office Bearers Act.
-

7.4 Where the trip necessitates that travelling be done directly from the
place of residence and back, the actual kilometres travelled will be
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calculated on a return trip basis from the place of residence instead of
the place of work.
8.

APPROVALS
8.1

Participation
The Municipal Manager is mandated to approve
participation in the scheme upon receipt of sufficient evidence that an
incumbent qualifies in terms of the rules of the scheme.
—

8.2 Exceeding of monthly kilometres The respective Departmental Director
to approve, upon submission of log sheets by the incumbent to
substantiate the kilometres travelled.
—

8.3 Ad-hoc kilometres
Approval by the relevant Departmental Director
upon submission of a valid claim (including prior approval) by the
respective officials.
—

8.4 All approvals in terms of the Travelling Allowance scheme, whether for
participation in the scheme or for ad-hoc kilometres travelled must be
confirmed in writing.
9.

HOW TO TREAT EMPLOYEES ON CURRENT SCHEMES
9.1 In order to ensure parity in the application of travelling allowance
schemes it would be preferable to migrate all employees to the new
scheme, employees have however been appointed under certain
conditions of employment and the application of current policies have
been applied in accordance with certain practices that will place a
huge financial strain on recipients of the travelling allowances if all
staff are migrated from the onset. Migration of employees will
therefore be handled as follows:
9.1.1 Employees may exercise a once-off option to voluntarily migrate from
the PERK-Scheme Travel Allowance to the current Council’s
approved Travelling Allowance Policy.
9.1.2 Employees may choose to remain on the current PERK-Scheme
where-after their allowances will be fixed at the current amounts, with
no possibility of an increase until they replace their vehicle where-after
they will be transferred to the new scheme.

TRAVEL ALLOWANCE POLICY

FINANCIAL YEAR: 2020/21

Draft Review, submitted to Council on 31/03/2020 with Draft Budget per Item C/2/172/03/3o

7
343

9.1.3 All new staff members qualifying to participate in the travelling
allowance scheme from date of adoption of the policy will be placed
on the new travelling allowance scheme.
9.1 .4 Employees participating in the essential car user scheme will remain
on that scheme with the exception that reimbursement for travelling
outside the area of jurisdiction will be done in accordance with the
provisions set out in point 7.2 of the policy.
9.2 Toll fees
Toll fees will be reimbursed upon submission of Tollgate
receipts by the incumbent. E-toll fees where applicable will be
reimbursed on submission of a valid e-toll invoice made out to the
official receiving the travelling allowance for the vehicle registered on
the scheme.
—

9.3 Determination of kilometre distances
Council will determine the
standard distances between the municipal offices at its nodal point
and all other offices, municipalities, or venues that are visited on a
regular basis by its employees. The standard kilometres must be used
upon submission of log sheets to substantiate kilometres travelled.
—

9.4 If no standard distance measurements are available the shortes
t
distance to the destination travelled to must be used as actual
kilometres travelled.
9.5 No official transport shall be provided to an incumbent receiving
a
travelling allowance.
9.6 An official receiving a travelling allowance must at all times ensure that
a fully functional and operational vehicle that suits the requirement of
the job to be performed is available for the execution of his/her duties.
9.7 If the maximum kilometre limit for a specific incumbent or position is
exceeded the actual kilo metres travelled must be substantiated by log
sheets, where-after the excess kilometres travelled will be reimbursed
on a running cost basis only, no additional fixed portion will be payable.
9.8 Should there be an abnormal fluctuation
(> thanlO%) in the fuel price
(per price confirmation from local filing stations) measured over the
review period, the CFO is authorised to recalculate the fuel
component of the variable portion of the allowance payable to
employees and update the allowances to employees accordingly. A
TRAVEL ALLOWANCE POLICY
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fuel price adjustment will also be done concurrent with the
implementation date of the annual budget being 1 July of each year.
9.9 Review of the amounts payable should be done Bi-Annually and the
Municipal Manager or his delegated authority is authorised to do so in
terms of the rules and provisions of this policy.
10.
ALLOWANCES PAYABLE TO EMPLOYEES RECEIVING ANNUAL ALL
INCLUSIVE SELF STRUCTURED REMUNERATION PACKAGES

10.1 Employees paid an annual all-inclusive cost to company package that is
not linked to a T-level may elect to receive a portion of their annual
remuneration as a travelling allowance, this portion is not linked to the AA tables
upon which the calculation of travelling allowances of full time employees are
based, and will therefore not be adjusted in accordance with the changes of the
AA rates from time to time.
10.2 The running cost reimbursement and other matters not covered by this
policy will be contractually agreed upon with the respective incumbent.
11.

TERMINATION

11.1 Should the job requirements of an incumbent receiving a travelling
allowance change through any process of re-deployment, re-structuring or
amendment of the operational requirements of the Municipality in any way
whatsoever thereby causing that it is no longer necessary to regularly travel for
official purposes, the travelling allowance payable to the incumbent will cease
to be paid within six (6) months of such re-deployment, re-structuring or
amendment of the operational requirements of the municipality.
11.2 Should an incumbent, after the conclusion of a disciplinary process be
demoted in rank resulting in the recipient of a travelling allowance to fall outside
the applicable T-levels thereby disqualifying the incumbent from taking part in
the travelling allowance scheme, the payment of the allowance will cease within
three months from the date of such final ruling of demotion by the disciplinary
committee or appeal authority.
11.3 Should any employee be found guilty of defrauding or attempting to
defraud the municipality in any way with regards to the requirements for
participation in the scheme or in respect of any claim submitted for travelling

TRAVEL ALLOWANCE POLICY
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done, the Municipal Manager may immediately terminate the payment of
any travelling allowance to such employee.
11.4 Should any allegations of an occurrence of fraudulent behaviour be
received and be investigated, the Municipal Manager may suspend the
payment of a travelling allowance to such employee until the outcome of the
investigation.
12. REVIEW
12.1 This policy will be reviewed annually to be in line with municipal practices
and legislation.
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BITOU MUNICIPALITY
OVERTIME POLICY
1.

2.
3.
84

45

OBJECTIVE
The objective of the Policy is to supplement the Conditions of the Service applicable
to employees of Bitou Municipality.
LEGAL FRAMEWORK
Se11en4D-of-Basic Conditions of Employment Act (75/1 997) (hereafter referred to as
the BCEA),
Paragraph 11 of SALGA Main Collective Agreement signed on 4 June 2009
Collective Agreement on Conditions of Services for the Western Cape Division of the
SALGBc,
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...

I
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DEFIN ITIONS
Earnings means the retirement funding income or regular annual remuneration
before deductions, i.e. income tax, pension, medical and seminar payments but
excluding similar payments (contributions) made by the employer in respect of the
employee. Provide further that subsistence and transport allowance received,
achievement awards and payments for the overtime worked shall not be regarded
as remuneration for the purpose this notice.

6Emergency Work means work that must be done without delay because of
circumstances for which the employer could not reasonable have been expected to
make provision and which cannot be performed by employees during their
ordinary hours of work. Emergency work excludes the performance routine
maintenance work outside normal working hours.
67

Overtime means the time that the employees work during a day or a week in
excess of normal work. Employees of Bitou Municipality work for 40 hours in a
normal workweek, Monday to Thursday from 07:30 to 16:30 with a lunch break
from 13h00 to 13h30 and Friday 07:30 to 13:30. Some employees work shifts and
I or on weekends and public holidays.

7 8.

Public Holidays means any day that is a public holiday in terms of the Public
Holidays Act, 1994 (Act 36 of 1994):

89.

Senior managerial employee means an employee who has the authority to hire
discipline and / or dismiss employees and to present the employer internally and

.1
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externally and for purposes of this policy includes all employees remunerated n a
grading of 0 to 4 or TASK grading of 13 to 25.

S 10

Shift worker means an employee engaged in a scheduled continuous process
which actively is deemed to be one on which continued working by means of
daily shift is necessary

‘011. Planned overtime means overtime where the overtime could have been and/or was
foreseen and / or where overtime is worked in accordance with a schedule compiled
beforehand. Such overtime includes the performance of routine maintenance;
council and committee meetings where minutes must be kept and continues or takes
place after normal working hours, traffic and law enforcement work during season,
etc.
11.12 Unplanned overtime means overtime where the overtime could not have been
foreseen. This refers to emergency overtime.

SCOPE OF THE POLICY
-2-i3 The purpose of this policy is to regulate overtime worked by employees of Bitou
Local Municipality outside their normal working hours.
t314. The policy applies from being approved by the Municipal Manager.
‘415 The policy will apply until amended and such amendment/s being approved or
recommended by the Municipal Manager.

PRINCIPLES
1516 Working overtime should be the exception rather than the rule, supervisors and
especially Directors must ensure that overtime work is minimized overtime.
‘517 Where overtime cannot be prevented, and where possible, the work to be done
should be stipulated beforehand indicating what needs to be done and was
performed in the most cost effective manner.

TIME OFF IN LIEU OF OVERTIME
17.18 Time off must always be preferred over paid overtime.
-

1&1 9. Payment in respect of overtime should only be applied where it is impractical or
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impossible to allow time off in lieu of overtime.
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t2 20 Time off in lieu of overtime worked must be taken within 6 months from the date
of accrual. Time off not taken within 6 months will be forfeited. The Municipal
Manager may for operational reasons, extend this 6 months period to a maximum
of 12 months.
OVERTIME WORKED ON PUBLIC HOLIDAYS
2-G1-21 Work on Public Holidays must be remunerated at double the normal remuneration.
If a shift worked by an employee falls on a public holiday and another day,
the whole shift is deemed to have been worked on the public holiday, but if
the greater portion of the shift was worked on the other day, the whole shift is
deemed to have been worked on the other day.
OVERTIME WORKED ON SUNDAYS
2122 Work on Sundays must be remunerated at double the normal remuneration
unless the employee ordinary works on Sunday, in which case the employer
must pay the employee at one and one-half times the employees wage for each
hour worked.
2223 If an employee works less than the employee’s ordinary shift on a Sunday and
the payment that the employee is entitled to in terms of the previous paragraph is
less than the employee’s ordinary daily wage, the employer must pay the
employee the employee’s daily wage.

2324. If a shift worked by an employee falls on a Sunday and another day, the whole
shift is deemed to have been worked on the Sunday, unless the greater portion of
the shift was worked on the other day, in which case the whole shift is deemed to
have been worked on the other day.
ADMINISTRATIVE MEASURES FOR MANAGING AND CONTROL OF
OVERTIME AND WORK ON SUNDAYS AND PUBLIC HOLIDAYS
2A25 Each Director is responsible and accountable to constantly monitor and review
the provisions for overtime on his! her budget and to ensure that overtime is
limited, trends are noted early, funds are adequate, over expenditure is noted,
justified and provided for timeously.
2526. The authorizing body must determine whether the information on the overtime
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form is accurate and correct before they authorize the form for payment / time off.
Attendance registers, time sheets and overtime approval forms, which should
indicate dates, starting and ending times, must be kept as source for three years
in respect of all employees who qualify for the overtime payment or time off in
terms of this policy. Attendance registers or time sheets should serve as source
documents to complete overtime sheets.
26r27.All employees have to complete and sign an attendance registers / time
sheets/clock in and out on biometric system on a daily basis. Line managers /
supervisors have to check and sign such attendance registers / time sheets on a
weekly basis. Attendance registers I time sheets which are signed / approved by
the competent authority must be submitted to the payroll section office on a
monthly basis.

APPLICATION I REMUNERATION
27-28. Senior Managerial Eemployees earning a basic ceroowefatiGn—paokagesaia in
excess of the BCEA earning threshold-of the starting notch of T14 and above,
excluding the Municipal Manager and Directors shall be eligible for time off in lieu
of payment ofor overtime worked on the basis of an hour time
off for every
hour worked. The relevant director and employee shall come to an agreement on
the time-off arrangement.
—

2829. Notwithstanding the above, where an employee in this category is on standby in
terms of the Collective Agreement on Conditions of Service for the Western
Cape Division of the SALGBC, such employee will receive overtime payment
when called out irrespective of the statutory threshold.
Employees earning mere—than the overtime threshold, as pro.sded for in the BCE-\, but less—
thaw-Lhe-mm+mLm-bHs-rmuawhnLebaWbTe-for-tm---&ff4n41vsvt-pavriiee+F wernme ssorl,ed en the bgs-eg-ewe—he-yFwae—-efF-fo +te-hem--ef-ecLwhe--werked. 1 he-.
relevanl manager or director and the employee s ill con’re—te—-ait a’ereement en tie lime off
arrow eefflent
29-—

Notwithetanding the above, where an employee

in

thia—eatege
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3-1--3O.As operational reasons applicable at Bitou Local Municipality, especially over the
period from the 01 December to 10 January requires more man hours from
protection services and other disciplines that would be available should the
legislative framework been followed, the LLF agreed to an extension of the
number of hours overtime applicable to certain employees.
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32-31 Should the employee agree an agreement must be entered into between the
employer and each individual employee who was identified for overtime in access
of the statutory determination. Such agreement to perform overtime must limit
the maximum permitted overtime to 15 hours per week and to a maximum of 12
hours a day.
GENERAL
33 32 Overtime work is subjected to prior written approval by a competent authority and
no overtime may be worked without such written approvals being obtained, except
in cases of work related to emergency situations where work has to be done
without delay owing to circumstances for which the employer could not
reasonably have expected to make provision for and which cannot be performed
by employees during their ordinary hours of work. For emergency overtime the
competent authority may give verbal approval for the working of such overtime
provided such approval is followed-up with a written confirmation. Written
standing approval may be granted where justified by operational requirements
and such approval may not endure beyond the existence of the operational
requirement.
3433.Directorates are required to submit written motivations for the performing of
overtime, planned and unplanned, to the Municipal Manager for approval. This
must be done one month prior to the commencement of the new financial year.
3-3-34: Directors may approve overtime work and payment of overtime worked by
employees after approval from the Municipal Manager.
3-3-35 Overtime only commences after completion of an employee’s ordinary weekly
working hours.
3736 Overtime can only be claimed for actual hours worked and exclude travelling time
except for standby staff. In respect of standby staff the overtime starts from the
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time of call out.
34-37 No overtime will be paid for attendance of functions / prize giving, etc. except in
cases of compulsory attendance as official representative of Council provided
that such employee qualifies for overtime in terms of this policy and such overtime
is authorized in advance in terms of this policy.

.34.38 Employees working overtime are not entitled to any benefits except the overtime
payment (they do not qualify for meals, drinks, etc.).
4C 39. Should unstructured overtime work result in an employee working past midnight
on a day, the person authorizing such overtime must consider whether a break of
at least eight hours should be enforced before the start of the next shift. Such
time off will be regarded as time off in lieu overtime.
4-1—40 Should an employee who is appointed on less than a full day (5/8th basis) be
required to work overtime, payment or time off in lieu of overtime payment will
only be applied at overtime rates (should such a person qualify in terms of this
policy) after 8 hours worked on that specific day. The hours worked beyond the
employee’s normal working hours up to 8 hours will be remunerated at normal
tariffs (on a straight line).
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INFRASTRUCTURE PROCUREMENT AND DELIVERY
MANAGEMENT POLICY
1.

SCOPE

1.1.

This is the Bitou Local Municipality Policy for Infrastructure Procurement and Delivery
Management in accordance with the provisions of the regulatory frameworks for procurement and
supply chain management.

1.2.

The scope includes the procurement of goods and services necessary for a new facility to be
occupied and used as a functional entity but excludes:
a)

the storage of goods and equipment following their delivery to the Bitou Municipality which are
stored and issued to contractors or to employees;
b) the disposal or letting of land;
c) the conclusion of any form of land availability agreement;
d) the leasing or rental of moveable assets; and
e) public private partnerships.
f) Provision of municipal services by external mechanism referred to in s8 of MSA.
1.3.

2.

This Policy applies to construction-related works for the provision of new infrastructure or the
rehabilitation, refurbishment or alteration of existing infrastructure, projected to cost in excess of
R30 000.

TERMS, DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

2.1.

In this Policy, unless the context otherwise indicates, a word or expression to which a meaning
has been assigned in the Municipal Finance Management Act, no 56 of 2003, or the Standard,
where applicable, has the same meaning as in the Act, and the following apply—

2.1.1.

“Authorised Person”

the municipal manager or chief executive or the appropriately
delegated authority to award, cancel, amend, extend or
transfer a contract or order

2.1.2.

“Accounting Officer”

in relation to a Municipality means the Municipal Manager as
described in Section 60 of the Local Government: Municipal
Finance Management Act, no 56 of 2003 as well as Section 82
of the Municipal Structures Act, no 117 of 1998.

2.1.3.

“Conflict of Interest”

any situation in which:
a)

someone in a position of trust has competing
professional or personal interests which make it difficult
for him to fulfil his duties impartially.

b)

an individual or organization is in a position to exploit a
professional or official capacity in some way for his
personal or for corporate benefit, or

c)

incompatibility or contradictory interests exist between an
employee and the organization which employs that
employee

Policy Title: Bitou Municipality Infrastructure Procurement Delivery Management Policy_
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2.1.4.

“Contract Manager”

person responsible for administering a package on behalf of
the employer and performing duties relating to the overall
management of such contract from the implementer’s point of
view

2.1.5.

“Family Member”

a person’s spouse, whether in a marriage or in a customary
union according to indigenous law, domestic partner in a civil
union, or child, parent, brother, sister, whether such a
relationship results from birth, marriage or adoption

2.1.6.

“Framework Agreement”

an agreement between an organ of state and one or more
contractors, the purpose of which is to establish the terms
governing orders to be awarded during a given period, in
particular with regard to price and, where appropriate, the
quantity envisaged

2.1.7.

“Gate”

a control point at the end of a process where a decision is
required before proceeding to the next process or activity

2.1.8.

“Gateway Review”

an independent review of the available information at a gate
upon which a decision to proceed or not to the next process is
based

2.1.9.

“Gratification”

an inducement to perform an improper act

2.1.10. “Infrastructure Delivery”

the combination of all planning, technical, administrative and
managerial actions associated with the construction, supply,
renovation, rehabilitation, alteration, maintenance, operation or
disposal of infrastructure

2.1.1 1. “Infrastructure
Procurement”

the procurement of goods or services including any
combination thereof associated with the acquisition,
renovation, rehabilitation, alteration, maintenance, operation or
disposal of infrastructure

2.1.12. “Maintenance”

the combination of all technical and associated administrative
actions during an item’s service life to retain it in a state in
which it can satisfactorily perform its required function

2.1.13. “Operation”

combination of all technical, administrative and managerial
actions, other than maintenance actions, that results in the
item being in use

2.1.14. “Order”

an instruction to provide goods, services or any combination
thereof under a framework agreement

2.1.15. “Organ of State”

an organ of state as defined in Section 239 of the Constitution
of the Republic of South Africa

2.1.16. “Procurement Document”

documentation used to initiate or conclude (or both)a contract
or the issuing of an order

2.1.17. “Principal”

a natural person who is a partner in a partnership, a sole
proprietor, a director a company established in terms of the
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Companies Act of 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) or a member of a
close corporation registered in terms of the Close Corporation
Act, 1984, (Act No. 69 of 1984)
2.1.18. “Standard”

the latest edition of the Standard for Infrastructure
Procurement and Delivery Management as published by
National Treasury

2.1.19. “Working Day”

any day of a week on which is not a Sunday, Saturday or
public holiday

2.2.

Abbreviations
For the purposes of this document, the following abbreviations apply:

2.2.1.
2.2.2.
2.2.3.
2.2.4.

3.
3.1.

CIDB
IPDM
SARS
SCM

Construction Industry Development Board
Infrastructure Procurement Delivery Management
South African Revenue Services
Supply Chain Management

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS
Delegations

3.1.1. The Bitou Municipality Council hereby delegates all powers and duties to the Municipal Manager
which are necessary to enable the Municipal Manager to:
a)

discharge the supply chain management responsibilities conferred on Accounting Officers
in terms of Chapter 8 of the Local Government Municipal Finance Management Act of
2003 and this document;
b) maximise administrative and operational efficiency in the implementation of this document;
c) enforce reasonable cost-effective measures for the prevention of fraud, corruption,
favouritism, unfair and irregular practices in the implementation of this Policy; and
d) comply with his or her responsibilities in terms of Section 115 and other applicable provisions
of the Local Government Municipal Finance Management Act of 2003.
3.1.2.

No departure shall be made from the provisions of this Policy without the approval of the
Municipal Manager of the Bitou Municipality.

3.1.3. The Municipal Manager shall for oversight purposes:
a) within 30 days of the end of each financial year, submit a report on the implementation of this
Policy, of the Bitou Municipality Council;
b) whenever there are serious and material problems in the implementation of this Policy,
immediately submit a report to the Council;
c) within 10 days of the end of each quarter, submit a report on the implementation of the Policy
to the Executive Mayor; and
d) make the reports public in accordance with Section 21A of the Municipal Systems Act of
2000.
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3.2.

Implementation of the Standard for Infrastructure Procurement and Delivery Management

3.2.1.

Infrastructure procurement and delivery management shall be undertaken in accordance with all
the applicable legislation and the relevant requirements of the latest edition of the National
Treasury Standard for Infrastructure Procurement and Delivery Management, unless this Policy
prescribes otherwise.

3.3.

Supervision of the infrastructure delivery management unit

3.3.1.

The Infrastructure Delivery Management Unit shall be directly supervised by the Chief Financial
Officer as delegated in terms of Section 82 of the MFMA.

3.4.

Objections and complaints

3.4.1.

Persons aggrieved by decisions or actions taken in the implementation of this Policy, may lodge
within 21 days of the decision or action, a written objection or complaint against the decision or
action.

3.5.

Resolution of disputes, objections, complaints and queries

3.5.1.

The Accounting Officer shall appoint an independent and impartial person, not directly involved in
the infrastructure delivery management processes to assist in the resolution of disputes between
the Bitou Municipality and other persons regarding:
a)
b)
c)

any decisions or actions taken in the implementation of the supply chain management
system;
any matter arising from a contract awarded within the Bitou Municipality’s infrastructure
delivery management system; or
to deal with objections, complaints or queries regarding any such decisions or actions or any
matters arising from such contract.

3.5.2.

The designated person shall assist the person appointed in terms of 3.5.1 to perform his or her
functions effectively.

3.5.3.

The person appointed in terms of 3.5.1 shall:
a)
b)

3.5.4.

strive to resolve promptly all disputes, objections, complaints or queries received; and
submit monthly reports to the Municipal Manager on all disputes, objections, complaints or
queries received, attended to or resolved.

A dispute, objection, complaint or query may be referred to the Provincial Treasury if:
a) the dispute, objection, complaint or query is not resolved within 60 days; or
b) no response is forthcoming within 60 days.

3.5.5.

If the Provincial Treasury does not or cannot resolve the matter, the dispute, objection, complaint
or query may be referred to the National Treasury for resolution.
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4.

CONTROL FRAMEWORK FOR INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY MANAGEMENT

4.1.

Assignment of responsibilities for approving or accepting end of stage deliverables

4.1 1.

The responsibilities for approving or accepting end of stage deliverables shall be as stated in
Table 1.

Table 1: Stages, end-of-stage deliverables and responsibilities for approving or accepting end-ofstage deliverables in the control framework for the management of infrastructure delivery

No

Name of Stage

End.of.Stage Deliverable
(Output)

Key Person to
Review and
Accept
Deliverable

Key Person to
Approve
Deliverable

Project Value

Initiation Report
lhich outlines the high-level
business case together with the
Relevant Project
stimated project cost and
Manager
roposed schedule for a single
roject or a group of projects
aving a similar high-level
cope

0 Project initiation

Ihe relevant Director \ll

nfrastructure Plan
I Infrastructure planning

,hich identifies and prioritises Relevant Project
Jrojects and packages against Manager
forecasted budget over a
eriod of at least five years

rhe relevant Director \ll

rocurement Strategy
delivery and/or procurement
trategy which, for a portfolio of
)rojects, identifies the delivery elevant Project
trategy in respect of each
,ianager
)roject or package and, where
eeds are met through own
)rocurement system, a
rocurement strategy

2 trategic resourcing

The relevant Director

Pre-feasibility Report
jwhich determines whether or
iot it is worthwhile to proceed
o the feasibility stage

Pre-feasibility

Relevant Project
Manager

he relevant Director R20m

Service Level Agreement

3
Preparation and briefing

strategic brief which defines
roject objectives, needs,
Relevant Project
icceptance criteria and client Manager
riorities and aspirations, and
ihich sets out the basis for the I
evelopment of the concept

fhe relevant Director \ll
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No

Name of Stage

End-of-Stage Deliverable
(Output)

Key Person to
Review and
Accept
Deliverable

Key Person to
Approve
Deliverable

Project Value

eport for one or more
ackages
Feasibility Report
which presents sufficient
nformation to determine
whether or not the project
hould be implemented

Feasibilit’

4

Relevant Project
Manager

Fhe relevant Director ‘R2m

nception Report

Doncept and viability

concept report which
stablishes the detailed brief, Relevant Project
cope, scale, form and control Manager
udget, and sets out the
ntegrated concept for one or
more packages

The relevant Director >R2m

Design Report

5 Design development

design development report
which develops in detail the
‘approved concept to finalise the Relevant Project
iesign and definition criteria. Manager
;ets out the integrated
teveloped design, and contains
he cost plan and schedule for
ne or more packages

The relevant Director

render Document

6

Design
locumentation

Production information which
)rovides the detailing,
)erformance definition,
pecification, sizing and
A Production )ositloning of all systems and Relevant Project
;omponents enabling either
nformation
Manager
onstruction (where the
onstructor is able to build
lirectly from the information
repared) or the production of
nanufacturing and installation
nformation for construction
Vorking Drawings
B
Manufacture, Manufacture, fabrication and
Relevant Project
abrication and :onstruction information
Manager
onstruction
roduced by or on behalf of the
nformation
onstructor, based on the
roduction information provided
‘‘

Bid SpecificaUon
ommittee

dl

N/A

dl
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No

Name of Stage

End-of-Stage Deliverable
(Output)

Key Person to
Review and
Accept
Deliverable

Key Person to
Approve
Deliverable

Project Value

or a package which enables
nanufacture, fabrication or
onstruction to take place
‘ractical Completion
ertificate
7 Vorks

elevant Project
4anager (when
sing external
ervice providers)

Relevant Project
Manager (when
ising internal
)rocess)

lelevant Project
tanager

rhe relevant Director \ll

Final Approval Certificate,
Final Payment Certificate and
Close-out Report
Relevant Project
Manager
notified
defects
Vorks with
orrected, final account settled
nd the close out report issued

rhe relevant Director \ll

ompleted works which are
apable of being occupied or
ised
ompletion Certificate and
ecord Drawings

8

Vorks which have been taken
ver by the user or owner
omplete with record
nformation

andover

9 Package completion

4.2.

General

42.1

Prefeasibility and feasibility reports shall be required as end-of-stage deliverables for stages 3 and
4, respectively, where a major capital project is required for where the total project capital
expenditure exceeds Ri ,O billion (including VAT), or where the expenditure per year for a
minimum of three years exceeds R250 million per annum (including VAT).

4.2.2.

Stages 3 and 4 may be omitted for the following:
a)

a building project with or without related site works; or

b) a process-based, somewhat repetitive or relatively standardised project where the risk of
failing to achieve time, cost and quality objectives is relatively low.
4.2.3.

Stages 3 to 9 may be omitted where the required work does not involve the provision of new
infrastructure or the rehabilitation, refurbishment or alteration of existing infrastructure.

4.2.4.

Stages 5 and 6 may be omitted if sufficient information to proceed to stage 7 is contained in the
stage 4 deliverable.

4.2.5.

The infrastructure plan (stage 1), which is informed by demand management requirements as set
out in 6.2, initiation reports (stage 0), decisions made during stages 3 and 4 and work in progress
in stages 5 to 9, and the procurement strategy (stage 2) shall be reviewed and updated at least
once a year.
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4.2.6.

The approval of the infrastructure plan and the securing of the necessary budget shall be obtained
prior to advancing to stage 3. All subsequent stages shall only be proceeded with if the necessary
budget is in place.

4.2.7.

A stage shall only be complete when the deliverable has been approved or accepted by the
person or persons designated in the institutional arrangements to do so.

4.2.8.

Activities associated with stages 5 to 9 may be undertaken in parallel or series, provided that each
stage is completed in sequence.

4.2.9.

The level of detail contained in a deliverable associated with the end of each stage shall be
sufficient to enable informed decisions to be made to proceed to the next stage. In the case of
stages 3 to 6, such detail shall, in addition, be sufficient to form the basis of the scope of work for
taking the package forward in terms of the selected contracting strategy.

4.2.10. The approvals or acceptances at each gate shall be retained for record purposes for a period of
not less than five years of such acceptance or approval in a secured environment, unless
otherwise determined in terms of the National Archives and Record Services of South African Act.
4.3.

Gateway reviews

4.3.1.

Gateway reviews for major capital projects above the threshold of R 50 million.
4.3.1.1. The Municipal Manager shall appoint a gateway review team for major capital projects.
4.3.1 .2.A gateway review team shall comprise not less than three persons who are not involved in the
project associated with the works covered by the end of the stage 4 deliverable, and who are
familiar with various aspects of the subject matter of the deliverable at the end of the stage under
review.
4.3.1 .3.Such a team shall be led by a person who has at least six years postgraduate experience in the
planning of infrastructure projects and is registered either as a professional engineer in terms of
the Engineering Professions Act, a professional quantity surveyor in terms of the Quantity
Surveying Professions Act or a professional architect in terms of the Architectural Professions Act.
4.3.1 .4.The members of the team shall, as relevant, have expertise in key technical areas, cost
estimating, scheduling and implementation of similar projects.
4.3.1 .5.The Provincial Treasury shall be notified of a proposed gateway review for a major capital project,
three weeks prior to the conducting of such a review.
4.3.1 .6.Such notification shall be accompanied by a brief outline of the proposed project or package, the
names and qualifications of the reviewers and the timeframes for the review.
4.3.1 .7.The Provincial Treasury may nominate additional persons to serve on the review team.
4.3.1 .8.The gateway review team shall base its findings primarily on:
4.3.1.8.1. the information contained in the end-of-stage deliverables;
4.3.1.8.2. supplementary documentation, if any, provided by key staff obtained during an interview
process; and
4.3.1.8.3. interviews with key staff members and stakeholders.
4.3.2.

The gateway review team shall issue a report at the conclusion of a gateway review, which
indicates the team’s assessment of the information at the end of a stage and provides findings or
recommendations on areas where further work may be undertaken to improve such information,
within 30 days of receiving such an instruction.
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5.

5.1.

CONTROL FRAMEWORK FOR INFRASTRUCTURE PROCUREMENT
The responsibilities for taking the key actions associated with the formation and conclusion of
contracts including framework agreements above the quotation threshold of R200 000 shall be as
stated in Table 2.

Table 2: Procurement activities and gates associated with the formation and conclusion of
contracts above the quotation threshold
Sub-Activity

Activity

Key action

(see Table 3 offhe standard)

Person assigned
responsibility to
perform key action

Make a decision to proceed / not
to
)btain permission to start with the proceed with the procurement
based on the broad scope of project Manager
rocurement process
1work and the financial
stimates.
)btain approval for procurement
ies that are to be adopted onfirm selection of strategies
g specific approvals to
o that tender offers can be
Project Manager
ch a confined market or the solicited
of the negotiation procedure
I

approval for procurement
ents

ran1 approval for the issuing of Bid Specification
he procurement documents
Committee

onfirm that finance is available
Bid Specification
onfirm that budgets are in place or the procurement to take
Committee
lace
authorisation to proceed
Review evaluation report, rati
next phase of tender process ecommendations and authorise Bid Evaluation
n the qualified, proposal or
frogression to the next stage of Committee
petitive negotiations procedure he tender process
Review recommendations of the
Bid Evaluation Committee and
Donfirm recommendations
refer back to Bid Evaluaon
Bid Adjudication
ontained in the tender evaluation
ommittee for reconsideration
ommittee
r make recommendation for
[ward

\ward contract

Formally accept the tender offert
id Adjudication
rn writing and issue the
bommittee or
Dontractor with a signed copy of
Municipal Manager
k he contract

Lri

data and upload
Upload data in financial
Dontractor’s particulars and data
nanagement and payment system ssociated with the contract or SCM
order
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Person assigned
responsibility to
perform key action

Sub-Activity

Activity

Key action

(see Table 3 of the standard)
.4
PG8A

btain approval to waive penalties pprove waiver of penalties or
The Relevant Director
r low performance damages.
ow performance damages

i.5
PG8B

rant permission for the referral
)btain approval to notify and refer a dispute to an adjudicator or
ilunicipal Manager
a dispute to an adjudicator
for final settlement to an
rbitrator or court of law

fof

dminister contracts and
.6
i onfirm compliance
PG8C
equirements

)btain approval to increase the
otal of prices, including
:onngencies and price
pprove amount of time and
[djustment for inflation, or the time cost overruns up to the
or completion at the award of a hreshoId
ontract or the issuing of an order
p to a specified percentage21

The Relevant Director

.7
PG8D

)btain approval to exceed the total
f prices, including contingencies
nd price adlustment for inflation, Approve amount of time and
r the time for completion at award ost overruns above the
f a contract or the issuing of an
hreshold
)rder by up to or exceeding a
specified percentage

Aunicipal Manager
Council to note for
value exceeding 20%

.

.8

5.2.

Obtain approval to cancel or
jterminate a contract

6.9
PG8F

pbtain approval to amend a
ontract

,pprove amount

The Relevant Director

Approve proposed amendment
contract

ñunicipal Manager

The responsibilities for taking the key actions associated with the quotation procedure and the
negotiation procedure where the value of the contract is less than the threshold set for the
quotation procedure, of R200 000, shall be as follows:
a)

b)
5.3.

IPG8E

The Bid Specification Committee or the Manager: SCM shall grant approval for the issuing of the
procurement documents, based on the contents of a documentation review report developed in
accordance with the provisions of the standard;
The delegated Director may award the contract if satisfied with the recommendations contained in
the evaluation report prepared in accordance with the provisions of the standard.
The responsibilities for taking the key actions associated with the issuing of an order in terms of a
framework agreement shall be as stated in Table 3.
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Table 3: Procurement activities and gates associated with the issuing of an order above
the quotation threshold in terms of a framework agreement
Activity

1 FG1

Key action

Confirm justifiable reasons for selecting
Confirm reasons submitted for not requiring
a framework contactor where there is
competition amongst framework contractors
more than one framework agreement
or instruct that quotations be invited
covering the same scope of work

Person assigned
responsibility to perform key
action

[designated person]

3 FG2

Obtain approval for procurement
documents

Grant approval for the issuing of the
procurement documents

designated person]

FG3

Confirm that budgets are in place

Confirm that finance is available so that the
order may be issued

designated person e.g.
rogramme manager or financial
irecforJ

FG4

6.

\uthorise the issuing of the order

If applicable, review evaluation report and
confirm or reject recommendations. Formally
9ccept the offer in writing and issue the
contractor with a signed copy of the order

authorised person]

INFRASTRUCTURE DELIVERY MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS

6.1.

Institutional arrangements

61.1.

Committee system for procurement

6.1.1.1. General
6.1.1.1.1. A committee system comprising the Bid Specification Committee, Bid Evaluation Committee
and Bid Adjudication Committee shall be applied to all procurement procedures where the
estimated value of the procurement exceeds the financial threshold for quotations and to the
putting in place of framework agreements projected to cost in excess of R200 000.
6.1.1 .1.2. The Accounting Officer may consider applying the requirements of the committee system to a
lower threshold.
6.1.1.1.3. The Bid Evaluation Committee, shall, where competition for the issuing of an order amongst
framework contractors takes place and the value of the order exceeds the financial threshold
for quotations, evaluate the quotations received.
6.1.1 .1.4. The persons appointed in writing as technical advisors and subject matter experts may attend
any committee meeting.
6.1.1.1.5. No person who is a political officer bearer, a public office bearer including any Councillor of a
municipality, a political advisor or a person appointed in terms of Section 12A of the Public
Service Act of 1994 or who has a conflict of interest shall be appointed to a Bid Specification,
Bid Evaluation or Bid Adjudication Committee.
6.1.1 .1.6. Committee decisions shall as far as possible be based on the consensus principle i.e. the
general agreement characterised by the lack of sustained opposition to substantial issues.
Committees shall record their decisions in writing. Such decisions shall be kept in a secured
environment for a period of not less than five years after the completion or cancellation of the
contract unless otherwise determined in terms of the National Archives and Record Services
Act of 1996.
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6.1.1.1.7. Committees may make decisions at meetings or, subject to the committee chairperson’s
approval, on the basis of responses to documents circulated to committee members provided
that not less than sixty percent of the members are present or respond to the request for
responses. Where the committee chairperson is absent from the meeting, the members of the
committee who are present shall elect a chairperson from one of them to preside at the
meeting.

6.1.1.2. Bid Specification Committee
6.1.1.2.1. The Municipal Manager shall appoint in writing:
(a) the persons to review the procurement documents and to develop a procurement
documentation review report: and
(b) the members of the Bid Specification Committee.
6.1.1.2.2. The approval of procurement documents at Procurement Gate 3 or Framework Agreement
Gate 2 shall be based on the contents of a procurement documentation review report, if
possible.
6.1.1 .2.3. Where the procurement relates to the provision of new infrastructure or the rehabilitation,
refurbishment or alteration of existing infrastructure, such a report shall be prepared by one or
more persons who participated in the review and who are registered as far as possible, as a
(a) professional architect or professional senior architectural technologist in terms of the
Architectural Profession Act or a professional landscape architect or a professional
landscape technologist in terms of the Landscape Architectural Profession;
(b) a professional engineer or professional engineering technologist in terms of the Engineering
Profession Act; or
(c) a professional quantity surveyor in terms of the Quantity Surveying Professions Act.
6.1.1.2.4. The Bid Specification Committee shall comprise two or more persons.
6.1.1.2.5. The chairperson shall be an employee of the Bitou Municipality with requisite skills.
6.1.1.2.6. Other members shall, where relevant, include a representative of the end user or the
department requiring infrastructure delivery.
6.1.1.2.7. No member of, or technical adviser or subject matter expert who participates in the work of any
of the procurement committees or a family member or associate of such a member, may tender
for any work associated with the tender which is considered by these committees.

6.1.1.3.Bid Evaluation Committee
6.1.1.3.1. The Municipal Manager shall appoint in writing:
a) the members of the Bid Evaluation Committee to prepare the procurement evaluation and, where
applicable, the quality evaluations.
6.1.1.3.2. The Bid Evaluation Committee shall comprise not less than three people. The chairperson shall
be an employee of the Bitou Municipality with requisite skills. Other members shall include a
supply chain management practitioner and, where relevant, include an official from the
department requiring infrastructure delivery.
6.1.1.3.3. The evaluation report shall be prepared by one or more persons who are conversant with the
nature and subject matter of the procurement documents or the framework contract, and who
are as far as possible, registered as:
a)

a professional architect or professional senior architectural technologist in terms of the
Architectural Profession Act;
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b)

a professional engineer or professional engineering technologist in terms of the Engineering
Profession Act;
c) a professional landscape architect or a professional landscape technologist in terms of the
Landscape Architectural Profession;
d) a professional project manager or a professional construction manager in terms of the Project
and Construction Management Professions Act; or a professional quantity surveyor in terms
of the Quantity Surveying Profession Act.
6.1.1.3.4. The Bid Evaluation Committee shall review the evaluation reports and as a minimum verify the
following in respect of the recommended tenderer:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)

the capability and capacity of a tenderer to perform the contract;
the tenderers tax and municipal rates and taxes compliance status;
confirm that the tenderer’s municipal rates and taxes and municipal service charges are not in
arrears;
the Compulsory Declaration has been completed; and
the tenderer is not listed in the National Treasury’s Register for Tender Defaulters or the List of
Restricted Suppliers.

6.1.1.3.5. No tender submitted by a member of, or technical adviser or subject matter expert who
participates in the work of the Bid Specification Committee or a family member or associate of
such a member, may be considered by the Bid Evaluation Committee.
6.1.1 .3.6. The chairperson of the Bid Evaluation Committee shall promptly notify the Municipal Manager
of any respondent or tenderer who is disqualified for having engaged in fraudulent or corrupt
practices during the tender process.
6.1.1 .4.Bid Adjudication Committee
6.1.1.4.1. The Bid Adjudication Committee must consist of at least four senior managers of the
municipality which must include
—

a)

the Chief Financial Officer or, if the Chief Financial Officer is not available, another manager in
the budget and treasury office reporting directly to the Chief Financial Officer and designated by
the Chief Financial Officer; and
b) at least one senior supply chain management practitioner who is an official of the municipality;
and
c) a technical expert in the relevant field who is an official, if such an expert exists.
6.1.1.4.2. The Accounting Officer must appoint the chairperson of the committee. If the chairperson is
absent from a meeting, the members of the committee who are present must elect one of them
to preside at the meeting.
6.1.1.4.3. No memberofthe Bid Evaluation Committee mayserve on the Bid Adjudication Committee. A
member of a Bid Evaluation Committee may, however, participate in the deliberations of a Bid
Adjudication Committee as a technical advisor or a subject matter expert.
6.1.1.4.4. The Bid Adjudication Committee shall:
a) consider the report and recommendations of the Bid Evaluation Committee and:
1)
2)
3)
4)

verify that the procurement process which was followed complies with the provisions
of this document;
confirm that the report is complete and addresses all considerations necessary to
make a recommendation;
confirm the validity and reasonableness of reasons provided for the elimination of
tenderers; and
consider commercial risks and identify any risks that have been overlooked or fall
outside of the scope of the report which warrant investigation prior to taking a final
decision; and
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refer the report back to the Bid Evaluation Committee for their reconsideration or
make a recommendation to the authorised person on the award of a tender, with or
without conditions, together with reasons for such recommendation;
or alternatively make a recommendation to the Municipal Manager to award if the
value exceeds RiO million.

5)

6)

6.1.1.4.5. The Bid Adjudication Committee shall consider proposals regarding the cancellation,
amendment, extension or transfer of contracts that have been awarded and make a
recommendation to the authorised person on the course of action, which should be taken.
6.1.1.4.6. The Bid Adjudication Committee shall consider the merits of an unsolicited offer and make a
recommendation to the Municipal Manager.
6.1.1.4.7. The Bid Adjudication Committee shall report to the Municipal Manager any recommendation
made to award a contract to a tenderer other than the tenderer recommended by the Bid
Evaluation Committee, giving reasons for making such a recommendation.
6.1.1 .4.8. The Bid Adjudication Committee shall not make a recommendation for an award of a contract
or order if the recommended tenderer or framework contractor has:
a)
b)

made a misrepresentation or submitted false documents in competing for the contract or order; or
been convicted of a corrupt or fraudulent act in competing for any contract during the past five
years.

6.1.1.4.9. The Bid Adjudication Committee may on justifiable grounds and after following due process,
disregard the submission of any tenderer if that tenderer or any of its directors, members or
trustees or partners has abused the delivery management system or has committed fraud,
corruption or any other improper Conduct in relation to such system. The National Treasury and
the Provincial Treasury shall be informed where such tenderers are disregarded.
6.1.2. Actions of an authorised person relating to the award of a contract or an order
6.1.2.1.Award of a contract
6.1.2.1.1. The Municipal Manager shall, if the value of the contract inclusive of VAT, is within his or her
delegation, consider the report(s) and recommendations of the Bid Adjudication Committee and
either:
a)
b)

award the contract after confirming that the report is complete and addresses all considerations
necessary to make a recommendation and budgetary provisions are in place; or
decide not to proceed or to start afresh with the process.

6.1.2.1.2. The Municipal Manager shall immediately notify the Bid Adjudication Committee if a tender
other than the recommended tender is awarded, save where the recommendation is changed
to rectify an irregularity.
6.1.2.1.3. The Municipal Manager shall, within 10 working days, notify the Auditor-General, the National
Treasury and the Provincial Treasury, and, in the case of a municipal entity, also the parent
municipality, of the reasons for deviating from such recommendation, in writing.

6,1.2.2.lssuing of an order
6.1.2.2.1. The Director shall, if the value of an order issued in terms of a framework contract, is within his
or her delegation, consider the recommendation of the Bid Evaluation Committee as relevant,
and either:
a) authorise the issuing of an order; or
b) decide not to proceed or to start afresh with the process.
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6.1.2.2.2. The person responsible for authorising an order shall, prior to authorising the issuing of an
order:
a)
b)

6.1.3.

confirm that the required goods or services, or any combination thereof, are within the scope
of work associated with the relevant framework contract; and
consider the recommendations of the evaluation report where competition amongst
framework contracts takes place or a significant proportion of the total of the prices is
negotiated, based on the financial parameter contained in the framework contract, and either

Conduct of those engaged in infrastructure delivery

6.1.3.1.General requirements
6.1.3.1.1. All personnel and agents of the Bitou Municipality shall comply with the requirements of the
CIDB Code of Conduct for all Parties engaged in Construction Procurement. They shall:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

behave equitably, honestly and transparently;
discharge duties and obligations timeously and with integrity;
comply with all applicable legislation and associated regulations;
satisfy all relevant requirements established in procurement documents;
avoid conflicts of interest; and
not maliciously or recklessly injure or attempt to injure the reputation of another party.

6.1.3.1.2. All personnel and agents engaged in Bitou Municipality’s infrastructure delivery management
system shall:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)

j)
k)
I)

not perform any duties to unlawfully gain any form of compensation, payment or gratification from
any person for themselves or a family member or an associate;
perform their duties efficiently, effectively and with integrity and may not use their position for
private gain or to improperly benefit another person;
strive to be familiar with and abide by all statutory and other instructions applicable to their duties;
furnish information in the course of their duties that is complete, true and fair and not intended to
mislead;
ensure that resources are administered responsibly;
fair and impartial in the performance of their functions;
at no time afford any undue preferential treatment to any group or individual or unfairly
discriminate against any group or individual;
not abuse the power vested in them;
not place themselves under any financial or other obligation to external individuals or firms that
might seek to influence them in the performance of their duties;
assist the Bitou Municipality in combating corruption and fraud within the infrastructure
procurement and delivery management system;
not disclose information obtained in connection with a project except when necessary to carry out
assigned duties;
not make false or misleading entries in reports or accounting systems; and keep matters of a
confidential nature in their possession confidential unless legislation, the performance of duty or
the provision of the law require otherwise.

6.1.3.1.3. An employee or agent may not amend or tamper with any submission, tender or contract in any
manner whatsoever.
6.1.3.2.Conflicts of interest
6.1.3.2.1. The employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality who are connected in any way to
procurement and delivery management activities which are subject to this Policy, shall:
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a)

b)

disclose in writing to the employee of the Bitou Municipality to whom they report, or to the person
responsible for managing their contract, if they have, or a family member or associate has, any
conflicts of interest; and
not participate in any activities that might lead to the disclosure of the Bitou Municipality
proprietary information.

6.1.3.2.2. The employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality shall declare and address any perceived or
known conflict of interest, indicating the nature of such conflict to whoever is responsible for
overseeing the procurement process at the start of any deliberations relating to a procurement
process or as soon as they become aware of such conflict, and abstain from any decisions
where such conflict exists or recuse themselves from the procurement process, as appropriate.
6.1.3.2.3. Agents who prepare a part of a procurement document may in exceptional circumstances,
where it is in the Bitou Municipality’s interest to do so, submit a tender for work associated with
such documents provided that:
a)
b)

c)

the Bitou Municipality states in the tender data that such an agent is a potential tenderer;
all the information which was made available to, and the advice provided by that agent which is
relevant to the tender, is equally made available to all potential tenderers upon request, if not
already included in the scope of work; and
the Bid Specification Committee is satisfied that the procurement document is objective and
unbiased having regard to the role and recommendations of that agent.

6.1 .3.3.Evaluation of submissions received from respondents and tenderers
6.1.3.3.1. The confidentiality of the outcome of the processes associated with the calling for expressions
of interest, quotations or tenders shall be preserved. Those engaged in the evaluation process
shall:
a)
b)
c)
d)

not have any conflict between their duties as an employee or an agent and their private interest;
may not be influenced by a gift or consideration (including acceptance of hospitality) to show
favour or disfavour to any person;
deal with respondents and tenderers in an equitable and even-handed manner at all times; and
not use any confidential information obtained for personal gain and may not discuss with, or
disclose to outsiders, prices which have been quoted or charged to the Bitou Municipality.

6.1.3.2. The evaluation process shall be free of conflicts of interest and any perception of bias. Any
connections between the employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality and a tenderer or
respondent shall be disclosed and recorded in the tender evaluation report.
6.1.3.3.3. the Bitou Municipality personnel and their agents shall immediately withdraw from participating
in any manner whatsoever in a procurement process in which they, or any close family
member, partner or associate, has any private or business interest.

6.1.3.4.Non-disclosure agreements
6.1.3.4.1. Confidentiality agreements in the form of non-disclosure agreements shall, where appropriate,
be entered into with agents and potential contractors to protect the Bitou Municipality’s
confidential information and interests.

6.1 .3.5.Gratifications, hospitality and gifts
6.1.3.5.1. The employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality shall not, directly or indirectly, accept or
agree or offer to accept any gratification from any other person including a commission,
whether for the benefit of themselves or for the benefit of another person, as an inducement to
improperly influence in any way a procurement process, procedure or decision.
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6.1.35.2. The employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality as well as their family members of
associates shall not receive any of the following from any tenderer, respondent or contractor or
any potential contractor:
a) money, loans, equity, personal favours, benefits or services;
b) overseas trips; or
c) any gifts or hospitality irrespective of value from tenderers or respondents prior to the
conclusion of the processes associated with a call for an expression of interest or a
tender.
6.1.3.5.3. The employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality shall not purchase any items at artificially
low prices from any tenderer, respondent or contractor or any potential contractor at artificially
low prices which are not available to the public.
6.1.3.5.4. All employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality may for the purpose of fostering inter
personal business relations accept the following:
meals and entertainment, but excluding the cost of transport and accommodation;
promotional material of small intrinsic value such as pens, paper-knives, diaries,
calendars, etc.;
c) incidental business hospitality such as business lunches or dinners, which the employee
is prepared to reciprocate;
d) complimentary tickets to sports meetings and other public events, but excluding the cost
of transport and accommodation, provided that such tickets are not of a recurrent nature.
6.1.3.5.5. Gifts listed in a) to d) or gifts in kind which have an intrinsic value greater than R350 may not be
accepted.
a)
b)

6.1.3.5.6. Under no circumstances shall gifts be accepted from prospective contractors during the
evaluation of calls for expressions of interest, quotations or tenders that could be perceived as
undue and improper influence of such processes.
6.1.3.5.7. Employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality shall without delay report to the Municipal
Manager any incidences of a respondent, tenderer or contractor who directly or indirectly offers
a gratification to them or any other person to improperly influence in any way a procurement
process, procedure or decision.
6.1.3.6. Reporting of breaches
6.1.3.6.1. Employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality shall promptly report to the Municipal Manager
any alleged improper conduct which they may become aware of, including any alleged fraud or
corruption.

6.1.4.

Measures to prevent abuse of the infrastructure de’ivery system

6.1.4.1.The Municipal Manager shall investigate all allegations of corruption, improper conduct or failure
to comply with the requirements of this Policy against an employee or an agent, a contractor or
other role player and, where justified:
take steps against an employee or role player and inform the National Treasury and the
Provincial Treasury of those steps;
b) report to the South African Police Service any conduct that may constitute a criminal
offence;
c) lodge complaints with the Construction Industry Development Board or any other relevant
statutory Council where a breach of such Council’s code of conduct or rules of conduct
are considered to have been breached; cancel a contract if:
a)
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1)

it comes to light that the contractor has made a misrepresentation, submitted falsified
documents or has been convicted of a corrupt or fraudulent act in competing for a
particular contract or during the execution of that contract; or
an employee or other role player committed any corrupt or fraudulent act during the
tender process or during the execution of that contract.

2)

6.1.5.

Prohibition of Awards to persons in the service of the state
6.1.5.1 .Any submissions made by a respondent or tenderer who declares in the Compulsory Declaration
that a principal is one of the following shall be rejected:
a)
b)
c)
d)

e)
f)

a member of any municipal Council, any provincial legislature, or the National Assembly
or the National Council of Provinces;
a member of the board of directors of any municipal entity;
an official of any municipality or municipal entity;
an employee of any national or provincial department, national or provincial public entity
or constitutional institution within the meaning of the Public Finance Management Act,
1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999);
an executive member of the accounting authority of any national or provincial public
entity; or
an employee of Parliament or a provincial legislature.

6.1 .5.2.The notes to the annual financial statements of the [municipality / municipal entity] shall disclose
particulars of an award of more than R 2000 to a person who is a family member of a person
identified in 6.1.5.1 or who has been in the previous 12 months. Such notes shall include the
name of the person, the capacity in which such person served and the amount of the award.
6.1.6.

Collusive tendering

6.1.6.1.Any submissions made by a respondent or tenderer who fails to declare in the Compulsory
Declaration that the tendering entity:
a)

is not associated, linked or involved with any other tendering entity submitting tender
offers; or
b) has not engaged in any prohibited restrictive horizontal practices including consultation,
communication, agreement, or arrangement with any competing or potential tendering
entity regarding prices, geographical areas in which goods and services will be rendered,
approaches todetermining prices or pricing parameters, intentions to submit a tender or
not, the content of the submission (specification, timing, conditions of contract etc.) or
intention to not win a tender shall be rejected.
6.1.7.

Placing of contractors under restrictions

6.1.7.1. If any tenderer which has submitted a tender offer or a contractor which has concluded a contract
has, as relevant:
a) withdrawn such tender or quotation after the advertised closing date and time for the
receipt of submissions;
b) after having been notified of the acceptance of his tender, failed or refused to commence
the contract;
c) had their contract terminated for reasons within their control without reasonable cause;
d) offered, promised or given a bribe in relation to the obtaining or the execution of such
contract;
e) acted in a fraudulent, collusive or anti-competitive or improper manner or in bad faith
towards the Bitou Municipality; or
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f)

made any incorrect statement in any affidavit or declaration with regard to a preference
claimed and is unable to prove to the satisfaction of the Bitou Municipality that the
statement was made in good faith or reasonable steps were taken to confirm the
correctness of the statements,

6.1.7.2.The Manager SCM shall prepare a report on the matter and make a recommendation to the
Municipal Manager for placing the contractor or any of its principals under restrictions from doing
business with the Bitou Municipality.
6.1 .7.3.The Municipal Manager may, as appropriate, upon the receipt of a recommendation made in
terms of 6.1.7.1 and after notifying the contractor of such intention in writing and giving written
reasons for such action, suspend a contractor or any principal of that contractor from submitting a
tender offer to [name of municipality or municipal entity for a period of time.
6.1.7.4.The Manager SCM shall:
6.1.7.4.1. record the names of those placed under restrictions in an internal register which shall be
accessible to employees and agents of the Bitou Municipality who are engaged in procurement
processes; and
6.1.7.4.2. notify the National Treasury and the Provincial Treasury and, if relevant, the Construction
Industry Development Board, of such decision and provide them with the details associated
therewith.

6.1.8.

Complaints

6.1.8.1.All complaints regarding the Bitou Municipality’s Infrastructure Delivery Management System shall
be addressed to the Municipal Manager. Such complaints shall be in writing.
6.1.8.2.The Chief Financial Officer shall investigate all complaints regarding the Infrastructure
Procurement And Delivery Management System and report on actions taken to the Municipal
Manager who will decide on what action to take.

6.2.

Acquisition management

6.2.1.

Unsolicited proposal

6.2.1.1.The Bitou Municipality is not obliged to consider unsolicited offers received outside a normal
procurement process but may consider such an offer only if:
the goods, services or any combination thereof that is offered is a demonstrably or proven
unique innovative concept;
b) proof of ownership of design, manufacturing, intellectual property, copyright or any other
proprietary right of ownership or entitlement is vested in the person who made the offer;
c) the offer presents a value proposition which demonstrates a clear, measurable and
foreseeable benefit for the Bitou Municipality;
d) the offer is in writing and clearly sets out the proposed cost;
e) the person who made the offer is the sole provider of the goods or service; and
f) The Municipal Manager finds the reasons for not going through a normal tender
processes to be sound.
a)

6.2.1 .2.The Municipal Manager may only accept an unsolicited offer and enter into a contract after
considering the recommendations of the Bid Adjudication Committee if:
a) the intention to consider an unsolicited proposal has been made known in accordance
with Section 21A of the Municipal Systems Act of 2000 together with the reasons why
such a proposal should not be open to other competitors, an explanation of the potential
benefits for the [municipality or municipal entity] and an invitation to the public or other
potential suppliers and providers to submit their comments within 30 days after the notice;
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the Bitou Municipality’ has obtained comments and recommendations on the offer from
the National Treasury and the Provincial Treasury;
c) the Bid Adjudication Committee meeting which makes recommendations to accept an
unsolicited proposal was open to the public and took into account any public comments
that were received and any comments and recommendations received from the National
Treasury and the Provincial Treasury; and
d) the provisions of 6.2.1.3 are complied with.
b)

6.2.1.3.The Municipal Manager shall, within 7 working days after the decision to award the unsolicited
offer is taken, submit the reasons for rejecting or not following the recommendations to the
National Treasury, the Provincial Treasury and Auditor-General. A contract shall in such
circumstances not be entered into or signed within 30 days of such submission.

6.2.2.

Tax and rates compliance

6.2.2.1.SARS tax clearance
6.2.2.1 .1. No contract may be awarded or an order issued where the value of such transaction exceeds
R30 000, unless a tenderer or contractor is in possession of an original valid Tax Clearance
Certificate issued by SARS provided that the tenderer is not domiciled in the Republic of South
Africa and the SARS has confirmed that such a tenderer is not required to prove their tax
compliance status.
6.2.2.1.2. In the case of a partnership, each partner shall comply with the requirements of 6.2.2.1.1.
6.2.2.1.3. No payment shall be made to a contractor who does not satisfy the requirements of 6.2.2.1.2.
An employee of the Bitou Municipality shall upon detecting that a tenderer or contractor is not
tax compliant, immediately notify such person of such status.
6.2.2.1.4. Notwithstanding the requirements of 6.2.2.1.1 and 6.2.2.1.3 the following shall apply, unless a
person who is not tax compliant indicates to [designated person] that it intends challenging its
tax compliance status with SARS,
b) a non-compliant contractor shall be issued with a first warning that payments in future
amounts due in terms of the contract may be withheld, before the authorising of any
payment due to such contractor;
c) before authorising a further payment due to a non-compliant contractor who has failed to
remedy its tax compliance status after receiving a first warning, a second and final
warning shall be issued to such contractor;
d) no payments may be released for any amounts due in terms of the contract due to a noncompliant contractor if, after a period of 30 calendar days have lapsed since the second
warning was issued, the non-compliant contractor has failed to remedy its tax compliance
status.
6.2.2.2.Municipal rates and taxes
6.2.2.2.1. No contract may be awarded to a tenderer who, of the principals of that tenderer, owes
municipal rates and taxes or municipal service charges to any municipality or a municipal entity
and are in arrears for more than 3 months.
6.2.2.2.2. No award may be considered to a tenderer who, of the principals of that tenderer, owes
municipal rates and taxes or municipal service charges to any municipality or a municipal entity
and are outstanding for more than 30 days, if the value of the award will exceed R 10 million.
6.2.2.2.3. When bids are called for the provisioning of services or goods, potential bidders, who are also
customers of the Bitou Local Municipality, can submit tenders subject to a condition that the
consideration and evaluation thereof shall require of the tenderer to obtain a certificate from the
municipality that confirms that all applicable municipal accounts of the tenderer or his/her
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directors, owners or partners, are paid in full or that appropriate arrangements (which includes
the right of settlement in the case of non-performance) are made for the payment of any
amounts due;
6.2.2.2.3.1. No tender shall be awarded to a person unless an appropriate
arrangement has been made for the payment of amounts due.
6.2.2.2.3.2. No further debt may accrue during the contract period; and
6.2.2.2.3.3. Tender conditions include a condition that allows the municipality to, in
terms of a reasonable arrangement with the consumer; subtract amounts
due to the municipality from cash payments.
6.2.3.

Declarations of interest

6.2.3.1.Tenderers and respondents making submissions in response to an invitation to submit a tender or
a call for an expression of interest, respectively shall declare in the Compulsory Declaration
whether or not any of the principals:
a)
b)

6.2.4.

are an employee of the Bitou Municipality or in the employ of the state; or
have a family member or a business relation with a person who is in the employ of the
state.

Invitations to submit expressions of interest or tender offers

6.2.4.1.All invitations to submit tenders where the estimated value of the contract exceeds R200 000
including VAT, except where a confined tender process is followed, and expressions of interest
shall be advertised on the Bitou Municipality’s website and on the National Treasury eTender
Publication Portal.
6.2.4.2.Advertisements relating to construction works, which are subject to the Construction Industry
Development Regulations issued in terms of the Construction Industry Development Act of 2000,
shall also be advertised, on the 01DB i-Tender website.
6.2.4.3.Where deemed appropriate by the Chairperson of the Bid Specification Committee or the
Manager: SCM, an invitation to tender and a call for an expression of interest shall be advertised
in suitable local and national newspapers and the Government Tender Bulletin as directed by
such person.
6.2.4.4.Such advertisements shall be advertised for a period of at least 14 days before closure, except in
urgent cases when the advertisement period may be shortened as determined by the Municipal
Manager.
6.2.4.5.The Manager SCM shall place all Advertisements.
6.2.4.6. Invitations to submit expressions of interest or tender offers shall be issued not less than 10
working days before the closing date for tenders and at least 5 working days before any
compulsory clarification meeting. Procurement documents shall be made available not less than 7
days before the closing time for submissions.

6.2.5.

Publication of submissions received and the award of contracts

6.2.5.1.The Manager: SCM shall publish within 10 working days of the closure of any advertised call for
an expression of interest or an invitation to tender, where the estimated value of the contract
exceeds R200 000 (including VAT) on the municipality’s website.
6.2.5.2.The following information must be published:
6.2.5.2.1. the names of all tenderers that made submissions to that advertisement, and
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6.2.5.2.2. if practical or applicable, the total of the prices and the preferences claimed.
6.2.5.3.Such information shall remain on the website for at least 30 days.
6.2.5.4.The Manager SCM shall publish within 7 working days of the award of a contract the following on
the Bitou Municipality’s website:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)

the contract number;
contract title;
brief description of the goods, services or works;
the total of the prices, if practical;
the names of successful tenderers and their B-BBEE status level of contribution;
duration of the contract; and
brand names, if applicable.

6,2.5.5.The Manager SCM shall submit within 7 working days of the award of a contract the information
required by National Treasury on the National Treasury e-Tender Publication Portal regarding the
successful and unsuccessful tenders.
6.2.5.6.The Manager SCM shall, within 7 working days of the award, submit details pertaining to the
award of contracts relating to construction works, which are subject to the Construction Industry
Development Regulations, issued in terms of the Construction Industry Development Act of
2000,in addition to the requirements of 6.2.5.3, place a notification on the CIDB website..
6.2.6.

Disposal committee

6.2.6.1.The Municipal Manager shall appoint in writing the members of the disposal committee to decide
on how best to undertake disposals.
6.2.6.2.The disposal panel shall comprise not less than three people.
6.2.6.3.The chairperson shall be an employee of the Bitou Municipality.
6.2.6.4.The disposal committee shall make recommendations to the Municipal Manager who shall
approve the recommendations, refer the disposal strategy back to the disposal committee for their
reconsideration, decide not to proceed or to start afresh with the process.
6.2.6.4.1. A disposal committee shall decide how best to undertake disposals relating to the demolition or
dismantling of infrastructure or parts thereof, and the disposal of unwanted, redundant or
surplus materials, plant and equipment.
6.2.6.4.2. Disposals shall be proceeded with only after the feasibility and desirability of using one or more
of the following alternative disposal strategies have been considered:
a)
c)
d)

transfer to another organ of state, business unit or a charitable organisation at marketrelated value or free of charge;
recycling or re-use of component materials; or
disposal by means of dumping at an authorised dump site, burning or demolition.

6.2.6.4.3. The reasons for adopting a disposal strategy shall be recorded prior to proceeding with such
disposal.

6.2.7.

Reporting of infrastructure delivery management information

6.2.7.1.The Manager: SCM shall submit any reports required in terms of the standard to the National
Treasury or the Provincial Treasury.

7.
7.1.

Infrastructure procurement
Procurement documents
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7.1.1. The forms of contract that may be used are as follows:
Form of Contract
01DB Standard Professional Service Contract
SAICE General Conditions of Contract for

Construction Works
JBCC Principal Building Agreement
JBCC Minor Works Agreement

7.1.2.

Code
SPSC

Intended Usage
Professional Services

GCC

Engineering and construction, including any level of

PBA

design responsibility
Buildings and related site works designed by the

MWA

employer
Buildings and related site works of simple content
designed by the employer.

The Bitou Municipality’s pre-approved templates for Part Cl (Agreements and contract data) of
procurement, documents shall be utilised to obviate the need for legal review prior to the awarding
of a contract.

7.1.3. All modifications to the standard templates shall be approved by the Project Manager prior to
being issued for tender purposes.
7.1.4.

Disputes arising from the performance of a contract shall be finally settled in a South African court
of law.

7.1 .5.

[state additional requirements, if any e.g. use of standard access specifications, health and safety
specifications etc.]

7.1.6.

The Municipal Declaration and returnable documents contained in the standard shall be included
in all tenders for:
a)
b)

consultancy services; and
goods and services or any combination thereof where the total of the prices is
expected to exceed RiO m including VAT.

7.2.

Developmental Procurement

7.2.1.

The primary beneficiaries will be included in the Preferential Procurement Policy and will include
at least the following:

7.2.1.i.Local emerging contractors! service providers and suppliers from previously disadvantaged
individuals!communities who will be assisted with targeted contract opportunities to propel them to
new heights.
7.2.1 .2.Contractors must be registered with the 01DB to qualify for participation.
7.2.2.

The Bitou Municipality undertakes to support the development of emerging contractors in the
construction industry through the use of the Potentially Emerging (PE) policy instrument
developed by the CIDB.

7.2.3.

The Bitou Municipality undertakes to establish and resource a Contractor Development
Programme in line with the 01DB Guidelines for Establishing Contractor Development
Programmes.

7.2.4. The Bitou Local Municipality undertakes to allocate projects to the Contractor Development
Programme, within which the PE status can be applied.
7.3.

Payment of contractors

7.3.1.

The Bitou Municipality shall settle all undisputed accounts within 30 days of invoice or statement
as provided for in the contract.
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7.4.

Approva’ to utilise specific ‘procurement procedures

7.4.1.

Prior approval shall be obtained for the following procurement procedures from the following
persons, unless such a procedure is already provided for in the approved procurement strategy:
(a) The Municipal Manager shall authorise the use of the negotiated procedure above the
thresholds provided in the standard.
(b) The Municipal Manager shall authorise the approaching of a confined market except where a
rapid response is required in the presence of, or the imminent risk of, an extreme or
emergency situation arising from the conditions set out in the standard and which can be dealt
with or the risks relating thereto arrested within 48 hours; and
(c) the Bid Specification Committee or Manager: SCM shall authorise the proposal procedure
using the two-envelope system, the proposal procedure using the two-stage system or the
competitive negotiations procedure.

7.4.2. The person authorised to pursue a negotiated procedure in an emergency is designated Director.
7.5.

Receipt and safeguarding of submissions

7.5.1. A dedicated and clearly marked tender box shall be made available to receive all submissions
made.
7.5.2. The tender box shall be fitted with two locks and the keys kept separately by two SCM
Practitioners.
7.5.3.

Such personnel shall be present when the box is opened on the stipulated closing date for
submissions.

7.6.

Opening of submissions

7.6.1.

Submissions shall be opened by an opening panel comprising two people nominated by the
Manager: SCM who have declared their interest or confirmed that they have no interest in the
submissions that are to be opened.

7.6.2. The opening panel shall open the tender box at the stipulated closing time and:
a) sort through the submissions and return those submissions to the box that are not yet due to
be opened including those whose closing date has been extended;
e) return submissions unopened and suitably annotated where:
1)

submissions are received late, unless otherwise permitted in terms of the submission
data;
submissions were submitted by a method other than the stated method,
submissions were withdrawn in accordance with the procedures contained in SANS
10845-3; and
only one tender submission is received and it is decided not to open it and to call for
fresh tender submissions.

2)
3)
4)
f)
g)

record in the register submissions that were returned unopened;
open submissions if received in sealed envelopes and annotated with the required particulars
and read out the name of and record in the register the name of the tenderer or respondent
and, if relevant, the total of prices including VAT where this is possible;
h) record in the register the name of any submissions that is returned with the reasons for doing
so;
i) record the names of the tenderer’s representatives that attend the public opening;
j) sign the entries into the register; and
k) stamp each returnable document in each tender submission.
Policy Title: Bitou Municipality Infrastructure Procurement Delivery Management Policy
Financial Year: 2020/2021
Status: Draft for review Submitted to Council on 31/3(2020 with Draft Budget per Item C121172103120
-

384

Page 30 of 31

7.6.3.

Each member of the opening panel shall initial the front cover of the submission and all pages that
are stamped in accordance with the requirements of 7.6.2h).

7.6.4.

Respondents and tenderers whose submissions are to be returned shall be afforded the
opportunity to collect their submissions.

7.6.5.

Submissions shall be safeguarded from the time of receipt until the conclusion of the procurement
process.

7.7.

Use of another organ of state’s framework agreement

7.7.1.

The Bitou Municipality may make use of another organ of state’s framework contract which has
been put in place by means of a competitive tender process and there are demonstrable benefits
for doing so.

7.7.2.

The Municipal Manager shall make the necessary application to that organ of state to do so.

7.8.

Insurances

Contractors shall be required to take out all insurances required in terms of the contract.
7.8.2. The insurance cover in engineering and construction contracts for loss of or damage to property
(except the works, Plant and Materials and Equipment) and liability for bodily injury to or death of
a person (not an employee of the Contractor) caused by activity in connection with a contract shall
in general not be less than the value stated in Table 4, unless otherwise directed by the Municipal
Manager.
7.8.1.

7.8.3.

Lateral earth support insurance in addition to such insurance shall be take out on a case by case
basis.

Table 4:

Minimum insurance cover

Type of insurance
Engineering and construction contracts loss
of or damage to property (except the works,
Plant, Materials and Equipment) and liability
for bodily injury to or death of a person (not an
employee of the Contractor) caused by activity
in connection with a contract
Professional services and service contracts
death of or bodily injury to employees of the
Contractor arising out of and in the course of
their employment in connection with a contract
or damage to property
Professional indemnity insurance
-

-

Value
Not less than RiO million

Not less than R5 million

Geotechnical and structural engineering: R5 million
Civil, electrical and mechanical engineering: R3
mu lion
Architectural: R3 million
other R3 million

7.8.4.

The insurance cover in professional services and service contracts for damage to property or
death of or bodily injury to employees of the Contractor arising out of and in the course of their
employment in connection with a contract shall not be less than the value stated in Table 4 for any
one event unless otherwise directed by [designated person].

7.8.5.

SASRIA Special Risk Insurance in respect of riot and associated risk of damage to the works,
Plant and Materials shall be taken out on all engineering and construction works.
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7.8.6.

Professional service appointments shall as a general rule be subject to proof of current
professional indemnity insurance being submitted by the contractor in an amount not less than the
value stated in Table 4 in respect of each claim, without limit to the number of claims, unless
otherwise directed by the in relation to the nature of the service that they provide.

7.8.7.

the Bitou Municipality shall take out professional indemnity insurance cover where it is deemed
necessary to have such insurance at a level higher than the levels of insurance commonly carried
by contractors.

7.8.8.

Where payment is to be made in multiple currencies, either the contractor or the Bitou Municipality
should be required to take out forward cover. Alternatively, the prices for the imported content
should be fixed as soon as possible after the starting date for the contract.

7.9.

Written reasons for actions taken

7.9.1.

Written reasons for actions taken shall be provided by a Project Manager
The written reasons for actions taken shall be as brief as possible and shall as far as is possible,
and where relevant, as to why a tenderer was not considered for the award of a contract or not
awarded a contract shall be framed around the clauses in:

7.9.2.

a)

b)

SANS 10845-3, Construction procurement Part 3: Standard conditions of tender, and,
giving rise to the reason why a respondent was not short listed, prequalified or admitted to
a data base; or
SANS 10845-4, Construction procurement Part 4: Standard conditions for the calling for
expressions of interest;
-

-

7.9.3.

Requests for written reasons for actions taken need to be brief and to the point and may not
divulge information which is not in the public interest or any information which is considered to
prejudice the legitimate commercial interests of others or might prejudice fair competition between
tenderers.

7.10.

Request for access to information

7.10.1. Should an application be received in terms of Promotion of Access to Information Act of 2000 (Act
2 of 2000), the “requestor” should be referred to the Bitou Municipality’s Information Manual which
establishes the procedures to be followed and the criteria that have to be met for the “requester”
to request access to records in the possession or under the control of the Bitou Municipality’s.
7.10.2. Access to technical and commercial information such as a comprehensive programme which links
resources and prices to such programme should be refused as such information provides the
order and timing of operations, provisions for time risk allowances and statements as to how the
contractor plans to do the work which identifies principal equipment and other resources which he
plans to use.
7.10.3. Access to a bill of quantities and rates should be provided in terms of the Act.
8.
8.1.

SHORT TITLE
This policy is called the INFRASTRUCTURE PROCUREMENT AND DELIVERY MANAGEMENT
POLICY of the Bitou Local Municipality.
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PURPOSE
1 .1 It is essential for representatives of the municipality to travel from time to time to other
cities and towns in order to establish and maintain links and relationships with other
municipalities, government bodies, and other parties, institutions and organizations
operating in or interacting with the sphere of local government.
1 .2 It is also important for representatives of the municipality to broaden their knowledge
and understanding of and compare local experiences in local government
transformation, innovation and changes in the rest of the country, and this can
effectively be done only through the medium of personal contact with a wide range of
local government stakeholders.
1 .3 The purpose of this policy is to regulate how travelling and subsistence costs are paid
to staff member and Councillors required to undertake approved council business
which involves incurring expenses for travel, lodging, meal and other costs for
attending conferences, meetings, seminars, training and conducting other council
business.
1 .4 This policy sets out the basis for the payment of a subsistence and travel allowance
for the purpose of such official travelling.
1 .5 The Travelling and Subsistence allowance policy needs to be updated from time to
time in order to ensure that prevailing economic circumstances such as fuel prices,
interest rates and cost of living are taken into account in the payment of allowances.
It is also necessary that the policy be tailored to suit the operational requirements of
the municipality.
1 .6 The purpose of this policy is also to regulate how travelling and subsistence costs are
paid to external candidates attending job interviews at the municipality as well as
invitees as Presiding Officers, Initiators or witnesses for internal disciplinary hearings
and investigations. This will also apply to official guests invited for conferences,
meetings, seminars, training and/or other business at the municipality.

2

PRINCIPLES
When consideration a policy for the reimbursement for travelling and subsistence cost to
councillors and officials, one must first and foremost acknowledge the purpose or the
policy and that is to be reimbursive; secondly, the principle of fairness needs to be applied;
and, thirdly; the affordability must be addressed.
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3

DEFINITIONS

For the purpose of a subsistence allowance, a representative shall mean:
3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7
3.8
3.9
3.10
3.11
3.12
3.13
3.14
3.15
3.16
3.17

4

Executive Mayor,
Deputy Executive Mayor,
Speaker,
Members of Mayoral Committee,
Other Councillors specifically authorized to represent the municipality on a particular
occasion,
Municipal Manager,
Departmental Directors,
Divisional Managers,
Any other official specifically authorized to represent the municipality on a particular
occasion,
Any official who is a member of a recognized professional institution and is granted
permission to attend meetings and conferences of such institution,
Any other person who is granted permission to attend meetings, conferences by the
Municipality Manager,
A subsistence and travel allowance is an amount of money paid by the municipality
to a representative,
Government rates: rates charge by hotels for government institutions which are
lower than the normal rates charged,
For the purposes of this policy, domestic travel shall mean travel within South Africa,
International travel shall mean travel to any country other than South Africa,
Normal workplace means the town where the employee is stationed/required to
perform his or her duties,
A day is calculated as a single 24 hour period, which commences at time of
departure from the normal workplace.

AUTHORIZATION
4.1

All journeys must be authorized beforehand.

4.2

The approval of claims for personnel travelling outside the municipal geographical
boundaries and/or payments thereof will be as follows:
The approval of the:-.
4.2.1
4.2.2
4.2.3

Executive Mayor; in the case where Speaker being the traveller or Speaker in
the case where Executive Mayor being the traveller, is required;
Executive Mayor; in the case where the Municipal Manager being the traveller,
is required;
Municipal Manager; in the case where the Departmental Director and/or
Manager: Office of the Executive Mayor and/or Manager: Office of the
Speaker and/or Manager: Office of the Deputy Executive Mayor being the
traveller(s), is required;
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4.2.4

4.3

Departmental Director; in the case where the Divisional Manager and/or any
other personnel within the designated department being the traveller, is
required.
An invitation to attend a workshop, meeting or related event is not an automatic
authorization to attend such workshop or event. Prior required authorization must
still be obtained from the Municipal Manager, Executive Mayor, Speaker,
Departmental Director or as the case may be. If any representative fails to do so, or
leave the event before its conclusion, the Executive Mayor and Speaker, the
Municipal Manager, or the Departmental Director, as the case may be, may recover
all allowances and disbursement paid to such delegate or representative, provided
that such delegate or representative is afforded the opportunity to submit reasons
for not getting prior approval and /or not being able to be present from the
commencement to conclusion of such event.

4.4

Councillors will be paid according to the prescribed SALGA circular.

4.5

Officials travelling outside the municipal boundaries will be remunerated on the
Department of Transport tariffs.

4.6

Municipal Guests such as Presiding Officer and/or Initiators for disciplinary matters,
investigators, assessors, facilitators, and any other person deemed to be falling
under this category will be remunerated on the South African Revenue Services
(SARS) tariffs.

4.7

Candidates invited for job interviews will be remunerated on the tariff as determined
by Council, which will be reviewed on annual basis.

4.8

Travelling and subsistence will not be paid in cases where it is being paid for by the
host or person who extended the invitation.

4.9

The Councillors and officials must abide with the report back policy in terms of
submission of report when attending official businesses of Council.

4.10 The processing of Subsistence and Travelling claims will be limited to a 2200cc
engine capacity.
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I
I
5

1
I

GUIDELINES FOR APPROVAL OF OVERNIGHT ALLOWANCE

Travel Distance
Bitou to
Destination
>200km
Bitou to
Destination
>200km
Destination to
Bitou
<400km
Destination to
Bitou
>450km
Bitou to
Destination
<>100km

6

Section 5
new

Comment

Time-frames of
Event
Starting time: 10h00

No overnight allowance approved prior the
event.

Starting time: 08h00

Overnight allowance approved prior the
event.

Ending time: 15h00

No overnight allowance approved after the
event.

Ending time: 15h00

Overnight allowance approved after the
event.

Starting time: 08h00
Ending time: 16h00

Overnight allowance will be approved
provided that travelling will occur in three
consecutive days.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF REPRESENTATIVES
6.1

Every representative who travels on the business of the municipality must comply
with this policy.

6.2

Representatives who travel on business of the municipality must appreciate, at all
times, that they are ambassadors for the municipality, that their actions, conduct
and statement must be in the best interest of the municipality, and that they must
comply with any specific mandates they have been given.

6.3

Consistent with the municipality’s performance monitoring and evaluation
objectives, the municipal manager will ensure that a database of all representatives
and official travelling is kept. The Municipal Manager may delegate this to the
Departmental Directors.

6.4

Council delegates or representatives to any conference, workshop or meeting must
ensure that they arrive on time and attend until the conclusion.

6.5

Any council funds which were appropriated for the purposes of the subsistence and
travel requirements of an individual and which are not fully utilized by that individual
MUST be paid back to Council within 48 hours of returning. Failure to adhere to this
requirement may result in disciplinary and criminal proceedings being undertaken
by Council.
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7

HOTEL ACCOMMODATION

COUNCILLORS AND STAFF

7.1

When booking accommodation, an enquiry must be made at the establishment for
a government rate of accommodation.

7.2

Actual cost of a 3 Star hotel on a bed and breakfast basis to the maximum amount
of RI 600 (VAT inclusive) per person per day, with prior approval by Municipal
Manager or delegated official can be incurred.

__—

8

-

7.3

Where a 3 Star hotel is not available and/or the hotel with the threshold as per 7.2,
a hotel of similar or higher grading may be used with prior approval by the
Departmental Director and/or Municipal Manager.

7.4

Where a rate of a hotel, guest house or accommodation of a higher grading proves
to be cheaper than that of a 3 Star accommodation, the accommodation at a higher
grading venue may be accepted from the Departmental Director and/or Municipal
Manager.

7.5

Where the location of conference, symposium, workshop, or training venue
necessitates that accommodation be used of a higher grade than that of a 3 Star
hotel, prior approval must be obtained from the Departmental Director and/or
Municipal Manager.

7.6

Should a delegate elect to arrange his/her own accommodation at relatives or
friends, an allowance be paid to him/her calculated as follows:
7.6.1

Meals and incidental cost in amount equal to annual determination for
meals and incidental cost that are deemed to have been expected by South
African Revenue Services (R452.00 for 2020/21).

7.6.2

An overnight allowance for accommodation in the amount of R800.00
per night of accommodation will serve as an allowance for accommodation,
where-after the municipality will have no further obligation towards the
delegate for accommodation.

7.6.3

No additional kilometre will be remunerated between meeting venue and
hotel in the event where the traveller opted to stay with relatives, family or
friends.

SUBSISTENCE ALLOWANCE

-

COUNCILLORS AND STAFF

8.1

The purpose of subsistence allowance is to reimburse for any expenditure incurred
relating to beverages and any incidental expenditure, not included in the bed and
breakfast tariff of the hotel/guest house where the employee/Councillor is
accommodated.

8.2

Exceeding 6 hours outside Bitou Municipality: Incidental costs in the amount equal
to the annual determination for incidental cost that are deemed to have been
expended by the South African Revenue Services (RI 39.00 for 2020/21) per day.
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8.3

Exceeding 24 daily hours (overnight): Meals and incidental costs in the amount
equal to the annual determination for meals and incidental cost that are deemed to
have been expended by South African Revenue Services (R350.00 for 2020/21)
per day.

8.4

Where a booking for accommodation is done on a dinner, bed and breakfast basis;
either by the host or Bitou Municipality, an allowance for incidental costs in the
amount equal to the annual determination for incidental costs that are deemed to
have been expended by the South African Revenue Services (RI 39.00 for 2020/21)
per day will be payable.

_—

8.5

9

For the purpose of calculating the allowance, both the day of departure and the day
of return shall qualify for the payment of subsistence allowance.

HOTEL ACCOMMODATION

OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL GUESTS

—

9.1

When booking accommodation for official guests for the municipality; such as
Presiding Officers, Initiators or witnesses for internal disciplinary hearings and
investigators, an enquiry for accommodation must be made at the establishment
with a government rate on accommodations.

9.2

Actual cost of a 3 Star hotel on a bed and breakfast basis to the maximum amount
of RI 600 (VAT inclusive) per person per day, with prior approval by Municipal
Manager or delegated official can be incurred.

9.3

Where a 3 Star hotel is not available and/or the hotel with the threshold as per 9.2,
a hotel of similar or higher grading may be used with prior approval by the
Departmental Director and/or Municipal Manager.

9.4

Where a rate of a hotel, guest house or accommodation of a higher grading proves
to be cheaper than that of a 3 Star accommodation, the accommodation at a higher
grading venue may be accepted from the Departmental Director and/or Municipal
Manager.

9.5

In the event where the meeting has been scheduled for two (2) or more consecutive
days, starting at 08h00, the municipality may allow accommodation for guests, even
if the travel distance is about 100km “from-base-to-Bitou” on a “one-way trip”. Such
an overnight approval will be applicable to the first day after the event and limited
to the last day of the event.

9.6

The guest will be allowed overnight meals to the maximum amount of R250.00
per night.

9.7

The municipality will not allow for any alcohol beverages; as a result, the cost to
such consumables will be on the guest account.
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10 REIMBURSEMENT OF TRAVEL COSTS

—

OFFICIAL MUNICIPAL GUESTS

10.1 The municipality will reimburse the guests’ travel costs based on the actual distance
travelled at R3.98 per kilometer, regardless of the value and engine capacity of
the vehicle as per SARS schedules for 2020/21.
10.2 The municipality will reimburse the travel costs “from-base-to-Bitou” and no
additional kilometers will be remunerated thereafter unless approved by the
Departmental Director and/or Municipal Manager
10.3 The claimant must complete the official travel claim form of the municipality,
approved by the Departmental Director and/or Municipal Manager prior to the claim
being processed.

11

HOTEL ACCOMMODATION

-

INTERVIEWS’ CANDIDATES (INVI TEE)

11.1 When booking accommodation for the external candidate invited for job interviews,
an enquiry for accommodation must be made at the establishment with a
government rate on accommodations.
11 .2 Actual cost of a 3 Star hotel on a bed and breakfast basis to the maximum amount
of RI 600 (VAT inclusive) per person per day, with prior approval by Municipal
Manager or delegated official can be incurred.
11.3 Where a 3 Star hotel is not available and/or the hotel with the threshold as per 11.2
above; a hotel of similar or higher grading may be used with prior approval by the
Departmental Director and/or Municipal Manager.
11 .4 Where a rate of a hotel, guest house or accommodation of a higher grading proves
to be cheaper than that of a 3 Star accommodation, the accommodation at a higher
grading venue may be accepted from the Departmental Director and/or Municipal
Manager.
11 .5 Invited candidates will be allowed overnight meals to the maximum amount of
R250.00 per night.
11.6 The municipality will not allow for any alcohol beverages; as a result, the cost to
such consumables will be on the candidate’s account.

12 REIMBURSEMENT OF TRAVEL COSTS

—

INTERVIEWS’ CANDIDATES (INVITEE)

12.1 The municipality will reimburse the interviews’ invitee travel costs based on the
actual distance travelled at R2.50 per kilometer as determined by Council,
regardless of the value and engine capacity of the vehicle.
12.2 The municipality will not reimburse travelling costs if the travelled kilometers
“from-base-to-Bitou” are less than 60 kilometers on a “one-way trip”.
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12.3 The claimant must complete the official travel claim form of the municipality,
recommended by Manager: HRM and approved by the Departmental Director
and/or Municipal Manager prior to the claim being processed
13 ENTERTAINMENT OF OTHER PERSONS
13.1 Entertainment of external business associates or contacts or clients or potential
investors or potential clients falls outside the scope of the subsLstence allowance
and will separately be reimbursed (subject to prior approvär of the Municipal
Manager where applicable).
13.2 Only the Executive Mayor, Deputy Executive Mayor, Speaker and Municipal
Manager will be allowed to entertain external business associates or contacts
or other parties. Prior arrangements must be made with the preferred local
restaurant(s) and costs to meals may not exceed R300 per person. No alcohol
beverages will be allowed.

14 AIR TRAVEL
14.1 Economic air travel.
14.2 For travelling to and from the airport, the normal travelling policy will apply.

15 ROAD IN STEAD OF AIR TRAVEL
15.1 Where air travel is available and the delegate wishes to travel by road the following
will apply:
-

15.2 Quotations where for economy air travel to the intended destination must be
submitted to the Head of Department; afterwards, an amount equal to lowest of the
quotations will be paid to the delegate as travelling expenses.
15.3

In addition to the above, the delegate will only be reimbursed for actual kilometers
travelled between the venue of the conference and the place of accommodation.

15.4 The delegate will receive a subsistence allowance for one day travelling time
irrespective the actual travelling time if this option is chosen (refer to par 8.2).
15.5

Where the cost of renting a vehicle as a travelling medium is determined to be more
cost effective than either travelling with own transport or travelling by air, the
Municipal Manager in agreement with the respective Head of Department and the
Chief Finance Officer may elect to rent a vehicle for travelling purposes for the
designated official.
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16 SHORT-TERM VEHICLE RENTAL
16.1 Payment of car rental related expenses of a Group B or C or C+ vehicle
, on
submission of documentary proof.
16.2 An official “Vehicle Rental Requisition” must be completed by the reques
tor/driver
and approved by the Departmental Director and/or Municipal Manager.
Once
approval has been granted, the Expenditure Management will process the
application and issue the requestor/driver with a Vehicle Rental Voucher.
16.3 Only one vehicle per delegate except if circumstances dictate otherwise
and prior
approval is granted by the Municipal Manager and/or delegated Head
of
Department upon submission of a detailed motivation.
16.4 Where more than four delegates are involved, a seven (7) or eight (8) seater
minibus
must be considered.
16.5 Maximum engine capacity of any hired vehicle should be 2000cc (exclud
ing
minibus).
16.6 Maximum kilometer allowance of 200km per day may be included in the daily rental
amount. However, in the event where the travel distance will be in excess of the
daily 200km; the municipality may opt to “unlimited kilometers” to curbing on
kilometers costs.
16.7 No personnel will be allowed to rent a vehicle without prior approval. All expens
es
relating to such rental will be for the renter’s account.

17 INSURANCE
All vehicle rentals will be made on Super-Waiver Insurance.
18 TRAFFIC FINES
18.1 The driver of the official and/or rented vehicle
responsible for the payment of the fine.

-

at the time of an offence

-

is

18.2 The costs of such fine as well as all the related admin fees will be recovered from
the driver (employee) through salary deductions without prior consultation.

INTERNATIONAL TRAVEL AND SUBSISTANCE
19 AIR TRAVEL
19.1 Economy class air-fare.
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19.2 Airport Tax Actual cost on presentation of receipt if not included in the airfare.
-

19,3 Airport Transfers
arrangements.

—

Actual cost on presentation of receipt if not included in the land

20 ACCOMMODATION
20.1 Actual cost of a three or presentation hotel on bed and breakfast basis.
20.2 Hotel taxes on presentation of receipt if not included in the room rate.

21 DAILY ALLOWANCE
21.1 A daily allowance of US$250.00 for meals, refreshments and incidental expenses,
where the accommodation is paid by the municipality.

22 TRAVELLING COSTS
22.1 Payment of car rental related expenses of a Group B or C or C+ vehicle, on
submission of documentary proof.
22.2 Only one vehicle per delegation.
22.3 A maximum of 250km per day.
22.4 International telecommunication cost incurred for official purposes will be paid to
representatives on a reimbursement basis upon submission of documentary proof
to the accounting officer. Reasonable private calls will be allowed but may not
exceed R200 per day for the period of travel outside the country.

23 REVIEW OF POLICY
23.1 This Subsistence and Travel Policy is the sole policy governing the subsistence and
travel in the Bitou Municipality and this policy will be reviewed annually by the Bitou
Council.
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